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A development financial institution created by the government, China Development Bank ('the
Bank" or "CDB") provides medium- to long-term financing facilities that assist in the development
of a robust economy and a healthy, prosperous community. It aligns its business focus with
national economic development strategy and allocates resources to break through bottlenecks in
China's economic and social development by leveraging development financing tools.

CDB carries out its mission by:

* Supporting the development of national infrastructure, basic industries, key emerging sectors,
and national priority projects;

* Promoting coordinated regional development and upgraded industrial transformation while
bolstering the new urbanization program;

* Developing inclusive finance by financing low-income housing and other initiatives focused on
livelihood improvement; and

* Facilitating China's cross-border investment and global business cooperation.

CDB is committed to market-based practices that stimulate solid performance, financial
robustness, sustainable growth and a healthy risk appetite; it strives to achieve eminence in
development finance to help sustain the sound development of economy and society.
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REFEFENERERIDENET, FHARELRBRRAHEITHRE.

The Board of Directors ('the Board"), Board of Supervisors, Directors, Supervisors and Executive Management of China
Development Bank Corporation confirm that the information presented in this report contains no false or misleading statement
or material omission; they and each of them assume joint and several liability as to the authenticity and completeness of this
report.

The Board of Directors of CDB had its third meeting of FY2015 (CDB has adopted the calendar year as its financial year) on
May 5, 2015, at which meeting the 2014 Annual Report was reviewed and approved.

The Bank’s financial statements for FY2014 are prepared in accordance with China Accounting Standards (CAS) and
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) respectively. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu Certified Public Accountants LLP
(DTT) has audited these in accordance with Chinese and international standards of auditing, and has issued an unqualified
auditor's report with respect thereto.

ERALRBITROBERADVEES

The Board of Directors of China Development Bank Corporation
—_O—HxEERAEH

May 5, 2015
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
ERFRBITHLZT
FRE|ETRBERAE,
EERL AR ERAXBITRMARAS) (EFR. BERFLET)
EEEXER: CHINA DEVELOPMENT BANK CORPORATION
( 8% . CHINA DEVELOPMENT BANK 455 . CDB)
EERRA: H PR FB
EMBEA ARM3,067. 11127
I HEE IERTARBEXEXTAKRE18S
HB B 4R A5 « 100031
HiE: 86-10-6830 6789
£H: 86-10-6830 6699
EFREEMMLE:  www.cdb.com.cn

China Development Bank was established in 1994. On December 11, 2008, in accordance with approval from the State
Council of the People’s Republic of China ('the State Council'), China Development Bank was incorporated as China

Development Bank Corporation.

Registered Name in English: CHINA DEVELOPMENT BANK CORPORATION

Legal Representative:
Registered Capital:
Registered Address:
Post Code:
Telephone:

Facsimile:

Website Address:

(shortened to CHINA DEVELOPMENT BANK or abbreviated as CDB)
Hu Huaibang

RMB 306.71 Billion

No. 18 Fuxingmennei Street, Xicheng District, Beijing

100031

86-10-6830 6789

86-10-6830 6699

www.cdb.com.cn
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

Bi. ARM10/ZTE H 4 L Billion RMB or %

2014

2K

R 10,317.0 8,197.2 7,534.9 6,252.3 5,112.83
Total Assets
SRR AL , 7,941.6 7,148.3 6,417.6 5,625.9 4,509.7
Loans Outstanding, Gross

NEREE

ROV ) ) 0.65% 0.48% 0.30% 0.40% 0.68%
Non-performing Loan Ratio
R ER
2N - o, o, o, ) o,
Allowance for Loan Losses to Total Loans S 3.05% 2.82% 2.22% 2.09%
BB 9,636.2 7,627.8 7,025.1 5,807.0 4,709.8
Total Liabilities T T T T T
RITHRHFR
Debt Securities Outstanding 6,353.6 5,840.6 5,302.2 4,476.4 3,727.5
B Rz
Total Shareholders' Equity 680.8 569.4 509.9 445.3 402.5
ﬁZ!K}EEK : 11.88% 11.28% 10.92% 10.78% 10.87%
Capital Adequacy Ratio
D
Net Profit 97.7 80.0 63.1 45.6 37.1

=]
ABFEN 178.7 171.5 154.4 116.5 87.7
Net Interest Income
3z 447 P 41—)_—%3
TR 1.06% 1.02% 0.92% 0.80% 0.77%
Return on Average Assets
4 RS TR AN 25 U 25 R
AR W 15.63% 14.82% 13.21% 10.76% 9.49%

Return on Average Shareholders' Equity

E1 AFEEREMBENEBY SBIBERIERETTEIENRS . REHEZAN BEREGRARTEMBETASEHA
7. RAR MR,

2, ERPAAZERZRPERGULEEEEZRS (R RES ABLRTALAR S RERMEIFHEINEITE.
2014 R, ATHERBRBRES(HURTAAETENE (KT FRXNETENRATRE H9.06%. BrHFHI5 AN, REE
RERBAATERBRBIEIAGIHARE.

Note 1: All financial data and indicators recorded in this Annual Report were prepared in accordance with CAS and, unless otherwise specified,
are consolidated amounts of the Bank and its subsidiaries and are denominated in Chinese yuan.

Note 2: The Bank's capital adequacy ratio as shown in the table was calculated in accordance with the Rules for Regulating the Capital Adequacy
Requirement of Commercial Banks issued by the China Banking Regulatory Commission (CBRC), while the end-2014 capital adequacy ratio would
be 9.06%, calculated under the CBRC Capital Rules for Commercial Banks (Provisional) and relevant guidelines. All regulatory capital and capital
adequacy ratios data in this Annual Report were calculated on the consolidated basis unless otherwise specified.
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Total Assets

103,170

B ARM10{Z7T Billion RMB
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7.0000 6,252.3
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4,000.0
3,000.0
2,000.0
1,000.0
0.0
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R ER

Allowance for Loan Losses to Total Loans

3.43%

4.00%

BB %

3.43%

3.50%

3.05%
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B FE
Net Profit
977 -
B ARM10{Z7T Bilion RMB
100 97.7
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80.0
80
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30
20
10
0
2010 2011 2012 2013 2014
RITRS R

Debt Securities Outstanding

63,536

B ARM10Z5T  Billion RMB

7,000.0
6,353.6
6,000.0 5,840.6
5,302.2
5,000.0
4,476.4

4,000.0 3,727.5
3,000.0
2,000.0
1,000.0

0.0

2010 2011 2012 2018 2014
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OPERATIONAL HIGHLIGHTS

2014 R ITARMEHFEH
Bonds Issued in 2014

BRFRHEETUSTHE

Outstanding Loan Balance: Breakdown by Industry

B ART10{ZTsi Bt Billion RMB or %

B (—FHUT . &—F)
Short-term Bonds (under 1 year, inclusive)

PR (—FHELFY aRF)

Mid-term Bonds (1 to 5 years, inclusive)

K (AFPE+FH, 5+F)

Long-term Bonds (5 to 10 years, inclusive)

B (+FME)

Super Long-term Bonds (over 10 years)

&1t Total

83 /1 Electric power

/AB& Public highways

2% Railway

Ai#AH Petrochemical

&% Coal

MR ER 1Ml Postal & telecommunications
RIIKF] Agriculture & related industries
NHEREHE Public infrastructure

HAth Others

&1t Total

198.6 16.90%

527.5 44.90%

438.4 37.30%

10.5 0.90%

1,175.0 100.00%

B BOLE %
10.07%
18.09%

8.10%
6.84%
1.40%
1.04%
3.11%
16.97%
34.38%
100.00%



7S HE 9
FINANCIAL SUMMARY

BREEM K S E
Net Loan Balance: Breakdown by Geography
BALESLE %

P X

Eastern

42.95%

FEpH X
Western

25.31%

H AR X
‘ Central
° . . o/
o e . 1 9 [ 04 O
KRB RUMbX BERORE S L AH12.70%

Note: Loans outside Mainland China accounted for 12.70% of the total portfolio

fERTR
Credit Ratings

Bl CDB

it ) peg  PRRE.RE WRRYE. BE
Moody's Outlook: Stable Outlook: Stable

PR RAT pn  PARE. TRE pa  TRRERE
Standard & Poor's Outlook: Stable Outlook: Stable
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B 5.

MARBENE, RFERK R
BMNEEFRUEESREBRIBREN . MR TEETT
MES RUFREE, MAERENANE. SISHSEE
XHBRBELFER EFRBARTRER1 84712, B
ELIB4C20% . B EE R E W AR N IF A X 2iE
EFRMPA TR 0861270 XIHHEBEAUGZEHS,
EHRIEMBESVESFERMES, K17933(2T
BERASXFIES N EWRE, RINEKEETT1,19512
TKHMEHRBIMLTT, 5" —H -8 FHREALY, 7
AXFRERMERERBRER. HEHRXFIL, XHFK
IEGTH  BBEBRFTNEL, MAX NI HKRTT
X BEEFREGEZFNE, BEMBA/ N Hd his
WSR2, NN B AMRE R REWEET
AXSNFFRIFRD, D —HEFEREBGHE, 5
LCRAEMBTZET. ARFEREARRBEH TR,

ENERENE, RERXRFEANN
EEEXBEARRUATHE, RRLETRAMEREK
BRR URTEEBXEF, FfLERER, #—FSHH
ERAAMEROEMMERTTE. #EHEHEES K
Ex BERAENGIZR, RANSAEE S, HHML
& nE HREEAMRERENAARGBET
£ EBRE MAAR. R XR, EHT AT LT
B E,

MELEEER, 2MRERASEIN

X R R BRI A TR B A& T AT 052 TR I
¥, BN EEBUARBOBLERE. RN S EHRE,
MERREFNRGEERE BHSTHER ARBITESRK
MXZMER ERHERARTR. BUGEEES LS
RRMBER, AR RES. GRAS. #FAFT A
BeEh, TASAFERLERKBE—F KAOKREFE WL
5 MBI B~ R elH, ek Se AR
BIN7%, MASEBRHE—-FRL SRRSKFERIES.
SR SRR HE PR AIBAL, S FE R L 1B 4C22% . ISR AR LKL

EE BIANETAARMNRERR, IHEARENHE—D
18R, MSRITRME R R MR ACIH, BRTHETUEERE
HIIERE

B ERE, RATREAT AR
TEEFREEATTRELARNERZEM FEANLE
TREFERIR, T HRERE T =E. PHHALF T8
VRRMNEREFR, HEREREIES], FIERETH
ABX, RUCEHEREERE, SR, Wk MEFERTL
HTXED . BEMNE RAREER REBEATRE
RE. XEFTHAE, B EENBIRENEENH. A
BHR- MR AMERFER, N R OCREHRAE
Mg, RIFRSLTRIE, PR XS, 7R ITOE N
RIHEFNEHE BAEAFRERNE. TERITHE
), REN S FRER,

BFEEMFERTT, REERIZSMEE

TERERENS BYERRRTEBRHERTEE
EHE, EHERFETMAREK. T ERFLTL, 1838
TG EAMERL. B THEREETEZW, RA
it REMIE, BAMLIRE TESRRTWHUAT A
. RUAFHERE, TETHERERANG, MRS E
RIEF AREPEBEATERUN, AERRREFLEN
B, TEMMARNS, RITHIRMMKIERSISNE,
BHASEAE NG, RR DT, TRAREEEEEN,

BEEeHEH FHLELEHEEY. BE2014F K,
R RPBEI10T127T, FIELIEK26%, SRR KRPR
2,6001Z € 7T . KSR 15 E K HA IR R WA XS SR B
REETHRTHM. £ FKEFFNEIT7ZT, FERAR
REKZE0.65%, LI FHERIFAEIRUA, A-RE
HERFRALGEKFE. FAMERINENERRTI LS
HERTZINT, FITERIERBARRITAER. ZER
SHBE EERABF. BEMI. REEML. T REF.
ERMEVMHSERRNIZIHNER B ERATEAE—
O IR BRI RR | I RO Y RS
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EFNhEERE FTEEHFAMERIMEL, EX
mipk. ERUHES . 0T ARS ExR AR, RITE X
ER. THEE REABFNRE #—PZETRX SR
BEIERE RRREEREK BENFTENERER,
MAMN TSGR EBARD AR NE, BER
LBE ISR R RETBR X, T B2 BRARMTIGIEL
W, BEARVEMABERE, FHNBRRAINALRE. A
BHSE. W8 BERE . RELR. A LRATF LM
SRS, AMEHLFIHFERRBELARTEMEREESD
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2014 marked the 20th anniversary of China Development Bank,
a memorable year in the history of our institution. Against a backdrop
of shifting economic and financial trends at home and abroad, CDB
continued to implement national macro policies while adapting
our business to the evolving demands of a new economic norm.
Throughout 2014, CDB worked to balance growth, risk control, and
sustainability through a progressive approach to development,
innovation and reform. The last year has seen significant
breakthroughs in both our policy and business mandates.

Financing National Development Initiatives

In times of decelerating growth in investment, development finance
can have a powerful ballast effect, optimizing resource allocation,
shoring up lending, and channeling funds into the real economy. In
2014, CDB extended RMB 1.84 trillion in loans, a 20% increase over
2013. The bank's newly established CDB Housing Finance business
unit provided tremendous support to China's urban renewal initiatives
with loans totaling RMB 408.6 billion. New urbanization pilots and
industrial initiatives received strong support, as well, including the
special policy funds such as the one dedicated to integrated circuit
industry, asset-backed securities of RMB 93.3 billion for restructuring
efforts, railroad loans of RMB 119.5 billion, and water infrastructure
lending of RMB 81.4 billion.

CDB participated in strategic planning for the new silk road initiative,
conducted policy research on the Beijing-Tianjin-Hebei regional
integration program, and issued white paper recommendations
on industrial revitalization in Northeast China, the formation of an
economic corridor along the Yangtze river, and development aid for
Xinjiang and Tibet.

CDB also increased its support for social initiatives such as
financing for small- and micro-sized enterprises, poverty alleviation,

and education. CDB waived RMB 2.5 billion in fees to small/micro
businesses and urban renewal programs in 2014, increasing the
accessibility and affordability of financial services.

Our bank worked to further open financial markets through
cooperation on a number of major international projects this year,
issuing over USD 100 billion in foreign currency loans.

Governance and Reform

CDB has a mandate to reform and consolidate its practice of
development finance, drawing on international experience while
remaining rooted in a distinctly Chinese context. This practice helps
to further refine the role and future development of development
finance. CDB will continue to improve governance and capacity
through the robust development of its Board of Directors, Board of
Supervisors, and executive management team. Business process
optimization can be achieved by streamlining internal processes
and adjusting organizational charts in order to clarify roles and
responsibilities and maximize resource efficiency. Parallel efforts
are being made to improve the professional caliber and market-
orientation of the Bank's subsidiaries.

Stronger Management for Better Results

As new changes and challenges emerge across the financial
landscape, CDB is investing in better forecasting capabilities and
making proactive adjustments to business operations as necessary.
We are fine-tuning our business mix, strengthening balance sheet
management, diversifying sources of capital, with retail bond issue
channels developed via banks and exchanges and renminbi bond
offering in London for the first time this year.

CDB is also working to build greater synergies between its business
lines, with hybrid products such as investment-plus-loans and debt-
plus-loans. Improved coordination between the CDB Group and its
various subsidiaries has seen subsidiary profits more than double
over the past year. An increased focus on intermediary services and
innovation in asset securitization and retail financial products has
boosted net revenues from intermediary services by 17% year-on-
year. With revenues diversifying, service quality improving, costs
dropping, and impact deepening, CDB's net profit saw a total year-
on-year increase of 22% in 2014.

CDB's financial sustainability has been bolstered by intensive, organic
capital management, and investments in IT talent and technology
have created a strong back-end platform to support the bank's long-
term growth.

Risk Control for Sustainable Growth

Effective risk control must be at the foundation of CDB's future
development. This means building a bank-wide culture of risk-
consciousness and establishing clear and inviolate lien of defense
for risk tolerance. Sound analysis of potential upside and risks



in down-trending industries has been used to establish lending
guidelines and conduct more stringent reviews of our project
pipeline. Management of risk across the lending lifecycle has
been essential to maintaining asset quality, with streamlined risk
analysis, monitoring, screening, and strengthened debt servicing
in key industries such as photovoltaics, steel, and shipbuilding.
Market risk also must be carefully tracked. The optimization of
internal interest rate setting mechanisms and balance sheet
currency mixes offers an effective approach to managing interest
and exchange rates volatility; maintaining adequate capital,
meanwhile, is key to controlling liquidity risk. CDB is developing
methodologies to screen and assess risk in the IT sector,
strengthening rules-based systems around risk control and
building out auditing systems while ensuring sustained growth of
our business.

Discipline and Compliance

CDB is a champion of rules-based decision-making, and has
developed active as well as retroactive systems for holding decision-
makers accountable and bringing greater openness, professionalism,
and transparency to the Bank's policy, implementation, and
results. Disciplinary meetings of staff, anti-corruption initiatives,
and workplace transparency efforts have helped to further elevate
the Bank's highly professional staff and management team.
Institutional reform and innovation in human resources-including
more transparent hiring and promotion systems, youth mentorship
initiatives, and our first management trainee program-are solid
investments in the future of our institution. Improved structuring
of incentives/discipline and performance-based rewards have
succeeded in focusing energies on priority tasks and unlocking
potential in our branch banks and subsidiaries.

Thanks to the dedicated effort of our entire staff, CDB continues
to enjoy strong business success. As of the end of 2014, CDB
maintained its status as China's leading medium- to long-term lender
and largest cross-border financier with total assets up 26% year-on-
year to over RMB 10 trillion and outstanding foreign currency loans
of over USD 260 billion. Net profits of the Group for the year reached
RMB 97.7 billion. CDB also remained best-in-class in terms of asset
quality, with a year-end non-performing loan ratio of only 0.65%,
maintaining a record of 39 consecutive quarters with an NPL of under
1%.

The role of development finance in China received widespread
recognition and support in 2014, with CDB winning its ninth
consecutive annual People's Social Responsibility Award. None of
these achievements would have been possible, of course, without
the tremendous support we have received from the government
authorities, our regulators, shareholders, clients, industry peers, the
general public, and the entire staff and management of the CDB family.
Great have been the fruits of our common labor, and | would like to
take this opportunity to express my sincere and heartfelt gratitude.

EEKEH
CHAIRMAN'S REVIEW

The Year Ahead

The coming year will be critical as China-and CDB-prepares to
deepen a comprehensive program of reforms. The public has high
expectations for CDB and the role of development finance under
a new economic norm. As we stand at this historic moment, CDB
is prepared to maintain its commitment to development finance
while adapting to new international and market realities. CDB will
continue to leverage its unique strategic mandate and sovereign
credit standing in service of national development initiatives based
on market orientated principles. The bank will play an important
role in promoting stable growth and rebalancing in the Chinese
economy, with timely investments in key sectors and weak links.
With deeper reform and enhanced institutional and policy support,
CDB will strengthen its organizational and governance capacity,
creating robust mechanisms for oversight and internal management.
CDB strives to further burnish its reputation as a tightly managed,
responsibly governed development finance institution with adequate
capital, sound operations, and the highest quality of service and
assets. In 2015, CDB looks forward to making new contributions to
the development and stability of the Chinese economy.
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BE
Total Assets RMB 10.3 Trillion

10.3 »e=

BIRRRER

Loan Balance RMB 7.94 Trillion

7.94 5

i

Net Profit RMB 97.7 Billion

O77 v

BB BTX

Urban Renewal Loans RMB 408.6 Billion

4,086 =
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CDB made progress across the board in 2014, strengthening
business operations and risk control while remaining committed to
the implementation of macroeconomic policy and the promotion
of stable growth, reform, rebalancing, and development impact.
As of the end of 2014, CDB's total assets had grown 26% year-on-
year to RMB 10.3 trillion. The bank had an outstanding loan book

of RMB 7.94 ftrillion, with a non-performing loan ratio of only 0.65%,
maintaining an NPL of under 1% for a thirty-ninth consecutive quarter.
CDB earned RMB 97.7 billion in net profits, with an ROA of 1.06%,
an ROE of 15.63%, a capital adequacy ratio of 11.88%, and an
increasingly robust capacity for sustainable business development
and risk containment.

2014 IN REVIEW
Lending to the Real Economy

CDB extended financing support to new urbanization pilots in Anhui
and Liaoning provinces, fleshing out the urbanization movement
with RMB 1.11 trillion in development loans. The bank supported an
additional seven categories of national infrastructure, including RMB
119.5 billion in railway loans (breaking RMB 100 billion for a second
year). CDB also continued to lead its industry peers in lending to water
infrastructure, with RMB 81.4 billion in new loans issued in 2014.

Regional development policies such as the "4 regions + 3 economic
belts" strategy were the focus of coordinated financing support,
with RMB 474.4 billion in new loans to China's west, central, and
northeastern industrial regions, and an additional RMB 68.9 billion in
development lending to Xinjiang and Tibet.

CDB also promoted the restructuring of the Chinese economy; in
2014, the bank launched an integrated circuit industry fund, and
issued RMB 218.2 billion in emerging industry loans and RMB 42.5
billion in cultural industry loans.

Social and welfare development remained an important focus of
CDB financing, as well, with RMB 32.6 billion in agricultural loans,
RMB 61.9 billion in small- and micro-sized enterprise loans, RMB
14.7 billion in student loans, RMB 147.7 billion in poverty alleviation,
RMB 500 million in pension loans, and RMB 2.1 billion in emergency
loans to disaster-stricken areas such as Ludian and Pu'er in Yunnan
Province.

Support for Urban Renewal

Financing urban renewal of rundown districts has emerged as a top
priority for our bank, and our newly established CDB Housing Finance
business unit offers intensive and dedicated financing services in this
sector. We have established a “fast track” review process for urban
renewal loans to ensure prompt and at-scale financing solutions.
We have also brought large pools of public and private funding into
the urban renewal effort through an innovative product line featuring
mixed rates syndication arrangements, bond-plus-loan combinations,
and social security and pension funds. CDB has also reduced the
financing costs by offering preferential interest rates and fee waivers.
In 2014, CDB issued RMB 408.6 billion in urban renewal loans. To
date, CDB loans funded a total floor areas of 900 million m? built with
28.57 million people in 9.16 million households benefitted as a result.

Growth in Cross-border Business

CDB continued to expand its international cooperation in sectors
such as infrastructure, clean energy, SMEs, while moving forward on
major cross-border projects such as purchase of the Las Bambas



copper mine in Peru by a consortium led by Minmetals. CDB
has leveraged the Shanghai Cooperation Organization Interbank
Association and the China-ASEAN Interbank Association and
contributed to the establishment of a Silk Road Fund to serve China's
regional integration strategy and to promote project implementation
in and around those areas. The bank also opened a representative
office in Caracas. As of the end of 2014, outstanding foreign currency
loans totaled USD 267 billion.

Increased Capacity for Bond Issues

CDB issued RMB 1.17 trillion in bonds in 2014, bringing its
cumulative bond total to over one trillion yuan. Direct retail access to
bond offerings was improved with RMB 6.7 billion sold through retail
bank channels, in addition to RMB 18 billion sold in exchanges. RMB
bonds of 2.5 billion yuan were issued in Hong Kong and the first
offering of renminbi bonds in London raised two billion yuan, further
promoting the internationalization of the renminbi.

Deepened Cooperation in Strategic Planning

In 2014, CDB participated in strategic planning initiatives such as
the Beijing-Tianjin-Hebei regional integration plan, the Yangtze River
Economic Belt, and the 13th Five Year Plan. Our bank has also
been active in implementing national plans for new urbanization,
compiling 36 plans on financing for provincial-, city-, and county-level
urbanization, and 35 plans on financing provincial-level urban renewal
programs. International planning cooperation has also been steadily
increasing, with an emphasis on outcomes and implementation.

Improved Financial Services

CDB underwrote bonds worth RMB 761.6 billion in 2014, with seven
issues of RMB 10 billion corporate debt-plus-loan products designed
to support urban renewal. Our bank also issued the country's first
RMB 1.5 billion note dedicated to urban renewal. Financial innovation
continued over the past year, as CDB issued RMB 93.3 billion in
securitized products, including a newly developed hybrid asset-back
securities product. Net revenues from fee business rose to RMB
13.9 billion in 2014, as improvements in CDB's asset management
business came alongside new launch of retail financial products,
bringing the bank's cumulative issues up to 499 products to date.

Comprehensive Risk Management

CDB's risk management capacity has been enhanced by improved
management and quality of project appraisal, comprehensive and
targeted risk screening, and increased risk analysis and surveillance
in key projects and industries. The bank has also strengthened
risk management accountability and post-evaluation systems.
Management of loan servicing, secondary source of repayment
risk, and legal risk has improved across the board, while internal
supervisory structures and joint oversight mechanisms have greatly
enhanced risk governance.

Heightened Business Performance

In 2014, CDB worked to improve asset and liability as well as
liquidity management and develop more robust fund transfer
pricing mechanisms. An intensive capital management strategy

TIREE
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featuring profit retention and excess reserves brought the bank's
capital reserve up by RMB 111.2 billion. Cost-cutting and efficiency
measures brought the bank's cost-to-income ratio down to 4.5%.
Business processes and organizational charts were optimized,
yielding significant improvements in process and workflows.
Operating capacity was strengthened with eight new IT systems
going live in the past year and a smooth transition to the second-
generation China National Advanced Payment System (CNAPS2).

The achievements of the past year would not have been possible
without the intelligence, perseverance, and spirit of the entire CDB
family. | would like to take this opportunity on behalf of the bank's
senior management to offer our most heartfelt thanks to the entire
CDB staff for their hard work and dedication, as well as to the
many partners that have supported and continue to support the
development of our bank!

LOOKING FORWARD TO 2015

In 2015, CDB will continue to work to strengthen China and improve
the lives of the Chinese people, leveraging the power of development
finance in service of the national economy and medium- and long-
term development strategies.

Resource Allocation-CDB will offer support for key areas and
weak links in the economy, with an emphasis on meeting the
financing needs of critical sectors such as urban renewal of rundown
districts, railway, water infrastructure, and integrated circuitry. The
Silk Road Economic Belt and the 21st Century Maritime Silk Road
will be a strategic focus as we continue to develop our business
internationally.

Funding Sustainability-CDB will continue to optimize its liability
composition, balance the volume, pace and maturities of bond
issues, and further diversify its sources of funding.

Refined Management-CDB will strengthen asset and liability
management, fine-tune pricing mechanisms, consolidate the
development of its integrated operations and intermediary business,
and ensure progressive reform in its subsidiaries.

Line of Defence-CDB will bolster risk prevention and accountability
culture, improve governance, and closely manage key risk areas to
ensure the quality and stability of bank assets.

2015 is posed to be a critical year in CDB's reform and development.
With the gumption and ingenuity of the entire CDB family, however,
we are confident that the coming year will bring tremendous new
success in our business and in our contributions to the national
strategic and development initiatives of China.
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MESSAGE FROM THE SUPERVISORY CHAIRMAN

2014F, ATEESULIABERFE . AN ROVANAENGE—AERF BAOBRRIFNASIEE TESEER.
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BB, FUA IR RER RN TE,
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3.

In 2014, the Board of Supervisors remained dedicated to balancing national interests, shareholder value, and business performance. The Board
also worked to strengthen governance and improve communication and coordination with the Board of Directors and senior management. We
remained dedicated to fulfilling our legal role as supervisors with appropriate degrees of synergy, checks, and balances.

Throughout the year, members of CDB's Board of Supervisors continued to focus on the supervision of the Board of Directors and senior
management team to make sure they work to implement national policy in service of strategic development goals, deepen institutional reforms
and business compliance; and carry out our fiduciary duties and assessment with a spirit of objectivity and fairness.

We continue to keep a watchful eye on the reporting accuracy and ultimate sustainability of the CDB Group's finances. Further improvements
to the Bank's internal mechanisms and effective management and control of risk are key to progress in fulfill our mandate and meeting our
business objectives.

We remain committed to the further development of the Board of Supervisors itself and to an increasingly sophisticated understanding of the
direction of the Chinese economy under new norms. We will continue to strengthen our capacity as a rules-based supervisory body, and play
our due role in the oversight and supervision of bank activities.
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PROFILES OF DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS, EXECUTIVE MANAGEMENT AND STAFF

-
Board of Directors

HIRFD BEEK NWTES 3 195542094 20134048
Hu Huaibang Chairman, Executive Director M September 1955 April 2013
MWzA BlESEK WiES 5 19584058 20124108
Zheng Zhijie Vice Chairman, Executive Director M May 1958 October 2012
=hHE FRTES 2 19634118 2008% 128
Zhang Shude Non-Executive Director M November 1963 December 2008
® R FRfTES kS 19564£02H 2008124
Luo Mi Non-Executive Director F February 1956 December 2008
Pedks FRTES % 19524E07 A 20124E09 A
Pang Jiying Non-Executive Director M July 1952 September 2012
RYELE FRTES 3 1957££09 A 20124038
Huang Weijia Non-Executive Director M September 1957 March 2012
i FRfTES 3 19574F06 5 2012403 8
Lai Weiwen Non-Executive Director M June 1957 March 2012
EA R FRfTES 3 1959408 201242037
Yue Gongxia Non-Executive Director M August 1959 March 2012

# R FRTES 3 19734E07 A 20124F03 8
Huang Hao Non-Executive Director M July 1973 March 2012

Z= 4R ERITES = 19584F03 H 20144088

Li Shaogang Non-Executive Director M March 1958 August 2014
Bz M ERTES S 1949406 B 20124E09 3
Chen Xiaoyun Independent Non-Executive Director F June 1949 September 2012

=

Board of Supervisors

X4 EEK 2 19564E128 20144018
Liu Meisheng Chairman M December 1956 January 2014
edobES BEREKE L2 19584E07H 20084128
Leng Xiangyang Shareholder Representative Supervisor M July 1958 December 2008
) BRARESE 3 19594017 20144127

Li Fu Shareholder Representative Supervisor M January 1959 December 2014
#/)V BB RIRKES % 19604118 20144028
Hu Xiaoming Employee Representative Supervisor F November 1960 February 2014
AL RIRKES %z 19614F04 8 2008124
Hu Hongzhuan Employee Representative Supervisor F April 1961 December 2008
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Name Title of Position Gender Date of Birth In Office Since
A& (FR:S E 19584051 20124108
Zheng Zhijie President M May 1958 October 2012
FEF EEFR:S 2 19554£09 20084E12H

Li Jiping Executive Vice President M September 1955 December 2008
TRE EIESRIS E 1958401H 20114E01 8
Wang Yongsheng Executive Vice President M January 1958 January 2011

R N EIESR'S 3 1962££09 3 20124E03 8
Yuan Li Executive Vice President M September 1962 March 2012
AEE fLEHL E 1962409 H 20104128
Zhou Qingyu Chief Compliance Officer M September 1962 December 2010
S B RS B 195508 B 20134128
Zhao Xiaoyu Executive Vice President M August 1955 December 2013
KB E EIEER S 3 1964£10H 20134108
Zhang Xuguang Executive Vice President M October 1964 October 2013
(=S BEESWB 3 1962407 H 20084128
Chen Min Secretary of the Board of Directors M July 1962 December 2008
B 4k 5. ELL N 3 1956££04 A 2010£E048
Chen Jizhong Chief Audit Officer M April 1956 April 2010
3K HEXNKRE % 19574F07H 2014018
Yang Wenqi Chief Risk Officer M July 1957 January 2014

EF LEVNSREEEZHERL
Changes in the Board of Directors, Board of Supervisors
and Executive Management

EETHER:

Changes in the Board of Directors:
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TEE,
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BEERSX. EAREEATERGTES. RINEESE
REHE T RE RO,

As approved at the second extraordinary meeting of shareholders
in 2014 and by the CBRC, Li Shaogang was elected Non-Executive
Director. Song Aiwu ceased to serve as Non-Executive Director;
Du Jian ceased to serve as Independent Non-Executive Director,
effective July 11, 2014. Zheng Xinli ceased to serve as Independent
Non-Executive Director, effective March 1, 2015.

As approved at the first extraordinary meeting of shareholders in 2015,
Mi Jingping and Yin Chun were elected to succeed Lai Weiwen and
Yue Gongxia as Non-Executive Directors, subject to CBRC approval.

BETHFR.

Changes in the Board of Supervisors:

KAAETOBEERFESER TEBARTRERRYLE.
BERERREERERIBEE M EMERRRFET, FT
A EEAH20144E12812H .,

As approved at the annual meeting of shareholders in 2013, Li Fu
was elected Shareholder Representative Supervisor.

Geng Jianyun retired from this position due to relevant rules and his
age, effective December 12, 2014.

mL

Staff

B E20145E R, RITHBE R T8,723 N, HFI7%H Z T
BAREMUEZT, 03%MATHBERARERULEZED.

As of the end of 2014, the Bank had a workforce of 8,723, with 97%
holding a bachelor's degree or higher and 60.3% holding a master’s
degree or higher.
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HARFR EEK HTEE W2 REEK MTES

Hu Huaibang Chairman, Executive Director Zheng Zhijie  Vice Charman, Executive Director
ERE FRTESE # OB FneEs

Zhang Shude Non-Executive Director Luo Mi  Non-Executive Director

BUE  fhoEs HYE FniTiEE

Pang Jiying Non-Executive Director Huang Weijia Non-Executive Director
HEX  EnoER /NS ERTES

Lai Weiwen Non-Executive Director Yue Gongxia Non-Executive Director
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B R nnEs RN FRTEE
Huang Hao Non-Executive Director Li Shaogang Non-Executive Director

Bz EESIRSS &
Chen Xiaoyun  Independent Non-Executive Director
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X & BEK bEglpEs BRRELE

Liu Meisheng  Chaiman of the Supervisory Board Leng Xiangyang  Shareholder Representative Supervisor
F B mrERzusE A /INBA RIRKLE

Li  Fu Shareholder Representative Supervisor Hu Xiaoming Employee Representative Supervisor
AR RIRKLSE

Hu Hongzhuan  Employee Representative Supervisor
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EXECUTIVE MANAGEMENT

B2 FEF aek

Zheng Zhijie President Li Jiping  Executive Vice President
ITHRE Bk ® N oaek

Wang Yongsheng Executive Vice President YuanLi Executive Vice President
BAE=E LERE BT Bk

Zhou Qingyu  Chief Complance Officer Zhao Xiaoyu Executive Vice President
SKABSE BlTK B R Emzus

Zhang Xuguang Executive Vice President Chen Min Secretary of the Board of Directors



26 | EF LKE SREBRERRMRALER
PROFILES OF DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS, EXECUTIVE MANAGEMENT AND STAFF

BREBEAR
EXECUTIVE MANAGEMENT

R4k 8 EREITE wXlE  aERARE
Chen Jizhong  Chief Audit Officer Yang Wenqi  Chief Risk Officer
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CHANGES IN SHARE CAPITAL AND SHAREHOLDERS

AOTREFEEZPEARAMBEMBED (U TER MBS FRCERFFRFTEAS (UTERLEAF") MeEH
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CDB's shareholders are the Ministry of Finance (MoF), Central Huijin Investment Ltd. (Huijin) and the National Council for Social Security Fund
(NCSSF). Shareholders' details as of the end of 2014 are shown in the following table:

BB RIS H (R) FERREE il
Shareholder Number of Shares (Shares) % of Total
It s
M.Ej.(uﬂ . 1583,908,000,000 50.18%
Ministry of Finance
L&T o
Central Huijin Investment Ltd 146,092,000,000 47.63%
HRESEES 9
National Council for Social Security Fund 6,711,409,395 2.19%
&it

306,711,409,395 100.00%
Total

RIT2014F AR HIMBR AL N FHEIRL.
BB A E S Be A R ER ] R EEER MBI X FIZMBBER. ¢t T W B S EFIRERZIBESR].

LCEATRMECPEARKMEASE)AERHARIMNETRE LS, RIFESFHREN, MEFFHRAKERMEK
ENERERERAVTEERANFTNBTHAANS KAEFERAS~RERE.

HRESHEESRLEHSREESNEESENN, AESHREEFLEN AESKREEAS FER

BeiX AR TR &

Hl

SN ES

Hl

There were no changes in share capital or shareholders in 2014.

The MoF is a unit of the State Council. It is the administrative and executive body primarily responsible for managing fiscal revenues and
expenditures, formulating fiscal and taxation policies and performing fiscal supervision.

Huijin is a wholly state-owned limited liability company incorporated in accordance with the Company Law of the PRC. With the State Council's
authorization, it represents the state in exercising the state's rights in performing its responsibilities as an investor to key state-owned financial
institutions, within the limits of its capital contributions and in compliance with applicable laws and regulations of the state.

NCSSF is a government agency responsible for the management and operation of the National Social Security Fund. It is under the direct
leadership and supervision of the State Council or the authorized department of the State Council.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE

20144, AT HRBEI R SR VHEHNER, IRASIAEE NER, TERFRRIG, ASesBsE, BB
RE T HEENG, =x—FR &IHR HEEZE BREETAENES EFSRFEREREK, BFESRREERRK,
SRAEERETE, HASTATRIRER, XEHEDETHERE.

In 2014, the Bank continued with the development of its corporate governance structure and improvements in its decision-making mechanisms and

standardized management processes, based on the leading principles, practices and requirements of modern financial institutions. Throughout the
year, the shareholders, the Board of Directors, the Board of Supervisors, and the Executive Management performed their duties and contributed to

the successful reform and development of CDB.
BEXS
General Meetings of Shareholders

EES BES

Board of Directors Board of Supervisors

HREARSKRAEEZRS

Strategy and Investment Committee

s = A
HItERS e
Audit Committee I%gﬂ'é:ii}:ﬁ
Executive Management
REEEERS BRRBUBEZRRS
Risk Management Committee Performance of Fiduciary Duties

Supervision Committee

KXBRZBEHERS
Related Party Transactions Committee

WSS NGB ERRS

Finance and Internal Control

Supervision Committee

AESHHERS

Personnel and Remuneration Committee
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GENERAL MEETINGS OF SHAREHOLDERS
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One annual general meeting of shareholders and two extraordinary
general meetings of shareholders were held in 2014. At the annual
general meeting, nine proposals were deliberated, approved and
adopted. These included proposals on the 2013 financial statements,
2014 financial budget, the decision on the accounting firm for FY 2014,
and work reports of the Board of Directors and Board of Supervisors.
At the extraordinary general meetings, proposals on domestic issuance
of yuan-denominated financial debentures, foreign-denominated debts
and overseas issuance of yuan-denominated financial debentures
were deliberated, approved and adopted. Each meeting followed due
process and ensured that the interests and rights of all shareholders

were maintained. Lawyers were present at the meetings and attested
to their procedural regularity.

55D

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
EESEBEREINRZERSIRE

Directors and Committees

BRI, ATESFSHIIBESTHN, P EFKEHP KT
BT BIEBKAMARIET, RITEE2R, 815 IR,
Mz EMITESSR . OF. EWE #2R B BHEE
BB ok BR AN, MYEE1R. FE, EES
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ENERARHVERTSNT, FEFSEN QEFRHT
VRN T W ERHETRE.

The Board of Directors consists of eleven directors. These include:
two executive directors, Hu Huaibang, Chairman, and Zheng Zhijie,
Vice Chairman; eight non-executive directors, Zhang Shude, Luo Mi,
Pang Jiying, Huang Weijia, Lai Weiwen, Yue Gongxia, Huang Hao
and Li Shaogang; and one independent non-executive directors,
Chen Xiaoyun. The secretary of the Board is Chen Min.

Five committees are set up under the Board: the Strategy and
Investment Committee, Audit Committee, Risk Management
Committee, Related Party Transactions Committee and the Personnel
and Remuneration Committee. These committees report directly to the
Board and, with the authorization of the Board, provide advice to the
Board and make decisions on specific matters on behalf of the Board.

EESHWIRERIEE
Conduct Guide
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The Board performs its duties in compliance with applicable laws,
regulations, provisions of the Bank's Articles of Association and the
resolutions and authorizations adopted at the general meetings of
shareholders.

EERRU

Meetings

20145, AFTERSRBATASEREFEER, #£3
EESLWOR, HIBE2013EEMERE. 2014EF
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In accordance with the Bank's Articles of Association and protocols
of the committees, the Board held nine meetings in 2014. At these
meetings, 27 proposals were approved and adopted, including
proposals on the Bank's 2013 financial statements, 2014 financial
budget, establishment of CDB Housing Finance as a business unit,
domestic issuance of yuan-denominated financial debentures and
overseas issuance of yuan-denominated debentures, as well as the
change in membership of Board committees and engagement of the
accounting firm. The Board committees held 16 meetings, at which
seven proposals were deliberated, approved and adopted. At these
meetings, the results of comprehensive risk management, financial

management, compliance risk, internal control management and
internal audit were presented and reviewed.

EESWRFEXSRIMITER

Execution of General Meetings of Shareholders
AFTEERINE. 0. PEBRT T ATEREHRNEF
BB IR A= B IGBIE R AR SRR

The Board carefully, completely, and rigorously executed the

resolutions of the general meetings of shareholders held during the
reporting period.

EESTETE

Main Tasks
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In 2014, the Board of Directors was proactive in responding to the
difficult and complex economic environment, both in China and across
the globe, by adopting prudent decision-making processes. Through
its positioning and management guidance as a developmental financial
institution while leveraging its strength and role in medium- to long-
term financing, the Bank made further achievements in supporting the
government's major medium- to long-term development strategies as
well as achieving successful alignment of national interests, shareholder
returns and the interests of the Bank. The Board carried out in-depth

studies on key development issues faced by the Bank and made efforts
to resolve these issues through changes in policies and systems.

The Board continued to extend the mission of the Bank and carried
out in-depth studies on key development issues faced by the Bank. It
established CDB Housing Finance to fund nationwide urban renewal
and urban infrastructure projects. It reformed the Bank's subsidiaries,
enhancing both their professionalism and market position, so they
played a stronger role in coordinating, cooperating and supporting the
Bank. The Board reviewed and approved these important proposals
while exercising due care. It encouraged good financial management
and allocated additional financial resources to national strategic priority
areas and key projects, as well as supported the growth of funding
businesses, by approving the overseas issuance of yuan-denominated
debentures including the issuance of RMB 2 billion of yuan-denominated
debentures in London, in order to expand the Bank's diversified funding
sources. It also helped strengthen the Bank's capital management
by facilitating the issuance of RMB 12 billion in subordinated debt
instruments to boost tier-2 capital, which enhanced the Bank's capability
of sustainable development. It improved the Bank's internal audit
structure, enhanced the supervision of the internal audit process and
optimized the Bank's network structure of institutions overseas to
facilitate the development of overseas branches. It adjusted membership
of Board committees in order to optimize their personnel in terms of
skills and requirements, strengthening the Board's system-building for
governance. It deliberated and approved the rules and regulations,
including management practices, of related party transactions and
promoted the construction of an improved corporate governance
system. The Board also recognized the importance of risk management
by strengthening the development of the Bank's comprehensive
risk management system and processes, striving to establish
enhanced accountability for risk management in order to enhance risk
management awareness across the Bank. The Board even went further
and periodically carried out risk management reviews across the Bank,
and performed research on risks of industries, clients and sectors and
external auditing practices, so as to promote the Bank's compliance with
all relevant laws and regulations.
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Supervisors and Committees
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The Board of Supervisors consists of five members. These include: Liu
Meisheng, Chairman and shareholder representative supervisor; two
other shareholder representative supervisors, Leng Xiangyang and Li
Fu; and two employee representative supervisors, Hu Xiaoming and Hu
Hongzhuan.

The Board of Supervisors has two committees: the Performance of Fiduciary
Duties Supervision Committee and the Finance and Internal Control
Supervision Committee. Both committees work within the authorization
delegated by the Board of Supervisors and report directly to it.
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Conduct Guide
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The Board of Supervisors performs its duties in accordance with
applicable laws, regulations and provisions of the Bank's Articles

of Association, and within the resolutions and authorizations of the
general meetings of shareholders.

BRI
Meetings

20144, ATHESERBATAIERSFHEER, #£3
FREFESIWIR BERETNERRSWER, FilEE
AT EELNSAEERREH R013EBRRRIFMN
BRI EEVEKRE FEMSME. B THEREF28
TN ER,

In accordance with the Bank's Articles of Association and protocols of
the committees, the Board of Supervisors held seven general meetings
in 2014; its committees held eight meetings, at which 28 proposals
were deliberated, approved and adopted in compliance with the Bank's
Articles of Association. These included statements of opinion on the
performance of fiduciary duties of the 2013 Board and Executive

Management, 2013 Annual Report, annual financial budget, and work
report of the Board of Supervisors.
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In 2014, the Board of Supervisors performed its duties in accordance
with applicable laws, regulations and provisions of the Bank's Articles
of Association. It strengthened the day-to-day supervision, diversified
supervisory methods, focused on supervising the Board of Directors



and senior management in implementing and serving the national
strategies, and implementation of urban renewal and other priorities.
It paid close attention to the implementation of the supervisory
advice from the audit department and other related departments to
enhance the awareness of compliance operation across the Bank. It
attached importance to financial sustainability to improve the quality
and efficiency of business development. It supervised the integrity
of internal controls and promoted the strengthening of the process
to detect and correct managerial shortcomings. It supervised the
effectiveness of risk management to strengthen comprehensive
risk management and adhere to the base line of risks. It completed
the 2013 annual performance evaluation of the Board of Directors,
senior management and its members and a review of the 2013
annual financial report and put forward supervisory comments and
suggestions.

The Board also completed four special research projects, these being
management alerts implementation, bookkeeping services, resolution
of client risks in projects and accountability in risk management.
The Board also sent one management alert. It strengthened self-
construction, completed the "System Compilation for Board of
Supervisors', carried out research and study on economic and financial
hot issues and enhanced its professional capacity in performing
its duties. The Board played a critical role in corporate governance
improvement, promotion of reform and sustainable growth of the Bank.
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The Bank's Executive Management, consisting of the president and
other executives, reports directly to the Board. The president performs
his duties in accordance with applicable laws, regulations and
provisions of the Bank's Articles of Association, with the authorization of
the shareholders as approved at the general meetings of shareholders
and as authorized by the Board.
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In order to broaden its international perspective and accelerate its
progress towards becoming a top-tier international bank, the Bank
set up its International Advisory Council (‘the Council') in 1999. The
Council consists of distinguished members from political, financial and
academic spheres around the world. It meets once a year to discuss
the current global and domestic economic and financial developments,

NEVAERE
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

the Bank's performance and development issues; it advises the Bank's
management on its growth strategies.

The Council's 15th meeting & CDB's 20th Anniversary Seminar were
held in March 2014 in Beijing, with extensive and in-depth discussions
on topics including CDB's 20 years of development history, international
experience of developmental financial institutions and the current
economic and financial situation of the world and China. The meeting
provided many valuable insights, especially in relation to insisting on
the positioning of developmental financial institutions and deepening
operations management and business development.
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According to the Articles of Association of the Bank, the Board is
responsible for developing the Bank's internal control policies and
supervising their implementation. As delegated by the Board, the Audit
Committee examines, monitors and evaluates the Bank's internal audit
process. The Internal Audit Department maintains the capacity of
carrying out necessary internal audit-related work and reports directly
to the Board.

In 2014, the Bank continued to enhance its internal audit function
according to the Bank's corporate governance requirements by
conducting risk-based special audits in asset securitization and
financial transactions, and audit research on urban renewal,
bookkeeping business and risk control of branches. It also carried out
audits of three branches, covering full operations and management
processes of these entities in 2013. It cooperated with the National
Audit Office of People's Republic of China to complete the auditing
over the assets, liabilities, profits and losses of the Bank in 2013. It also
performed audits on foreign currency funding, the Hong Kong Branch,
anti-money laundering and data quality assessment, according to
applicable regulatory requirements and the focus of regulatory bodies.
In the spirit of the National Economic Responsibility Audit Conference,
the Bank enhanced the audit of the economic responsibility of the
Bank's leaders during their tenures and the acceptance and handling of
social reporting, and improved the Bank's whistleblowing mechanism.
These efforts contributed to properly regulated and sound operations
within the Bank. The Bank promoted the reform of the internal audit
department, established the Audit Bureau and vertical and independent
internal audit processes to improve the capability, performance and
value contribution of the internal audit department's work and the
building of a long-term joint supervision mechanism.
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In 2014, the global economy continued to generally recover, albeit at different rates in different regions. The international financial markets
encountered increased volatility and, at the same time, the Chinese economy entered a new normal, with greater downward pressure on its
economy. Leveraging its strengths in developmental financing and medium- to long-term investment and financing, the Bank adhered to the
general principle of making progress while maintaining stability, and actively supported the implementation of national macroeconomic policies
to help the nation achieve stable growth, economic reform, rebalancing and social development. It obtained excellent growth across all its
business lines. While facing a changing monetary policy, the Bank optimized its liability structure and adopted diversified funding channels. By
dedicating its credit resources to key areas, the Bank helped to boost the real economy. It also strengthened its operations management and
risk management practice, achieving excellent financial results, including an ROA ratio of 1.06% and an ROE ratio of 15.63%.
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In 2014, the Bank continued its strong growth in profitability, delivering an operating profit of RMB 128.88 billion, up 21.83% year-on-year.

Net interest income was the Bank's largest income source. During the year, net interest income grew by 4.19% to RMB 178.69 billion. The
quality and returns of the Bank's intermediary businesses further improved with diversified income streams. In addition to maintaining its
leading position in the loan syndication market, the Bank achieved excellent growth in income from wealth management and the issuance of
bills. In 2014, net fee and commission income reached RMB 13.94 billion, up 16.75% year-on-year.

In 2014, the Bank achieved significant growth in its international business, with continued increase in assets denominated in foreign currencies.
The Bank was effective in using derivatives to hedge against exchange risk.

VeI SRS
Income and Expenses
ARMEATEHESS ] T E
Million RMB or % 2014 2013 +/(-) +/(-) in %
= 3
':'ﬂkﬂflﬂ . 128,881 105,785 23,096 21.83%
Operating Profit
R RSB 178,690 171,509 7,181 4.19%
Net Interest Income
—T—éﬁ%&ﬁﬁ@&g\ 13,938 11,938 2,000 16.75%
Fee and Commission Income, net
L > 3£
K 23,779 14,456 9,323 64.49%
Investment Income
AAMEEHRE o
Fair Value Gains/(Losses) S 2,507 5,300 211.41%
CHiRE o
Foreign Exchange Gains/(Losses) CiERTn) (23,498) 18,661 (79.42%)
B Fie R o
Business Tax and Surcharges (25.964) (22.834) (3,130) 13.71%
"ﬁ}tﬁkﬁ?ﬂ% (56,365) (40,301) (16,064) 39.86%
Impairment Losses on Assets
VEREEE R
General and Administrative Expenses (10.957) (10,043) ©14) 9.10%
PN
FAhh 5 HUN 2,790 2,051 739 36.03%
Other Income, net
B SNEBN (H7K) 9
Net Non-Operating Income/(Losses) 122 o4 68 125.93%
RS (31,320) (25,887) (5,433) 20.99%
Income Tax Expense
) E 9
Net Profit 97,683 79,952 17,731 22.18%
TR W K 1.06% 1.02% 0.04% 3.92%
Return on Average Assets
BRI A 25 W 2 R
TR W 15.63% 14.82% 0.81% 5.47%

Return on Average Equity
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Interest-bearing Assets, Interest-bearing Liabilities and Changes in Average Interest Rates

ARMEATH A T
Million RMB or % 2014 2013 +/(-)
TR S TR e TR F 2
Average Interest Average Interest Average Interest
Balance Rate Balance Rate Balance Rate
EBHFE _ _ B _ _ B
Interest-bearing Assets
B SRR AT R AR AR A R TR
Balance with Central Bank and Other 1,192,892 3.06% 526,477 2.26% 666,415 0.80%
Financial Institutions
HEHES 9 o 9
Due from Other Banks 49,473 3.58% 80,406 3.89% (30,933) (0.31%)
KNBESRASRHAM
Securities Purchased under Resale 554,532 3.95% 297,788 4.22% 256,744 (0.27%)
Agreements and Others
S b A ek T
BB CRRA LR 7,585,836 5.84% 6,798,944 5.85% 786,892 (0.01%)
Loans and Advances
L > %"
BARS 217,945 2.66% 200,567 2.45% 17,378 0.21%
Debt Investment
&it o o o
Total 9,600,678 5.30% 7,904,182 5.44% 1,696,496 (0.14%)
R A% _ _ _ - - -
Interest-bearing Liabilities
[ &R eIl
Hﬂ&;{mfﬂmmﬁmﬁ‘ = T 1,101,753 3.50% 456,819 2.39% 644,934 1.11%
Deposits from Other Financial Institutions
1) BT A & B AL A B K
Borrowings from Governments and Other 457,674 2.70% 433,736 2.79% 23,938 (0.09%)
Financial Institutions
l =
&I&ﬁﬂ 970,059 1.03% 684,720 1.00% 285,339 0.03%
Deposits
RITRERRRH
Debt Securities and Subordinated Debts 6,191,177 4.33% 5,694,784 4.07% 596,393 0.26%
in Issue
Ao 56,600 2.90% 43,211 2.36% 13,389 0.54%
Others
&it
Total 8,777,263 3.77% 7,213,270 3.59% 1,563,993 0.18%
2
#0E 1.86% 2.17% (0.31%)

Net Interest Margin
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FINANCIAL CONDITION ANALYSIS
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As of the end of 2014, the Bank's total assets amounted to RMB10,317.03 billion, up 25.86% year-on-year. Loan receivables are its core assets,
representing 74.34% of the total. As of the end of 2014, net loans and advances totaled RMB 7,669.35 billion, up 10.67% from previous year.
The yuan-denominated loan balance was RMB 6,107.19 billion, up by 11.89% year-on-year; the foreign-denominated loan balance reached
RMB 1,562.16 billion, up by 6.14% year-on-year.

As of the end of 2014, the Bank's total liabilities amounted to RMB 9,636.19 billion, an increase of 26.33% from prior year. As the most important
funding source, total outstanding bonds reached RMB 6,353.56 billion, or 65.93% of total liabilities, 8.78% higher year-on-year.
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Financial Position
ARMEATEHES TH T E
Million RMB o % 2014 2013 1) ) in %
p> P
Ara 10,317,030 8,197,205 2,119,825 25.86%
Total Assets
& R AFHIRA7 K E L FKI
Cash, Balances with the Central Bank and Other 1,062,426 446,074 616,352 138.17%
Financial Institutions
- O
SIS B ALK 7,669,351 6,929,968 739,383 10.67%
Loans and Advances
N
UES5 45 . 289,129 236,048 53,081 22.49%
Investment Securities
At 1,296,124 585,115 711,009 121.52%
Others
AfEE
J“L":'ﬁ . 9,636,190 7,627,756 2,008,434 26.33%
Total Liabilities
EITHS 9
Debt Securities Issued 6,353,559 5,840,590 512,969 8.78%
B RRRSF 9
Subordinated Debt Securities Issued 96,587 119,513 (22,926) (19.18%)
5] B TR EE:N
ﬁﬂﬁfﬂﬁfﬁ%nﬁﬂ#’@{aﬂ ) ) - 451,373 455,109 (3,736) (0.82%)
Borrowings from Governments and Financial Institutions
B\ F AR KB PR o
Due to Other Banks and Customers ErelEilis 1,095,102 1,401,086 127.94%
At 335,070 236,955 98,115 41.41%
Others
BRI A .
Total Shareholders' Equity 680,840 569,449 111,391 19.56%
B
Share Capital 306,711 306,711 -
P Z\FO pe] /\FO
AXRRHMBRAR 57,789 48,945 8,844 18.07%
Capital Reserve and Surplus Reserve
—RREEE 124,740 97,521 27,219 27.91%
General Risk Provisions
RoOERAMEIEAM o
Undistributed Profit and Other Equity 178,369 111,443 66,926 60.05%
I»3 s 3£
D BB G 13,231 4,829 8,402 173.99%

Minority Interests
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ASSET QUALITY
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Despite an increase in overall non-performing loans of banks in general as a result of the complex and changing economic and financial
environments domestically and internationally, the Bank maintained strong asset quality through effective risk management in 2014. The
accumulative repayment ratio for principal and interest reached 99.22%; the non-performing loan ratio was 0.65%, an increase of 0.17
percentage point from the beginning of the year. The Bank also made provisions for loan losses of RMB 55.53 billion in 2014, with allowances
for loan losses ratio increasing to 3.43%, thus providing stronger buffer for potential losses.



36

W &5 £Rik
BUSINESS OPERATIONS

ARMEATH A
Million RMB or %

R R ERRE

Total Loans and Advances
FRERKRI
Non-Performing Loan Balance
RRBHE

Non-Performing Loan Ratio
TR EEE

Allowance for Loan Impairment

RAEESRARERER

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT AND CAPITAL ADEQUACY RATIOS
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BRAMATL SRR, 5ISMREIE.
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The Bank's capital management team manages the capital adequacy

ratios, and economic and book capital positions. The Bank manages
its capital resources with the aim of supporting national priorities,

BEREBRE

Quality of Loan Assets
e
2014 2013 o
7,941,642 7,148,281 793,361
51,561 34,584 16,977
0.65% 0.48% 0.17%
272,291 218,313 53,978

complying with regulatory requirements and ensuring sustained
shareholder returns, simultaneously supporting, steering and
safeguarding its own business growth and development.

In 2014 the Bank further strengthened its capital position and
structure, through internally, increased profitability, retention of
earnings and excess provisions, and externally, issuance of debt of
RMB 12 billion as part of Tier 2 capital, to effectively and prudently
support the Bank’s healthy growth with measured increase in risk
assets. Through improved capital planning, the Bank made further
enhancements in implementing measures in the areas of budgeting,
pricing and performance measurement. These efforts in turn led
to further buttressing of asset and business structures, increased
capital efficiency, and strengthened capital discipline in business
activities. The Bank innovatively developed new capital instruments to
fine-tune its capital management. While taking practical consideration
of the Bank's ongoing reforms, the management actively promoted
the development of a separate set of regulatory standards for CDB
and a consistent capital replenishment mechanism.

The Bank calculated its total capital, core capital, capital adequacy
ratio and core capital adequacy ratio in accordance with CBRC's
Rules for Regulating the Capital Adequacy Requirement of Commercial
Banks and other relevant rules. As of the end of 2014, the Bank had
a total regulatory capital of RMB 985.8 billion and core capital RMB
634.7 billion, with a capital adequacy ratio of 11.88% and core capital
adequacy ratio of 7.71%.

Calculated under the CBRC Capital Rules for Commercial
Banks(Provisional), the Bank had a total regulatory capital of RMB
869.5 billion, Tier 1 capital of RMB 650.3 billion and Common Equity
Tier 1 capital of RMB 650.3 billion, with a capital adequacy ratio of
9.06%, Tier 1 capital adequacy ratio of 6.77% and Common Equity
Tier 1 capital adequacy ratio of 6.77%.

As approved by the State Council regarding the next-step reform plan
for CDB, CDB will receive capital injections from authorized entities
in the immediate future and will see enhancement in its capital
adequacy levels.
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In 2014, the Bank continued its commitment to strategic planning in support of national key industries and major strategic initiatives. The Bank
further strengthened its cooperation with ministries and local governments by taking part in the planning of the new silk road strategy "One Belt,
One Road" and the establishment of a major project pool for the initiative. It actively participated in the key development planning for Beijing-Tianjin-
Hebei regions, Yangtze River Economic Zone and the nation's 13th Five-year Plan. The Bank also implemented the national new urbanization plan
by completing 36 new urbanization financing plans at provincial, municipal and county levels, 35 urban renewal financing plans at the provincial
level, and carrying out 12 key regional financing plans, including those for Gui'an New District and Horgos Special Economic Zone. It completed 15
industrial plans, including those for the electric power sector, and carried out 28 planning projects with strategic clients including Huaneng Group
and CSCEC. The Bank continued with its efforts in international planning cooperation, signing four collaborative agreements with foreign economies,
including Australia and Serbia. It also accelerated the implementation of business development plans and boosted establishment of special
branches. By leveraging the guiding effect of planning on business development, the Bank worked to ensure those plans would materialize.
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During 2014, CDB refined its allocation of resources to be better in tune with the nation's urbanization development strategies. The Bank
encouraged people-oriented new urbanization projects and supported urban renewal of rundown districts. It also supported development of
railways, roads and water, electric power and gas networks to enhance the urban infrastructure and civic service functions. The Bank continued to
boost support for key areas and major construction sectors, including water resources and electric power, and promoted economic restructuring
and industrial upgrading to achieve coordinated regional development and improve the people's wellbeing. In addition, the Bank also strengthened
its international cooperation and achieved new progress in the government's initiatives of economic and social development. The Bank lent RMB
1,110 billion to support new urbanization and urban renewal projects in 2014, accounting for 60% of the year's yuan-denominated loans. As of the
end of 2014, the Bank had an outstanding loan balance of RMB 7.94 trillion (considering both yuan- and foreign currency-denominated loans).
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In 2014, the Bank's key focus remained on primary areas in infrastructure and basic/pillar industries, such as coal, electricity, oil, transportation,
agriculture, forestry, water resources, telecommunications and public infrastructure. Total domestic new loans in these sectors increased by
RMB 710.2 billion, a large share of which went to a number of national priority projects including the highway network, passenger railway line
network, oil and gas infrastructure, coal processing, new-energy-based power generation and water resources projects. Key support was given
to the city-and-industry integration demonstration projects in Anhui's six prefectures and new urbanization pilots in Liaoning and Suzhou. The
Bank supported major network construction projects, including information technology infrastructure as well as the communication equipment
export businesses. The Bank disbursed RMB 12.2 billion to the postal and telecommunications sector in 2014.
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In 2014, CDB diversified its financial services products to adapt to the changes brought about by China's railway industry reform. The Bank
deepened its cooperation with China Railway Corporation on railway construction, rolling stock procurement, bond underwriting and asset
securitization, and actively supported the initiative for international expansion in the railway sector. The Bank also provided financing support to
projects of intercity railway, urban railway, railway construction for resource development and mixed-ownership railway construction, as well as
land acquisition and relocation for joint-venture railway projects. Total loan disbursement for the sector amounted to RMB 236.7 billion in 2014.
As of the end of 2014, the Bank had an outstanding loan balance of RMB 762.5 billion to the railway industry, maintaining its leading position in
that market sector.

RAEIEELIE

Harbin-Dalian Passenger Line

ZUMERKE MANE RZELMMEZ— WRFIEMXFIERFENETTEL. ATRHIRART410ZT,
BE2014F K, ERMRERARMTI401ZT.

The Harbin-Dalian Passenger Dedicated Line is one of the nation's high-speed passenger lines and the main north-south passenger line of
the northeast region. The Bank provided RMB 41 billion in loans for the project. As of the end of 2014, RMB 34 billion had been disbursed.
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Guiyang-Guangzhou High-speed Railway
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Once completed, the Guiyang-Guangzhou High-speed Railway will shorten the transport distance between Guiyang and Guangzhou
by 740 km, saving approximately 16 hours in travel time. This will substantially improve the passenger capacity between the southwest
region and the Pearl River Delta region, and significantly promote economic development in the southwest region. Total investment of
the project was RMB 91.8 billion, of which the Bank provided RMB 30 billion in loans. As of the end of 2014, RMB 3.53 billion had been
disbursed.

(’/ : \‘ /AE%
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In 2014, the Bank rigorously pushed funding for extending incomplete national highways and relieving bottleneck sections in national roads,
and building roads in central and western rural regions, as well as the "One Belt, One Road" network. Key projects included the Hechi-Baise
Highway and the Gansu Section (Baigeda-Mingshui Road) of the Beijing-Xinjiang National Highway. The Bank made loan commitments totaling
RMB 354.4 billion to this sector in 2014, supporting the construction of 5,684 km of highways, 5,847 km of first and second-grade roads and
73,766 km of rural roads. Incremental loans totaled RMB 149.6 billion. As of the end of 2014, the Bank had an aggregate outstanding balance
of RMB 1,387.8 billion in loans to this sector.
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Dali-Lijiang Highway in Yunnan
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The Dali-Lijlang Highway is the main arterial
traffic way in western Yunnan Province, with a
total mileage of 197.33 km. Once finished, it
will complete the road network of Yunnan and

significantly promote regional economic, cultural and tourism development. Total investment of the project was RMB 18.8 billion. The Bank led a
loan syndication effort, and committed RMB 4.2 billion in loans, which had been fully disbursed.

Y
7
L ELECTRIC POWER
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In 2014, the Bank increased support for clean energy projects including hydropower, wind power, nuclear power and photovoltaic power, with
an aim of balancing the country's energy structure. Specific projects included Phase Il of Shandong Haiyang Nuclear Power Plant, Phase |
of Guangdong Taishan Nuclear Power Plant, the Wudongde and Baihetan hydropower stations on the Jinsha River, the 400MW Wind Farm of
Zone AB of Datang Guazhou Beidagiao No. 6 Wind Farm in Gansu, CECEP's 100MW Grid-connected Photovoltaic Power Plant in Liangzhou,
and the No. 4 Thermal Power Plant Waste-to-Energy Project in Guangzhou. Incremental loans totaled RMB 22 billion. As of the end of 2014, the
Bank had an outstanding balance of RMB 772.4 billion in loans to this sector.

EFIFX B2 T EAAREZBRTIE
Longyangxia Solar-hydro 320MW Photovoltaic
Power Station
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This project is the largest photovoltaic power

project in the world and the first solar-hydro hybrid

photovoltaic power project in China. The project

has a total installed capacity of 320MW and a total

investment estimation of RMB 3.73 billion, and the Bank committed RMB 2.98 billion in loans. As of the end of 2014, RMB 1.8 billion had
been disbursed.
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Zheneng Zhoushan Liuheng Power
Plant in Zhejiang
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Total investment at RMB 8.609 billion,

this project comprises 2 x 1,000MW-

ultra-supercritical coal-fired units. Once

completed, it will increase the local electricity
capacity to support economic development of the area. The Bank committed RMB 3.5 billion in loans. As of the end of 2014, RMB 2.1 billion
had been disbursed.

BRRE M S — X RIFABXIH

Mahuangtan No. 1 Wind Farm Zone AB in Jiuquan, Gansu

ZI B XN AREREN  (EHABMKEFNHSAREFERREX. ERVNABBA0A TR, BRAART32ZT, K
TRERFART25ZTT, BE2014FEK, EXRRRARTS.41ZTT.
This project significantly improved the energy structure and promoted economic and social development in the western region. The

project has a total installed capacity of 400MW and a total investment estimation of RMB 3.2 billion, and the Bank provided RMB 2.5
billion in loans. As of the end of 2014, RMB 840 million had been disbursed.
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In 2014, CDB created innovative financing models in areas including medium- and long-term agricultural financing, establishment of corporate
entities required for making investment and financing arrangements and loans pledged against rural land contracting and operations rights.
The Bank increased its support to agricultural infrastructure, modern farming, overseas expansion of agricultural enterprises, agricultural
modernization and agricutlural produce processing. It promoted the establishment of food security, price stability and food safety regimes.
Loans made to the agriculture sector amounted to RMB 32.6 billion. The Bank continued to strengthen cooperation with the Ministry of Water
Resources with an aim of accelerating the construction of major water resources projects. Key national projects funded included the Guangxi
Datengxia Hydro-junction Project and Xinjiang Altas Hydro-junction Project. Loans made to the water resources sector reached RMB 81.4
billion, accounting for nearly 50% of the total market share. As of the end of 2014, the Bank had an outstanding balance of RMB 357.4 billion in
loans to the agriculture, forestry and water resources sectors.
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Eco-agro Project in Wuxi, Jiangsu
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The Bank contributed to the establishment of a PPP-based project
financing vehicle-Shibawan Eco-agro Tourism Development Co. Ltd.
by lending RMB 400 million. The Bank backed the development of

supporting facilities, such as plantation centers of horticulture, fruits
and vegetables. The project, operating with a business model of
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'company + plantation centers + farming households", contributed to restructuring, industrialization and agricultural modernization. As of

the end of 2014, the Bank disbursed all the loans to the project.

LAEYTEARMMARESESEETEME
Fen River Management and Ecological Restoration Project
in Linfen, Shanxi
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The Bank committed RMB 3.3 billion in loans to the project to
support river management, embankment reinforcement and wetlands
protection. It strengthened flood control and drainage capacity of the
Fen River and improved the local ecological environment. As of the
end of 2014, RMB 1.5 billion had been disbursed.

RIBfE After JBIER] Before
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PETROLEUM AND PETROCHEMICAL
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In 2014, the Bank actively worked in line with the nation's development strategies and planning for the oil and gas industry by increasing
financing support to key central SOEs as well as the nation's strategic and commercial petroleum reserves. It also made active efforts in
project implementation with partner countries/regions in various energy projects. During the year, the Bank disbursed more than RMB 192.4
billion in loans to support a number of oil and gas infrastructure projects, including the Yuedong LNG Terminal. As of the end of 2014, the
Bank's outstanding loan balance in this sector was RMB 524.3 billion.

PERURBEBRAFAXEEERESNAE
BRI E

Sinochem's Equity Investment in Pioneer Natural
Resources' Shale Gas Transaction
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In 2014, the Bank provided USD 1 billion in loans to
Sinochem Corporation, supporting its global market
development efforts for new energy sources and in
particular, its participation in the US exploration of

alternative oil and gas sources. As of the end of 2014,
USD 200 million had been disbursed.

hAE BN SRR B H T B

Tranche Il of Sinopec's Overseas Oil Gas Financing
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The Bank provided USD 2.9 billion in loans to Sinopec's overseas ADDAX Company in support of its overseas oil and gas development
and financing structure optimization. As of the end of 2014, all the loans had been disbursed.

20145 AFTRURH R K EES A AAE R, RIRHESNRK = W BT R RRM T~ U RERR, IFRY TR
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In 2014, with a continued focus on clean and efficient use of coal, the Bank actively promoted upgrading and restructuring within China's
fragmented coal industry, advanced the exemplary developments of the coal chemical industry, and supported coal seam gas leakage
prevention, as well as other coal mine safety projects. The Bank lent RMB 51.8 billion in 2014-key coal processing projects included the
Sinopec Group's Anhui 700,000 ton methanol-to-olefins (MTO) project and Shenhua Group's Shaanxi 600,000 ton MTO project. As of the end
of 2014, the Bank's total loans to coal-related projects were RMB 174.5 billion.
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Yitai Group's 160,000 ton Coal-based Compound Fuel Oil Phase I, Inner Mongolia
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This project is China's first demonstration project for indirect coal liquefaction supported by domestic intellectual property rights. Its
completion will bring about an annual output of 160,000 tons of oil products, such as diesel and naphtha, which processing is vital to
realization of the clean use of coal. Total investment of the project was RMB 2.908 billion, of which the Bank provided RMB 2 billion in
loans, which had been fully disbursed as of the end of 2014.

NHERIZHE
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CDB continued with its strong support of public infrastructure building and new urbanization in China through improving public service and
urban transport capacity, and of the development of traditional infrastructure sectors, such as urban rail systems and airports. Likewise, the
Bank supported municipal pipeline networks, healthcare and smart city initiatives in order to boost the quality of urban development. The
Bank promoted city-and-industry integration through pilot projects in six cities of Anhui Province, supported the construction of projects such
as underground pipes in PPP model, and completed its project review of the Shenyang Hunnan Modern Trams, which adopted the mode of
government procurement for the first time. The Bank also financed the development of port terminals in the Caofeidian Zone of Tangshan's port,
inland waterway of Jiangsu Province's 12th Five-Year Plan, urban rail systems in Beijing, Xi'an and Chengdu, and the logistic infrastructures
such as the logistic center for the importation of vehicles in the Zhangjiagang bonded area and the Commodity & Trade Logistics Park Phase
Il for International Toys in Chenghai. As of the end of 2014, the Bank's outstanding loans for public infrastructure projects amounted to RMB
1,302.1 billion.
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Eastern Urban Economic Belt in Shantou, Guangdong
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This project plans to develop 25 km?2 of beachside through estuary
regulation and sea dike construction in order to enhance disaster prevention
and resilience in the eastern areas of the city of Shantou. Meanwhile, it will
provide new space for the city to promote economic development of the
local and eastern Guangdong areas. Total investment of the project was
RMB 16.166 billion and the Bank led a syndication of RMB 11 billion, of
which the Bank provided RMB 7 billion. As of the end of 2014, RMB 6.217
billion had been disbursed.

BRIk —S&—HEIRmE

Jiangsu Nanjing Subway Line 2 Phase |
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This project connects the main urban area of Nanjing with its new urban district, which improves transportation to and from the central

district and expansion of the city's spatial layout. Total investment of the project was RMB 12.4 billion and the Bank led a syndication of
RMB 7.18 billion, of which the Bank provided RMB 2.48 billion. As of the end of 2014, all the loans had been fully disbursed.
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In 2014, the Bank continued to implement its regional development strategy to further accelerate the development in central and western
China and to commence a new round of rejuvenating Northeast China, by focusing on "One Belt, One Road", coordinated development of the
Beijing, Tianjin and Hebei districts, construction of the Yangtze River Economic Zone and funding national-level new districts such as Shaanxi
Xixian New District, Guizhou Gui'an New District, Qingdao West Coast New District, and Dalian Jinpu New District. The Bank's new loans to
the central and western regions during 2014 totaled RMB 462.9 billion, accounting for 66%, whilst new loans to the Northeast Industrial Base
were RMB 79.6 billion, accounting for 11%. New outstanding loans made to Tibet and Tibetan-inhabited areas in four provinces during the year
totaled RMB 14.7 billion, while new outstanding loans to Xinjiang amounted to RMB 21.8 billion.



NIE: 30
BUSINESS OPERATIONS

RMNFPEEFENIAY Z IR

Expansion of Guiyang Longdongbao Airport in Guizhou
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Upon completion of the project in 2014, the airport delivered

an annual capacity of 12.53 million passenger equivalents,

80,000 tons of cargo and 110,000 takeoffs and landings,

along with well-improved security to support the broader local

transportation infrastructure. Total investment of the project was RMB 3.7 billion. The Bank contributed RMB 793 million to a syndication, of
which it was lead arranger. All the loans had been disbursed as of the end of 2014.
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Industrial restructuring and upgrading is an integral part of accelerating China's economic development. In 2014, the Bank continued to promote
industry-wide adjustment within conventional industries by boosting major construction projects in mineral resources and their products, such
as steel and coal, coordinated industrial development of the Beijing, Tianjin and Hebei districts, conducted a comprehensive credit review of
Baosteel and Anshan Iron & Steel, along with industrial restructuring and technological upgrading of key industries. The Bank also provided funds
to support Zhuzhou New Times Material's acquisition of ZF Friedrichshafen AG's rubber and plastic business and Huaxin Cement's construction of
a new dry process cement production line in Tajikistan, fueling moves to go global focused on advanced production capacity.
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Credit to Gansu Jinchuan Group
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Jinchuan Group is a major nonferrous metallurgical and
chemical engineering conglomerate, the largest domestic
Ni-Co producer base and the third largest copper producer.
The Bank granted long-term credit lines of RMB 20.333
billion and USD 3.165 billion in total, boosting support for
technical upgrades of processing nonferrous metal and
going global efforts in developing mineral resources.

oM BRI
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In 2014, the Bank continued its support of strategic emerging industries and advanced manufacturing. It established a trilateral cooperation
mechanism among the banking sector, government and business enterprises to enable industrial development. The Bank promoted the
establishment of the RMB 120 billion National Industrial Integrated Circuits Fund, signed the Financial Cooperation Agreement for Driving
the Establishment of Information Consumption Pilot Cities with relevant ministries and authorities, and facilitated the construction and
development of an information technology network infrastructure and other significant networks. The Bank co-launched the Recommendations
on Implementing the Oceanic Economic Development Pilot Program and identified key points for support, including the latest generation of
information technology, along with continued exploration of maritime and biological areas. It also developed and reviewed a series of important
projects such as BOE Technology's generation 8.5 LCD production line. The Bank offered loans of RMB 218.2 billion to strategic emerging
industries in 2014.

EXEARRAABHMRTBERRARTE

Tsinghua Unigroup acquired Spreadtrum Communications
ARITELBEAFRET8.29ZT. ART20{Z7T, IFFENE
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The Bank led the syndication of USD 829 million and RMB 2 billion,
to support Tsinghua Unigroup in its acquisition of Spreadtrum
Communications, and develop communication chips with proprietary
intellectual property rights, to assist the development of the integrated

circuit industry in China. The Bank contributed USD 529 million to the
syndication, which funds were totally disbursed by the end of 2014.
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ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION, ENERGY CONSERVATION AND EMISSIONS REDUCTION
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In 2014, the Bank continued to implement its green credit lending practices while trying to develop market-oriented corporate entities,
especially in areas of air pollution treatment, the recycling industry, sewage treatment and clean/renewable energy. These efforts were pursued
through a variety of means, including franchising, government investment and subsidy and energy performance contracting. The Bank also
actively cultivated market research and innovations in financing modes, in order to accelerate consideration of ecological factors in civil
construction. The Bank provided financing support to the No.2 water recycling plant of Beijing Drainage Group, Zhengwangfen Water Recycling
Plant and the integrated utilization of crop stalks project spearheaded by Heilongjiang Quanlin Eco-agriculture Co., Ltd. in Jiamusi. As of the
end of 2014, the Bank's outstanding loans to environmental protection and energy conservation projects stood at RMB 958.5 billion, up by 7.2%
year-on-year, which contributed to savings of 54.52 million tons of standard coal and 520 million tons of water, and reduction emissions of 140
million tons of carbon dioxide and 2.69 million tons of sulfur dioxide.

LWERFE RS ERELRR

Da Ming Lake Restoration in Jinan, Shandong
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This project supported the restoration, expansion and comprehensive management of the Da Ming Lake area in Jinan, which improved

the surrounding environment and promoted local ecologically focused construction and comprehensive service functionality of the city.
The Bank provided RMB 800 million in loans. As of the end of 2014, the Bank had disbursed all the loans.
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Credit to Hubei's GEM
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The Bank provided financing support to GEM's new

materials company to build recycling operations for
six sectors such as electronic waste, scrap cars and rare metals, which recycled one million tons of waste and contributed to savings of
560,000 barrels of oil and 600,000 tons of standard coal, and a reduction of 20,000 tons of carbon dioxide. The Bank provided RMB 1.238
billion in loans. As of the end of 2014, the Bank had disbursed RMB 1.221 billion.
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< ¥  CULTURAL INDUSTRY
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In 2014, the Bank continued to strengthen its cooperation with relevant ministries and authorities and focused on nine types of industrial
development. These included news, publications, broadcasting and film, cultural industry infrastructure and tourist industry transformation and
upgrade. Successfully operated projects included protection and exhibitions in the Jiayuguan Cultural Heritage, general promotion of Qing Yan
Ancient Town in Guizhou, Guilin World Tourism and Culture Center, Xiamen Hua Qiang Cultural and Technological Industrial Base, mergers and
acquisitions for North Media, African Digital TV Network, Shanghai Media Group's General Credit, and Mobile Multimedia Broadcasting. The
Bank offered loans of RMB 42.5 billion to the cultural industry in the year, making it the leading lender once again in this sector. As of the end
of 2014, the Bank had outstanding loans totaling RMB 176.9 billion to the cultural industry.

HLREREARNEXZIZRTE

Enshi Grand Canyon in Hubei
ATRITRERRARTI2.12T, X
BisRkAaRNSXBERMEHEFELR
FREICRAED B, FTERE R &
W, wEh B A FRRE. B E2014F K,
ERMBHRARTAZT, BALCHHB
WY RLING.

The Bank lent RMB 1.21 billion cumulatively to
support the Enshi Grand Canyon Scenic Zone
of Hubei Province to produce an outdoor show

entitled The Dragon Boat Musical, focused on
building a unique tourism branding and to drive

local economic development. As of the end of A Performance of The Dragon Boat Musical
2014, the Bank had disbursed RMB 410 million.
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Conservation of the Daming Palace Relics
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The relics of Daming Palace are an important feature of "the Silk Road",
which is favored with a World Cultural Heritage listing. The Bank offered
RMB 6 billion in loans to protect the relics of Daming Palace and rebuild
surrounding distressed areas, support historical and cultural protection

and exhibition, facilitate local economic development and improve the living conditions of the local population, and help Xi'an to build an
international cultural exchange platform and develop its tourist industry. As of the end of 2014, all such loans had been fully disbursed.

SR REGUEFtSE
LIVELIHOODS AND SOCIAL WELLBEING

REMTERERIMEHSBENERAR, CRATENIIFNERNE, 20145, KTRREFAXBEML T BT &
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HERE. RMERRFLFER, SRS/ S YRR ESR. MEMEHEFEAARTSZT, ERESRIH LY
DER A REA, FRFELFER, BE014FER, RITAMFETRKART2ZIT, 20145, KfTAMNATRARD
2087, BNXFT AL EFHRE ABNITFHREREMBRIIE.

Protecting and improving our people's wellbeing is not only a significant element of China's social development, but also a key area to

which the Bank has provided tremendous support. In 2014, the Bank actively cooperated with related authorities and local governments,
created innovative financing models and channeled funds to support areas of affordable housing, healthcare, SMEs, employment, education,
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agriculture and new rural development. Based on the State's requirements for fee and margin reduction, the Bank waived a total of RMB
2.5 billion in commitment fees and financial advisory fees for urban renewal and small- and micro-business loans, thus contributing to the
alleviation of high-cost financing as a bottleneck to progress and development. The Bank explored the "blue ocean" of pension business. As of
the end of 2014, the Bank offered pension loans of RMB 2.5 billion in aggregate. In 2014, emergency loans of RMB 2.08 billion were issued for

the relief of earthquake-hit Ludian and Pu'er in Yunnan Province and other disaster-hit areas in Henan and Liaoning provinces.

R EMBRART
10,560 1z

RMB 1,056 billion lent to date

FRIEMZETRE

Affordable Housing Loans
~

BREPART 2.47 HiZT
Heu M A TART
1.03 51izx

"

RERER 12 2FhX
1.2 billion m? built

BEEEL . RABCEL . HE
TEYER 20 M7l

Nearly 20 industries served, including

x4 1,382 757
4,359 5 A

Benefits for around 13.82 million households
or 43.59 million people

BRAUNE . EAY . NME
IHFE. KA. SLEE. HET
KR TEASREA
Benefits for SMEs, micro-businesses,

Outstanding balance of RMB 2.47 trillion, ‘ B rivately and individually-owned
qll_]\ﬁj_k ; : manufacturing, farming, forestry, husbandry P
SME L nielusling (R4S 1 08 idlem o @il - ame and fishing, and wholesale and retail industry businesses, farmers, self-employed youths
oans micro-businesses and urban laid-off workers
-
BELE 26 1M (W)
NP, TRREREEE
9 FHRHBERART 1,960 18 (R) 1.938.9 5%
— . . A
v 691.6 2% 2,782 it I .
B R RMB 69.16 billion lent to date 26 provinces /municipaliies B “;O\‘fé;y%;fzg‘n ';”msntigsems n
Student Loans 1,960 counties and 2,782 universities served

REEMRETTE
AFFORDABLE HOUSING PROJECTS
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RIEHEZE TR KBS SERRIER
Affordable Housing and Urban Renewal Loans Outstanding

In 2014, the Bank focused on urban renewal as a critical element
within the affordable housing program, devoted significant efforts
to resolve the funding bottleneck of urban renewal and dedicated
efforts to support key projects for it. The Bank established CDB
Housing Finance to improve centralized, professional and detail-
oriented business management for urban renewal. The Bank
cooperated with relevant authorities and local governments to

REMRELR

Affordable Housing Loans

B P XEuE

Urban Renewal Loans

By, ARM10{Z7T Billion RVB

innovate working practices and focused on urban renewal in Tienan, 800 783.9
Chifeng, Inner Mongolia and Sanma Industrial and Mining District,

Guiyang, Guizhou as well as a large number of such projects in Jilin ” 636.2
Province, Beijing, Hebei Province, Henan Province, Hunan Province o0

and Hubei Province. The Bank offered RMB 408.6 billion in loans for 50 436.3

urban renewal projects this year, up by nearly 300% year-on-year, 400 3309

to build 900 million m? of housing in aggregate and provide homes 300 294.6

for 9.16 million households or 28.57 million people, accounting a 200 2136 2l

market share of over 80%. As of the end of 2014, the outstanding 10 105'681‘6 =07 I

loan balance for affordable housing loans was RMB 783.9 billion, . . I

including RMB 636.2 billion urban renewal loans. 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014
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Meilingzutuan Huguang Urban Renewal-Shigu Road in Jinjiang,
Fujian

ZIEBRMRI9.9TFETTK, BIRAARTS6.98{Z7T, ]
ZERERIITAF. 43B8F AN ATRESTASHEER,
BE2014FEK, RitmizM B RERSARMI7Z T, HH
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This project would build a total floor area of 1.199 million m? with a
total investment of RMB 5.698 billion to provide homes for 13,700
households or 43,000 people. Leveraging the synergy between the
parent company and subsidiaries, the Bank provided RMB 3.7 billion in
aggregate funding as of the end of 2014, including RMB 1.6 billion in
loans, RMB 500 million in mezzanine investment and RMB 1.6 billion of
corporate bonds underwritten by the Bank.

ARG ELIL R KBIET R

Beiliang Urban Renewal in Baotou, Inner Mongolia

B RZRERMNSTTHEGK, BRERHNESSAFRE. 1098 ANBEENE, RS SR REAREEERE.
TEBREART282MZTT, RITRHEERART171.21Z7T, BE2014FK, EXRMERART122.56127T,

This project would build a total floor area of 4.1377 million m? to provide improved homes for 53,000 households or 109,000 people, and

the local low-income families would see their quality of life improved. Total investment of this project was RMB 23.2 billion. The Bank
provided loans of RMB 17.12 billion, and had disbursed RMB 12.256 billion as of the end of 2014.
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@ —1 *DT‘i%EESGFﬁ Z‘E*Tj'@lﬁ Rural Development Loan Balance Outstanding
RURAL DEVELOPMENT
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In 2014, the Bank lent RMB 189.3 billion to projects under 400

the State's new rural community initiative, which included the

development of rural infrastructure, supporting key leading

industry players, rural healthcare and education programs. As of 200

the end of 2014, the Bank had accumulatively disbursed RMB 1.6

trillion in loans for rural development, and had outstanding loans 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014

totaling RMB 754.9 billion.

BRE ImER B 2 &5 E
Integrated Green Urban-Rural
Development of Lintong, Shaanxi

RITRUBERAR T2, FeHmHk
RESHEBZARTIOZ T, XFHIEER S
GERR WEYHMARREFZARNESE
N, RitRE1,4407 . £94,500 AN fEH
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1,200% A Gl kst . B E20144E K, T35k
EEEHAN. BARRAMFEHL.

The Bank offered RMB 4.5 billion in loans and Kaiyuan City Development Fund invested RMB 1 billion to support the integrated urban-
rural development and improve the lifestyle and living environment of local farmers in Lintong. This project resettled 1,440 households of
about 4,500 people in total, provided skills training to over 3,000 people and enabled over 1,200 people to start a business or find paid
employment. As of the end of 2014, the Bank had disbursed all of the loans. The photo above shows that the farmers were receiving keys
of their new homes.

. vl
Y s

20144, ATHEFHLELRIES FEMAN TN, FHIR/NEEVAZFHNE BURBNFNERRER, ES)
SEIFMNPEBISERE ST BE2014FE R, PNV FRFRIMART247H1{ZT, Ep NV FARFAART1.0351Z7T.

In 2014, upholding the concept of inclusive finance, the Bank increased its support to SMEs and micro enterprises by strengthening the
development of dedicated financing structures and models as well as enhancing its capabilities in business innovation and risk management.
Total loans made to the SME sector amounted to RMB 2.47 trillion as of the end of 2014, including RMB 1.08 trillion provided to micro enterprises.
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Enterprise Loans to Pi County's Bean
Paste businesses in Sichuan

FTUHRAREAFEIRES
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The Bank innovated a collateral model to

support the development of the bean paste

industry in Pi County, with the chilli peppers
in the pepper pool as collateral; a total of RMB 140 million was issued to 50 businesses, with market share up to 64%. The loans directly
created over 1,000 jobs, and effectively promoted the county's industries, including the plantation of related crops.

(Ia..l %E
: » EDUCATION
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In 2014, the Bank continued to strengthen its B GEaRiE R
cooperation with the authorities in college student Student Loans

loans both in the universities and hometowns of
TERRRE (A %) Outstanding Loans (LHS)

the students fpr improved serylces: Iagnch of call BB ) Loans Issued in Current Year (LHS)
centers and internet-based information centers T % (5 ) Market Share (RHS)

to increase loan application efficiency. The Bank

created innovative measures to administer loan- B AR 10ZTs AL Bilion RMB or %
related matters, such as repayment via POS. It 50 475 100%
also expanded the scope of the program to include 85 90

start-up loan for graduates and other employment 40.5 )
support, such as co-organization of job fairs with “ 80 30 o
local authorities in six provinces, including Henan * 336

and Hubei. Loan application service was made 30 60%
available during high school years and the upper limit 255

for each loan was raised for both undergraduates
and graduates. More regions were included in the
loans-for-students' hometown program. During
2014, the Bank lent RMB 14.69 billion, helping 2.44

10.4
o . . L 10 7.6 20%
million students complete their education, satisfying I I

20 40%

17.8
125 14.7

borrowing demands of more than 90% of students
from needy families across the country. 0

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014
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Student Loan Service Line “95593 Call Center"
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The Bank's "95593" call center was established in 2012
in addition to emailing and chat groups via online social
media app QQ to form an inquiry system. As of the end
of 2014, a total of 470,000 inquiries on student loans had
been answered, with the highest single-day volume of over
5,000 calls, providing a convenient service channel for
financial aid and student loan application.

B 7 & A iR ot B 5 S ki B

Student Loan Program in Shaanxi

AT R RS R AR B TR A R M59.05
e, BEEENMHHIO7MEX, BRF499.32
ARR BARTHFRAIIFNFERARK.
The Bank cumulatively disbursed RMB 5.905 billion in loans
to 993,200 students under this program. This program

covered all 11 prefecture-level cities and 107 counties in
Shaanxi province.

<« A student receiving CDB student loan and her family member

o BT
\“l—t‘} POVERTY ALLEVIATION
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In 2014, the Bank focused on poverty alleviation and financial development through strengthened cooperation between the Bank and
governments. Its innovative poverty alleviation and financial development vigorously promoted targeted poverty alleviation and actively created
new approaches to supporting people's livelihoods through exploring new models including "Guizhou rural microloans" and "Gansu Qingyang
industrial poverty alleviation". Throughout the year, the Bank had accumulatively disbursed RMB 147.7 billion in loans to poor counties and
destitute areas as designated by the Central Government. The Bank developed planning consulting reports for anti-poverty programs in six
targeted counties and one pairing-assistance county and donated RMB 11.4 million to effectively support the rural infrastructure, education,
health care and specialty industries and promote economic development and improve people's livelihood in poor areas. As of the end of 2014,
the Bank had an outstanding balance of RMB 708.2 billion in loans to poverty alleviation.
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L ¥ EMERGENCY LENDING
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Types of Emergency Geography Amount Lent (Million RMB)
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Floods Sichuan, Chongging, and Shaanxi, etc.

=5 TR RS 350

Typhoon Ningbo, Guangdong, etc.

= = ME 250
Earthquakes Yunnan, Guizhou, etc.

ER U7 W/, sEEit 687

Droughts Liaoning, Henan, and Yunnan etc.

I ¥ E Bl 55
INTERNATIONAL COOPERATION
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In 2014, the Bank proactively responded to the new calls to further open up to the rest of the world, and continued broadening its collaboration
with foreign governments, enterprises and financial institutions in key areas of infrastructure, equipment manufacturing, finance, agriculture,
social sectors and energy to achieve mutual benefit and win-win outcomes. The Bank made positive contributions to the new silk road
strategy "One Belt, One Road" through promoting major projects and supporting railway and nuclear power enterprises to "Go Global". The
Bank participated in establishing the Silk Road Fund, assisted in establishing the Asian Infrastructure Investment Bank, and made significant
progress in the implementation of measures under the multilateral financial cooperation frameworks of the Shanghai Cooperation Organization
Interbank Association, China-ASEAN Interbank Association and BRICS Interbank Cooperation Mechanism. The Bank also operated the China-
Africa Development Fund and the China-Portugal Fund as overseas investment platforms, continued its support of Chinese enterprises in
their "Go Global" endeavors, and promoted the internationalization of the Chinese currency, the renminbi. The Bank's risk warning system for
its international business improved and the foreign asset quality remained stable. As of the end of 2014, the Bank had outstanding foreign
currency loans of USD 267 billion and an offshore yuan-denominated loan balance of RMB 56.4 billion, which further cemented its status as a
pillar of cross-border financing in China. With correspondent banking relationships established with 707 banks in 106 overseas markets, the
Bank has maintained a global network of correspondent banks that underpins steady improvements in the Bank's service capability.

The Bank has continued its international collaboration practices with partners in Asia, Africa and Latin America by adhering to the principle of
"learning from each other, building trust, sharing experiences, and developing jointly". 439 participants from Shanghai Cooperation Organization
Interbank Association, African government departments and institutions attended 22 joint seminars to promote capability building, experience
sharing and enhancement of cooperation quality. In addition, CDB Scholarships sponsored 99 international students for their studies in China,
who, would contribute to advancing cross-cultural exchanges.
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Minmetals Consortium's Purchase of the
Las Bambas Copper Mine in Peru

ZMEBRTYESET LE FRXMNE
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This project, representing the largest
overseas acquisition to date within China's
metals and mining industry, leapfrogged
the Minmetals consortium into one of the
top 10 copper producers in the world. The
transaction amounted to USD 7.005 billion
and the syndicated loan for this project was
USD 6.957 billion. As lead arranger, CDB committed USD 3.479 billion. As of the end of 2014, the Bank had disbursed USD 2.575 billion.

ENFEEE B —HI3 X 142MW RS fa | T B

Coal-fired Power Plant in Bali, Indonesia (Phase )

ZI BB RE R RAE RN EEE S X E NN EHORR, BERLHRE () BAMRE, 2B 7T BUF R NTEBUR
MANEE N RITIRHEEERRA. 732K T, BE2014F R, ERMRKS.67{ZETT.

On completion, the power plant will largely help to cover the power supply shortage in Bali, Indonesia and reduce dependence on oil-

fired or gas-fired electricity, enabling the local government to reduce subsidies. The Bank committed USD 473 million in lending and had
disbursed USD 367 million as of the end of 2014.
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Upgrading of Mansa-Luwingu Road in Zambia
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The road is an important channel in building the economic corridor within north Zambia, and will shorten the transportation distance
for the export of Zambia's copper products, agricultural products and other goods. It can reduce transportation costs, promote local
economic development and create 1,200 jobs. Total investment in this project amounts to USD 206 million. The Bank committed USD 175
million in lending and had disbursed USD 64.67 million as of the end of 2014.

— SRR A% TE
FAW Car Assembly Plant in South Africa
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This project was jointly supported by the China-Africa
Development (CAD) Fund and First Automobile Works (FAW)
Group and marked a significant cooperation between China
and South Africa in the area of manufacturing. USD 45 million
was from the CAD Fund, accounting 45% of the total. The plant
became operational in July 2014, with an annual production
capacity of 5,000 trucks of 14 models, including medium-sized
trucks, heavy trucks and extra-heavy trucks. The trucks will be
sold in South Africa and neighboring countries, directly creating
750 jobs.
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TREASURY OPERATIONS
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In 2014, the Bank proactively responded to the acceleration in interest rate liberalization
and changes in overall levels of exchange rates, through its focus on the inter-bank
bond market while simultaneously exploring other markets to control its cost of funds.
It issued RMB 1.175 trillion in yuan-denominated bonds through diversified channels
and in different markets in 2014, with accumulative renminbi debts issued exceeding
RMB 10 trillion. The Bank actively developed individual and non-financial institution
investors and issued RMB 6.7 billion of debt offerings through its links with commercial
banks. It issued RMB 18 billion of debt offerings through the Shanghai Stock Exchange,
which represented the completion of the RMB 30 billion first pilot stock exchange
debt offerings, and developed overseas investors including QFIl and RQFIl. The Bank
continued exploring the overseas renminbi debt market and completed RMB 2.5 billion
of yuan bond offerings in Hong Kong. It also issued RMB 2 billion of yuan debt offerings
through London, which represented the first Chinese-funded quasi-sovereign bond
offerings issued and listed outside of Mainland China and Hong Kong. These moves
represented a significant step in the internationalization of renminbi. The Bank also
issued "debt-plus-loan" bonds to provide a combination of diversified and long-term
stable funds for urban renewal. It issued RMB 12 billion of write-down qualified tier-2
capital instruments to replenish its capital base.

FTARTERMESRITERE

Renminbi Debt Issues
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Note: Due to a change in statistical criteria, the amount of debt issuance for 2007 is shown RMB 5.0 billion higher than previously reported.
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Renminbi Debts by Market Share in 2014
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Note 1: Source: www.chinabond.com.cn, www.shclearing.com, www.chinaclear.cn

Note 2: Onshore issues only.
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In 2014, the Bank continued to promote the use of SHIBOR (Shanghai Interbank Offered Rate) in ask and bid prices, which helped the
construction of the SHIBOR-benchmarked vyield curve. Its annual trading volume reached RMB 37 trillion in 2014. The Bank remained a
frontrunner in the interest rate swap and foreign exchange swap business. Meanwhile, was ranked among the "Top 100 Dealers of Interbank
Yuan Trading" for the fifth consecutive year, and won awards for "Most Influential Trading Bank" and "Best Derivatives Trading" for 2014 within
China's interbank yuan market. The Bank actively participated in market innovation, being a pioneer in trading on the qualified non-financial
institution investor platform of the Beijing Financial Assets Exchange through its execution of standardized interest rate swap transactions.

SN

INTERMEDIARY BUSINESSES
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In 2014, the Bank was innovative in developing intermediary business products,
promoting principal-protected wealth management products, domestic letter of credit
issuance, promoting custodian business such as for the National Integrated Circuit
Industry Fund. The net income from intermediary business increased by 17% year-on-
year to RMB 13.9 billion, aided by further refinements in revenue structuring. The Bank
issued nine railway-specific asset-backed securities amounting to RMB 93.3 billion, and
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ranked No.1 amongst domestic banks in terms of the number of times offered, scale
and categories of issued securities. RMB 43 billion was freed up from the railway loan
book as a result and this positively supported reform within the railway investment and
financing system. The Bank had many "firsts" in the year, including using a mortgage-
pledge hybrid asset for securitization, using contract splitting for the first time to explore
an effective approach for large denomination and long-term asset securitization, and
issuing the first product under a filing system designed to support the establishment
of multi-level capital markets. The Bank maintained its professional management over
its asset business, put in place its new front, middle and back office management
mechanisms, issued RMB 161.382 billion of wealth management products (an increase
of 65% year-on-year) and realized RMB 630 million of revenue, double that of 2013.

20144, RTHRAHRHEL S B EFRAFEHS, £FRITHRERHI2R,
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In 2014, the Bank achieved new highs in both volume and revenue from bond
underwriting. The Bank underwrote 429 bond issues during the year, totaling RMB
761.6 billion, and was the lead underwriter for RMB 470.1 billion in bond volume. The
Bank has remained in the top 10 in Asia Pacific (excluding Japan) and the top three in
China for the last three consecutive years in terms of volume in mid-term and long-term
bond underwriting. The Bank demonstrated its support for urban renewal, including the
issuance of seven series of "debt-plus-loan" corporate bonds, amounting to RMB 10
billion, specifically supporting that endeavor. It also launched the first RMB 1.5 billion
urban renewal special note in the country, and was lead underwriter for the first 15-year
project-returns notes. The Bank assisted China Guangdong Nuclear Power Group in the
successful issuance of the first "carbon emission" bonds in the country and cooperated
with the National Association of Financial Market Institutional Investors to explore and
launch the first "supply-chain notes" in the country, to provide enhanced funding sources
for small- and mid-sized enterprises in the upstream and downstream manufacturing
industry.

20144, RITRREHEEEMERE. BERACIE. EERS LIFNNG
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In 2014, the Bank was proactive in upgrading its operational management in creating
revenue from its international settlement business, innovating its settlement services
and building its risk management and control systems. It set out to build a world-
class operational payment and settlement system. Settlement Operations, Clearing
and Accounting were stable run; operational assessment system and error reporting/

EFRBEHEBSARD

Underwrote Bond Issues Totaling
RMB 761.6 Billion

7,616 =

KIMPEBWNELLIEER
Settlement Activity Income
Increased by
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correction mechanism were set up and the Payments business maintained "zero loss" status. The Bank was classified as national A-class
bank for its currency management compliance for the fourth consecutive year. With the second-generation China National Advanced Payment
System (CNAPS2) fully online, the Bank became capable of automating customer fund settlement in pooling, allocation and payment via one
common access, representing significant progress in providing integrated financial service capabilities. As a result, settlement activity income
increased by 21% year-on-year to RMB 1.34 billion; bond settlement and treasury transaction settlement increased by 55% and 32% year-on-
year to RMB 65 trillion and RMB 22 trillion respectively; CNY settlement amounted to RMB 88 trillion and FCY settlement amounted to USD 1.8
trillion, increases of 38% and 58% year-on-year respectively; pilot trade finance was launched and the issued loans increased by 67% year-on-
year. Major breakthroughs were made in the project of "Laos National Bank Card Payment System."

EMEES eI
FINANCIAL COOPERATION AND INNOVATION

20144, AT &R S5 ENE, MRS EXSRIBAREGE.

In 2014, the Bank continued to enhance its coordination between business lines to achieve synergistic banking services and cooperated
actively with other financial institutions, making new headways in business development.

SREAXAEBAEDN, ELARBERK1L, ARSTARF7 86525, AIF £
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Cooperation The Bank entered into cooperation agreements with ABC and BOCOM,; it took a lead role in 261 syndicated
mi;ntgﬁgzi:g loans totaling RMB 786.5 billion. It was a leader in innovation through a differentiated interest rate syndicated
loan model to attract private funds to support urban renewal. The China Banking Association named CDB as
the "Best Performing Bank', "Best Developing Bank" and "Best Transaction Bank". The Bank rated and granted

credit lines to 20 national lenders and one overseas subsidiary bank of a Chinese lender.

TR EEMRI B FERRE T, SISREASARDI0ZTFRBERMTHNIE ; 5
SREASZHEFREREDIE . STLEAEZAEDN. SARFIORMEADFRR
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The Bank completed the first creditor's rights investment plan for an urban renewal project, channeling RMB
1 billion of insurance funds to support the urban renewal project in Chuzhou City, Anhui Province. The Bank
also channeled insurance funds to support the Longdong Energy Base project. The Bank signed a cooperation
agreement with Ping An Group, partnered with ten general insurers including PICC, with an aggregate sum
insured of RMB 321 billion. The Bank also rated and granted credit lines to eight insurance companies in 2014.

RRSAFEELS ESATNERTASDERTEE. SMERFLESAEHEE: WOKIES
AF). SRAFEERSHTIREE.
The Bank enhanced its collaboration with asset management companies and securities firms in both the asset

management and financial leasing sectors. It rated and granted credit lines to nine securities firms and three
asset management companies.
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FARLSE
SUBSIDIARIES
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In 2014, the Bank continued to push the Group's development strategies, improving management in its subsidiary operations, adjusting the
governance framework of CDB Leasing and the China-Africa Development Fund, and promoted a market-oriented reform within CDB Securities
for specialization and market segmentation. The Bank intensified collaboration between the parent company and its subsidiaries, leveraged
its comprehensive competitiveness of "investment, lending, bonds, leasing, securities" to support urban development, international business,
industrial restructuring and upgrading. As of the end of 2014, CDB's subsidiaries quickly grew to RMB 271.1 billion of total assets, increasing
by 10% year-on-year and achieving RMB 10 billion of net profit, a 122% year-on-year increase.

EfemMBREEAA
CDB Capital Co., Ltd.
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On August 24, 2009, the Bank founded China Development Bank Capital Co., Ltd. (CDB Capital) as a wholly owned subsidiary, with a
registered capital of RMB 47.8 billion, in accordance with the reform plan approved by the State Council. In 2014, CDB Capital expanded its
footprint in the new economy, and continued its business development in the four specialty areas of urban development, industrial investment,
overseas investment and funds management. Its incremental investment amounted to RMB 27.7 billion, including RMB 16.7 billion in urban
development, which accounted for more than 60% of the total, and RMB 8.1 billion of industrial investment in strategic new industries and
high-end manufacturing. The Bank devoted itself to building its national investment platform and pushed the establishment of the National
Integrated Circuit Industrial Fund, the China-UAE Joint Investment Fund, the Silk Road Fund, the China-Mexico Fund and the China-France
(M&A) Fund, totaling RMB 246.3 billion, and preliminarily achieving the foundational strategic objectives of 3S — "Support of national strategy,
synergy with CDB, and sustainability in business growth". As of the end of 2014, CDB Capital's assets totaled RMB 84.6 billion and net profit
for the year was RMB 6.1 billion.

FEHFRFELA

CDB Securities Co., Ltd.
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China Development Bank Securities (CDB Securities) was established on August 25, 2010 by the Bank through its acquisition of Stockfly
Securities Co., in accordance with CDB's reform plan approved by the State Council. The registered capital was RMB 7.37 billion. In 2014,
the Company underwrote 132 securities, totaling RMB 184.207 billion, achieving a market share within the corporate bond market of 9.34%,
ranking it No.1 in the industry for three consecutive years. The Company participated in issuing Ningxia government debt and being the first
lead underwriter of government debt among domestic securities companies. It issued eight railway debt offerings to support the State's railway
construction. Income from the investment banking business increased by 148% year-on-year, with significant breakthroughs made in sponsor-
based business, M&A financial consultation, Three New Board and international business. The company established branch companies in
six provinces and cities and had working groups in 24 bank branches. Asset management business grew by 38% and securities margin
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trading business grew 4.11 fold year-on-year. Nine ABS products were issued, and the 9th issue of railway-specific product amounted to RMB
15 billion, which was the highest amount for a single securitization product in the domestic market. As of the end of 2014, CDB Securities
achieved RMB 28.577 billion of total assets and RMB 720 million of net profit; it maintained its AA rating according to the CSRC rating for
broker-dealers.

EfREMEEHERAR

CDB Leasing Co., Ltd.
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CDB Leasing was established on May 29, 2008 as a non-bank financial institution with a registered capital of RMB 8.0 billion. CDB Leasing
was formerly known as Shenzhen Leasing Co., Ltd before it was acquired by CDB. In 2014, its incremental leasing business reached RMB 30.3
billion, with total assets amounting to RMB 140.4 billion, placing the Company in the leading position within the industry. The Company was

proactive in developing its leasing business focused on aircraft, shipping, engineering machinery, commercial vehicles and affordable housing.
This further improved its brand influence.

It achieved a net profit of RMB 1.916 billion and a ROE of 14.66%. Its long-term issue credit rating was A+ from Fitch, A+ from S&P and A1
from Moody's. It was also the first player in the domestic Chinese financial leasing industry to issue USD bonds overseas with its own credit
(in a volume of 650 million). The Financial News and the Institute of Finance and Banking of Chinese Academy of Social Sciences jointly listed
CDB Leasing among "Best Industry Contributors in 30 Years of Financial Leasing". The Company was also named by China's Annual Meeting
on Financial Leasing 2014 as the "Chinese Financial Leasing Company of the Year 2014".

PERREEERAA

China-Africa Development Fund
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The China-Africa Development Fund (CAD Fund) was launched on June 26, 2007. It is currently the only fund in China committed to investment
in Africa. The Bank was the sole source of funds for phase | and phase Il of CAD Fund's capital, amounting to USD 3.0 billion. In 2014, CAD
Fund continued its role in guiding and assisting Chinese companies in their investments in Africa, supporting investment in regional aviation,
ports, electricity, agriculture, pharmaceuticals, vehicle assembly and home appliance assembly. It invested USD 181 million during the year,
leading to an estimated USD 1.1 billion in investment from Chinese enterprises into Africa. In 2014, CAD Fund agreed to invest USD 3.13
billion in 80 projects, potentially attracting USD 16 billion of investment into Africa. It continued to make contributions to the development of
African countries in key areas, including "Three Networks and One Industrialization". In addition, CAD Fund, as the manager of China-Portugal
Development Fund, contributed to the economic and trade cooperation between China and Portuguese-speaking countries.

FHRSRIT
Village Banks

HERTRATEMELEESHNERT N, AXHFEHLF . /B EARITELXEEERIEM. 20145 HEHR
OSSR RMEIE NRENETE, RS SRRS KT, BE014ER, ATERNERTISR, 22K, SATARD
183127t WRRFARB725{ZT, Hh, KR ARARFARTISCZT, NHATKRIMART49.927T . HESTFEA
Rm22Zx, RERF2AF . SEANAEBITAZNMIER T, BRS RPN A EE S —H 158,

Village banks are an important window in the implementation of an inclusive rural China financial system, and play an important role in supporting
county economy and leading the development of small- and micro-businesses. In 2014, CDB's village banks continued to enhance their service

65



66

W &5 £Rik
BUSINESS OPERATIONS

quality and management capabilities and strengthen risk prevention. As of the end of 2014, the Bank had a controlling interest in 13 village banks
and a non-controlling interest in two others. Total assets of these village banks reached RMB 15.31 billion, which included RMB 7.25 billion in
loans. Out of the total loan portfolio, RMB1.58 billion was lent to farmers and RMB 4.99 billion was lent to microbusinesses, with net profits of RMB
220 million. Benefits were spread across some 20,000 households. The Bank's ability to serve farmers and microbusinesses was further enhanced
during the year with the official opening of another five village bank branches.

AN BRBEEIRFNELR N

HUMAN RESOURCES MANAGEMENT

ANEIR

Human Resources
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In 2014, the Bank strengthened the reform of its personnel systems, improved its staff employment and assignment mechanisms, strengthened
training for junior staff and pursued various avenues to create a good environment for talent development. Management and supervisors
actively promoted the healthy development of personnel skills. It explored scientific incentive and penalty mechanisms, in order to optimize
its compensation, fringe benefits and annuity systems. This research was utilized during employee orientation in order to encourage top
performance from the Bank's new hires. The Bank, through exploration of a number of personnel channels, successfully recruited 556 new
employees.

=l

Training
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In 2014, the Bank organized training across different levels and categories centered on reform and development. It strengthened cooperation
with famous universities and institutions, including Massachusetts Institute of Technology, Goethe University Frankfurt and Barclays, focusing
on training covering financial group management, urban development and sustainable development, and financial products and risks primarily
aimed at expanding the international perspective of its staff. The Bank organized specialized and effective training focused on business finance
for urban renewal and strategic emerging industries. It used monitored online training in order to upgrade the quantity and quality of training. In
2014, the Bank provided face-to-face training equivalent to 47,971 employees and online training equivalent to 12,204 employee-days.

In 2014, the Bank followed the concept of "leveraging knowledge" to support local economic and social development. It organized training for
locals based on the overall deployment of its national poverty-relief work. The Bank developed specialized training in the Wuling Mountain area
and Zunyi (Guizhou Province), and organized training in Qinghai Province and Longnan (Gansu Province) for urban renewal. In total, 5,639
Bank employees, including both headquarters and branch staff, received formal training during 2014.

HAA

Organization structure
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In 2014, the Bank continued to support the enhancement of internal processes and its organizational structure. CDB Housing Finance as a
business unit was established and the representative office in Caracas was opened. As of the end of 2014, the Bank had 37 tier-1 branches
and two tier-2 branches within Mainland China and one branch and four representative offices in overseas locations. In addition, the Bank
maintained controlling shareholder positions within four subsidiaries.
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ITRIEBESEELEIR
IT GOVERNANCE AND SYSTEM ENHANCEMENT
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In 2014, the Bank steadily progressed the drafting of a new information technology plan, assessed the development and progress of information
technology implementation and improved the IT governance framework governance system; it completed the development of a new IT system
for its newly established CDB Housing Finance to support the urban renewal initiative. The Bank successfully launched eight important systems,
including the Key Account Cash Management System, CNAPS2, and Hainan-Yangpu MIS-POS. It improved more than 30 systems, including the
student loan system, the SME loan system and the Analyzer system. It also pushed operation and maintenance management optimization and
IT infrastructure building. During the year, the Bank: applied for IT service management standard 1SO20000 certification; drove the construction
of a data center in Daoxiang Lake district; strengthened data applications; enforced the implementation of internal data standards; enforced
data lifecycle management; drafted the first data mining requirement planning system; built a standard IT service platform for improved technical
support capabilities; strengthened information technology risk control, focused on improving its internal compliance risk management ability,
assessed technical risk and IT outsourcing risk; and continued to refine strategies regarding its IT security systems.
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In 2014, adhering to its operational philosophy of "in service of national strategy, effective risk management, and reasonable profitability",
the Bank analyzed environmental changes, actively responded to the risks and challenges under the "'new normal', further improved its risk
management and continuously promoted a minimum-risk management culture. The Bank refined its risk management policies and measures,
enforced rating quality management, and strengthened key industry and client risk prevention, focusing on key country risk management. It
launched a group client risk IT system to optimize risk identification and exposure and management warnings for group clients, continuously
pushed economic capital stress tests and quota management, gradually improved trading transaction risk management systems, steadily
pushed risk management accountability system building, continuously refined the risk management process and framework of branches and
subsidiaries, and strengthened risk management assessment abilities. The risk management IT system was progressively integrated, enhanced
and upgraded. As of the end of 2014, the Bank's total non-performing loans amounted to RMB 51.561 billion, with an NPL ratio of 0.65%, which
remained at a level of below 1% for 39 consecutive calendar quarters.

15 FXURE:

CREDIT RISK

ERRRERS AR FLERTREMERTTRERRRANE . EANERKALFHRT, KATEKHR
RMNLERAPEL AR T —EMNREFRER DD, NMBARAERAETRTANTKBEANKREEREFR.

Credit risk is the risk of loss in the event that a borrower or counterparty does not meet its obligations in accordance with original contractual
terms. By virtue of its own unique business model, the Bank has developed a set of practical and effective risk management processes
focusing on medium- to long-term credit risk.

FERNKEERESHR

Credit Risk Management and Policy
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In 2014, the Bank continued to improve its credit risk management systems, policies and procedures in line with its business development
strategy, internal and external environmental changes, asset structure and asset risk characteristics. It established environmental and social
risk categorization standards and processes in accordance with regulatory requirements, particularly to improve risk management capabilities
concerning environmental protection. The Bank continued to enhance its credit rating system, and tightened its ratings management in a
systematic, dedicated and standardized way, strengthened its asset quality classification management system, developed its asset portfolio
dynamic adjustment analysis and management framework, improved pre-loan economic capital estimation formulation, improved its stress
testing management system, and moved forward the implementation of portfolio risk limits. The Bank also strengthened credit risk monitoring,
improved its customer credit risk warning system, strengthened management warning processes based on both warning signals and high
risk client warnings. The Bank strengthened risk analysis and estimation for key clients and projects, key cooperating countries, hot issues
and key industries, including photovoltaic, shipping, steel, coal and oil, and carried out risk screening for overcapacity in private enterprises,
international businesses, guarantee provisions, enterprises involved in lawsuits, and regularly tracked risk profiles to determine potential risks,
enable forward-looking and proactive risk management.

BEARKESESITE

Credit Risk Classification and Measurement
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According to the regulatory requirements in the "Guidelines on Risk-Based Loan Classification" issued by the CBRC and the level of risk,
the Bank classifies its credit assets into five categories: pass, special mention, sub-standard, doubtful and loss, of which the latter three
categories, namely sub-standard, doubtful and loss, are regarded as non-performing loans. The Bank applies a risk-based asset quality
assessment approach, using established definitions, credit ratings, and situational judgment in line with relevant standards.

As an effort to further refine its management of credit assets, the Bank has further improved its credit rating system pursuant to the CBRC
guidance on capital management. The system is a two-dimension scheme, featuring rating methodologies, policies, procedures, management
systems, data collection and IT support, including calculations of probability of default (PD) based on customer rating and loss given default
(LGD) by transaction, which cover all of the Bank's corporate credit businesses. In addition, the Bank has conducted credit ratings for nations,
sovereigns, local governments, industries and regions.

In 2014, the Bank, based on the result of a national government debt audit by China National Audit Office, further enhanced its government
credit rating model report template and debt indicator calculations and ensured that the Bank's government rating methods and standards
were in line with government statistics standards. The Bank also sorted and analyzed government debt data, carried out categorized warning
and monitoring over government debt levels, and improved the accuracy of government business risk assessment.

A XEE
MARKET RISK

W RERIEETHME (FX, LR RENENERNE) OFHBHTERTRATMKINSZERKORE . &
TERNTHRE T BEEBERTKASTEMANME, LR, MEETAARASMNESHRANERE.

2014, AfT#H—TRETHNRERFE ZRRESERYSBOTRAMZIZKA, RATHREIRF. T2,
BNAETE RHEENNKTR, ERREXHHNREEERER, THZERSNREERE. THNREER
. REXHEERGEF. RU015FXZWATHREERIRE, Bz T MK NE(VaR) FIEVaRR AU 5
AT R EEEAR, SEXARENNR. BEGKMRERGSETFREBERTHXBRN, I REVER R X5 .
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RISK MANAGEMENT

Market risk is the risk of loss to a bank's on- and off-balance sheet businesses caused by unfavorable changes in the prices of financial
instruments, principally through changes in interest rates, foreign exchange rates and prices of stocks and commodities. Market risks faced by
the Bank include interest rate risk and foreign exchange rate risk in its banking and trading books, and liquidity risk arising from both its on-
and off-balance sheet assets.

In 2014, the Bank further improved its market risk management policy, managed its banking and trading books separately according to CBRC
requirements and improved its methods for market risk identification, measurement, monitoring and control. The Bank also improved its stress
test plan, strengthened its treasury transaction risk control system building, and continuously improved its assets and liabilities management
system, market risk management system and the trading system. In addition, the Bank set 2015 trading book market risk limits for departments,
established trading book market risk management system focusing on Value at Risk (VaR) and non-VaR limits, and carried out stress testing,
back-testing with tools such as risk limits in tracking the market, applying resolutions as appropriate.

I EIR g

Interest Rate Risk

FEREGIEEFIRKE, HREVEZZREATENSBRTEBEARDMEFNEEZRRAONE ., RNITRTEKSF
ENEEBTFEMNRBNELFNERNAETNAREAMNLENZNE, SEZAROST. A2, ESNED
. BMEBRARIES, BEEIHMBER S AREMEIAZZETRHETROTKAFRNGER., XHKAHFE
R EEBE S A RRAMEVaRITT E04T. BURMST. SHMARKEE A S, TmNRSHT#ETER.

20144, EXFRTHUFERNTS, ATRRRRTEATHNEENEENG, RANKENNEGEEMES, FHELC
BRTRUTHEN AN, KA EH+RRORRZ—,

Interest rate risk is the risk of loss arising from changes in the level of interest rates or changes in the shape of yield curves that could
adversely affect the market value of financial instruments or future earnings of the bank. The impact that a change in interest rates might have
on the Bank's operations is primarily assessed from both revenue and economic value perspectives, using a number of methods, including
analyses on interest rate re-pricing gap, duration and basis point value and a net interest income simulation. Interest rate risk in the banking
book is managed and mitigated through adjustment of asset and liability structure and the use of derivative products. The management and
control of interest rate risk in the trading book is achieved through analyzing interest rate limit, VaR measurement, sensitivity, exposure by
currency, mark-to-market and profit/loss positions.

In 2014, facing the competition of market-oriented interest rates reform, the Bank proactively explored and improved internal interest rate
pricing management mechanisms to improve its risk pricing and comprehensive pricing capabilities, and cooperated with the People's Bank of
China (PBoC) to establish self-regulating mechanisms. The Bank became one of the first ten core members of PBoC's efforts in this regard.

LR

Forex Risk
CEREEIEELCREKEPEERLZETHENSRRTERRAMEFNEEZRRANRLE,

ATEEBEINCEH A, STRERMNT. ER UK E (EaR)ZFMNEEME(VaR) ZFHE LR TANRITLENT W, I
B FERRFARHMERRIAZZETRNH T RN ERE.
Foreign exchange rate risk (forex risk) is the risk of loss arising from the fluctuation of foreign exchange rates. The Bank manages its forex risk

primarily by analyzing foreign exchange exposure and exchange rate sensitivity, Earnings at Risk (EaR) and VaR, as well as by rebalancing its
asset and liability structure and using hedging tools.

AR

Liquidity Risk

RS RIBRITERBBERN, ELERNESEERSILEZUEGERARMNRKERERS DN X H =B K K
XAEEARESHINE., BRI HEERMNSRER RN ESEERZARATRNIHNE EENFEB TR,
20144, ATHXENBENS. FRENTSRERY, REXENZTAEERS, AeLTREMERE, Riks5
BMMHXs, XRERIERSREASMENE, BNABE—PTERNMEEIREENT, FHReSRAMNNSE
AERs M N EENBALEE.
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RISK MANAGEMENT

Liquidity risk is the risk that a bank is unable to fund its current obligations and operations in the most cost-efficient manner, regardless of its
solvency. The main objective of the Bank's liquidity risk management is to control asset-liability maturity mismatch and maintain sufficient cash
flow. In 2014, the Bank established a preliminary cross-market and multi-channel funding source structure, achieving more diversified funding
sources and a more stable fund position. The Bank actively participated in money market deals, took effective measures to strictly control
liquidity risk, further improved level-to-level management of liquidity reserve, and continuously improved the management of both on-balance
and off-balance businesses in order to further promote its management efficiency.

HRAERBE
OPERATIONAL RISK

BRIERNKERIEHATEI B RN AIESF. RIMEENKRSE, MURIMNBEITERIRKARE.

20145, AITIGRE SRS NE T, HaBXITEHE, AAFRNREERSG. ARFUSEERGTNAER
575 () FEENEREERFLETRKE TS, REERZRFINF L%, 2NBFREGELE TE2RGHEE
A AREMIETFHERERANEHETIE, K5F/F FTEH NIESS. TEERE. SREENKRER
FR, DUEENTFRERNR, cERTDEENKGEEESN., MRINEFATA, MUAEEAREHLSRZRETNETN
BEFIE. BUPKARFTNAEERBEREE, BIERIENSMANBRETREEIHFNE, SFMEaRNXAEEN
&, RERRBEINE. BXEIERREMENS BEXTFRISSMIEZVERITR. HBE104MEERIRE, R
EE RS EENRPSEMES R, 8% E RS AR,

Operational risk is the risk of loss arising from failed internal procedures, staff and IT systems, and external events.

In 2014, the Bank enhanced its inspection of IT system risk by releasing relevant risk assessment policies, organized risk assessment
before launching the MIS-POS system, key account cash management system and trading system (Phase Il). The Bank made every
reasonable effort in operational risk prevention, improved case prevention systems, carried out case prevention work assessment and case
risk inspections, and maintained "zero case" tolerance. It improved full-process and multi-level legal risk management systems, control risks
through legal means and upgraded its legal risk management ability. It also strengthened research and assessment on new regulations and
laws, promoted business development and prospective risk prevention through prospective study. The Bank strengthened full process legal
control over mid- and long-term loan risks, enhanced legal support to credit review through early legal preparation, innovated contract text
management mechanism, achieved positive results in collecting loans through legal means. The Bank also established country-wise legal
risk warning mechanisms, conducted 135 country legal ratings, drafted 104 country-wise legal reports, timely set up international business
legal risk prevention rules, and enhanced international business legal risk prevention ability.

B
COMPLIANCE RISK

BHNERIERTEXAERER. AN, ENTEEREER. KEQT. EXMSFREIMEERRANE.

20144, ATRIRIEHEMXAER, #—FPEEHM. AENRERER, IREANKEIRFIFTEE, RREEE
BEIERAHEE BRTHRESRINNSIAHEE. BEHREBAMSEIIE, WEELIMEBHELREEE RN,
MEAEF RO MERERI = RARETE, BCERLSHRAKERE, #—PEIREXKXFEEFE. 5
BRFAEAREEERKF,

Compliance risk is the current and prospective risk to earnings or capital arising from violations of or non-conformance with laws, rules,
regulations, prescribed practices, internal policies and procedures or ethical standards, which risk exposes the Bank to regulatory fines and
penalties, material financial losses and diminished reputation, amongst other potential damages.

In 2014, the Bank proactively promoted the establishment of a fully-compliant culture, further improved its compliance and internal control
systems, strengthened identification and management of compliance risks, cooperated with the CBRC for off-site supervision, successfully
completed CBRC's onsite inspection, regulatory interview and examination of overseas business, and achieved outstanding results in
correcting the problems identified by CBRC. The Bank enhanced its compliance and internal control capabilities through compliance review of
rules and policies, risk assessment for new products, strengthening anti-money laundering management for international business and further
improved related party transactions management systems.
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CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

.:I:Z J\1£

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

ATESZ HEREN, AERE &S, FANZE, URENEARES, MTHUTARSERTHELREBEIE. X5
FEMESRONBNER ZNEHEE THARTHER. FRER FEER, FEFHIARTIESHDENR
BARLIHEGE, KSR ESLFHINKBER. 2014F, ATHERCERRTRARE, A5~ W HR AR, FHE
WRARE P EFESIARER, FHEDZFIHE. S THENRRTHENEN G —.
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MM SEZAHERAORE ., EBRGELRZA(RBUS £RERUETHEIND, SMKEEREHWE ST
#H(UNEP FN2014EF =, pF O HERRRESNER,

FITE R C04FETHELRIRED, HEATERTEMTHEL RIS TE.

The Bank remains committed to its mission of "strengthening national competitiveness and improving the living standards of its people"
consistent with the principles of scientific and sustainable development. It leverages the advantage and function of development finance and
has devoted to financial inclusion. The Bank has made substantial efforts in market building, credit building and system building to achieve its
targeted goals in promoting China's economic and social development whilst transforming weak links of the economy into areas of sustainable
business. In 2014, the Bank established a green credit development strategy in line with the country's vision of ecologically sound environments
in supporting industrial transformation and upgrading as well as urban development, and pushed for alignment of the three dimensions of
sustainability: economic, social and environmental.

In 2014, the Bank actively participated in international exchanges on social responsibility, cooperated with the United Nations Organization on
climate change financing, pushed green development and response to the challenges of climate change. The Bank signed the United Nation's
Global Contract Anti-corruption and Global Development Agenda Initiative, and participated in the United Nations Environment Programme's
Finance Initiative's (UNEP FI) annual meeting 2014 where it shared with the participants its insights and experiences in sustainable
development.

The Bank will release its 2014 Sustainability Report to disclose its achievements in social responsibility and sustainable development in due
course this financial year.
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1. FERTRAMK L K AR
CDB staff volunteered for public education of financial knowledge

2 FHR M IRE AREBAREBX /N REHRBREIITERT 2
CDB Candle Project to provide training of trainers and teachers to support primary and middle schools in the impoverished areas

in western China

2014 AATATIRER S SREFN AL R

HONOURS AND AWARDS IN 2014
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(BER) (BEiR)
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Hith = 17 32,083 11,088 35,719 2,421 2,496 26,886
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(—) % F58 - - - - - 75,257 75,257
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() #5828

1T REE&AR 33 - - - 13,506 ~  (13,508) -
2. R —R B A& 33 - - - - 27,976 (27,976) -
3. B NE 33 - - - - - (14,956)  (14,956)
=. 201312831 B 440 306,711 3,355 (2,459) 45,590 96,460 95,934 545,591
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B ERIAHRHRSHSITHE, SRETENREES
MHIN AR, FIT A SR,

(2) F£itx

BRERFEREI, BMBAHERAN D TR RER
B#R ATREANMRATREIMMBARR TS MAEERTER
SHESITHY, ATRRE-FERATTIAN—ELLBEE
S HHR, AR S REMIT NG HRE.

(3) MERERF

WEEFBHENRLHERAERARER, EATEEE
#HE BEREBHEITERUAFHR I XA ETIERN®
A ATERIARRFARATEZAEZAZERERR
REFEL I, mEZ AR AFALHNE RN R XA PR
FriEfl,

FR&AFERE, AR F X SRR RIREN B A%
TRE . IEARRI SR &% 5 8 F 0 AR A B £
WEERFI, WA AG. BTHEERENTUFRES4EH
/MR NGRS

(4) #FERAKEFI
AfTE20MEI12A3THE M BRAK. REMESITNER
WA T XA ERAKER, BFENEFESHNEETER.

THREAGRR . HFERAREF X SRR RREHN 2 A
EHITHEERE. MARKI SR TR 5B A RARIEME
E S =TI, A ARG, B TRERENEUEFRE”
ERFBIRRIT ARG,

Fiit s
Y5FHETAXN XS ZARARKENAXK S, BB
EXSRITESHLFRERL ARXSHETEBTE
ST, AR E GBI DT TR,

THREAEER, AKRAEERSHAFRAE RO . FHE
MRMEDHEMESER RRETEXANXSHEIH
B R AE T S T T R T B . AR B A A
BEX, MIMFITH AR &R TG/ S5 E & EGITE

5 & BRKERXOIT A GRRELCZ ST LREN
2R MR EERNFHMTE A SRS,



15.

16.

17.

FIRUNFISZH
BN IS 1% FRAR 36 S B A 7= F & Bl S AR O 38 R AR
GEEIE S SNt

ERAFRERER. FRBRARRBITERERKOREKR
SRMIFIEITEHIN.

FEHRALWN

&
FEBRRASBNEE ARGPEXRS MR RES RN
ik,

A8t
P8 2% P B 15 X4 ST 19 BLAN 8 IE ARG L.

(1) SHFREHR

FTREARERE I THHAMUATH RN LSHREH R
A BRBENETENTRHA R (FRE) T
BREFTE,

(2) BEFEH

AEAHFELR” OETEAKANES LT R R 6
BZER. MERRIEN RN AGERHINERBFTENEDT U
EHITHERMATE MIKENES T HEMZ B8 Z8~ %
MENMER XAASAHERESERINBERERAS
R EFEHAME.

—REATHAE DN EZRHFINEROBEMSH. BX
TUMMENMEER, AEE IR T EEBUS A RITIM TR0
AN EFNNABRASTOR. FIAEXHEERSH A
oS SRENMARTRIMEXE, MEREREFZLW &I,
RENBAR WS IR AN AB S (H | SR)
N ZPFENRTL AR TIEFINEXNEREER,
TYHINERHBERFRA R A6,

AEABINS TS BELCLREGELWRABRAK LA
BEMNMERFENBERERAR. REREHEBES
H A R E R 8], T BIZE B 1 2 F 7 o] UL AR Sk
RUEASELE. N TFE5FRE KELLRAECWIRER
RKMTMAEMNMER AFHENUERETRRM KR
RETBEREE, BRKRRUEKSARMMNTRMNEHNHEER
BN AT S ER , REEA A FIABERSHE~.

THRFUEERR, N TBERSRASMBERSH A, R
EREIE , BRI B4 5% 5 7 SUB 248 X R 18 69
BEABRERITE. REEBTARMSARETIRANENR
SMBIEXMN LM ERMBEMESBIT AL MG RS
FHRENGE, MRSV AEFFENBERSRIAERERNIK
ENENS, ERLUPAERTMEEMSHERIREITANY
.

THRENRERD, ARANBEEMSHATNOKENMELTE
B, MR AKRR T BE T E KT R 0B A9 N AT P 1540 DUHE N2
ERTEBASNFE, NRICEEMEHRATNKENE. £
RUERSEBHEAT SN RICH ST T NEE.

18.

19.

20.

T 55 R AR B E

(3) FRiSHLHYIRSH

HRBEVFPEENZENT, BREANSTEESLMER
UBERRRANETH, AKRALHMESRAS RLPME
B R DU S = 8% FSIIR

LB MNEREE LR SHAT RAHARERARINEE
NF, BBEMEBRETRBEMER KRS E—HKE
ERRIIX B — AR EF RIS RAB R E RN TR A
BEFEX BERKS - AAEEUNBERSRASR
MR E AR A P RAAS AR E DR E L A
BRASMAGHEDNRGH”  BREAGRN AEHABT
PSR 58 7 R 38 S A 1575t 1 657 UK SE /3 9% 5519k

W EHF

(1) R—EHTrdl &t
FRAENGFTXANEIF RN EREHEE IF T HE~
HRKENETE. FTRENSEASKENES XG0
EFINEENENZH, BEARAR (RAEN) AKX
AR BRASHEN) TR UM, BERSRFE.

REFDRTEVEFRENEETATRENITA S HREA.

(2) ER—EHNTHRLEHF
FEFAEAMIT AR IR RBUSH BRI TS FIAF M
BEPHAR > MEERSIAEAFEMEENARANMETE. &
FRAKRTEFRBUSHWME R THIAEE = A RN ER
TEF, EA-TESRINAFEFRARHETYIRITE.
BIHEANTFEHPRENEBEITTTHINEA = AR MNE
MHH. BENBRBHEBETTZEMAIOALS . ARERE
EHNAANENREFREANTEHXTER, EREEH
MANNT & FHBSHHMEET THAER =2 N ER
M9, TN LB,

FEABT LRGN T RAER—EFHTHELEIFH,
BFRAAMIE XA NEURBZRELFRNEN
LR EML BN ARMEZM,

ABTEVEFRENEEEXEBRAMEXEEERAT
REMITALERE.
WIER—EZEH TRV EF, FUXAEHRAKRTFEIHF

BUSHIBIE R TT oI HA S B A R M EN BH ZJFINA
BE. BERRRANRREAZEENFETR.

CERVEETES L DR

B U ERRAEIFCE S AR TR E. BH 2
LATRAENERATONN, BESESHRATOERE
HFMEFTLER, FAFENZANERATHNAOEZ N
HORESH. —BERXEITEANTASB LREHEX
BREMRBEZRET U, ARABHTERITE.

MBEFASNEGREFNRZAE, REAFBEEAINEG
FHEE: MeEKFEFNZARELEANEGIEE. T E
—BEHTLYEFRENTAS, BESATRZREER
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G

Tt 55 R AR B E

TEHZBRANKTEIER EEREPHFHEHD
FERRAEFHTEFNZAENEERRNASRECEY
BEREGHIBARNEGFASRERT . W TER—EH
THVEHFBEHNTAS, HEMIAENZEMREAE
RMECAELHERESHIERMEHASRERD. K
SRATEBRAUTHENNEB T ARVANEGIHEE.

RAERD BRI ALHMRERLT N RE T2 EH R
B FARBRIIZRAEERREFNENAANERTERIT
B2 ABERTRENNN SRRV AANEZ, RERRE
BRILPITENZAERTASEUMXEFRFEITENSEA
FRNBZEAER, FARXESREPNRE RS BN
HHEE. SR TASRMRARXMEMESKE. £%
KBS 0 KR A R .

BHEFRRTNOAIV SRR, TR EEMTESARTR
ANSTBERASITRERA 38, ZREATHIITBEER
SR T AW SREHATLENFEE,

SEANERET. X5 R RLUFBE SIS IREK S H A
FRUREHE, TASINBREANER EHERETAETAER
FrAB AR AP BREARGER P BRFRAERIT
Tt 55 e h B AR AN 28 B A U T B IR5) 7R

ST BRP M EZFIETNS T
AT R AR R BRI RER R
AREEE ARG S MR BT M T 2EE
PRENFREN, ARABEXN TEERITROBRAE
PO {1 B TSR AR IR RSN (R RRR R
ETEBER XA LAY, HE%ERMAXEENERY
LM, RENERTESARANEIHFEER,

AERANIAHE AT HBRREFELENEM LT E
PERZ UL ERTBLELHN AP mBAELE
LHEIT BN BE WA ELHARE AR N, EZmi
AERE LR KIE T MUFIA.

THRFNHEERR . ARABH Y S IRFIE ST THMT 14
HHRENEZREHMNT

- KSR R B ERE

Bexd B ZIR B YR B B R B Rt TR E R R TR, AR E
AN BEARA B R R E R KB R ITIT M. X T il BTN
PREAASRRD O RRAEARNTRES, KAEAXN TZ
REREGREHFEMTRARASRRA D ORETRETH
#r UHEREHFEITRAXRELAE. ETEFLEMUEAN
RRHINATEASMRERKINILER, FRANFER
EXRHRRASMERERT. REAZHITHEXRKIL
SROESPAN D TEITAERATEMRE, MR
HRREXFRESEHIHRAZENESR.

- M HES AT REMRRAIT BN ZRE

AEHABRER(ELRITHENE22S - &R TABIATITED
MERARORERERBEREGRE. AEREERARE
BB TEERHN. EARRARBRERENIRES.

REF T A ZILA B2 RAMERT R AR TR M5
B, RAMTEMAFRE (PN FARMRAEERSF)
M EBER AN G SR, G SRE (Fm. 71RR
EERIR) SRR £HMRERTREI T UEEN, &
FEFBHEZIBRANNMEREEZTN LE2ES5HIMNZRER
RERENFTREX (FlW: FEANERTRERSF).

. EMIAEARNME

MWRBEERXGTHNERMIAE AEAFEAGERARHE
HARNME. SEGEZABREMEPATTHRZMNE.
TUEBHRG SR TANE, EANKAEEHRNNS
RENN, MRLREANTHENERE, AEAMNTERH
e TAAARNMENHEREERTUARNTHEE, B
X —L, MAKB MR SN FHEBNE . TiHKRaEM
HEEUSHEFBE, WEEEEENHETHET. REHEXR
BHEUEN SR TRENARNESE20,

- FFEEISRR

AEABHAEFHNERER THEEREHTMNEEZHA
BAKAE AHRZEMENHE EEMNETESRAS A
KAFBZIHREA ETRTALTERT I RREM AN,
EHTHAMNEED, AEASWNEBEZERAZEHE
MERMBENHTITE. REEHERN (FlmERERHE
HHESTAEANRR) IRAEAREFILERARE
EZHHA, WK EBZERAESLETHEESRA”.

. FTiEm

EEFNEERNT REXHNEMARERSLIELF
EAREN. ETRASHERN, ARARTREHEKRH
Wi R ZLERFSEMHNRELINEERSZRVUAKN ST
HEER ZEFRBWEL LR RLINEHE SR BEAMN
BIEFTERA S B~ £,

X SHHKLE

A F R A Y AR T201 A4F 37 M A6 B9 (£ Mk & T N 539
S - ARAMETEN (LW ST ENEI0S - 5E RHD.

(W ENENS - FEMTEPRENRE)NEE
TRV S ENE2S - KRR R (LY itk
29SS — BRIHM) (W RIHENEIS — MEREKT
BB U S ENESS - 5 FMSHRE) YR (LS
THENEES7S — £R T AR,

- KEARRAE 3

ATV SITHENE2S — KERPURHEY(EIT) 287, &
SENERALNFARFES . HEARHRERT MW, FEE
ERTHFRAERN. A AN ERETET S H MR
A RABAEZE. AT USTTENE2S — KRN
BEVEIT) B ARANERABMFARFHERHHE

Fm, I EAERTZPRAERN. AANERETEITE
MR AENTHEESRATZE. KAEAXBERA
EEN EREUBREEHTRILE, R BEREEY
e E S-S EALE =1 TR



2. EHMBHR

MITCL LS AENEEIZS - 5FMERRIEIT) 287,
AEARERAMETERHNEBT AINNEIEE,
TV ENEISS - 5 FMESMENEIT) /. BT
AOTERAM TG, REFA KBS R A M T EATEEE
MEBTASNUANEHMFRFEE. ARAXBEHFE
AN LR BHRLEH#TRIULE, Z2 T BEREENY
SRENTWSRRHIIE.

. BR L #r

RTCLU T AENEIS - RIHMIEIT) 81 I T A
TE20MF12ANERMBIRNBERRBERAK. KSMEE
THHREANMER TX AT RAEBFOBEEFSIHR KT
ANEERE. RO STHENEIS - BRI FHMN (E1T)
B HEEAREFMNBENSIREAITALHPEME SR,
AEAXABHEEES ERS T BRETHTETLE,
RZRUTBEREENMSRERAZ WS AEMHIIE.

. M SRR

(ST AENEIS — MESMKRIVMIEIT) B EMEGS
WA HTE: (DNERITHEREED KRN HM
SEWRHETE . Qe IHEEREHERMHITEEN X
HRENEMEESRENE AINETRHAESEFMAEN
IR AW SRR FIZANNMERHTIIR, F AT FE
W &EIRFMIIRFAT T HNIFE, AW EFREAZHSN
IE1ElE

T 55 R AR B E

. ERMITRIEK

(T AENES7S — SR TARIEIT) EmMTHX
MM ENWBEER, BMT ERA~EBHREER &
BT AT MER ORI PHARITOHRERR. XY 5
RFERIZENHETIIIR,

. RRUMEITE

(S AEMEINS - ARMETENET 2 ANEN
TTEMNKEE, RA(E LRSI ANEINS - AN EITED
ANMEREFEMBANITESEERT W, EEEMFREM
ERRAANEESIEEEZNEE. AUSRREKRZ
HENH R EHTIRE.

- AHMEEPN AR

(WS AENENS - EHMETEPNENHEYERT
WETRE. EEREE. KEMRAASH Y FIRFSEEN
FEMUEEFNENEE. RACRLSITENEIS - &
Htt AP NS RBEYEEM SRR EREREZH
W5 AW SIRKRERZENNNEHTHE.

. BERH

EERAN(L LS AEMNEIOS - GERHIARARX
AERNYESRFTEERTNE.

T ERFRESTBREENEDN, AEFS RAEHRARE
WET AW SREROMOBH LEXNLLE, HERT THLF
EHMEiRE, LIRS BREEENARA013F1/1AR
2013F12ASTHMA . MBEMA A BN AN NI RN T

2013%£1H1H
E373:0) 5 — Hidlm
R HA R AR 2% i WMEMRIIM SHUSZEE

FFRUE b FRIN 459,976 - - - 438 460,414
ugﬁggg;%i%%F 63,738 2 - - 122 63,862
R FR 26,300 - - - 3 26,303
ot ESrE 121,955 17,972 - - 1 139,928
oAl €/ RTTE3 374 10,594 - - - 850 11,444
KHARAIRH 6,187 (4,834) - - - 1,353
Hth gt ™= 35,694 - - - 25 35,719
R 34,581 - - - 1 34,582
BERERAE 178 3,285 - - 1 3,464
HAthth i 22,611 - - - 26 22,637
/N A 4,669 - - (1,314) - 3,355
ShHIRRITEZM (241) - - 241 - -
Hpgr &R - 9,855 31 1,073 - 10,959
RO EFE 84,479 - (31) - 16 84,464
B FERASBRENG 496,408 9,855 - - 16 506,279
DEBE RN G 2,178 - - - 1,395 3,573
R RN & A9 8B 5 498,586 9,855 - - 1,411 509,852
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2013412H31H
EusA|
kA R
KHARRAR 57 HR T ErE MEHRFIE SHUSHEE

AR A SR 402,439 - - - 779 403,218
uiﬁ;ﬁgggi%iigﬁ 57,515 2 - - 1,270 58,787
Rz F S 27,687 - - - 1 27,688
JHEESRA~ 147,342 12,013 - - - 159,355
NGRS R A 12,492 - - - 30 12,522
KHEIRA IR H 6,422 (4,825) - - - 1,597
BT R A 40,485 (79) - - - 40,406
HAthE ™ 11,027 - - - 61 11,088
i AT S L 0 109 1,718 - - - 1,827
Hfpfafi 21,744 - - - 35 21,779
BARIR 3,127 - - 228 - 3,355
SNBIRFITEZER (529) - - 529 - -
Hihzals - 5,393 17 (757) - 4,653
RAOEFHE 106,786 - (17) - 21 106,790
BT EHATRENE 559,206 5,393 - - 21 564,620
DEBRFENE 2,744 - - - 2,085 4,829
X AR AR AR 3 A9 0 5 A 561,950 5,393 - - 2,106 569,449

ERSUHBREENAEA0IBFERRMERGERE 2HF I TNT .

20134
Hikar —— ERu]
KHARRAIE 7 AT HEA MERRIT SEHUSHR

F 2B 430,113 - - - 37 430,150
FEFRAESBAN 12,937 - - - (176) 12,761
‘AW 14,418 - - - 38 14,456
NRAMERFHRH 2,382 - - - 125 2,507
i R (22,832) - - - ) (22,834)
YEREER (10,055) - 14 - ) (10,043)
FrsFiEA (25,888) - - - 1 (25,887)
b e 79,917 - 14 - 21 79,952
FRTEATKRERNSTE 79,584 - 14 - 5 79,603
DBBRRRS 333 - - - 16 349
Hbfr Al (1,803) (4,462) (14) - - (6,279)
SZERE B 78,114 (4,462) - - 21 73,673
BHETFERAIRFNGEWE B 77,754 (4,462) - - 5 73,297

HRETOBBRARNG SRS 2 360 - - - 16 376




M5 RENE | 91

+ EEBM
1. AvFREH
RIBCREARTE L WFERL), RTEND IR EET A DA W ISR, RFTHBEH26%,

RERAFIMIET AR B LR EE LB UH S VFEH, SLABEBICEBHN, BIMERAERRESRNBEZE R H
RITRTRE—WERER.

SRR AT MR T B 32 RE R A X MBI
2. Bl RIBER

REFE(XTESEFARTBEE WD TARS WEVH LA ET KRB RBRABM WK [2013]375 ) KEHAFTAN
MERANBERNRRSZE AT ASPBER BERREN6%-17%.

B EREERERRSES SN AEBARANMIZEHRE VTSN E WD, EVRREAHS%, BEURLTHBEANZE, AEATE
o) K1t B S5 AR I R IR A E W Fe

3. WP EILH
AT IR BRI ER 1% 7% SR TP IR R

4. HEEMM
7 1 5 PO HLAG SR L B B B 03%-5% TS SR KA.

N ERFRASEHER
BABHEENATERTAINEAERIFMOT .

EF SaERITEAT A E KB BEBRRRHA AR 47,804 100% H EHH
ERSMEEFRAS LEb N i 5 AR 8,000 88.95% H EHFH
PEXRESHRAT A E KB HEeRAREE ARM 20,335 100%[8) = H5H
EFEHHRFTELS R E KB % AR™® 7,370 100%E EFH
EMERHRAT HEEE BRERA S =g 1,584 100%EEHH

T2014F12831H ATEBERA TI1SHKNERBITTAE (2013F K. 18%).

h MEHRREZTEME
1. RERFHHRIRITRH

N EEH] T
_ 2013412H31H _ 2013412H31H
EERS 54 20 1 1
FHRAPRBHEEFIEES 1,081 688 = -
ERhRRTEMS (1) 56,265 42,148 55,978 41,984
&t 57,400 42,856 55,979 41,985

(1) FRHFRRTENEREFHRTIEARRONSML ST, BELEASHIRR NMNERBZEXANFMEREREST
WITRERHAFAEE.



92 | MEmRKME

AREH AT
20144E12H81H  2013412A31H  2014412H381H  2013412H31H
(BER)
FHEREAMRT 892,976 338,815 881,919 318,938
FREAIERT SR 454 351 454 351
BRI EAMRTT 111,596 64,052 100,272 61,605
&it 1,005,026 403,218 982,645 380,894

F20144E12831 8, A ERAGFRE LR FRFIMERAART14.90{27T (20134128310 ART13.49Z27T), TEHFLRITES.
3. IfHESE

AR T
2014412H31H 2013%£12H31H 2014412H31H 2013%12H31H
IR E AR 14,922 53,019 14,622 52,756
FIIEA I RT SR 1,528 34,400 1,328 34,400
FRIRINEAMIRTT 3,045 50 3,045 50
&it 19,495 87,469 18,995 87,206
4. UAsMETEEETHIT NS R A ST
¥ 17
2014412H31H  2013412H31H  2014412H31H  2013412H31H
(BER)
THMEEME~
BUF BOEBUR S 655 6,489 4,673 6,489 4,673
ERVE GRS = 185 - 180
AT RFE 27,915 20,674 18,772 18,327
HitbfRss 296 - - _
BRERESHRA 3,832 90 = -
ERZE3] 146 - = -
it 38,678 25,622 25,261 23,180
BEANAANETTEEETSHITA LRGN SRA
WHEITHR 45,806 33,165 - -
A EE 8,295 - 8,295 -
B s R 3,016 - = -
N 57,117 33,165 8,295 -
&it 95,795 58,787 33,556 23,180

5. iTEEMHA~RARK

FREAEERA, AERARENTESRTITANBEXEHEEAANEI TOT. TEERTENBXERT UL B~ ARERN
WIANA AR A ANERBEREY, EHFA—ERRZIENARINSRES LI AANE, BF—EERRAERFT
AR ERREETHNE, TESRTIAENAANERESESAETBEXNTHRRIINOLRETEMNRHTENL, B
MNAEABEFNAFHAMNN AR, FEAANMENRETREFRHREFRANE.
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A EH 2014412831H 2013412831H

i

CEGETR

BHEHR (BFEIXEHHEER) 974,569 10,298 (2,190) 675,858 6,698 (2,735)

HMCERLTETR 201,046 432 (172) 189,427 826 (121)
INF 1,175,615 10,730 (2,362) 865,285 7,524 (2,856)
FELGTETR

FZF 542,000 7,814 (6,735) 349,837 6,960 (7,221)

Fil = HARR 12,042 421 (421) 12,840 427 (427)
INF 554,042 8,235 (7,156) 362,677 7,387 (7,648)
HMfrETH - - - 42 16 -
&it 1,729,657 18,965 (9,518) 1,228,004 14,927 (10,504)
4T 2014412H31H 2013412H31H

i

CERETETR
BHEHR (BFEIXEHHEER) 974,569 10,298 (2,190) 673,650 6,669 (2,735)
HMCESTETR 199,806 432 (169) 189,427 826 (121)
NG 1,174,375 10,730 (2,359) 863,077 7,495 (2,856)
FEETETR
F R E 545,401 8,161 (6,697) 351,237 7,342 (7,210)
Fil R #AR 12,042 421 (421) 12,840 427 (427)
it 557,443 8,582 (7,118) 364,077 7,769 (7,637)
&it 1,731,818 19,312 (9,477) 1,227,154 15,264 (10,493)
EfLit

FREAGEFRE, LRTESRIATFBRENESRITAIITNT.

AEH 2014412831H 2013412H31H

i

NARNEEHTR

F R E 18,110 928 (151) - - -
Ne&RBEEHTER

FZF 6,476 10 (41) 5,362 13 (23)
&t 24,586 938 (192) 5,362 13 (23)
¥y 2014412H831H 2013412831H

AAMBEEHRIR

FEE 18,110 928 (151) - - -
&it 18,110 928 (151) - - -
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RAMEERD
AEAF AN EERARNFIRENSENAANEZNHTERRE, REHMBE I AEARTHRATHILERFL,
BEEHTENAANERCMNBEESNNE REHANGHE R 2R ERROEINEDERMIITHOT .

ARNEEHFWRE (]RK)

EHTR 1,085 -
EHREE N M ELATE (983) -
&1t 102 —

AEAXNANERNREFTHINNERTIED FENRBEREK,

NERBEHR
AEAFAHNEERERNMNERHSENALRETNHTESARE WEPRNE AXEAFRBRL S fa HMABBRTRAND
&K,

T20145F12R310 . ARBAC LT AEMGERENASREBER TR AANELRH T~ ENREIAARTOIZT, F M E
2015 E2024F B E L HANFIEE.

6. INBREEMA”

AEH T
_ 2013412H31H _ 2013412H31H
IS 1,084,318 346,295 1,079,845 344,951
7. FUWF R
AR T
_ 2013412831H _ 2013412831H
(BER)
R ER BT R 20,849 19,835 20,842 19,756
FRELF L 3,895 3,565 3,844 3,543
BRI IR A F B (1) 3,322 2,716 2,691 2,224
FERSHE 23 587 17 587
ENBEF L 2,256 985 2,218 978
Hith 248 - 248 -
&it 30,593 27,688 29,860 27,088

(1) ERERHHEAFSEESUAANETEEATMIALHRENSHAT THEESHA  HEHEZ2PRATREK
TR AT RAFE.



8. RIMEERFNER

(1) REEFMBRSHERMOT:

M5 RENE | 95

R EEH 7
_ 2013412H31H _ 2013412H31H
- B ERAER 7,862,880 7,058,003 7,848,967 7,044,535
— BhEFH N IGR 78,749 69,900 - -
— Hfth 13 20,378 - -
&it 7,941,642 7,148,281 7,848,967 7,044,535
B RREEEE
Ho . BTG (29,299) (14,475) (28,425) (14,264)
AE T (242,992) (203,838) (241,778) (202,819)
(272,291) (218,313) (270,203) (217,083)
RN GER BT OAE 7,669,351 6,929,968 7,578,764 6,827,452
Hrp . BRI R FE 58 R IR K T A 12,290 14,924 = -
(2) ERMBTRINBFIRK S
AEH 20144 20134
FMRI 14,475 203,838 218,313 8,674 172,181 180,855
A (BEE) 4RI 16,127 39,398 55,525 6,076 32,853 38,929
KEHEN - 12 12 - 4 4
(% (759) = (759) (104) - (104)
e ] SR AR 23K - - - 1 - 1
FUMELASENEE (280) = (280) (117) - (117)
SNHITEZER (264) (256) (520) (55) (1,200) (1,255)
FREM 29,299 242,992 272,291 14,475 203,838 218,313
T 20144 20134
 RTRME @AW At REEE @AW &t
FMNR 14,264 202,819 217,083 8,470 171,553 180,023
% (#E) /1RE 15,464 39,211 54,675 5,965 32,465 38,430
% (759) - (759) -
U B R B - - - 1 _ 1
TRMELASBHNED (280) - (280) (117) - (117)
SMEITEZER (264) (252) (516) (55) (1,199) (1,254)
FREH 28,425 241,778 270,203 14,264 202,819 217,083
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(3) HWHAERANBRIRAT

R EEH] it Gl
| oMANR 3tAEIE iEeE sEME &
2014%12H31H
ERER 921 109 409 2 1,441
RIETERK 1,008 2,142 1,632 909 5,691
BB R FE R
— W 5,755 3,287 3,397 961 13,400
— FHRGERK 983 9,834 3,825 1,015 15,657
&it 8,667 15,372 9,263 2,887 36,189
2013412H31H
IELAEN 719 96 254 13 1,082
RIEBEFK 1,118 528 80 1,877 3,603
B R Y BER
— IR 3,279 375 438 933 5,025
— RIRGERK 3,209 749 226 1,307 5,491
Ait 8,325 1,748 998 4,130 15,201
T JBIHA
3R 3NRAEIE 1ZE3% 3ERE &it
2014412H31H
EREXK 868 1,295 283 2 2,448
RIETERK 968 2,114 1,628 908 5,618
B R FE K
— WL 3,922 1,630 2,389 959 8,900
— BRI 972 9,827 3,825 1,015 15,639
&it 6,730 14,866 8,125 2,884 32,605
2013%12H31H
IEE e 682 7 254 13 956
RIETERK 1,117 527 77 1,876 3,597
B R FE 5K
— WK 2,297 97 83 932 3,409
— BB 3,209 749 226 1,307 5,491
&it 7,305 1,380 640 4,128 13,453

WRFRASHMNBEE, MZRAEDLXABPRR T UPPAREENRANER, AR B M HRAFEH, WizRRE
BRFIGE D LK BT
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9. IMtHESRB™

R EEH F:X6)
o [useReE] wvseAne [BEEERNR| weseane

(BEiR) (BEiR)

T E RS
BUS R ABUR S HR S 98,596 95,629 98,590 95,594
SR HESE 3,859 3,937 3,839 3,922
NERSE 38,385 33,794 29,461 23,367
HbfR% 102 272 - -
N 140,942 133,632 131,890 122,883
WETH 24,578 22,425 = -
B FE 6,454 3,298 6,454 3,298
At 171,974 159,355 138,344 126,181

T20145F12R31H . AKARATIRUESRAFCIHROBEAENFIAARTI186.24ZTRART1.72{25T (20135128
31H: ART188.64ZERARM1.72{Z5T).

10. HEEFHRE

BUF RABURHLI 5 S - 1,486
SR GRS 293 -
AFFE 1,999 3,898
Ait 2,292 5,384

1. BRI R

R EEH AT
o [eswAnE ]| sueeAnn [20ERANE | seReE
(BER)
SRR 4,675 3,060 4,675 3,060
A B RS 1,197 1,005 933 722
Hbfwz 7,212 1,103 5214 908
= K H A 6,248 7,565 = -
Ait 19,332 12,733 10,822 4,690
B NIRRT R E A (264) (211) (73) (72)

R BRI B K ENE 19,068 12,522 10,749 4,618
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12. REARRAUR

AER AT
o 0wERARNE 209%12A%NA 2014E12ACIA 201F12A31H
(BER) (BER)
FAT 1) - - 87,504 87,325
BREMEELWRRE @) 1,650 1,597 113 101
Ait 1,650 1,597 87,617 87,426
B KERRAUR R E & - - (18,953) (18,953)
KEARRAIR % 20 1,650 1,597 68,664 68,473
(1) F427
o wesIzASA 010F12A0E
EFemARIRELS 47,804 47,625
L EFAFRA T 24,000 24,000
EFEHBRFTEAT 7,974 7,974
ERSMHAEFRAS 6,997 6,997
HHERT 729 729
BARKARRLBRTELE 0 0
Ait 87,504 87,325
B KERRAUR R R EE & (18,953) (18,953)
FREHR R AT 68,551 68,372

() AFTEETARNELREFER, BRME/N.
(i) KT TARRALHERNAT .

FHREM 68,372 68,300
0 179 72
FEREM 68,551 68,372

(2) KEMSEDURHE

ZEH AT
BEMAEESCWERE 1,650 1,597 113 101
B KRR R REES - - = -
KEMEGEL WS 1,650 1,597 113 101

() AEFATERKEMSELWEAERIITNT:

REESHBERAFARERAT T E K THEREEFMEFL ARM 3,000  20%jEEEE 20%
EF & ZRARRERTEALE T E K BRAEHEREN ARM 1250  40%[EHEHE 40%
EFRERUERHRA S HE KR BT TSR ES 34 25%EERHE 25%

- s = EMBXHES. o .
FEERIEAEEFRA S FE KR 6 SEAEAEEN AR 200  35%AERHE 35%
RN RERHBRRTERRIAT ElEpN RET AR 200  35%HEHH 35%

EERREEERREAT HE KR BAEEREN AR 120 45%[E#EEE 45%




(i) REARKTHEM

N
a5

AW RERHERMT

W 55 R R MHE

AEH 4T
FEMRT 1,597 1,353 101 89
#hn 53 244 12 12
o - - _ _
FREH 1,650 1,597 113 101
13. EE&™
&R

&
20144181 17,607 1,474 322 36,400 2,651 58,454
AN 525 1,012 5 5,744 1,642 8,928
AEEBIBREN (FH) 1,514 - = - (1,514) -
REF D 21) (66) (12) (735) (14) (848)
20144E128 318 19,625 2,420 315 41,409 2,765 66,534
RKit#rIA
20144E1 810 (1,638) (693) (139) (4,382) = (6,852)
AEITRE (633) (394) (62) (1,821) = (2,910)
RERBDH - 21 9 146 - 176
20144E128 318 (2,271) (1,066) (192) (6,057) = (9,586)
ke 241
20144E1 81 15,969 781 183 32,018 2,651 51,602
20144E12H 318 17,354 1,354 123 35,352 2,765 56,948
T

o emRWR s EMRE @RIR &
FiE
201441818 16,983 1,320 275 2,591 21,169
AN 270 245 1 1,507 2,023
AREABIREN (FH) 1,503 - - (1,503) -
RERDE (21) (62) (6) (14) (103)
2014%128 318 18,735 1,503 270 2,581 23,089
RKit#rIA
201441818 (1,504) (598) (115) - (2,217)
REIHRE (607) (807) (56) - (970)
REF D = 18 6 - 24
20144E128 318 2,111) (887) (165) - (3,163)
R
20144E1 810 15,479 722 160 2,591 18,952
2014%128318 16,624 616 105 2,581 19,926

F20145E12831HF120135FE12831H . ARARATEAER =P AFAEEAMNERMERABAANEEE ™.
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14. TRAEE

AEEH
RE
201441818 654 2,435 111 3,200
AAE SN 127 21 8 156
REF D = (85) = (85)
20144128318 781 2,371 119 3,271
RitisH
201441818 (202) (181) (20) (403)
RETHREN (79) (59) (2 (140)
AR A ER - 3 = 3
20144128318 (281) (237) (22) (540)
HER
201441818 452 2,254 91 2,797
20144128 31H 500 2,134 97 2,731
TIPSR () 1-10 30-46 1-10
AT
RE
201441818 593 1,929 103 2,625
AFIGM 103 7 8 118
RERF DN = (85) = (85)
20144128311 696 1,851 111 2,658
Rt HisH
20141818 (183) (139) (19) (341)
RETTHRE (64) (48) (2) (114)
RERFDE = 3 = 3
2014%12831H (247) (184) 1) (452)
HER
201441818 410 1,790 84 2,284
2014412831RH 449 1,667 90 2,206
TIPSR (F) 1-10 30-46 1-10

15. BE
AEEH
HHEFIESFRAE 629 629
HUERSHBEEERAT 560 560
Hith 57 57
&ait 1,246 1,246

20145 K, ARARET AN RKRA SRS HEATTRENL, RRAFEFERELTR.
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16. BEATFHR IR 5115

&R 1T
BEFRER R 48,095 40,406 48,539 41,122
# RS 5 (4,297) (1,827) - -
] 43,798 38,579 48,539 41,122
(1) BEMEHOTIHEROT:
&R &1T
(BER)
FMR 38,579 29,482 41,122 33,398
ITA Y ERE 6,494 7,195 7,483 7,087
BN e (1,984) 1,902 (775) 637
Hith 709 - 709 -
FREH 43,798 38,579 48,539 41,122
(2) BEMEHRAFRAGHNAKRTB I ROT:
AEH 2014%12H31H 2013%£12H310 (B EFik)

BIEREHET

BHREES 181,474 45,368 143,046 35,761

THEESRATRELEE 16,796 4,199 16,802 4,201

it R 2,954 738 3,771 943

HA R P mE RS 1,443 361 1,545 386

Hith 780 206 739 181

L\ AN E‘ EH Ar =h -

THEESMEBS R ANEED (2,637) (659) 6 1
&it 192,337 48,095 161,643 40,406
PE I3 EC AR

TJHEEERAES L2 ANEES (13,061) (3,265) (7,319) (1,830)

MARNETEAREEITA

BreHinpeelel G N (6.749 (129 77 199

Hith (288) 97 468 198
&it (19,094) (4,297) (7,630) (1,827)
4T 2014%12H31H 20134128310 (B Fik)

BT AT ISR 25 7
RO EEE 180,358 45,090 142,562 35,641
KEIRABUIR R & 18,953 4,738 18,953 4,738
it = 2,954 738 3,771 943
THEESME T REES 160 40 167 41

TJHEEERAE~ L2 ANEES 141 35 3,239 810
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1T 2014%12H31H 2013%£12H31H (B &Eik)

HthE =R EES 73 18 72 18

LA HEHEETH

% ;%gggzﬂiifﬁz% — (8,481) (2,120) (4,275) (1,069)
&it 194,158 48,539 164,489 41,122

17. Hih#z ™=
AEH AT
(BER)
MR ERER 14,183 5,062 = -
T LR B SR T 5,650 2,215 1,366 1,071
AR PEEEMNE 774 361 = -
BERAFIEFNRE S NEF 703 703 508 508
T B A A% R 3K 301 263 = -
BE M B~ 152 157 = -
KSR A 104 124 29 33
Hfth 11,002 2,281 538 904
&it 32,869 11,166 2,441 2,516
R HHE R EEE (786) (78) (20) (20)
H 3 =% 32,083 11,088 2,421 2,496
18. BEREEE
R EEH 20144
(BER)
R GER AN IR 218,313 55,525 (1,027) (520) 272,291
o SRR 18,864 42 (282) = 18,624
R R I 2K 4% 27 211 57 - () 264
N IH R 142 22 = - 164
Hith# = 78 719 (1) = 786
A1t 237,608 56,365 (1,320) (524) 292.129
o) 20144
(BER)

KIRGER AR 217,083 54,675 (1,039) (516) 270,203
KHARRAIE 18,953 = = = 18,953
ot & SRR 172 = — _ 172
R UGR IR 4% FE 72 5 - (4) 73
Hthx ™ 20 - = = 20

A1t 236,300 54,680 (1,039) (520) 289,421
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19. Elb & B fth & B BRI

AER 4T
EREMBRT 1,227,447 217,238 1,228,554 217,374
BRIERTSRIM 115,117 102,198 115,491 102,874
WINE MR 65,912 91,484 65,912 91,484
&It 1,408,476 410,920 1,409,957 411,732

20. [a) BT AN E Ath & AL A AR

&M AT
o owERASIA 20GFRASIA | 20WERANA  2010F12ANA
BEHEBRTRIERTESRIMER 427,260 421,575 325,892 320,300
BINEAMRITRIFRT SR ER 14,108 21,524 1,683 4,979
BIMRITER - XER 7,917 9,472 7,917 9,472
SNEIBURT fE K 2,088 2,538 2,088 2,538
ait 451,373 455,109 337,580 337,289

21. IFNEE

AER 4T
WINEMBRITIHRA 41,115 33,311 41,115 33,311
RREMBITHRA 34,984 2,305 34,234 2,305
&it 76,099 35,616 75,349 35,616

22. SEiH O£ R =K

&R 1T
IE% 20,611 17,760 10,019 9,700
B R FA ST IR 5,512 7,330 = -
Bl A S U 1,912 - - .
&it 28,035 25,090 10,019 9,700

23. RIGTERR

&R &1T
A EERTERR 841,501 491,836 836,667 489,368
N EHFER 125,510 80,891 124,454 82,702
A RIES TR 13,371 8,895 13,056 8,619
ERRTAR I TS 107,330 102,560 107,330 102,560

&It 1,087,712 684,182 1,081,507 683,249
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24. N

AER AT
W FrBR 28,859 25,654 27,998 25,254
BB RN 7,194 7,920 7,131 7,870
Hifth 290 190 238 189
&1t 36,343 33,764 35,367 33,313

25. RrfFFIR

AEH AT
o HusZRNA 00SRANIA | 24ERASIE  2010K12ANA
REF S 124,415 97,108 124,298 97,091
B\ & H fth & RANA F BRI F 2 3,172 1,801 3,172 1,801
TR 7758 ) B 3,111 1,939 3,079 1,923
ERFR 2,250 2,356 1,467 1,611
FARSH L 539 213 538 213
SEHEMESRA =R 154 83 3 1
Hith 24 15 17 -
Ait 133,665 103,515 132,574 102,640

26. Witttk

ZEH AT
&R R 2,578 2,564 2,954 2,889
SRS B R M2 £ IR IR 961 882 961 882
&1t 3,539 3,446 3,915 3,771

27. RiftfEs

ZAEH AT
Rt &R (1) 6,245,014 5,721,077 6,229,604 5,712,637
RAR B 2 96,587 119,513 96,587 119,513
N ZRBAR 3) 11,958 - 11,958 -
&it 6,353,559 5,840,590 6,338,149 5,832,050

(1) Rft&mEss
2014412H31H

BRARKTART LGS 2001-2014 2015-2063 2.62-5.90 6,201,462
BINETART &GS 2012-2014 2015-2032 2.95-4.50 14,975
BARTHITESRES 2013 2018 1.48 5,277

RINKITHNT &R RS 2005-2014 2015-2017 0.51-5.00 7,890
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2014%12A31H

KTRTHRFET 6,229,604

FRE|VRITHETERE 2012-2014 2017-2024 2.50-4.25 13,017

FRERITHARTHESE 2014 2019 6.05 2,487

B FAEFBEATRITNGES (94)

KEFARTHEEAD 6,245,014
2013412H31H

BRRTARTE&MES 2001-2013 2014-2063 2.65-6.05 5,687,073
BHARTART SR GRS 2012-2013 2015-2032 2.69-4.50 10,481
BRARTINT ERFES 2013 2018 1.49 5,253
BINEITINT &R RS 2004-2005 2014-2015 4.75-5.00 9,730
AFETREET 5,712,537
FARRITHETER 2012 2017-2022 2.00-3.25 9,050
B FAIFAARTRITNGS (510)
KEFARTHRE SN 5,721,077

F2014F12R31H, AT EREAXTHARTERGESFTEEEEST AT P ART20000{ZT (20135F128318: AR
650.001Z7T) &R, RERSMEAFGFHEAERFIHABEEERRREZHEHFNER. IRGESFHEAENAECLE
HEFERATEEERK, ATUFEABIREXFESHNENTE, TEHBEFHLRITIRE LR,

F2014F12B318, ATTERANEATHARTERESTEERESH AT I ART612.0027T (2013F 12316 ART
612.001Z7T) MERmHES FERFHNEATRSFEAECAEEHIHARABEFENE R A RS REREEBERVEE

FHENER. MERRNESEHERNZITRERISA,

(2) FfTRFEH

AEFARAELT 2014%12H31H
BREXTARTES 2005-2012 2020-2062 3.82-6.05 96,587
2013412H31H

BARTARTRS

2004-2012

2019-2062 3.82-6.05 119,613

AORTHRAEFYMAAFATRITBRENER. EAEREAHEATRITERENN, BARSHEAH RS FERIR

EKF,
(3) R —RFEA

2014%12H31H

BREFTARTGRS

2014 2024 5.30 11,958

AORTOZEARGMEATATRIRENER. EREFFEAE, FRREFIE.
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28. Hfthfaf

A EEH AT

2014412H31H  2013412H31H  2014412H31H  2013412H31H
(BER)
LR FRAREIMEE 8,633 6,447 8,633 6,447
HERIES 4,722 3,967 = -
HAHEERER 1,478 1,664 = -
RIEEZFZIESH 1,471 1,212 - -
FHETI B TR - 808 - -
TR F LR ML 891 665 891 665
BERAFIEFLREFNNHR 703 703 508 508
REEYAE 287 147 287 147
Hti 15,475 6,166 1,935 3,051
&it 33,660 21,779 12,254 10,818
29. PRk
2013412831 H%2014412H31H
e AR LM E W BED 153,908
HHRCERABFRTER S 146,092
cEHEREESEES 6,711
&it 306,711
30. RALR

RER B AT 20144 20134 (B &EiR)
FENH AREHEN AERD FERY ENE AEER RERD FERY
BN - 3,355 3,355 - - 3,355

1. BRAR

RIFERGAREELE, ATARREVSITAENTHSEFRRBI0RIELNEER R AR, SXTEERRARZITR KT
B ARI50% M LB, TINABRER, ERERSHE ATRBAEZEERRARITATRMRTHSRAFLEATRA. HIER
KE FFBENEERAARABLFRANE%., i, KITEBRFASHERRARRA AR,

32. —fRRBE A&

REH AT
2014412H31H 2013%£12831H 2014412H31H 2013%12A31H
A7 (1) 122,119 96,460 122,119 96,460
FAT B 2,621 1,061 - -
&3t 124,740 97,521 122,119 96,460

(1) RITEMEHCErmAVAESSITHREEIENEN M £[2012]205) WA E, ERBASREESHEM L BT —RRK
A BDURFMRITE AR IRAIAY S K R = AR ABE TR RE R E— RS A SR AR TR R~ FRRFAH1.5%,
TR FEM, R RGBS E.

(2 BEXKENE AEATRATNERDEFEFRR—ESTEN—RNEEE.
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33. k4EFE

M AT
20144 20134 20144 20134
(BER) (BEiR)
FEXHE 106,790 84,464 95,934 77,115
Hn: AT 97,579 79,603 88,440 75,257
B RBAEAR (8,844) (13,506) (8,844) (13,508)
RE—AR KBS A& (27,219) (28,815) (25,659) (27,976)
AR (4) (14,956) = (14,956)
FERFH 168,302 106,790 149,871 95,934

(1) 20145 EFIESE

RITM2014FEEHFIEARTE84. 402 T AR, REVEERFKAREARME8 44, REVEER R AREE. 2014EF

EAETRBFRERSHAE,

(2) 2013 ERiEE

(i) UARFT2013FEBRFAART75243MCT ARY, REVEER A AREART 7524125, F2013F12A31H , R I %

ERFNREETABRRAR,

(i) $RER—M MBS H AR T256.59127T.

(3) Li#2014F12 AN BARAEFEFES FARRRHAEFATEENARLARRAMITARM12.31Z5T (20135F12A31H: A

RM7.724Z5T).

34. FIREIAN

RER

AT
20144 20134 20144F 20134
(BEiR)

BN

RS 443,131 397,642 434,681 389,561

HHBEREENBESRE 23,661 15,682 23,502 15,656

B R BT R AFHE A R 36,551 11,886 35,919 11,341

AR AR 1) 5,796 4,913 5,599 4,717

Hith 29 27 - -
it 509,168 430,150 499,701 421,275
FEZH

EiTth$E (267,905) (227,798) (267,544) (227,533)

1) BT A0 H A & Bh AL A B K (12,373) (12,086) (6,015) (6,253)

[ b X E At & 5 AL FRGR I (38,598) (10,921) (38,602) (10,917)

T EER (9,963) (6,818) (9,883) (6,775)

Hith (1,639) (1,018) (897) (452)
N7 (330,478) (258,641) (322,941) (251,930)
GBS ON 178,690 171,509 176,760 169,345
FEBAHETE.

ERFIBESRE=F2EA 339 146 284 121

(1) FERERAMNSRANBRITHEESHAS  FHE ZEHREMNSE BRI R AT BN
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35. FEBERAEHFBAN

R EEH &1T
(BER)

FEBERASEN

RRRHR 3,198 3,510 3,199 3,503

FHRUVSEERS 3,803 3,090 3,705 2,959

ERXIERIBRE 4,338 3,254 4,338 3,254

B [2) 1 5 18 B 1,062 1,028 840 814

REZSIEH L EBEAN 111 88 = -

Hth 2,218 1,791 1,764 1,434
it 14,730 12,761 13,846 11,964
FEHRRAESH

FHHIH (691) (670) (539) (521)

Hexd (101) (153) (141) (151)
N (792) (823) (680) (672)
FHRRAEHEBN 13,938 11,938 13,166 11,292

36. | EW A
EH x5
(BEIR)
FTAESRTA 15,788 10,051 15,771 10,059
UAAMETEEETINTALSHRBNSRE > 5,706 2,923 1,518 983
T E A~ 1,587 1,436 144 79
KHARRAIE 698 46 17 16
A1t 23,779 14,456 17,450 11,137
37. ARMMET RS
ZREH &1T
(BER)

TTESmIA 4,093 2,032 4,080 1,696
UAANMETERERTHIT AL RRBNERE > 3,714 475 125 (48)
&1t 7,807 2,507 4,205 1,648

38. iCHiRaR

CRFAAITEDURMAEFE~ LR ARABLHHINCTE SR T AXNPERINC L SN, XESNCETE
ERIAFEMNEXRTRARRAIIRAD HIFINE " RAKE B 2ANEZNRE" P,

39. HAl UGN
AEEH AT
AL ON 4,312 4,349 3 3
Hthdlr SN 886 635 395 294

A1t 5,198 4,984 398 297
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40. Bl F & R M an

AR T
S mus mwE | muE oE
(BER)
] 23,030 20,243 22,692 20,005
oAk ke 4 E ) 1,613 1,418 1,589 1,401
HE M 1,147 1,010 1,135 1,000
Hith 174 163 160 158
&it 25,964 22,834 25,576 22,564
H. IFREEE
AR T
e oF 201E 2010F
(BER) (BER)
RI%A 5,190 4,569 4,441 4,011
THERR 1,312 1,313 1,153 1,173
TR 709 55 2% A 1,303 984 1,143 882
FHE# 748 730 571 599
W5 e 443 450 436 438
ZiR%E 378 438 316 360
T RS 430 326 151 167
e 352 274 317 241
Hith 801 959 704 857
ait 10,957 10,043 9,232 8,728
42. FFEEERK
A EEH] AT
o meE 2mE W& 201F
R 55,525 38,929 54,675 38,430
Rt ESmHA 42 1,142 - _
REFR 22 142 - _
ISl G/ TE25 37 57 43 5 4
Hth w2 719 45 = -
=it 56,365 40,301 54,680 38,434

43. FTEFHEH

AR AT
(BER)
LERFF SR 37,814 33,082 36,503 31,909
BEFRESREA (6,494) (7,195) (7,483) (7,087)

&t 31,320 25,887 29,020 24,822




110) WM& kEME

AEARKTHEREASSUHFIENBETROT

ZAEH Vi
20144 20134 20144F 20134
(BEIR) (BEik)
FRUFE 129,003 105,839 117,460 100,079
R ERMR25%IT E M5 % B 32,251 26,460 29,365 25,020
FA TR AR EREFr =L RE I (556) (343) = -
G BT S (1,087) (1,211) (830) (741)
RFINTTIRINE i M 2 FAPFE 0 51 210 = -
AORINMNE AR KN HFZm 661 771 485 543
FreRi A 31,320 25,887 29,020 24,822
44, HtbZEEWE
HMGEWENARERERN.
KEHR Vi
20144 20134 20144 20134
(BEIR) (BEiR)
MERRESLXBERANHEMEERE
- BT EMNERAKBR S ORIER~HED (129) (14) (129) (14)
MEBESLXBRANHEMEERE
- UEREEHRNANEIIH (381) (51) - -
- JHEESRES A ANER SRR 6,200 (6,952) 2,468 (1,833)
— B AET ARG A S SR ARS (263) 1,027 (144) (79)
It 5,937 (5,925) 2,324 (1,912)
— NI ERERITEZERD (367) (289) 22 5
&1t 5,410 (6,279) 2,217 (1,921)
AER
AENRERFARTEATIRRNEMEEIE .
L B RER  uwmemar IR YN
i BREEEN s hEmaR FHER et
REREHEY BB
TEFEYNRTEER) 31 (47) 11,195 (220) 10,959
FEEREHSTEER) (14) (80) (5,925) (287) (6,306)
AEFVRBEER) 17 (127) 5,270 (507) 4,653
AEEBERNSI (129) (31) 5,937 (363) 5414
KEFERET (112) (158) 11,207 (870) 10,067
PN
REhERTFHEMEESRE .
EFTENRRAEN S AE A EERE~ LIk E Hitiz g
RERENT ARMETZ R E WEE W&t
TEFEYNRTEER) 31 (527) (42) (538)
TEEREHNESTEER) (14) (1,912) 5 (1,921)
KEFVRIEER) 17 (2,439) (37) (2,459)
REERENEE (129) 2,324 22 2,217
KEFERRI (112) (115) (15) (242)




45. MERERIFTEHH
(1) BEHPAT HLEERDNEHE

M5 RENE |m

R EEH T
. omE 2013  2014% 20134
(BER)
% F) 97,683 79,952 88,440 75,257
. FFERE R K 56,365 40,301 54,680 38,434
3718 FO# 55 3,135 2,942 1,143 882
EBEEERS . TR~ MEMKEHE~ RS (69) 2 (64) 2
NARMEZTHRE (7,807) (2,507) (4,205) (1,648)
FLEERN T ERF BRI 260,314 222,454 261,841 222,815
B2 (2,285) (1,482) (161) (95)
BB F S B R/ SR 8903 I N AT (6,494) (7,195) (7,483) (7,087)
2275 R B % AR (760,334) (738,217) (731,179) (723,508)
KEMN AT B S8 1,457,059 41,574 1,450,300 29,577
ZREFENTENANESREST 1,097,567 (362,176) 1,113,312 (365,371)
(2) RERREENYSETEHER
R EH T
(BER)
RN RASENMNERRD 1,916,901 546,808 1,895,658 524,625
e RERASENDNEN R (546,808) (582,736) (524,625) (562,485)
N& KA SENY R BN 1,370,093 (35,928) 1,371,033 (37,860)
@) FITTHERERFHAERASENDELRE.
R EEH 7
_ 2013412H31H _ 2013412H31H
(BER)
EERE 54 20 1 1
AT XAFER R RRITRM 56,265 42,148 55,978 41,984
BEHREHARBE=1"A0:
- INRESFA 1,057,196 330,411 1,056,722 330,200
- FRE LRI 782,592 137,858 762,937 116,694
- H{bEE 18,995 36,010 18,995 35,746
- BUFfRS 1,025 - 1,025 -
ISR HEEENTE 774 361 - -
&it 1,916,901 546,808 1,895,658 524,625

46. RAEFLEMUEFRPRINE

FEARERIFERBNSNERLIE, SFEFERAEY ™. B 3FIES. AFEETUMNEESS NARKERHRE
FEERS. PN AEABEHIEMUETENGE BHIAAUAANETEAETHITALSHRENSHES . THEESHA
FRSBSRRER T  AREARBXNRPANG I BN EH L TEREY SR E M FT.



112| MERENE

FREAGRE, AEARBERIARGITFEMUEENE HEXLEEMETEFHONBELITNT:

REHF] 2014%12H31H

JEARATEM = & 91,502 = - 625 FHEHKN
B RIS 111,475 7,581 7,581 115 FHHRARF BN
R ERT 36,997 - = 40 EX- LT ON
e 10,144 1,130 1,130 95 FHERBARIEERE
&it 250,118 8,711 8,711 875

2013412831H

ERAIEY = G 81,834 - - 290 Ex-2{ON
BRI 18,166 1,296 1,296 29 FEFBARFSBAN
HEEEITY 25,914 - - 29 E-2{ON

2 7,844 902 902 93 FEBEBNRLERS
&t 133,758 2,198 2,198 441

THREAGERA, ARAFEEMIBETHEMEEENNEFESIFNT.

ZEEH

UAANMETTEEREHITALRRBNESRE > 11,191 -
R R AE TR 6,231 7,559
&1t 17 422 7,559

47. EMHATEY
AERAEERAFLESAXHF REEHBLSRASPREVRBAYSRE BHREFLLRHAZXSRAT. BE
20145128318 IFH A ERE = THRILFTNKENENART1,114.751Z27T (B F20135FE12H31H: AR 181.661Z7T).

WTFERALIEFINNERAT AREARRESESNMELSHATNEERIAEXSRAT  FFHEERINERAORK. BEFA
AERAEARHNKENERRT AEAREHRFINNLSE,

2014%12A31H 20144

KER

MEH LR RS 703 703 703 703 703 = 14
2013412A31H 20134

FEH

IEHA SRR F NS 703 703 703 703 703 - 14




M5 RENE |H3

FEAFEN. AAKARERASEABRE~NIES, ZRAMRTE, 23EAZT AR ERA . THEESHE~ RE KK

TR EFR.
2014%12A31H 20144
KEMR
EH AL AR NG 7,581 7,572 7,581 = 115
2013412A31H 20134
WEHME ARME  BARKHO REDTS  mmmin
KEMR
EH LR AN 1,296 1,296 1,296 - 29
T SERE

REAFTERUT U S0 EMBFTIIR .

© RfTLE ZAMERBFBERAIRTLE KORFLERELISES. ATRTUVSEBENERA R FRRS . RERS.
FEHELSARRITLESEER
BRETTHRS. INLHHRS  RETHRS. REINCXZRTERHRAF NHREHE.
O BEALS AOBEBEBRRBALS.

© HHELE AAMEERARRLSREE
© EFWF ENEEMESFNELN S BEVFRIEFKELS.

e 5 &\ %

NeEERS.

LCRMEERS RERSRERRSE. K7

A 5,

R EEH
| WTLs RREELE  EELS  BSLE SWEEE A

20144
FEHN 500,275 1,222 7,203 253 215 509,168
FEX W (323,100) (806) (6,036) (479) (57) (330,478)
FI BN % F 177,175 416 1,167 (226) 158 178,690
Hep. R 5T SRS 177,845 418 653 (226) - 178,690

7338 18 F B N % AR (670) ) 514 - 158 -
FEBRMBEHEN 13,172 283 (78) 693 (132) 13,938
Hep SIS FEHARMBEEERAN 13,086 283 (130) 699 - 13,938

DEREF LR RMEFERAN 86 - 52 (6) (132) -
HAbAN 17,259 9,255 4,403 1,059 (29) 31,947
ST (90,015) (2,039) (3,172) (572) 104 (95,694)
B SN R 94 32 60 1 (65) 122
T 28 117,685 7,947 2,380 955 36 129,003
HrIRFIRE S 1,164 77 1,860 34 - 3,135
AN H 2,597 135 6,789 33 - 9,554
A REREK 54,762 848 798 - (43) 56,365
2014412A31H
IS8 10,104,619 114,026 140,366 28,577 (70,558) 10,317,030
Bk 9,466,468 26,730 126,356 19,300 (2,664) 9,636,190




1141 T 55 RR T

AEEH - 4

SRITIE  RRAUR RS e EFWE SHRIAE &it
20144
BSEN N ON
FEER 147,271 590 793 473 - 149,127
&E 126 184 361 - - 671
HtEREBX 43,534 (73) (631) - - 42,830
ait 190,931 701 523 473 - 192,628
2014412H31H
ERNR= B
HERER 23,565 5,578 11,700 116 - 40,959
=i 47 59 - - - 106
HitbEREZHX - - 25,397 - - 25,397
&it 23,612 5,637 37,097 116 = 66,462
KHEIRRAIR &
HERR 114 1,531 - - - 1,645
HtER XX - 5 - = = 5
&it 114 1,536 - - - 1,650

W7l BREEHALS  EELS TEF A S BHRIAE ait
20135 (BER)

F BN 421,757 817 6,868 200 508 430,150
FEXH (252,053) (328) (5,700) (183) (377) (258,641)
F BN EE 169,704 489 1,168 17 131 171,509
Hep . S5 F BN SR 169,525 470 1,497 17 - 171,509
4338 18 F B UL % ER 179 19 (329) - 131 -
FHEFRAEERAN 11,296 352 (75) 470 (105) 11,938
HAip WL PFEBHRMBERBA 11,128 352 (15) 473 - 11,938
S EBIE F LR KA 168 - (60) 3) (105) -
Sl ON (10,285) 3,144 4,782 540 268 (1,551)
Bk (70,409) (1,950) (3,386) (437) 71 (76,111)
RN =] 28 15 10 1 - 54
FERE 100,334 2,050 2,499 591 365 105,839
HT IR FO 9 5 898 28 1,988 28 - 2,942
FTARM I H 6,444 301 8,396 47 - 15,188
HERERE 38,468 1,337 440 - 56 40,301
20135128310 (B &Eid)
BAE 8,027,108 83,459 142,379 17,693 (73,434) 8,197,205
Bk 7,479,774 13,857 130,250 9,424 (5,549) 7,627,756
20134 (B &Eid)
PSRN SZN 2 ON
hERER 141,837 734 1,972 490 - 145,033
&E 140 60 55 - - 255
HtER&BX 38,676 28 (545) - - 38,159

&it 180,653 822 1,482 490 - 183,447




MEBENE |115

A& - 2

2013#£ 128318 (EEiR)

ERNA>~ B

FEER 22,847 276 7,404 220 - 30,747
BH 61 59 - - - 120
HtEREBX - - 25,354 - - 25,354
&it 22,908 335 32,758 220 - 56,221
KHRAUR

FEERN 101 1,409 - - - 1,510
HthERRHX - 87 - - - 87
&it 101 1,496 - - - 1,597

X FRBRNZIEMNERSMRRAIZ 7SN, BENIZ T 2FRANRIZ 7 FERRAEFWRAN.
FERIASBRETH”. ERA HEREMA”.

T— XBEAXERXS
1. WHBCER
F2o0144E12831H , MBI ER4EHE A 1750.18%HIBE X (20134E12831H . 50.18%),

AEFASUBRBHETHAFT LSS TERENBRYBERRARAAFATHUIELEYBERLTHER. THE~AHRERE. %
EXHNFERERMT

Bk E 40,281 26,635
FlI K X (8] (%)
E & 2.38-4.47 2.38-4.32

FlL2 BN 988 706

FEHERBEBRAN 18 12

Bl & 22 16
2. iC&RT

LCEATARTERRERTALAINERFAS EMBAFEILR, FMBEAHARTS,282.0927T. L&A TAEEFRIEFEN,
BETRAUEE ANEEM L HKREED. L ATRKRFEBUFMRETESRTHNAMX S,

F20144E12831H , L2 A S A K 1747.63% BN (20134128 31H . 47.63%),

REASTLATHTHAENERS . I—RIXSGNEIENEM, REEFLERES. TAFARRA . AEBAFENTCE
AFROTBFENFERBERMOT

o E S RA 7,623 6,993
FIE X 8] (%) 3.14-4.2 3.14-4.2

ISV ON 268 268




Hél MERENE

3. 5FRANKZS
AR RERTEFBESTADNRIIITNOT.

R GEFR AR 9,736 7,923
R A7 5R 2,626 5,021
Bk % H Ath £ m AL 7RI 1,582 1,077
PTEERE~ 356 390
N AR 94 510
R UFE 54 33
R ATH S 12 21
FRE LRI - 30
HH ™ 29 20

AT ERNEFEEE5TRAINRERIITMNT .

BN 511 325
B (38) (37)
FHERAEBA 121 115
FEHARFBEZH (28) (16)

ATEFASRZEANZZIZRR—BHVERNEEVSBFET REARNTR P RRPERT S F U SIREN ISR,

»
dr

BKEMSEATANKZS
ATEBREMEELIZEANTFIRB— BB VERMES W ESEFEIT. T2014FE12831HR2014EE, AKBASKENE
ENTNXGREFEZIFRTHILEK,

1= HBEDRKIE

1. FEIFR
F20145128310, ARBRAGHES FRRFRER, BEENNZEERFUNBERAARTEN £ EDRATHOMS
RRAGEAR BRI,

2. JWARMKIE
A EEH AT
o [museAnE| sueeAnR [ 2UERANE | erzAsE
BAIR
- ERAEREND 5,026 3,156 - -
- EELRNT 54,502 42,252 - -
BEERTRA
- EftAEREY 6 43 6 43
- BEAXRNT 44,979 11,372 392 542

A1t 104,513 56,823 398 585




MEBENE |H7

3. fFhekiE

A EEH] AT
[ cwseAsiE | avoeiAciA | 04EIRSIE | o1sRt2AE
BRI 2,951,784 1,917,987 2,951,784 1,917,987
FFHEARE 78,991 78,361 94,291 93,261
RITARRICE 36,816 33,010 36,723 32,939
FHERIE 21,770 18,702 21,770 18,702
&1t 3,089,361 2,048,060 3,104,568 2,062,889

4. ZEMEKIE
ERFRHERAL. AEARATDHMEITO R TRBENLERETSAEROT.

AEH AT
| 0aF12A31A  200512A%1A  2014F12A31H  2013F12A31H
—FEMNA 505 513 409 370
—E_fF 289 302 247 207
—E=fF 146 165 115 114
=EME 296 89 283 45
&t 1,236 1,069 1,054 736

5. MM KE
FHE AR L PR TRBOMATRL S QERNT .

AER
RAHEEEREM 417 4,106
6. IR

(1) 1EAERYE B>
THR&EAGRFE, FAEZHE RPN E = KENMEMNT .

&R

iE % 22,763 19,814
B FA R R R 8,633 11,703
Bt RS W 2,205 -
&1t 33,601 31,517

F20145F 128310, AER L S >~ RKIKENEAART280.35{Z7T (20135128310 . ARM250.901Z7T). FrEEM
WIS E I E TS F A EH,

(2) WEIHIERY
F2014F12831HK2013F 128310 AKALEKN BTN E EH AR @ IMER NI S FIESFHIRY.



118 WM& k&M

T= KEERE

1.

e o =g

FEANAE RN ARSHEMAR, AEAEEELRF
ML SRR R EASHTAN. RS BEARE, KZ
R BRSO RORE, FRL S 0F TR hEEES
BERR. BRAKANARENRRERBHORRN TS, 5
RETHEA D RIS R F M 55 G BT F 0.

AEATBEURTARYPROEZENRIEHNFIRGEHFEE
AL HBRSERT WE X" PRPTE TRURET
Z. BN, PEARBTAFHESNERRL SHEEF
B MRGHETHE. RAEARBEES R~ AREERT KK
RRBRARETDZFAATOBATRBLRTAERIE
i35 ROTEERERE S RA UG T,

ANEEERNEATE, ARARTT —LHENEHENT
EERMTIARS, BFEEHZH. EHMNFREHRFFIETR
BME, AEAMNKEERBRRE T E S NERFE
B F B, I @I W A KA 5915 B R ek MW XUk FFR B AY
WATER, ARURSIR ST RN . AREAEHE ARG E
EREMAS, RNBRERERRT S, R EK, F5IARE
KENUAHTENREE, AEFAA RN TR SRR KA
B FERANEE . R R RN .

. (SRR

AEFAMARNERARKEZIEE A HZZNFHEARER
SR THEAERERATRTENBEREONE., FARKER
AEAVSERNEEENE RLEERENERRLRE
BEEE, FRANEEEE TR RN BRI A E R
Vs, MENHRSMEMEENR SIS, RIS T AN
R RE R EMERAEDTFERFRNE.

AEAZRBESRBOABITRERAREEES &5
SAVSFeRLTEMRTEER, BRETRITE BE. R
2 EHE BIRRE. TXRRGF. ZEBR D Z4EHTRE
R, BBETNE A EABRNE A ERTEMTHEE A EY
BHEMBARNERERTE. BN, 37T RIETERAERS
W EHET BRITHR. ERTER . AT BFTER. b XIFER
ITLIFRFRIIRA.

20145 F, AEAFEANREENBERERERREERANE.

(1) FRKKETE

() RIGEFRANERR

AEAETRESHEMN (RN 5 EESD EERAR

B.ZIESRWERRDBRUTENA~RESR. £H. X

ELCRB . TEMBK, KPR NRE . TRMMELKR

RBINEATRER.

s IR BRAEBESTAR, XERBEANERRAR
TREIZM RAURIE.

s XEREBRABWERNELERRAEAS BEFAE—L
JENEREFERTIFBHEE.

c R ERANERENHARE T, T2 hEHLER
EVBRATERTEERRAL BEATER, LTS
ER—ERE.

s WE. BRALERAEERRAL . BERTER thE
EBRERBRARE.

o K AR A TRMNERI VB BENERREFZE.
KBMBARTERE , 5t R AR D ER Y

AREE R A BRI R~ RE, 2RTERAROEX.

ERWVRRERBRHAMTERESNEREN. DEEEEIE

EEBESEMRAE FEEEAVSER. FMFER. TIHEX

EZRNERTEFSEEKFENE~NEKTHEZME. K&

HAXMERR~REXEDNSEE, cHFHAERE~RE. A

EREERMNERSREETLE HENREERRE.

(i) RERLTESMTA

AREBRERIPITR, FSEREL RITFREE MM
MITEREERSNEANERE. RATXERFZ AR
FREGAREAFNEN, REXTBHNRIMEUBEAS
FRAEARTEERTIANEARBRAAN T NSE—
REEEHED.

(i) PERRIKE . FFHARE . FFHEEAIEFRTRILE

S5RZRNEENE - AKABEEALRSLKHETNA
BIPRF R R B RFKIE . FFHRE I HAEFIEFRITR
RICEMNERRR.

(2) 1ERXKREIEHIFIZERBUR

AEANETRANEAREHTRAEEME S K=
AR RN SN FNREA, MRTUAMBIEXE.

AEACEIHAEMNRAEEGR HEMEATANER
BERHTEEREEE, WL ZVMEFREFAKNE
B RANELERRA. AEAEHEE LR RKEKFER
N FER RN EERTRDAREN.

MEFJENZEFNREFEFHE—T AR B RAMERIM LS
ME— TR HESGRMASLUEZTHREXZAGHNR
PPREHTE . R, X T R & A B SEER 1B 5L th 3 47 2

sz,

AERAFEMRIT RO EREREFFELS TEREANE
EERRE BINRNAMBAER EEARNENNERD
N ERNEREHTER, BN, REURAY U R ERGHE
RITEAEAEEERANKENTTR.

Hb R A EH RIEANKEERIERIISHT .
(i) 3B

AEAFET —RIEARRERNBERINER, RALE
KA. hEREENEBZZRERXRARMIREIY. A&
AN EEFERAAMNTEIMSERREERERESE
T#®RERES] . EMR AR SR

AR EZANM R H >, Gl . B~ tib
AR IS A FRURNMRE,



BRAM TR MBER I E M SR~ N IRIEY, dR
ITEAGHMRRE. BREBELT. RUERITAEAGREME
AEFHAFZFHMES R USRI RS, 5. BRME

T 55 R AR B E

ERARNEEHZRTEBREANERERRBELEH. A
TKRAERAENERAKRBES TERGERXE, A&H
XHE GER B RO T R

i EEEREEFER,

(il) {FEEMERAKIE
EREAXKENIRENERREFEBREMBHNAS.
W 55 fR R B AE AERMUE T RO BB RIE, BIASE R
ERFATEBRTENE=ZTTHNRNSHRAZMN. KEH
FESRHERNEARE. £ —&£BAT, AEEAS KRR
UE S DU D 42 2 TR 55 PR B /915 L XUBE . fRIE £ & HK
BEEANERENZRBESTN—EET DRI, HER
RIEBUR T & P HEAKE.

ERAXRKERERFEEREAMNRR. RITRELE. RR
MEMRLS. AEARRHNEEFEARR ST HEBDRE
RBERAESN, AT, BTERKEZHERKENETIUR
TEAREAFFENGERSR ARAXFRZMIZEE

(3) REREREITREUR
FERAFAHERPIROBEEEZMUMET=. 2(1)()F
FriR R M A REN X ABEMPEN., MO XBDEEER
ETHIEM. 6@FnNENBEREFA(L LS ITANE
225 )Y YR ERMIEYE.

AEANBRAEESZRENTREMS MBS/ A~ 3
THE, SR MERKRBER, W TIUEMSAE . S EEBEIM
EWMERNAS BITHOREEZEIRIZRIIHEXR
ERMETMHEN. WENRBE S RAEAFEOIRREY
AR E A o] I~ A A B R £ AT

ARFHERE: (VENESTFERBRBERAMNE~HE,
ME(NEREEHAWIRANNME, BLEATRSHNFHE
2% 2R AN NR G RARETITE.

(4) NEBRURM S E b E A IREEEN R ERARNKERE
THREAERE. &R EARKRRANESNT:

M AT
2014412H831H  2013412H31H  2014412H31H  2013412A31H
(BER)

FRHAME
B REBITRI 57,346 42,836 55,978 41,984
FHE W TR I 1,005,026 403,218 982,645 380,894
HeHES 19,495 87,469 18,995 87,206
UAaMETEERTHITALRAREHSA 46,157 25,532 33,556 23,180
LTS RE ™ 18,965 14,927 19,312 15,264
ENBESRE > 1,084,318 346,295 1,079,845 344,951
RN GER AR 7,669,351 6,929,968 7,578,764 6,827,452
Y E A~ 147,396 136,930 138,344 126,181
HEEZEBRR 2,292 5,384 2,292 5,384
ISAL €/ RITE3374 19,068 12,522 10,749 4,618
Hth & ma %™ 54,785 36,083 30,766 27,817
FAWM A& 10,124,199 8,041,164 9,951,246 7,884,931
FINEH
BEROKIE 2,951,784 1,917,987 2,951,784 1,917,987
FHREH 78,991 78,361 94,291 93,261
RITARICE 36,816 33,010 36,723 32,939
FEERIE 21,770 18,702 21,770 18,702
FINILE AT 3,089,361 2,048,060 3,104,568 2,062,889
it 13,213,560 10,089,224 13,055,814 9,947,820

ERAHFIFT T2014F12A31 A K2013F12A31H , ARAAERABER THEANKGRE  BIARE REMAFRIRSH
ERBEERNEANERERE. S TASAHERNE LRARKRRBRET A~ HERKEHETESE,
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1zo| MERENE

(5) EMEEFANE
R ERMBERBFIRERAAEHREEARTRDHHERET

2014412H31H
ERER 210,355 321,169 1,341,296 1,872,820
RIEGEFR 141,486 224,607 720,702 1,086,795
HEFR G IR 31,691 239,168 924,211 1,195,070
TR GER 43,329 111,702 3,631,926 3,786,957
&1t 426,861 896,646 6,618,135 7,941,642
2013412A31H
ERARK 207,699 346,400 1,272,955 1,827,054
RIEGER 186,078 205,598 605,096 996,772
EE LA 45,407 223,974 774,773 1,044,154
FUR G R 37,822 101,473 3,141,006 3,280,301
&it 477,006 877,445 5,793,830 7,148,281
2014412H31H
ERERK 206,486 319,387 1,343,870 1,869,743
RIESFR 137,560 224,265 720,699 1,082,524
R G IR 14,244 195,158 912,501 1,121,903
TR G R 40,485 99,916 3,634,396 3,774,797
&1t 398,775 838,726 6,611,466 7,848,967
2013412A31H
ERARK 203,889 342,745 1,274,251 1,820,885
RIEGER 177,035 204,428 605,085 986,548
EiE A 10,757 189,442 760,965 961,164
TR G R 37,882 96,266 3,141,790 3,275,938
&it 429,563 832,881 5,782,091 7,044,535

EREHRMBF AR R RERERIROT

£ AT
| 0uERASIE 201BF2AIE | 0UE2ANE  2010F12ASIE

HR At AR E (i) 7,887,096 7,112,090 7,798,075 7,009,848
WK RE (ii) 2,985 1,607 1,303 933
ERE (iii) 51,561 34,584 49,589 33,754
&it 7,941,642 7,148,281 7,848,967 7,044,535
A R E AR (272,291) (218,313) (270,203) (217,083)
Hr. B E (29,299) (14,475) (28,425) (14,264)

AE TR (242,992) (203,838) (241,778) (202,819)

RGBTSR 7,669,351 6,929,968 7,578,764 6,827,452




T 55 R AR B E

(i) BEARBHEI R & AR E A R ISR AR R

FRBPORRZERENXIRRINERNEARETNBISEREARITOR >~ RES KM,

AEEH AT
20144£12H31H 2013%£12A31H 2014412H31H 2013%12H31H
EE 7,210,728 6,390,617 7,123,261 6,291,075
xF 676,368 721,473 674,814 718,773
&it 7,887,096 7,112,090 7,798,075 7,009,848

(il) EAR AR B R R R K

—RmE . BRIEFEHBEWIERE, BHORXNANKRERINERF R —ERINEANERERE. T2014F128318, K&EH
BHIOK UM B RFIABEMN AR RRIBREHAART25.46127T (2013128310 . ARM13.53127T) , i B TR E 1T
MWK, HARARE: AEAEHOR U EERBENTRTTENNZER, P HART283ZT (2013F12331H: AR
254Z7)  RIBEFAE RBENE KRR T UREMESRIRIMEKRE  BNZB D BP R AEAERERE.
EHARMBFZREAE RS THT

M AT
2014412H31H  2013412A31H  2014412H31H  2013412H31H
WEAIOK U 2,546 1,353 930 679
BHEAOOR M £ 439 254 373 254
&it 2,985 1,607 1,303 933
BRYLANE 2,885 673 = -
(i) ERIEMERGTRMER
EREMNE R ERMERERI RN
&M AT
2014412H31H  2013412H31H  2014412A31H  2013412H31H
ERERN KR TR EK 51,561 34,584 49,589 33,754
W BRI AR E A (29,299) (14,475) (28,425) (14,264)
HER 22,262 20,109 21,164 19,490
BRYARMNE 18,863 12,280 17,981 11,906

A B RERN R R RR Y E S LI AR ENS, FERTRT REEE.

(iv) EATTRMERR

FARTRRIEEBERARYSRABLUBLEERZRERAZFRERNBELT, AEASERAEFHEERERORTR. 24
BEENEERAMMERARTEAEERDIRMEN, SEEEFTREERFELEN. FEEARRHINEL NN
N, ENEHBEARRPNENFNRER, ARHLERE MEBARFEE THERE, 8%, BREFRBHAEARRR
. F2014F12R310 , ARHAEEAFRESHMAART79.26/2T (20135F 12310 : ART68.741Z7T)

(6) fRALIERH

FAR MR AEHSREERITMOT .

&M
2014412831 2013412H31H
(BER)
4 A 8 HA AN Rk & AR (i) 211,994 180,080
ERE (i) 3,183 499
&it 215,177 180,579
B BEAEE (264) (211)
B R EINME

214,913 180,368

121



122| MERENE

T
| mwseEnA | eRRANE
i R FAR K 4B E (i) 184,941 159,363
ERE (ii) 73 72
&it 185,014 159,435
R BIEEE (73) (72)
BB KENE 184,941 159,363

() BRBHIREERENRRIER A

&M

BURF ROEBUR LG 655 6,489 98,596 - - 105,085
SRR - 3,859 293 4,675 8,827
A B FRFH 27,915 38,385 1,999 915 69,214
Hith i 296 102 - 7,212 7,610
ENZca::] 146 6,454 = = 6,600
REEETR 8,295 - - - 8,295
B = SR EM 3,016 - - 3,347 6,363
&it 46,157 147,396 2,292 16,149 211,994

BURF RO BURF AL R 55 4,673 95,629 1,486 - 101,788
SR G5 185 3,937 - 3,060 7,182
NEEE 20,674 33,794 3,898 706 59,072
HAith i - - - 1,103 1,103
EfFE - 3,298 - - 3,298
= R A - 272 - 7,365 7,637
&it 25,532 136,930 5,384 12,234 180,080
T

B ROEBUR AL 655 6,489 98,590 - - 105,079
SRR - 3,839 293 4,675 8,807
A MRS 18,772 29,461 1,999 860 51,092
HitfR% = - - 5,214 5214
ERZE3-] = 6,454 = = 6,454
HrEEERIT 8,295 - - - 8,295

&1t 33,556 138,344 2,292 10,749 184,941




m&m%wg|1m

T

BUS B ABURE RS 4,673 95,594 1,486 - 101,753
SRS 180 3,922 - 3,060 7,162
A B FRFE 18,327 23,367 3,898 650 46,242
B 72 - 3,298 - - 3,298
Hfth s - - - 908 908
Ait 23,180 126,181 5,384 4,618 159,363

(i) BREMHFRNERE

&R

NERE 282 282
TR = G R A 2,901 2,901
&t 3,183 3,183

NEfRE 299 299
TR G R H A 200 200
& 499 499
AT

NERE 73 73
NERE 72 72

TRITFT AERARKRTERNERARTH LB IATHERBTFENEHERITRDEER.

&M

BUS RABRIEERS = = - - 105,085 - 105,085
SR RS 2,673 - 1,724 - - 4,430 8,827
A B HES 49,910 15,974 1,274 - - 2,091 69,249
HsfR% 3,520 - - - - 4,090 7,610
G %] 5,132 1,168 300 = = = 6,600
g = = = - - 8,295 8,295
Y R H A = = = - - 9,247 9,247

At 61,235 17,142 3,298 = 105,085 28,153 214,913




124| MERENE

‘*
i
=

BURF ROEBUR AL R 25 = - - - 101,788 = 101,788
SRVEHEE 3,786 320 - - - 3,076 7,182
NERE 47,008 9,265 458 - - 2,435 59,166
HAth s = = = - - 1,103 1,103
E e 3,298 - - - - = 3,298
B SR EM = = - - - 7,831 7,831
&it 54,092 9,585 458 = 101,788 14,445 180,368
T

BUF ROEBUR S 65 = - - - 105,079 - 105,079
SRR 2,673 = 1,724 = = 4,410 8,807
NERFE 45,456 3,466 1,075 = = 1,095 51,092
Hithfis 3,152 - - - - 2,062 5214
ERZEa: 5,132 1,022 300 = = = 6,454
g = = - - - 8,295 8,295
&it 56,413 4,488 3,099 - 105,079 15,862 184,941

BUN ROEBUR S 655 - - - - 101,753 - 101,753
SENMBES 3,782 320 - - - 3,060 7,162
NEES 42,588 1,369 - - - 2,285 46,242
Hith i - - - - - 908 908
BRI 3,298 - - - - - 3,298
Ait 49,668 1,689 - - 101,753 6,253 159,363

(1) RIFRBUFRABMIMREFNRITASRTEBRFRETENN, IWEE. DEARRT. CEASMBERMRT.

(@) RIFRHEMBNMRABHREATRAMR. FAFECHSHMA LRMBLRITRAEY > A%,

(7) ERMAFERARKERNETE
() £RFSZBXDEITMT:

AR
o TEAmME SETHME SEESSE b &

TP SR TR 49,851 3,549 3,946 = 57,346
FFRUE b FRI 938,752 1,222 1,088 63,964 1,005,026
wHRS 16,450 - 3,045 19,495
UARNMETEERTEHITALHARBNSRA > 38,667 2,681 4,809 = 46,157
PTHESRE = 9,809 1,336 155 7,665 18,965
ENBE SR> 931,278 86,932 66,108 - 1,084,318
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R EEH]
GEAWAE PECHAE SEEWAE b &
R R 3,293,611 1,459,891 1,941,474 974,375 7,669,351
T SR 143,524 1,483 2,389 = 147,396
IS EXE 1,793 - 499 = 2,292
ISl €/ T334 18,476 500 - 92 19,068
Hft &R ™ 27,548 7,432 11,154 8,651 54,785
20144E12831H 5,469,759 1,565,026 2,031,622 1,057,792 10,124,199
2013128318 (EEiR) 3,734,186 1,404,164 1,749,631 1,153,183 8,041,164
T
CEFMOE CEGMOR CEEWEE  wn &

B RBITRI 49,240 3,108 3,630 - 55,978
FHE L FRIT 927,488 63 222 54,872 982,645
HeEE 15,950 - - 3,045 18,995
A RMETTE BT I A LIRSS RE > 32,212 646 698 - 33,556
T4 SRR~ 10,119 1,336 155 7,702 19,312
TNIRE SRR = 926,885 86,876 66,084 = 1,079,845
R GEeR AR 3,268,199 1,435,099 1,909,676 965,790 7,578,764
THEESREA~ 137,640 51 653 - 138,344
BEEIMRA 1,793 - 499 - 2,292
ISl €337 10,749 - - - 10,749
Hth&mE~ 18,584 4,604 6,185 1,393 30,766
20144E12831H 5,398,859 1,531,783 1,987,802 1,032,802 9,951,246
2013412831R 3,665,090 1,374,039 1,702,245 1,143,557 7,884,931

TERBBXEHE. LR TF T4t RiE LR, EiB IR I RBE. TR OEE. KE R FS . TR MME,
hERBEXEE. HRCRRT. WA TR L. 28 B IIE,

TEERMXEE. B AR R 58 TR ARG BRA. L EXR. #M. a@EMsAE,

BHREPERMEMIIEMBX, BFETESTERAMBILX,

(i) ERAFREFANTLI BT RET .
KRB

AEEH 2014412831H 2013412831H

18 B3 far 1,420,991 18 1,244,814 17
KT RFERPFAALRIEEE 1,070,620 13 1,114,194 16
B RS BRI E =R 879,700 11 856,013 12
A X 250E 636,246 8 283,885 4
FRERIZ Hhr 621,146 8 541,062 8
AH. AkFIKT 601,402 8 555,182 8
& 585,697 7 568,975 8
RF A 386,399 5 352,822 5
WA RE 261,167 3 213,351 3
HAthiz 206,463 3 212,040 3




126| MERENE

AR 2014412831H 2013412H31H
R S .
Sl 149,832 2 189,628 3
BE 109,953 1 110,957 1
BEMEMERERHRS L 81,376 1 92,083 1
Hith 930,650 12 813,275 11
&it 7,941,642 100 7,148,281 100

B RERREAE (272,291) (218,313)

R GER MBS 7,669,351 6,929,968

T 20144£12831H 2013412H31H

S a| % FE %

TG 1,391,069 18 1,238,868 18
KF), BRERP AR IR 1,066,886 14 1,083,760 15
B RS ROK R = AR 873,479 11 849,705 12
P X BE 636,246 8 283,885 4
FREEIT S 621,146 8 541,062 8
Al ARTLT 601,001 8 554,621 8
g 563,255 7 552,245 8
RE A 384,321 5 350,865 5
WA B 249,338 3 200,550 3
Hithizt 201,442 3 214,463 3
S 149,832 1 175,437 2
HE 109,947 1 110,948 2
BEMEMESERRS L 81,340 1 92,044 1
Hith 919,665 12 796,082 1
Ait 7,848,967 100 7,044,535 100
B BRI EEE (270,203) (217,083)

RIER MBI 7,578,764 6,827,452

RILGERMBR UM Hfh £ 50 55 7~

&M

2014%12H31H

B RBITHRI 57,346 = = 57,346
FIE LRI - 1,005,026 - 1,005,026
HEAES - 19,495 - 19,495
u;ﬁ‘;fﬁéﬁqgiiiggﬁ 6,489 11,311 28,357 46,157
PTEERAE~ 6,991 7,721 4,253 18,965
ENBE SR - 1,080,560 3,758 1,084,318
L ESMA~ 98,596 10,343 38,457 147,396
FEER R E - 293 1,999 2,292
R SRR KA R - 11,785 7,283 19,068
Hit &R~ - 9,879 44,906 54,785

169,422 2,156,413 129,013 2,454,848
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&M

20134128318 (EEiR)

R REBFTERIN 42,836 - - 42,836
FE LRI - 403,218 - 403,218
HE#ES - 87,469 - 87,469
uﬁﬁgggiiiig s 4,673 185 20,674 25,532
PTHESRE ™ 6,370 5,317 3,240 14,927
ENBESRA > - 345,338 957 346,295
T ESRA 95,629 7,235 34,066 136,930
ISR S 1,486 - 3,898 5,384
NI R R - 3,060 9,462 12,522
Hth & aE = 1,406 6,196 28,481 36,083

152,400 858,018 100,778 1,111,196
T

2014%£12H31H

B RBITRI 55,978 - - 55,978
FE LRI - 982,645 - 982,645
HEAE - 18,995 - 18,995
uﬁﬁgggiiiii s 6,489 8,295 18,772 33,556
PTHESRE > 6,991 8,068 4,253 19,312
ENERESRE ™ - 1,079,845 - 1,079,845
eSSBS~ 98,590 10,293 29,461 138,344
BHHEEIHERA - 293 1,999 2,292
NI R R - 4,675 6,074 10,749
Hitt &A™ - 9,531 21,235 30,766
168,048 2,122,640 81,794 2,372,482
2013412H31H
B RBITHRI 41,984 - - 41,984
FFRUE b FRIN - 380,894 - 380,894
HERE - 87,206 - 87,206
u:ﬁ;fﬁggiiiiz s 4,673 180 18,327 23,180
RIS 6,370 5,670 3,224 15,264
INBE S/ F >~ - 344,951 - 344,951
JHHESRA 95,594 7,220 23,367 126,181
FHEEIERA 1,486 - 3,898 5,384
ISRl €T3 374 - 3,060 1,558 4,618
Hith &R ™ 1,406 5,637 20,774 27,817
151,513 834,818 71,148 1,057,479
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Tt 55 R AR B E

. AR

TR 2R T BN (FIR LR RENEFRNE)
AN EHMERTRATMRNMLSRERKLONGE ., K&
AEENmHREERRERTKASRZKAMTER T

AEATHREEEN B R HREEEMERE—T
BEXAEER, MREEEMNEER. HENRHERASZHE
BAE—NEENTHNEKFETeeREMZEE FAKES
AEATH NG EEE N MARKZENBEEN T BN,

AEFARREZSRAMBERS RN NG RIREED
DR REEBTRKAAGERAFAREEZRATEEER
HhipAk, B ERHETRUHEINAR EERE BRE
MiHREREREE.

© ZHKFPESRITKARKD
AEAABNTZNETBFETR WA SRTHKAF,

RHWARIEAZ 5 B AR 5 M~ H AT B B RS T
FENTNEARZNERIAMT LT, BITKARHE
AEXFGEMTIHE, RAMIAERUAZZIKANRAAR
ARUFEN,

ZHRATMBTRAFPCERAENERR R EEFME S
BEXENRITERAHTEEMER., H, NEEER
hReERREEE HEPANEERTKOAASRITH
REERE: REREATRS NHEERRELPOMT, Hha
FLRREFRTKAFEREEER, EMEA~ A HERE
ZRSRCENEMRITKAF RN EHRIRE

© WHREITERAMEER T

W5 K B KBS I E U s dr it 1Tt 8 R K
FRENF TR 2.

© ZHkF

MZZKF . ARAETEXZK AN ERM L XA
RUB BRAT P 1 . SR AT FI R 7 MK A9 TF R ER BRI 4 5 2K
RUBEIR

RENMERTHEEREREHNEGEAHTHTHAFE
M SBHRABERE.

AEAFAXNTHRE T ERBHTIRENIL, MR
TTERINERENTEE. RORREREHREEEE.

A& R A E NI X 32 5 0K 2 KBS 018 93 A 3 77 8 20
7z EANRERNEAZZUESHAEL R, W EERKERL
A T REXE AR A9 B FE R AR HEATRRAN AN (AT IRBI R A MBI,
HYSRTHRD, AEAFRHBARNTEXZKAEAN
HEBESRTITE%E BRTINBNESZTNE AN RZST
EXm, ZEeTHREEIRFIEN.

AR B2 R ) 2R KR A0 C 2R RUBS £ 7R B9 45 TMLBS B TR 6E 1 AT
RAXRZRNFRFREERRA, BN REZEH.
XHHRERERENRERT. REEERARZHK,E
Kmip MM ORI S5t E,

O RITHF

XMERITIKR , AFTE BRI T RN 79 B HETTERER
AR ST AR F RN RSN, £ EEET N
KA, B, Kpe B Fil SN Kb KUk (8 8915 12 KB
EETKARSRENRITEEL. ALREABRERA . &
Rt fEBG Wk 28 (EaR) & T KBS 1B (VaR) & F 75 & X F =R
e ML RN B TERIRG T8, FREERE > AHREE
ZRSBREF NROFIRE .

B R F) R AL KBS A9 BUR M D ATIE R, R FIEH
REER3(R)CENRE (BFERTKANZAMKA).

(1) FIRRE

RO AMERRERIEF KK HREMERRRERTE
HSBERITIK BB AT NEE ZIRRANE

BERHEARBROERRELANEAFEARRITHE.
AEREFEABBXHENL SFERTHFEARRTH
FEME. —BIs B—mH HEHARNESEFMR
MR FRE @ TS, 20145E11 5228, FEARBITIHE
SRIMMARTRANGERELEFE Hh—FEHRTMNE
HEEF R FTIH6.67%M8.33%, B, PEARBTLE
AHRFFETHAHE, BRAESRYMAR T ERFIE
FEHXEN LR, AEREETEMIAGBEE L 26, Xt
FERMMERFE, EE2013F7A208 L HRAE S,

AEERTHAFIE NG EEEE R BRZF B
EFNAERUNEEOEW, H2EARODT. AHH
o ERNESH . ST BRNBIESE B BE A
REENRN AR A TRBGTRIKAFERRER. X
S I R I A TR R RAE AR A THES
B, BRI ST TR O AT T RE S 948
e,

XH KA ST RADL E RN, BENBEF 2057
MR MR IR, DU XY 2 R0 50 BV B S (405 8
) ER TR TH L.
EENEENEAR A E, ARAERT RAREENG
0. AR, FEE T DA RN R (IR T5H 8
TONCET RIS ST

RGO

RERAXEEMEMIPEFREENX AEARTE
R R R R A R NS A 2 AR E HES R T .
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R EEH]

SR

ReRFBHFREFTRDR 57,293 - - - - 107 57,400
R E L FRIR 781,916 212,673 1,125 16 = 9,296 1,005,026
He#EE 19,495 - - - - - 19,495
uﬁf%giiiﬁﬁ 13,472 17,355 11,221 4,109 = 49,638 95,795
LTHESRE > = = - - - 18,965 18,965
ENBE SR 1,081,406 2,412 500 = = - 1,084,318
R GER AR 4,213,995 2,947,549 228,538 148,736 130,533 - 7,669,351
THEESREA” 20,727 31,921 72,365 19,492 2,891 24,578 171,974
BHEERHER 293 = 1,999 = = = 2,292
ISl ERHE S 3 4,331 449 9,613 4,675 = = 19,068
Ht &rh %™ 14,932 3,243 - - - 36,610 54,785
ERMA~ AT 6,207,860 3,215,602 325,361 177,028 133,424 139,194 10,198,469
SRR

[ Wb & H Ath & Rl AL F R 286,415 108,248 1,001,055 - - 12,758 1,408,476
15 B AN H fh & Ra 4G 13X 130,561 285,806 29,597 399 5,010 = 451,373
LN 63,037 13,062 = = = = 76,099
M N He o=

i 1 6:225 2070 i i i i e
TSR TER = = - - - 9,518 9,518
S E M SRR =R 20,161 4,862 3,012 = = = 28,035
R 7R 943,214 93,776 29,313 6,185 13,113 2,111 1,087,712
R RS 1,155,017 1,205,930 2,046,875 1,395,183 550,554 - 6,353,559
Ht & rh 15 1,540 1,574 3,998 - - 146,469 153,581
ERMBMATT 2,606,170 1,715,328 3,113,850 1,401,767 568,677 170,856 9,576,648
FEBHFEMHROEI 3,601,690 1,500,274  (2,788,489)  (1,224,739) (435,253) (31,662) 621,821
20134128318 (E&Ei&K)

SR~ AT 4,337,874 3,132,934 253,260 108,351 115,666 149,670 8,097,755
SR ARETT 2,081,375 1,902,094 1,677,599 1,199,987 588,389 127,520 7,576,964
FERBHFENGEO ST 2,256,499 1,230,840  (1,424,339)  (1,091,636) (472,723) 22,150 520,791
T

SR

N& R FHHRBITHRI 55,925 - - - - 54 55,979
B E AL R 761,549 211,800 - - - 9,296 982,645
HEHES 18,995 - - - - - 18,995
uﬁﬁgfﬁgiiiii = 10,815 15,727 6,408 606 = = 33,556
BT SRR~ - - - - - 19,312 19,312
EINEBEEERE ™ 1,079,845 - - - - - 1,079,845
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7 %5 3k 3 M

AT

2014%12A31H 3TMARK 3E129H 1Z545 5Z 104 10 E EER &it
RILEFHIER 4,158,324 2,934,911 206,295 147,487 131,747 - 7,578,764
T E SR A 20,182 31,733 69,201 14,814 2,414 - 138,344
HEER R E 293 = 1,999 = = = 2,292
ISl EIRITE 237 4,209 449 1,416 4,675 = = 10,749
Hithemm = - - - - - 30,766 30,766
ERA~AIT 6,110,137 3,194,620 285,319 167,582 134,161 59,428 9,951,247
SRR

Bk K H th 4 Bl AL A9 77 A ER IR 287,830 108,314 1,001,055 = = 12,758 1,409,957
1) BT FOH At & BR AL S fE 3K 84,754 244,719 2,697 308 5,102 - 337,580
HARS 62,287 13,062 = = = = 75,349
NEAS AN —1 AN 5=

TTESmAR = = - - - 9,477 9,477
S B 4 Rl R 7R AR 10,019 = = = = = 10,019
T EEE 937,391 93,847 28,911 6,135 13,113 2,110 1,081,507
RS RS 1,152,624 1,205,930 2,042,322 1,386,719 550,554 - 6,338,149
HAith & Fh R - - - - = 134,484 134,484
SR AGRET 2,541,130 1,667,942 3,074,985 1,393,162 568,769 158,829 9,404,817
FEEFHENRD AT 3,569,007 1,526,678  (2,789,666)  (1,225,580) (434,608) (99,401) 546,430
2013412H31H

SRA~AIT 4,239,620 3,112,061 230,507 98,118 114,814 89,812 7,884,932
SRAFRAEIT 2,053,337 1,844,769 1,629,055 1,189,171 588,355 119,952 7,424,639
NEEBHENHRAEIT 2,186,283 1,267,292  (1,398,548)  (1,091,053) (473,541) (30,140) 460,293

T RSN R B AR & W 2 BT R S 4T

TRITFTHEMBETHRARRNFETEARTEICONERNBELT, BTFAFAHRRENESR~SHEAHENES, WF
BRBARBEMEEREMNIIE,

AREH 20144 20134

Wi R ST FEE N HittZ & Wi FIRZBN Hittgr & s
FFH00NE S 37,141 (3,113) 24,360 (3,091)
100 & & (37,141) 3,267 (24,360) 3,238
&IT 20144 20134

IR E R T TR HittZ & W FIREBN HitGR & A
EFH100NE & 36,954 (2,605) 23,882 (2,685)
TRE100/N & &5 (36,954) 2,759 (23,882) 2,832

N B FBANEMRIE—ENE RN ARFEN TR —FARTHEEENNSRA =R SR AGH~ENF 2R
NBIF N,

MEMGARENZMIZEETE-ENX LN TPRABENEEN R THEESHASHTELMBEARNELHNZ M.

AEFANAZBEHFAIRZAEANTSEARFEXNEERENBR, Bt EREWTRELFBERGFEER. B, TRFERE
HEWATREEAGIE, BTRESDIIITREBELEAEAARFRNERR T, M EERANTMEME SRS 9EITEE. BiZ

S IR E R E IR R ARF) Z SR o) 88 SRER A9 KBS B IR IE SN .

2) ICERK

REFRIBINTICR BT EAPCENE  ZRREZMEM SRAMALRE.

AERAMABAIVESEARTLS, b EET. BRoT. B MEM/NGIN TS, BEMZETHIREN, AEANTENRFE
EhAEET, 2014 E, ARMIETRIE0.36% (2013F EFHES.09%),



AREFATEBIINCHMA OCRGURM T, 7RIS (EaR) EFRBEME (VaR) E S H 8 L X TR

WERFAETHEMRNAZHETAETLENGER.

AEAXTHLEREHADE, MERFASMNARHTEARTKEANEITNAT.

=
%25

T 55 R AR B E

g, g Es

M

2014412831H ART  EXHART Hit it AR &it
ERE:

& RIFH P RBITHRI 57,345 52 3 57,400
I E LRI 866,093 116,943 21,990 1,005,026
HEHES 12,700 6,795 - 19,495
UAaMETTEERTHITALHARENSA 79,326 12,517 3,952 95,795
FTHESRA~ 8,916 9,449 600 18,965
ENBRE SR = 1,084,318 = = 1,084,318
RN GERR AR 6,107,192 1,452,328 109,831 7,669,351
THEESmA~ 164,520 1,671 5,783 171,974
R EEHRE 2,292 - - 2,292
VA €/ RIE5 374 18,976 35 57 19,068
Hithem ¥ = 43,031 10,606 1,148 54,785
AR~ 8,444,709 1,610,396 143,364 10,198,469
SRS

B b R ot S RRATLAG 7 BRI 1,184,375 211,343 12,758 1,408,476
=) BUR A1 H fth & R AL 3K 117,073 314,775 19,525 451,373
WARE 44,265 28,634 3,200 76,099
AR METTE BH TN L ER S8 7 8,295 - - 8,295
LT SRR 4,073 4,983 462 9,518
SE U B 1 £ 8 R 5K 28,035 - - 28,035
R U 775K 938,353 107,523 41,836 1,087,712
IVASRE=S 6,327,376 25,243 940 6,353,559
HAeh&ah R 146,407 5,417 1,757 153,581
SR ARETT 8,798,252 697,918 80,478 9,576,648
RNTLA L% (353,543) 912,478 62,886 621,821
CELGTETR (BR/BXEE) 641,744 (590,402) (48,440) (2,902)
(B S7 2,778,843 287,759 22,759 3,089,361
20134128318 (B&EiK)

AR~ 6,444,710 1,501,426 151,619 8,097,755
SR AkET 6,835,601 655,202 86,161 7,576,964
RATA B LT3 (390,891) 846,224 65,458 520,791
CERLTETR (AR/BXEM) 581,041 (528,574) (49,717) 2,750
EHRRE 1,726,845 289,868 31,347 2,048,060
AT

2014412A31H ART  ExHART Hitmahif AR™T &t
SR

& R A7 RRITHRIM 55,925 52 2 55,979
FHE W TR I 853,975 107,986 20,684 982,645
HFERS 12,200 6,795 - 18,995
MARMETEELEHITAN LR NS EE > 33,556 = - 33,556
PTEERE > 8,916 9,796 600 19,312
ENBEERA 1,079,845 - - 1,079,845
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7 %5 3k 3 M
4T
2014412H31H ARM ETHART HipmMrART it
KM GER AN IR 6,015,712 1,453,329 109,723 7,578,764
EHEESRE 137,120 1,224 = 138,344
HHEZFHRE 2,292 - = 2,292
N CIRTE 2% 10,749 = = 10,749
Hithem ™ 24,689 5116 961 30,766
SRA~AIT 8,234,979 1,584,298 131,970 9,951,247
ERbffR:
Bk R Hofth < Bh AL A9 77 A SR T 1,185,856 211,343 12,758 1,409,957
12 B O th & BR AN AD (5 3K 30,000 288,055 19,525 337,580
wAEE 43,515 28,634 3,200 75,349
UARMETEBEEEMITALSHRENESRMAMK 8,295 = = 8,295
LTTHE SR AR 4,073 4,942 462 9,477
S B € R 7 < 5K 10,019 = = 10,019
R U F K 929,534 109,387 42,586 1,081,507
ISARRGE= 6,324,983 12,226 940 6,338,149
Hitr ik 130,963 3,039 482 134,484
SRARAIT 8,667,238 657,626 79,953 9,404,817
KA B L~TEE (432,259) 926,672 52,017 546,430
CELTETR (AR/BXER) 640,504 (589,178) (48,440) 2,886
FHRIE 2,794,050 287,759 22,759 3,104,568
2013412H31H
ERA~AIT 6,262,106 1,482,507 140,319 7,884,932
ERARAITT 6,712,493 625,254 86,892 7,424,639
FRAI B L~T5E (450,387) 857,253 53,427 460,293
CELTETR (FR/EXEE) 578,833 (526,405) (49,717) 2,711
BERRE 1,741,674 289,868 31,347 2,062,889
MRETHBARTLCEEN1%, ¥AKAB T FENF W ROT,
AEH 1T
20144 20134 20144 20134
(BER)
ETHRBMARTICERES
+FFH1% 8,605 7,724 8,747 7,834
TFE1% (8,605) (7,724) (8,747) (7,834)
PCEREHN B FANE WA AEFzAECNBREFER, HFRAEEMUTEE.

s AFnmEERABARKEAERTATHANEL,

o CREEMXEFITART M,

BEHETEXSGNEAREAXRTATHO#THEFEY.

s LRI T HNEAIF I

. TR
AR RIEAER RAERE

ZEE N BRERNUAERARKE
RERLERTEERNA . FRAMNNE LR AR B ERHETRK

FRFEE R X F B ST B A6 55 /Y KBS . 7 3 14 KBS

AREMER.



AEARY —EERYMEEBRAER, BHENAXRSH
RN ERAEMHTNEE . EWL ST R 21 %,
BB R NS

2014%F  ATTHEBIEATSRESHERAER., RIE
RESHBEXH BARNFEIEHREKE015FK,
EATEBBLIATS ENEREARTHHENTNFE
A,

O mant R EER B IRTRE
AEAERSEERFNERERMNER HhBEEHER. 5

M EHER. 2EES RREAR. BTERRAGBISE
HENTTESM T ENTRER,

BARFMREGEEENMASRELLFERETEZAR
AERARANUNEEENERRR. AT LEEBERREN
HRAMARENERN ARARFRASNAGMENTE TR
EAAXHN. REEMLTTRSRESRE BRMNEEES
EMEARE. RRAL NHREEHE > AL TEGE
BEEEZA,
AFENBEEZRREE RSN NN EENNE, RLRER
MRENREEOEER] ARANRHMERRESS.

s MNERBEDHINESR, FHEEEERRNASHKFE,

s BEERAFAGRIMRA .

c EEMSHPENEREMRFL

s ERmESMAITL,

AEFAREEBBEATS L ROTHENTRETHERE N
HERM, THFHEHEMETRERNRID M. L AR

T 55 R AR B E

BHEZE BE-BOEHNNK MERER, HASHE
HHBRE MREBAKH. EARRENATRANEE
TR AEARF 7T EEARNS RANMER~.

BEBLT, ARAFNANE=ZFSEERIITRENEAILE
PRSP TRERAS, RILRHRIBRNFREMILERS
MRS —REMTARKBENSH. R, 50 EARETHE
HH PUSERHAENERF G ERTXFEET, FBiLE
RAEN AR ST TBRRRRKMBHNEBASHR,

O £MIARNMUEDN
AERAEREERNMERR, URIFRAERBT. =& H
FR . AR AN AR A > B

AEANRMABRENEBIRERSALT NS5 R
RERALATHNEFHEER, LLFRAFTRNRAERTE
KER BT, A MARREARNRA T ZRRRTER
EHNEN. AREABRITRTEEMNRRFZNFRHESHE
FEEERAT R, RERSTEHRNERN, MERERARE
REHEAERSFIHZARKE, EBR, RAEFERAFEHX
SEAKBARTHERFPHRDOED. T2014F12A31H, K&
AKHR (BHEE-—FR—FNL) EARSLTEEITH
ARM55,579.691Z7t, Rt KHARMGS (BRELEH M
A ERRI. BBUFMEMESRIWER. FARE =
& E SRR AR ER) £|ETHART12,115.51
Z7,

RERAENFRYRD L. ARAFETE SR T RN S
PMEFEENTTESRIARBNERAE RS HII TN
T.ARANXESH T EFANASRES TRPHON
TRAEEENER.

2014412831H
1Z31MA 3ZF129 A 1E55 5105 10&RE &it
- = - = - 57,401
1,315 214334 1,142 16 ~ 1,006,091
2,268 = - = - 19,537
9,870 17,161 13,482 7,100 - 101,335
84,170 2,584 616 = - 1,088,271
219,756 1,395,342 4,246284 2,750,354 2,018,333 10,728,222
13,493 32,595 74,647 22,413 3,447 177,878
153 1,088 2,958 89 - 4,289
513 4,005 12,439 4,803 - 22,182
418 4,761 9,317 5,599 2585 24,198

331,956 1,671,870 4,360,885 2,790,374 2,024,365 13,229,404

A EH

o e WBEE AR
FETEERE™
& RBFHHPRRITHR 1,081 56,320 =
BFRE LRI 276 760,328 28,680
HEAE - - 17,269
uﬁﬁgggiiiiz ~ 49,638 3,015 1,069
INBRESRA> - - 1,000,901
RIRGERAEK 10,929 - 87,224
TR ESRA” 24,578 - 6,705
FEEIMRR - - 1
NIRRT 122 22 278
HtbemR ™ 40 1,411 67
FETESRA B 86,664 821,096 1,142,194
FTEER GG
B & H A& B F R - 78,066 474,716

16,193

147,222 1,106917 = - 1823114
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134| MERENE

KEMH 20144128310
1) B A At @ B AG R - 38 29,508 71,768 241,010 112,915 3,479 5,899 464,617
wANAE - - 48,993 14,570 13,227 - = - 76,790
uﬁﬁgggigiég . = - 1,067 5,214 2,147 - = - 8,428
LU EMERE =K - - 16,225 4,060 5,216 3,141 = - 28642
UTIEEE —- 853,394 22,321 46,431 108,649 46,338 9,775 22,225 1,109,133
NA RS - - 102,598 210,697 753,338 3,937,572 2,073577 971,881 8,049,663
Hith &/ 065 12 3,837 202 189 4,943 8,171 2,887 311 20,552
FEESRARBT 12 935335 695630 369,122 1,275,752 5215054 2,089,718 1,000,316 11,580,939
TEEMTANER
RETERNITEERMIA
LR - - 26 - 125 935 1,358 5,280 7,724
BREREENITESRIA
RERN - - 208,641 184,809 787,808 20,251 247 774 1,202,530
REH = - (207,791) (182,738) (776,097) (19,791 (185) (704) (1,187,306)
KER 20135 12H31H (B Eik)
AT ERAR - ] .
& RFNFRBITHR 686 42,171 - - - - - - 42,857
R E kIR - 127,231 6,298 3547 266,292 - 81 ~ 403,449
HHAS - - 57,692 2,099 29,343 - - - 89,134
uﬁﬁﬁggigig‘;g = 33,255 - 736 6,504 10,239 9,030 1,634 - 61,398
KNBESRE~ - - 231214 111,352 5,811 17 - - 348,394
RGN 3,823 - 45956 213832 1358120 3,817,596 2,421,811 1,801,500 9,662,638
THEESRAS 22,425 - 8,746 13,215 20,602 87,583 25,105 5295 182,971
HHEIRE = - - 1,705 1,886 2,270 - - 5,861
BRI # - 5 8 433 6,999 4,212 3,699 - 15,356
Hith &mR™ 6 934 56 88 1,652 2,608 3,165 1 8,510
LSRR BT 60,195 170,341 350,706 352,775 1,700,944 3,923,316 2,455,495 1,806,796 10,820,568
FETEERMAE
B K H & RN A BRI - 80,230 905 5087 291,626 47,023 598 ~ 425,469
) B R A At @ B AG R = - 27,063 67,829 125,021 245,582 5,839 6,293 477,627
HARE - - 9,611 9,776 16,654 - = - 36,041
T EHERE N - - 14,760 3,418 4,955 2,487 - - 25,620
TesE - 500,661 12,684 25,660 80,682 54,811 9,462 21,640 705,600
At 5RF - - 95,159 148,571 691,098 3,432,197 2,160,021 965,312 7,492,358
Hivemim 285 2,328 151 951 5,323 4,022 5 1,061 14,126

FTESRABREH 285 583,219 160,333 261292 1215359 3,786,122 2,175,925 994,306 9,176,841
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&M 2013412A31H (E&Eid)

E 1Z31A 1ZE55 10FE M E
TESMTANER
RETERENITEERIA
REFRN - - 14 54 216 775 1,251 5,108 7,418
BREBAHENITEERTIA
RERAN = - 11,008 57,209 564,174 54,699 449 799 688,428
B ot = - (11,307)  (57,184) (552,142)  (51,963) (384) (715)  (673,695)
AT 2014412831H
HTEERE™
RE&RFERHRBITHRI - 55,979 - - - - - - 55,979
e (ERIE - 751912 19,880 - 211,808 - - - 983,600
fiihlaea = - 16769 2,268 = - = - 19037
uﬁ?\gggigi;g - - - 1,069 9,865 16,677 7,407 679 - 35,697
ENEESRA - - 999,537 83,960 = - = - 1,083,497
R 10,007 - 85758 212,836 1,370,291 4,182,187 2,731,548 2,022272 10,614,899
TR ESRA> - - 6,401 13,493 32,545 70,718 14,953 2,654 140,764
FHEEDMRR - - 1 153 1,088 2,958 89 - 4,289
IVl ERTES A - - 276 303 3,785 3,691 4,764 - 12,819
HitemE ™ - 34 11 173 135 553 - - 906
FETESRA~ BT 10,007 807,925 1,129,702 323,051 1,636,329 4,267,514 2,752,033 2,024,926 12,951,487
FTESRAG
b R H Ath & A F BRI - 79527 474,716 16,213 147,222 1,106,917 - - 1,824,595
BB RME SN ER - - 18,889 50,689 193,936 76,812 1,644 5606 347,576
HARE = - 48,242 14,570 13,227 - = - 76,039
NN HERETH
u;ﬁggg;;i;}g & = - 1,067 5,214 2,147 - - - 8,428
EHEEERA TR - - 10,026 - - - - - 10,026
R 734 - 848477 21,676 46,104 108,718 45,863 9,725 22,226 1,102,789
NS - - 102598 210,685 752,646 3,928,183 2,063,794 971,881 8,029,787
Hib&mh 167 - 215 53 78 675 881 5 3 1,910
JEFT4 SR RER A - 928219 677,267 343553 1218571 5,158,656 2,075,168 999,716 11,401,150
TESMTANER
RETAHENITEERTIA
REERAN - - 28 40 298 1,107 1,332 5,280 8,085
BREBAENITEERTIA
WEHN = - 208205 184,809 787,004 20,251 247 774 1,201,290
B e - - (207,363) (182,738)  (775301)  (19,791) (185) (704) (1,186,082)




136' MERENE

&7 2013412H31H
FTEERE™
e RFMFRBTHI - 41,985 - - - - - - 41,985
TR R - 116,739 = - 264,277 - = - 381,016
KA - - 57,429 2,099 29,343 - - - 88,871
uﬁﬁgggiiigglﬁ - - 736 6,504 10,143 7,559 56 - 24,998
INREERA - - 230,613 111,352 5,019 - = —- 346,984
Ly Ge Lkt 3,170 — 43,474 206,378 1,329,444 3,758,759 2,397,571 1,801,220 9,540,016
THREESRE S - - 8,746 13,215 20,447 85,628 12,501 4,490 145,027
R ERIR% - - - 1,705 1,886 2,270 - - 5,861
Il ERTES A - - 8 8 330 2,289 3,608 - 6,243
Hitb &R ™ - 38 6 22 66 595 - 1 728
FLTESRE B 3,170 158,762 341,012 341,283 1,660,955 3,857,100 2,413,736 1,805,711 10,581,729
IFITESRGE
B0 R H & R R - 81,056 905 5072 291,627 47,023 598 —~ 426,281
) B A S B AE R = - 18928 50,197 70,728 203,391 1,561 6,271 351,076
HANRE - - 9,611 9,776 16,654 - - - 36,041
THEMERE =K - - 9,702 - - - - - 9,702
e — 498,118 13,776 26,323 80,901 54,588 9,182 21,640 704,528
N 5RF - - 95,163 148,559 690,710 3,426,772 2,150,558 965,312 7,477,074
Hiteah ffk = 131 136 38 734 823 5 2 1,869
FLTE SR ARBE - 579,305 148,221 239,965 1,151,354 3,732,597 2,161,904 993,225 9,006,571
TESBTANER
REMEENITESRMIA
HEHERN - - 16 77 331 995 1,260 5,108 7,787
BREBRAENITEERTIA
RERN = - 11,008 57,299 561,966 54,699 449 799 686,220
REFth = - (11,307) (57,184) (549,973) (51,963) (384) (715) (671,526)
HERRRIMIER
AERAGHRE. FHRR, RORKLERALERIEINGREME&EESREHADHITUT.
EH
BRI 1,495,009 69,761 422,461 933,593 30,960 - 2,951,784
FHRE 3,230 406 10,412 31,781 32,526 636 78,991
RITRHICE 4,533 9,201 23,082 = = = 36,816
FHERIE 6,065 8,213 6,847 645 - - 21,770
Ait 1,508,837 87,581 462,802 966,019 63,486 636 3,089,361
20134128 31H 808,883 101,292 450,373 579,579 103,457 4,476 2,048,060
AT
BRI 1,495,009 69,761 422,461 933,593 30,960 - 2,951,784

FFH R & 3,230 406 13,212 44,281 32,626 636 94,291
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1T

RITKAFILE 4,531 9,178 23,014 - - - 36,723
FF 15 FIE 6,065 8,213 6,847 645 = = 21,770
&it 1,508,835 87,558 465,534 978,519 63,486 636 3,104,568
20134128 31H 808,862 101,285 450,330 594,479 103,457 4,476 2,062,889

5 EMATMEMAGRHARNE
SHMIAMANENRETRZERAFRAFEERTH LRLBEORN. YL AMERTH LRBRNE  RED B
BERARBESTRNAANE. BEERAGRARELE R TN N THKIE, BRI MRHRERDR S5, DA
EAFMRANGERRABGEERTHSSERENTRIESENFERE, FS5SANNERTRAENEFER R,

(1) ArgMETENETIA

AEANAANMETEN SR TRIZIEN. 6ARN=1FRITNT:

REH

2ovaser2A01 B C owemx wsRx mEmm &
SR

uﬁﬁgggiiiigﬁ 11,867 37,140 46,788 95,795
ETH SRUA > - 18,965 = 18,965
THEESmA~ 13,312 142,125 16,537 171,974
&it 25,179 198,230 63,325 286,734
ERfR

NPAN (AN “H= e

e : (255 : 209
LT SRR - (9,518) = (9,518)
ait = (17,813) = (17,813)
2013412H31H (B Eik) EF—BR FEZBR E=ZBR it
SR

uﬁﬁgggiiiigﬁ 1,335 25,040 32,412 58,787
PTHESRE - 14,911 16 14,927
THEESmA S~ 16,544 129,281 13,530 159,355
&it 17,879 169,232 45,958 233,069
SRR

TSR R - (10,504) - (10,504)
AT

SR

NS H= a1

PTHE SRR - 19,312 = 19,312
THEESmA~ 1,224 137,120 = 138,344
&it 1,224 189,988 = 191,212
ERfR

NPAN (AN HE= AR 7

it 5 : 295 : (8255
PSR R - (9,477) - (9,477)
&it - (17,772) = (17,772)




138 W& wkEME

2013%12H31H EF—BX FIEX FZEX &it
ot

NEAS (AN EF I+ = AN 5

TrEemE - 15,264 - 15,264
THEESRA - 126,181 - 126,181
&it - 164,625 - 164,625
SRR

LTS R — (10,493) — (10,493)

2014 FEM2013FE, AEAFE—ERAME_RREMIAZBALERED.
TREAEANAHESRASMERARN 2 AMERBET AXELR (FHZ, FRANGERATNBAE.

KEH
ARfE= | ArfE- Eh  FANEMNE
SRAE/SRNE 20144 20134 e EEEANEEHNE FANE MARMME
128316 12A31H “ WAEY ZEM%R
BARNET BB R ERDIAY
BRAEMESRAT — % 6,191 1902
DA ROMET BB E BTN
HRANSHAT - RERE 3,802 9%
SR ; GRM Bl EEIES .
&8 P Eg;ﬁimmm<mm EBIES o S
A RNETEEEEHITAY Lot 753 =
RS SRMAS - META ’
T E LA - FE 5271 7,650
THHESRMAT - MHTA 8,041 8,894
DA ROMET BB H BN Y
BRKMSIA S — th% Y
Bl ROME R BTN Y
BRI POSRAT — B & 120 -
REft
Bl RAOME R B R BN Y
BRSMSRAT - RERE 30 -
e FONEHE. RRALHERBT
- — BRI (R RE RN TIERS
NARGHETHE B R AN 146 _ #TBX k44 BENRAERRARE  FER FEM
MR R — RS it HERBE X HHAEARKE
MA RGBT B EEBTAY FRRAGHA,
RSN SHAS - AFER 8,295 -
i
DA ROMET BB H BN Y o )
BRANSRAS - BYAS '
THHBSMAT - 5 135,671 125,983
T ESUAS - AlEE 6,454 3,298
PrEgma ~ RH IR (24 10298 6.698 FRASHE. KRASRBRIET
ZX D REEE) TR IR CRAR SR
o EoRR  MBOTHLRERSRSS) T FER &
P SMA - KB (01 2190) (2.735) BABHERHET, FHERRES
R EHREITE) P71 PR BT IR T A,
B SRAS - KTZHEY 172 128 FRASHE. REASHRRIBT
LR (REREHRNTUELE
o ) BoRR LK) RARTEHLRESET . FER FER
PrESRMAE - KHLHEH (172) (121) RS 53 1S R I s
i
NASHE, ARNSHBRIER
FASMAR - AEER 7814 6,960 g%g(ﬁﬁ ;;;;; j’fw;ﬂ;ﬁg
ETER  R#%) RANARESET FHRE FER &R
HESMAE - HRDH (6.735) (7.221) MEXHNTRANENITIEES

.



M5 RENE | 139

KEH
DRRE- EX  FANEHNE
SRAFABAE 20134 e fEERATIEERNE RAIWE N
12A31H BMNE ZERXFR
SRR — KB 260 698
RS — FRRIIE R, %
FE — HR R MR AREIE
FAESBAR — AR 421 27 BTRER BHE(RARSMANTURKE FER FER
i) RALTRATRRE L5
5471 PR A0S Eh s A5 i
T SR — FIEERR (421) (427)
AL AT HNHEIKE
NER (HAEEE  AHKENE
SRR — BRI - 16 SRR - XREURAER, HABEAUTHE LS, ARH
HRERIMR), (EEE
F3.08 —9.332 g
HORAME. WRERRELOR  RAMEATO - 0
140 186 BIEA  WESPUERMESORACESE 1% OMREER O
BT E . 10.16%)
IREHARAA,  IREHAKR
NF42% - 17%zE  AHK, AR
( PO 58.84%)  fE#/N
RIAAT e
10% — 20% ( ANAXFE NRMEEN '
IR ARASRETI  IV136%)
WA R BB B ERAY o860 psay  gemy  IHESTEE FRERRATN TRERE AT
B SRAS - N TR : ’ =ER muRRATRREE FREnT 2P SRZE M ey
HRABAIL, FHI%2.5%)
DRBARITANH20% BT
(RFHH20%) A, Ao
EREEHI0% (1 AR
AT 530%) ARERK
T, SATH EANGUOTL AR AT
9,900 6,839 HEZ=RER  NIEEXEH, FERTLRSMEFN  20% - 30% (IRE /,’A'\L BN '
EHERATABARNE. #)026.99%)
WA R BB B E R AL T, SATHERNGLOTL SRR AT
BRBMSRAS - BU S 289 - BERR ATRGEE FRGURBETN  20% 0% (miRE 0
Rt I ERATAGHA RN, #4726.99%)
T, SATHERNGLOTL SRR AT
THHESWAS - N TR 16,537 1850 BIRER AT FRGUABE 0% 0% (niRE L

EIHERATE A RNE,

1435%)

(1) TAFLERD ARAENE=ZRERANERIEAANEHRTIEEN, AT ATUEGNE, ERESETEBRREN
E—AHEZPIATRZANE, BAREWZ LS T AN AANETESEERNZN,

AEFALRE=ZEXREHTARHNT .

A EEH]

201441 B1R 32,412 16 13,530 45,958 =

W/ (RK) &t 2,136 8 4,286 6,430 =
—Es/ (RK) 2,114 8 = 2,122 =
- HitGr Al 22 - 4,286 4,308 -

i (2,308) (24) (1,611) (3,943) -

#m 20,153 - 9 20,162 =

“®H 1,395 - 323 1,718 =




140| MERENE

A EEH SRR SRR
MNEZEREE (7,000) = = (7,000) =
20144E12831H 46,788 = 16,537 63,325 =

201412 A31 AHBH R~/ H kP
— it E R ARE/RE 2,114 8 - 2,122 =
—itAHMGE 22 - 4,449 4,471 =
SRE" (BER) SRR

‘uﬁﬁmﬁ
s fiamAr GEAT  smmmatt  mEemam
B RhZE 7=

201351 B 1H 28,155 3,373 19,192 50,720 (3,325)
s/ (4R%) &3t 215 (1,516) (5,631) (6,932) 1,520
— Es/ (HRR) 215 (1,516) - (1,301) 1,520
- Hhiz Al - - (5,631) (5,631) -
S (2,645) - (31) (2,676) -
#hn 6,687 - - 6,687 -
“H - (186) - (186) 150
ME=ZE R - (1,655) - (1,655) 1,655
20134E12831H 32,412 16 13,530 45,958 -

201312 A1 HIFAM R F=/fafkP
— PR E R R R /R K 215 4 - 219 -
—ItAHMBGERE - - (5,630) (5,630) -

() FEURRMETEHNEMIA
AERAFEURAMETENSEASTOER, EAAMEGITET T TITHTTENRE.

() ReRFHPREFTHIM. FRELKRA. FEHES INRESHA . BAEHERRI. EFREHEFEX FARE. SHE
T & B FT 7 5K FL A A H A S 53 T — 4 PO B A B At S WA A SR

HFUEEBRAFREMAFNIPARTPE—FEUA, BESATTHHNERSENEN, HKENEREZEAANE.
(i) HHEZFPRA R BRIERF

EFRIESR AN A ANENTRENTHRNDER. W TELTHIESRE, WERBNERIZESFRARRKGEA SRR
THRMIEFR A SN EERARFE.

(il) R BTN
BT FSHNERRNFRIBRETEARBTEANRFEH R BERIE EKENELELAANENSIEGFIL. BEF

ERZH2ANMEUASREBWMIVERE, W RERSZEROMRGREMARTRRAE., S TRERR, Eoa0NEMR
T EKEHMAENA S RFE.

(iv) EEMEERRER
EEMNERERMERNAARNENASREMRIVETE, IWINXRERSZTRLEROR K RECBINITHE,
(V) RIS RRE RS

FEENARNENT RN N BHISEZLUSLRIANTIRONBE. I TEERETHRNULO SRR T AT HRNAGE
F, EAANMENSZHESFHR AR TENIFRERARMNISREWIERE.

BT e R, ROEANARNETENERA~MAGNKENEREEARNE.
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&R 2014412H31H 2013412831H

JSAREE 6,353,559 6,397,268 5,840,590 5,499,411
AT 2014412H31H 2013412831H

N B 6,338,149 6,381,921 5,832,050 5,491,352

TARAFUEERE, AEANSHESFHAANEIRENSH SRR TENXFRARAEMOASREWIERE, ARNE
BRIGUDHEZRAR.
6. HAEE
FEAHRTAAEENN AL LA~ NHERTN " NG NEEAZ HENERZ.
s BEAKBAZEMAEBRTEENMRENALER,
* RUEARBAFEELER N NEEBHENRFREDR,
c RFEEEMNAREMUIFISER.

AEAEERETEERZATHBXIES] MERESNEENE INERAANTEXNMEERANERERL. £TEFE
ERES EIRPAERNARER.,

T MEHRzAE
ARG EAHMSRET01545 A58 AR TEELHE,
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A AT EFIE A S A R
ORGANIZATIONAL STRUCTURE AND DIRECTORY OF
BRANCHES & SUBSIDIARIES

BRERS

General Meetings of Shareholders

EER

Board of Directors

BEIDNE
Board of Directors Office

BREEER

Executive Management

\
PAFT

Executive Office

MR (EMARLZEHD)

Center for Financial
Research & Development

\
BURFIRZE

Policy Research Department

\
MxIE (FRIBE)

Planning Department

RERH R EER s e WE—F
=218 : HHEER . :
Treasury & Financial Market Risk Management . . Project Appraisal
Credit Review Department
Department Department Department |
\ \ \ \
EREELES A B EERER T
! : ' SIEEER
Global Cooperation Large Corporate Client Information Technology Operations Department
Department Department Department P P
[ |
THESEER SR AT
o . : [=h153 i &
Administrative Affairs .
Retired Staff Department
Department
| [ [ |
N _ FESAER R o g
S LD EBEAWER HEETER EEERB
N X Housing Finance Planning . . . . Housing Finance Portfolio
CDB Housing Finance A Housing Finance Project Appraisal
& Admin Management
\ \ \ \
=217 REDT AL 1T L& 1T

Beijing Branch

Tianjin Branch

Hebei Branch

Shanxi Branch

\
BRLHMT

Heilongjiang Branch

\
LiEBH1T

Shanghai Branch

LHT
Jiangsu Branch

T 5rT
Suzhou Branch

\
BT

Xiamen Branch

\
ILEST

Jiangxi Branch

\
WHRSAT

Shandong Branch

ERa1T
Qingdao Branch

\
FNAT

Shenzhen Branch

\
AT

Guangxi Branch

\
BEAST

Hainan Branch

BERST
Chongging Branch

\
HHS1T

Gansu Branch

\
BT

Xinjiang Branch

FilgaT
Qinghai Branch

\
TEST

Ningxia Branch

\
BEENMT

Hong Kong Branch

\
& HKRL

Cairo Representative Office

\

Moscow Representative Office

\
BUHA SRR

Rio de Janeiro Representative Office
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s

Board of Supervisors

BESDRE
Board of Supervisors Office

WEERE T SRER ERERE e
Business Development Market Development & Equity el BEsaiiEin Finance & Accounting
Department Investment Department 9 2 Department
\ \ \ \
TEB TH=F EREER E & mE
Project Appraisal Project Appraisal Loan Management International Finance

Department Il Department IlI Department Department
\ \ \ |
s = =1 B
TR Hum$ iz’urces 5 Eduﬁiﬁlﬂ'll'lriin
Audit Department Department Compliance Department Department 9
\ \ \ |
ARER1T LTHT KEDT HHRT
Inner Mongolia Branch Liaoning Branch Dalian Branch Jilin Branch
\ \ \ \
HHIT TIRST ZET BEST

Zhejiang Branch

Ningbo Branch

Anhui Branch

Fujian Branch

\
AR ST

Henan Branch

\
#AE T

Hubei Branch

\
HE 21T

Hunan Branch

|
I"&Ra1T

Guangdong Branch

\
)l 5317

Sichuan Branch

HINDAT
Guizhou Branch

\
ZEDT

Yunnan Branch

|
B 21T

Shaanxi Branch

BT
Tibet Branch FEERAE EF&mAEREMELT  CDB Capital Co., Ltd.
Group Subsidiaries EFHEHBRE(EAT  CDB Securities Co., Ltd.
| E$R&mHEEHRAT  CDB Leasing Co., Ltd.
AT ANER AL 3R b fiEAREESBRAT  China-Africa Development Fund
Caracas Representative Office

13 RAHARIT

13 Village Banks



144 ARRMWETIFEAIMLEEF
ORGANISATIONAL STRUCTURE AND DIRECTORY OF BRANCHES & SUBSIDIARIES

=S IT KESIT

BEIJING BRANCH DALIAN BRANCH

ik LR AR EXTHAE158 ST #F K E8E it KETHRLUXRARKE15-17SERSMAESRE

Add: 8/F, COSCO Mansion, 158 Fuxingmennei Street, Add: 25/F, International Finance Plaza, 15-17
Xicheng District, Beijing Renmin Road, Zhongshan District, Dalian

BiE(Tel): (010) 63223100 BiE(Tel): (0411) 82810918

fEE (Fax): (010) 66412282 f£ & (Fax): (0411) 82633839

#R 4% (Zip): 100031 R 4% (Zip): 116001

RESIT HEHRSAT

TIANJIN BRANCH JILIN BRANCH

ik KT A X RKE B SIHHE KR FIOAE26E it . K& A B8 3995

Add: 26/F, Huanbohai Development Centre A, 9 Add: 399 Nanhu Road, Changchun
Binshui Road, Hexi District, Tianjin B3E(Tel): (0431) 85279600

BiE(Tel): (022) 85681234 fZE (Fax): (0431) 85279700

£ E (Fax): (022) 88355858 R 48 (Zip): 130022

R 4% (Zip): 300061

k1T BEIINIT

HEBEI BRANCH HEILONGJIANG BRANCH

ik ARETREFERISHES HBE ik . 15 RIET R R XA IER 1315

Add: Building B Yuyuan Plaza, 9 Yuhuaxi Road, Shijiazhuang Add: 131 Xiangjiang Road, Nangang District, Harbin
B iE(Tel): (0311) 85288100 BiE(Tel): (0451) 53907900

f£E (Fax): (0311) 85288112 f£E (Fax): (0451) 53907808

1R 4% (Zip): 050051 HR 4% (Zip): 150090

A5 4T Liga1T

SHANXI BRANCH SHANGHAI BRANCH

ik KRT/NEXKIGHEI27S it £ K68 S

Add: 327 Changzhi Road, Xiaodian District, Taiyuan Add: 68 Puming Road, Shanghai

8% (Tel): (0351) 4937222 8% (Tel): (021) 58883655

£ E (Fax): (0351) 4937224 f£H (Fax): (021) 58883659

R 4% (Zip): 030006 HR 4% (Zip): 200120

REREHT ILATAT

INNER MONGOLIA BRANCH JIANGSU BRANCH

ik AREFIEFTREXBE)IRE16S it BRAIAR R 82325

Add: 16 Chilechuan Street, Huhhot Add: 232 Jiangdongzhong Road, Nanjing
B3 (Tel): (0471) 3310014 BiE(Tel): (025) 83276222

f£E (Fax): (0471) 3310021 f£H (Fax): (025) 83276204

R 4% (Zip): 010098 R 4% (Zip): 210019

T4 T

LIAONING BRANCH SUZHOU BRANCH

it BT X FEAE1095 it AT T X158 S BV FET H11-12F
Add: 109 Qingnian Street, Shenhe District, Shenyang Add: 11/F-12/F, Zhiye Business Plaza, 158
BiE (Tel): (024) 22959955 Wangdun Road,Suzhou Industrial Park
£ E (Fax): (024) 22953371 B 1E(Tel): (0512) 67887142

HR 4% (Zip): 110014 f£E (Fax): (0512) 67887114

BB 4% (Zip): 215028



HIHAT

ZHEJIANG BRANCH

ik HUM LT X4 2 35695 R E FF K324

Add: 32/F, 69 Chengxing Road, Jianggan District, Hangzhou
8% (Tel): (0571) 89778000

f&£H (Fax): (0571) 89778068

il 4% (Zip): 310020

TRT

NINGBO BRANCH

ik FEWIIRXERILERS77S

Add: 577 Haiyan Road, Jiangdong District, Ningbo
B & (Tel): (0574) 83872888

£ H (Fax): (0574) 83872100

1B 4R (Zip): 315040

T

ANHUI BRANCH

it & RET k52465
Add: 246 Wuhu Road, Hefei
8% (Tel): (0551) 62867889
f£HE (Fax): (0551) 62875868
BB 4% (Zip): 230061

BENMT

FUJIAN BRANCH

ik BT EMEEI11S EAL KE29-33Z

Add: 29/F-33/F, Yifa Mansion, 111 Wusi Road, Fuzhou
8% (Tel): (0591) 87272653

f£H (Fax): (0591) 87856408

#R 4% (Zip): 350003

BT

XIAMEN BRANCH

it ETHRBEXETE100S 5 Wk Fi ( Ei1ME Fi0) 35-39F
Add: 35/F-39/F, Forture Centre, 100 Lujiang Road, Siming District

B (Tel): (0592) 2978912

fEHE (Fax): (0592) 2393111

#R 4% (Zip): 361001

LA T

JIANGXI BRANCH

ik AT ILFEK68S

Add: 68 Zhongshanxi Road, Nanchang
BiE(Tel): (0791) 86592323

f£H (Fax): (0791) 86592333

MR 4% (Zip): 330009

WHRST
SHANDONG BRANCH

B
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ik FRm S ILEK2-1SILRAE-12F
Add: 9/F-12/F, Shandong Mansion, 2-1 Maanshan Road, Jinan

8,3 (Tel): (0531) 85198100
£ H (Fax): (0531) 85198282
B 4% (Zip): 250002

BB
QINGDAO BRANCH

ik ERHHREEKISSRITE
Add: 17/F, 15 Donghaixi Road, Qingdao

3% (Tel): (0532) 81978288
f£ H (Fax): (0532) 81978288
R 45 (Zip): 266071

MET
HENAN BRANCH
ok M £ K EE2665

Add: 266 JinShui Road, Zhengzhou

8,3 (Tel): (0371) 66000999
f£ H (Fax): (0371) 66000888
R 4% (Zip): 450008

#Aes1T
HUBEI BRANCH

it KXTREXKAEIBISEREERE
Add: Chutian Media Plaza, 181 Donghu Road, Wuchang District, Wuhan

B3 (Tel): (027) 86759555
f£ H (Fax): (027) 86759666
#R 45 (Zip): 430077

W T
HUNAN BRANCH

ik KD HRERE ZR106S R KE

Add: Xianghao Plaza, 106 Block 2, Furongzhong Road, Changsha

83 (Tel): (0731) 84906658
£ (Fax): (0731) 84906699
R 4% (Zip): 410005

I"Ha1T
GUANGDONG BRANCH

it M H R X RIFREE100-1SE N ABF HAK23A

Add: 23A, Building A Winner Plaza, 100-1 Huangpu
Road West, Tianhe District, Guangzhou

8,3 (Tel): (020) 38633017
f£ H (Fax): (020) 38633000
B 4% (Zip): 510627
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wRUST1T
SHENZHEN BRANCH
ik RN THIRFE HEE1093 5 HEAE10-15F

Add: 10/F-15/F, Citic Building, 1093 Shennanzhong Road, Shenzhen

#3% (Tel): (0755) 25985666
f£ H (Fax): (0755) 25987800
B 4% (Zip): 518031

I AT

GUANGXI BRANCH

it T HREKE49S
Add: 149 Minzu Street, Nanning
B 1E (Tel): (0771) 8018300

£ E (Fax): (0771) 8018510

R 4% (Zip): 530028

BET

HAINAN BRANCH

it BATHFREXKEEF1S

Add: Jia 1 Changyi Road, Xiuying District, Haikou
B iE(Tel): (0898) 68510780

f£ E (Fax): (0898) 68551933

R 4% (Zip): 570311

ERSIT

CHONGQING BRANCH

it ERTIIER £RE1S

Add: 1 Financial Street, Jiangbei District, Chongging
E81f (Tel): (023) 67858000

f£H (Fax): (023) 67858114

1R 4% (Zip): 400023

5347

SICHUAN BRANCH

ik AT ESTXRERI205ERFRRITAE

Add: CDB Plaza, 120 Tiantai Road, High-tech Zone, Chengdu
3% (Tel): (028) 86029998

fEE (Fax): (028) 86029617

#R 4% (Zip): 610041

R/ IT

GUIZHOU BRANCH

it AT AL K185 KFFREISE

Add: 15/F, Pacific Plaza, 18 Zhongshanxi Road, Guiyang
B 3% (Tel): (0851) 8651559

f£ 2 (Fax): (0851) 8651605

B 4% (Zip): 550001

=EST

YUNNAN BRANCH

it BEAT t@E81765

Add: 176 Guangfu Road, Kunming
8% (Tel): (0871) 63634094

f£E (Fax): (0871) 63634001

B 4% (Zip): 650228

BEF 1T

SHAANXI BRANCH

it AR e —E2SERARXBITAE
Add: CDB Plaza, 2 Hi-Tec Road, Xi'an

B (Tel): (029) 87660578

£ H (Fax): (029) 87660581

#R 45 (Zip): 710075

HR 21T

GANSU BRANCH

k. Z M T SE17285

Add: 1728 Nanchang Road, Lanzhou
BiE(Tel): (0931) 8866628

f£E (Fax): (0931) 8866237

#R 4% (Zip): 730030

HEST

XINJIANG BRANCH

it BEAFHF LEIBSERARBITAE
Add: CDB Plaza, 333 Zhongshan Road, Urumgi
81 (Tel): (0991) 2335001

f£H (Fax): (0991) 2335002

1B 4% (Zip): 830002

BESIT

QINGHAI BRANCH

it AT ECRK2S
Add: 2 Kunlun Road, Xining
#3% (Tel): (0971) 6161900
f£H (Fax): (0971) 6161900
#R 4% (Zip): 810001

TET
NINGXIA BRANCH
it RINTERXFARRIEEHS

Add: 1 Yinjiaqubei Street, Jinfeng District, Yinchuan

B3% (Tel): (0951) 5695815
f£HE (Fax): (0951) 5695813
#R 45 (Zip): 750004



FE 21T

TIBET BRANCH

k. FgEH /\—FgE&28A

Add: 28A Bayi South Road, Lhasa
8% (Tel): (0891) 6623818

f£HE (Fax): (0891) 6623818

R 4% (Zip): 850000

HEST

HONG KONG BRANCH

ik FEAFRERE1SERSR PO —EA334#

Add: 33/F One International Finance Centre, 1 Harbour View
Street, Central, Hong Kong

3% (Tel): (00852) 28016218

£ E (Fax): (00852) 25304083

FF KL

CAIRO REPRESENTATIVE OFFICE

it R R FFF B SR TR 184415581, 28T

Add: Apartment No. 1 & 2, Building 41 (A), St. 18, Maadi,
Sarayat, Cairo, Egypt

B1E (Tel): (002-02) 23802799

f£E (Fax): (002-02) 23787475

EHRHH R

MOSCOW REPRESENTATIVE OFFICE

it ET K BEHABTIEREERAEHS

Add: Novatorov str.1, Moscow 119421, Russian Federation
B & (Tel): (007-495) 9894612

f£H (Fax): (007-495) 9894611

BARNARFR

RIO DE JANEIRO REPRESENTATIVE OFFICE

it EREARA ST HOREMET 2% K #H955510F

Add: 10th Floor, Presidente Vargas St., N0.955, Central
District, Rio de Janeiro City, Brazil

B 1E (Tel): (0055-21) 982839080

hnanHr (KR AL

CARACAS REPRESENTATIVE OFFICE

Ak . Z5 P9 B INRLANERT 7 A B X IR F A S WOM B /S B F 18548

Add: Piso5. Edif. Centroprofesional Eurobuildingcalle Guairita,
Chuao, Caracas, Venezuela

A (Tel): (0058-212) 9914989
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EFeMBERIELH

CDB CAPITAL CO., LTD.

it LR AKX SRAH7TSHEEFRSRFOI0E

Add: 10/F, Winland International Finance Centre, 7
Financial Street, Xicheng District, Beijing

BiE(Tel): (010) 88308477

f£HE (Fax): (010) 66553276

R 4% (Zip): 100033

EFIEHFHRIREAF

CDB SECURITIES CO., LTD

ik EERTH AKX BRI ARE29S

Add: 29 Fuchengmenwai Street, Xicheng District, Beijing
3% (Tel): (010) 51789000

f£HE (Fax): (010) 51789110

IF 4% (Zip): 100037

EREmEEERAR

CDB LEASING CO., LTD

otk SR 48 H X 35 H B§6009-5 Frit 57 :0049-52

Add: 49/F-52/F, New World Centre, 6009 Yitian Road,
Futian District, Shenzhen, Guangdong

BiE (Tel): (0755) 23980999

£ H (Fax): (0755) 23980900

BB 4% (Zip): 518026

hIERRES

CHINA-AFRICA DEVELOPMENT FUND

ik AR AKX E XA REH28S YRR R OREI0-11E

Add: 10/F-11/F, Tower C, Chemsunny World Trade Centre, 28
Fuxingmennei Street, Xicheng District, Beijing

8% (Tel): (010) 59566800

f£HE (Fax): (010) 59566969

fE 4% (Zip): 100031

KR E R ERITRAERAE

DALATE CDB VILLAGE BANK CO., LTD.

ik IRESBRSEHIIARFENMBEAERRAERESKRD

Add: Ground Floor, 2 Dongdajiayuan, Xiyuan Rd., Shulinzhao
Town, Dalate County, Ordos, Inner Mongolia

BiE (Tel): (0477) 3969785

fEE (Fax): (0477) 3969786

B 4% (Zip): 014300

HEEFAHERITRPBRAF

ZHENLAI CDB VILLAGE BANK CO., LTD.

ik HWE AW T EEE #4805

Add: 480 Xinxing South Street, Zhenlai, Baicheng, Jilin
B iE(Tel): (0436) 5077105

£ HE (Fax): (0436) 5077105

R 4% (Zip): 137300
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ZOEFEWLFEBRITROERAE

LONGKOU CDB NANSHAN VILLAGE BANK CO., LTD.

ik WZRE X A Rg L T R &

Add: Nanshanzhong Road, Nanshan Industrial Park,
Longkou, Shandong

B 1E (Tel): (0535) 8808508

f£E (Fax): (0535) 8808508

R 4% (Zip): 265706

KiGEFHEBITRHBERA A

DAYE CDB VILLAGE BANK CO., LTD.
ik I B KA RAKIEI04S

Add: 104 Daye Road, Daye, Hubei

#3% (Tel): (0714) 8725699

£ H (Fax): (0714) 8725699

R 4% (Zip): 435100

HFEFAHHERITERRERR

YICHENG CDB VILLAGE BANK CO.,LTD.
k. HAEE BT — RS R

Add: Yiyang Gallery Street, Yicheng, Hubei
8% (Tel): (0710) 4221000

f£HE (Fax): (0710) 4225752

B 45 (Zip): 441400

HE EFAERITRID AR H

MILUO CDB VILLAGE BANK CO., LTD.

it AR S T AREHEIS

Add: 1 Dazhong South Road, Miluo, Yueyang City, Hunan
8% (Tel): (0730) 5559999

f£H (Fax): (0730) 5250180

B4R (Zip): 414400

HFZ ) EFAEBITROERAR

GANSU JINGCHUAN CDB VILLAGE BANK CO., LTD

it HRERIEFRLdEEHS

Add: 1 Zhongshan North Road, Jingchuan County, Pingliang
City, Gansu

815 (Tel): (0933) 3321929

f&£H (Fax): (0933) 3321929

IR 45 (Zip): 744300

KBEFHERITERSELA

DATONG CDB VILLAGE BANK CO., LTD.

ik EEERBENLEARKT0-45

Add: 70-4 Renmin Road, Qiaotou Town, Datong County,
Qinghai

B 1E (Tel): (0971) 7830961

£ E (Fax): (0971) 7830961

R %% (Zip): 810100

JEFUE N E FFAHEERI TR B BR 2 A

BEIJING TONGZHOU CDB VILLAGE BANK CO., LTD.
it b RmEMNX A EFR6S

Add: Jia 66 Yangzhuang Nanli, Tongzhou District, Beijing
BiE(Tel) :(010) 52998500

f£H (Fax): (010) 52998500

Hl 4% (Zip): 101121

KiEAEEFFERITROFRLA

TIANJIN XIQING CDB VILLAGE BANK CO., LTD.

it RiRWEEX PILERIERE R NS EKIBEBRD

Add: Ground floor, Jin Sha Shui Yu Hua Cheng, South of
Zhongbei Street, Zhongbei Town, Xiging District, Tianjin

B 1E (Tel): (022) 58967002

fZE (Fax): (022) 58967008

R 4% (Zip): 300112

L CEFHERITRABBRAFE

BEILUN CDB VILLAGE BANK CO., LTD.

ik T W AES X HKER837-8475

Add: 837-847, Xinda Road, Beilun District, Ningbo City
BiE(Tel): (0574) 86856785

f£E (Fax): (0574) 86856783

R 4% (Zip): 315800

B EFHERITARIELE

BAZHONG CDB VILLAGE BANK CO., LTD.

k. m)IE E R E MR A ER23S

Add: 23 Xihua Road, Bazhou District, Bazhong City, Sichuan
B 1E (Tel): (0827) 3333655

f£H (Fax): (0827) 3333155

HR 4% (Zip): 636000

BEEFHERITAERZELA
PIXIAN CDB VILLAGE BANK CO., LTD.
b, )14 R RS EE589 S+ UAR S — 1

Add: 1/F, No.19 Ye Business Building, 589 Dujuan Street, Pixian

County, Sichuan
B (Tel): (028) 61410770
f£H (Fax): (028) 61773021
HR 4% (Zip): 611730
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Deloitte
=E)

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants LLP
30/F Bund Center

222 Yan An Road East
Shanghai 200002,PRC

DTT(A)(15)10001

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF CHINA DEVELOPMENT BANK CORPORATION

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of China Development Bank Corporation (the "Bank") and its subsidiaries
(collectively, referred to as the "Group") set out on pages 151 to 204, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
December 2014, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss, consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Management's Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

Management of the Bank is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards, and for such internal control as management determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely to
you, as a body, in accordance with our agreed terms of engagement, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report. We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on
Auditing. Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to
the entity's preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. An
audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.
Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2014,
and of its financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu Certified Public Accountants LLP
Shanghai, China

5 May 2015



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014

(Al amounts expressed in millions of RMB unless otherwise specified)

Interest income
Interest expense
Net interest income
Fee and commission income
Fee and commission expense
Net fee and commission income
Net trading and foreign exchange gain/(losses)
Net gain on financial instruments designated as at fair value through profit or loss
Dividend income
Net gain on investment securities
Other income, net
Operating income
Share of profit of associates and joint ventures
Operating expenses
Impairment losses on assets
Profit before income tax
Income tax expense
Net profit
Attributable to:
Shareholders of the Bank

Non-controlling interests

The accompanying notes form part of the consolidated financial statements.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

Notes

2014 2013
509,168 430,113
(330,478) (258,641)
178,690 171,472
14,730 12,937
(792) (823)
13,938 12,114
16,302 (10,418)
7,181 1,544
1,241 996
1,760 1,134
3,585 2,111
222,697 178,953
76 46
(36,871) (32,850)
(56,365) (40,301)
129,537 105,848
(31,333) (25,894)
98,204 79,954
98,100 79,621
104 333
98,204 79,954

151
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014

(All'lamounts expressed in millions of RMB unless otherwise specified)

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income

Items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss:
Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations
Net gain/(losses) on available-for-sale financial assets

Others

Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss:
Remeasurement of supplemental retirement benefits obligation
Other comprehensive income/(expense) for the year, net of tax
Total comprehensive income for the year
Total comprehensive income attributable to:
Shareholders of the Bank

Non-controlling interests

The accompanying notes form part of the consolidated financial statements.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AT 31 DECEMBER 2014

(All'lamounts expressed in millions of RMB unless otherwise specified)

ASSETS
Cash and balances with the central bank
Deposits with banks and other financial institutions
Placements with banks and other financial institutions
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Derivative financial assets
Financial assets held under resale agreements
Loans and advances to customers, net
Available-for-sale financial assets
Held-to-maturity investments
Debt securities classified as receivables
Interest in associates and joint ventures
Property and equipment
Deferred tax assets
Other assets

TOTAL ASSETS

Notes

20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27

28

2014 2013
98,204 79,954
(345) (289)
12,952 (1,514)
(22) -
12,585 (1,803)
(158) (17)
12,427 (1,820)
110,631 78,134
108,446 77774
2,185 360
110,631 78,134

31 December 2014

31 December 2013

57,400 42,856
1,005,026 402,439
19,495 87,469
95,795 57,515
18,965 14,927
1,084,318 346,295
7,669,351 6,929,968
171,967 152,159
2,292 5,384
19,068 12,492
1,650 1,697
56,146 50,750
48,318 40,722
66,563 42,665
10,316,354 8,187,238
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION - continued
AT 31 DECEMBER 2014

(Al amounts expressed in millions of RMB unless otherwise specified)

Notes 31 December 2014 31 December 2013
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Liabilities
Deposits from banks and other financial institutions 29 1,408,476 410,920
Borrowings from governments and financial institutions 30 451,373 455,109
Placements from banks 31 76,099 35,616
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss 8,295 -
Derivative financial liabilities 19 9,618 10,504
Financial assets sold under repurchase agreements 32 28,035 25,090
Due to customers 33 1,087,712 684,182
Debt securities issued 34 6,353,559 5,840,590
Current tax liabilities 28,859 25,654
Deferred tax liabilities 27 4,297 109
Other liabilities 35 179,967 138,229
Total liabilities 9,636,190 7,626,003
Equity
Capital and reserves
Share capital 36 306,711 306,711
Capital reserves (9,847) (9,667)
Investment revaluation reserve 37 16,587 5,720
Surplus reserve 38 54,434 45,590
General reserve 38 124,740 97,521
Currency translation reserve (870) (529)
Retained earnings 39 175,178 113,145
Total equity attributable to shareholders of the Bank 666,933 558,491
Non-controlling interests 13,231 2,744
Total equity 680,164 561,235
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 10,316,354 8,187,238

The accompanying notes form part of the consolidated financial statements.

The consolidated financial statements on pages 151 to 204 are signed on its behalf by:

Hu Huaibang Zheng Zhijie Li Jiping Yang Baohua
Chairman Vice Chairman, Executive Vice President, Head of Finance
President in charge of the finance function
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014

(All'lamounts expressed in millions of RMB unless otherwise specified)

Attributable to shareholders of the Bank

At 1 January 2014 306,711 (9,667) 5,720 45,590 97,521 (529) 113,145 2,744 561,235
Net profit - - - - - - 98,100 104 98,204
Other comprehensive income - (180) 10,867 - - (341) - 2,081 12,427
Total comprehensive income

for 2014 - (180) 10,867 - - (341) 98,100 2,185 110,631
Issue of new shares - - - - - - - 8,407 8,407
Dividends 39 - - - - - - (4) (105) (109)
Appropriation to surplus reserve 39 - - - 8,844 - - (8,844) - -
Appropriation to general reserve 39 - - - - 27,219 - (27,219) - -
At 31 December 2014 306,711 (9,847) 16,587 54,434 124,740 (870) 175,178 13,231 680,164
At 1 January 2013 306,711 (9,650) 7,262 32,084 68,706 (241) 90,801 2,178 497851
Net profit - - - - - - 79,621 333 79,954
Other comprehensive income - (17) (1,542) - - (288) - 27 (1,820)
Total comprehensive income

for 2013 - 17 (1,542) - - (288) 79,621 360 78,134
Issue of new shares - - - - - - - 220 220
Dividends 39 - - - - - - (14,956) (14)  (14,970)
Appropriation to surplus reserve 39 - - - 13,506 - - (13,506) - -
Appropriation to general reserve 39 - - - - 28,815 - (28,815) - -
At 31 December 2013 306,711 (9.667) 5,720 45,590 97,521 (529) 113,145 2,744 561,235

The accompanying notes form part of the consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014

(Al amounts expressed in millions of RMB unless otherwise specified)

Notes 2014 2013
Cash flows from operating activities
Profit before income tax 129,537 105,848
Adjustments:
Impairment losses on assets 56,365 40,301
Depreciation and amortisation 3,114 2,922
Interest expense for debt securities issued 267,905 227,798
Interest expense for borrowings from governments and financial institutions 12,373 12,086
Interest income for investment securities (5,796) (4,913)
Net gain on investment securities (1,760) (1,134)
Net (gain)/losses on disposal of property and equipment and other assets (39) 8
Dividend income (1,241) (996)
Movements in working capital:
Ne;t;i:rc;?na::c:glt;:;air;jt?osnv;/ith the central bank and deposits with banks and 43,379 16,666
Net increase in financial assets held under resale agreements (738,023) (563,314)
Net (increase)/decrease in financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (42,318) 7,008
Net increase in loans and advances to customers (806,529) (731,401)
Net (increase)/decrease in placements with banks and other financial institutions 50,959 (30,048)
Net decrease in other assets 679,943 27,539
Ne;tir:]ecrr?ii;?a?::qestfuiﬁtsomers and deposits from banks and 1.401,086 17.426
Net increase in placements from banks 40,483 17,480
Net increase in financial assets sold under repurchase agreements 2,945 8,022
Net increase in other liabilities 40,572 8,332
Income tax paid (34,609) (34,262)
Net cash inflows/(outflows) from operating activities 1,098,346 (364,632)
Cash flows from investing activities
Cash paid for purchases of investment securities (186,414) (257,999)
Cash received from proceeds from disposal of investment securities 173,720 246,293
Cash received from returns on investment securities 8,449 5,836
Cash paid for purchases of property and equipment and other assets (2,255) (2,384)
Cash received from proceeds from disposal of property and equipment and other assets 824 90
Cash paid to other investing activities (107) (114)
Net cash outflows from investing activities (5,783) (8,278)
Cash flows from financing activities
Cash received from proceeds from debt securities 1,231,372 1,170,546
Cash received from borrowed funds 36,568 88,814
Capital contribution by non-controlling interests 8,022 162
Cash paid for repayments of debt securities and borrowed funds (754,873) (701,930)
Cash payment for interest on debt securities and borrowed funds (241,597) (201,488)
Dividends paid to shareholders (4) (14,956)
Net cash inflows from financing activities 279,488 341,148
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents (1,179) (4,507)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 1,370,872 (36,269)
Cash and cash equivalents, at beginning of year 546,029 582,298
Cash and cash equivalents, at end of year 40 1,916,901 546,029

The accompanying notes form part of the consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014

(All'lamounts expressed in millions of RMB unless otherwise specified)

1. GENERAL INFORMATION AND PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

China Development Bank Corporation (the "Bank') is a joint stock
bank established jointly by the Ministry of Finance (the "MOF") and
Central Huijin Investment Ltd. ("Huijin"). The Bank was formerly known
as China Development Bank, a wholly state-owned policy bank,
established on 17 March 1994 in the People's Republic of China. In
accordance with the Master Implementation Plan for the Joint Stock
Reform (the "Joint Stock Reform Plan") approved by the State Council
of the PRC, China Development Bank was converted into a joint
stock corporation on 11 December 2008.

The Bank is licensed (No. B0999H111000001) as a financial
institution by the China Banking Regulatory Commission (the
'CBRC") and is registered with a business enterprise license (No.
100000000016686) issued by the State Administration of Industry and

Commerce of the PRC. The Bank is registered and headquartered in
Beijing.

The Bank and its subsidiaries (together, the "Group") aligns their
business focus with national economic development strategy and
allocates resources to break through bottlenecks in China's economic
and social development by leveraging development financing tools. The
Group carries out its mission by supporting the development of national
infrastructure, basic industries, key emerging sectors, and national
priority projects; promoting coordinated regional development and
upgraded industrial transformation while bolstering the new urbanization
program; developing inclusive finance by financing low-income housing
and other initiatives focused on livelihood improvement; and facilitating
China's cross-border investment and global business cooperation.

2. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS ("IFRSs")

In the current year, the Group has applied the following new and revised IFRSs.

Amendments to IFRS 10, IFRS 12 and IAS 27
Amendments to IAS 32
Amendments to IAS 36
Amendments to IAS 39

IFRIC 21 Levies

Investment Entities
Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities
Recoverable Amount Disclosures for Non-Financial Assets

Novation of Derivatives and Continuation of Hedge Accounting

The adoption of these new and revised IFRSs had no material impact on the Group's financial performance and positions for the current and
prior years or on the disclosures set out in these consolidated financial statements.

New and revised IFRSs issued but not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and revised IFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective:

IFRS 9
IFRS 14
IFRS 15
Amendments to IFRS 11
Amendments to IAS 1
Amendments to IAS 16 and IAS 38
Amendments to IAS 16 and IAS 41
Amendments to IAS 19
Amendments to IAS 27
Amendments to IFRS 10

and IAS 28
Amendments to IFRS 10,

IFRS 12 and IAS 28
Amendments to IFRSs
Amendments to IFRSs

Amendments to IFRSs

Financial Instruments®
Regulatory Deferral Accounts®
Revenue from Contracts with Customers*
Accounting for Acquisitions of Interests in Joint Operations®
Disclosure Initiative®
Clarification of Acceptable Methods of Depreciation and Amortisation®
Agriculture: Bearer Plants®
Defined Benefit Plans: Employee Contributions’
Equity Method in Separate Financial Statements®
Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and
its Associate or Joint Venture®

Investment Entities: Applying the Consolidation Exception®

Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle?
Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2011-2013 Cycle'
Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2012-2014 Cycle®



Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014, with
earlier application permitted.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014, with
limited exceptions. Earlier application is permitted.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016,
with earlier application permitted.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017,
with earlier application permitted.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018,
with earlier application permitted.

Effective for first annual IFRS financial statements beginning on or
after 1 January 2016.
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Management anticipate that the adoption of these new and revised
IFRSs but not yet effective will have no material impact on the
Group's consolidated financial statements, except for the IFRS 9
Financial Instruments as described below:

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments

IFRS 9 issued in 2009 introduces new requirements for the
classification and measurement of financial assets. IFRS 9
amended in 2010 includes the requirements for the classification
and measurement of financial liabilities and for derecognition,
and further amended in 2013 to include the new requirements for
hedge accounting. Another revised version of IFRS 9 was issued
in July 2014 mainly to include a) impairment requirements for
financial assets and b) limited amendments to the classification and
measurement requirements by introducing a ‘fair value through other
comprehensive income' (FVTOCI) measurement category for certain
simple debt instruments.

Key requirements of IFRS 9 are described as follows:

* all recognised financial assets that are within the scope of IAS 39
Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement are required
to be subsequently measured at amortised cost or fair value.
Specifically, debt investments that are held within a business
model whose objective is to collect the contractual cash flows,
and that have contractual cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal outstanding are generally
measured at amortised cost at the end of subsequent accounting
periods. Debt instruments that are held within a business model
whose objective is achieved both by collecting contractual cash
flows and selling financial assets, and that have contractual terms
of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows
that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding, are measured at FVTOCI. All other debt
investments and equity investments are measured at their fair
value at the end of subsequent accounting periods. In addition,
under IFRS 9, entities may make an irrevocable election to present
subsequent changes in the fair value of an equity investment (that
is not held for trading) in other comprehensive income, with only
dividend income generally recognised in profit or loss.

* with regard to the measurement of financial liabilities designated
as at fair value through profit or loss, IFRS 9 requires that the
amount of change in the fair value of the financial liability that
is attributable to changes in the credit risk of that liability is
presented in other comprehensive income, unless the recognition
of the effects of changes in the liability's credit risk in other
comprehensive income would create or enlarge an accounting
mismatch in profit or loss. Changes in fair value attributable to a
financial liability's credit risk are not subsequently reclassified to
profit or loss. Under IAS 39, the entire amount of the change in the
fair value of the financial liability designated as fair value through

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

profit or loss is presented in profit or loss.

¢ in relation to the impairment of financial assets, IFRS 9 requires an
expected credit loss model, as opposed to an incurred credit loss
model under IAS 39. The expected credit loss model requires an
entity to account for expected credit losses and changes in those
expected credit losses at each reporting date to reflect changes
in credit risk since initial recognition. In other words, it is no longer
necessary for a credit event to have occurred before credit losses
are recognised.

* the new general hedge accounting requirements retain the three
types of hedge accounting mechanisms currently available in I1AS
39. Under IFRS 9, greater flexibility has been introduced to the
types of transactions eligible for hedge accounting, specifically
broadening the types of instruments that qualify for hedging
instruments and the types of risk components of non-financial
items that are eligible for hedge accounting. In addition, the
effectiveness test has been overhauled and replaced with the
principle of an ‘economic relationship'. Retrospective assessment
of hedge effectiveness is also no longer required. Enhanced
disclosure requirements about an entity's risk management
activities have also been introduced.

Management anticipate that the adoption of IFRS 9 in the future
may have a significant impact on the amounts reported in respect
of the Group's financial assets and financial liabilities. Regarding the
Group's financial assets, it is not practicable to provide a reasonable
estimate of that effect until a detailed review has been completed.

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with IFRSs. The significant accounting policies applied in
the preparation of these consolidated financial statements are set out
below. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years
presented, unless otherwise stated.

(1) Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been
prepared on the historical cost basis except for certain financial
instruments that are at fair value. Historical cost is generally
based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange
for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date, regardless of
whether that price is directly observable or estimated using
another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value
of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants
would take those characteristics into account when pricing
the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value for
measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these consolidated
financial statements is determined on such a basis, except for
share-based payment transactions that are within the scope of
IFRS 2, leasing transactions that are within the scope of IAS 17,
and measurements that have some similarities to fair value but
are not fair value, such as net realizable value in IAS 2 or value in
use in IAS 36.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the
degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are
observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value
measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:
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Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can access at
the measurement date;

Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included
within Level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly or indirectly; and

Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

The preparation of financial statements under IFRSs requires
the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires
management to exercise its judgement in the process of applying
the Group's accounting policies. The areas involving a higher
degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions
and estimates are significant to the consolidated financial
statements are disclosed in Note 4.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Bank and entities (including structured entities)
controlled by the Bank and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved
when the Bank:

* has power over the investee;

* is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

¢ has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Bank reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if
facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one
or more of the three elements of control listed above.

When the Bank has less than a majority of the voting rights of an
investee, it has power over the investee when the voting rights
are sufficient to give it the practical ability to direct the relevant
activities of the investee unilaterally.

The Bank considers all relevant facts and circumstances in
assessing whether or not the Bank's voting rights in an investee
are sufficient to give it power, including:

the size of the Bank's holding of voting rights relative to the
size and dispersion of holdings of the other vote holders;

potential voting rights held by the Bank, other vote holders or
other parties;

rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

any additional facts and circumstances that indicate that the
Bank has, or does not have, the current ability to direct the
relevant activities at the time that decisions need to be made,
including voting patterns at previous shareholders' meetings.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Bank obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Bank loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses
of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income from the date the Bank gains control until
the date when the Bank ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the Bank and to the
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non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of
subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Bank and to the
non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into
line with the Group's accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members of the
Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Changes in the Group's ownership interests in subsidiaries that
do not result in the Group losing control over the subsidiaries
are accounted for as equity transactions. The carrying amounts
of the Group's interests and the non-controlling interests are
adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative interests in the
subsidiaries. Any difference between the amount by which the
non-controlling interests are adjusted and the fair value of the
consideration paid or received is recognised directly in equity
and attributed to owners of the Bank.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, a gain or loss is
recognised in profit or loss and is calculated as the difference
between (i) the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
received and the fair value of any retained interest and (ii) the
previous carrying amount of the assets (including goodwill), and
liabilities of the subsidiary and any non-controlling interests. All
amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income
in relation to that subsidiary are accounted for as if the Group
had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities of the
subsidiary (i.e. reclassified to profit or loss or transferred to
another category of equity as specified/permitted by applicable
IFRSs). The fair value of any investment retained in the former
subsidiary at the date when control is lost is regarded as the
fair value on initial recognition for subsequent accounting under
IAS 39, when applicable, the cost on initial recognition of an
investment in an associate or a joint venture.

Interest in associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant
influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in the
financial and operating policy decisions of the investee but is not
control or joint control over those palicies.

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties that
have joint control of the arrangement have rights to the net
assets of the joint arrangement. Joint control is the contractually
agreed sharing of control of an arrangement, which exists only
when decisions about the relevant activities require unanimous
consent of the parties sharing control.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates and joint
ventures are incorporated in these consolidated financial
statements using the equity method of accounting, except when
the investment, or a portion thereof, is classified as held for
sale, in which case it is accounted for in accordance with IFRS
5. Under the equity method, an investment in an associate or a
joint venture is initially recognised in the consolidated statement
of financial position at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise
the Group's share of the profit or loss and other comprehensive
income of the associate or joint venture. When the Group's share
of losses of an associate or joint venture exceeds the Group's
interest in that associate or joint venture (which includes any



long-term interests that, in substance, form part of the Group's
net investment in the associate or joint venture), the Group
discontinues recognising its share of further losses. Additional
losses are recognised only to the extent that the Group has
incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments on
behalf of the associate or joint venture.

An investment in an associate or a joint venture is accounted
for using the equity method from the date on which the investee
becomes an associate or a joint venture. On acquisition of the
investment in an associate or a joint venture, any excess of the
cost of the investment over the Group's share of the net fair
value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of the investee is
recognised as goodwill, which is included within the carrying
amount of the investment. Any excess of the Group's share of the
net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost
of the investment, after reassessment, is recognised immediately
in profit or loss in the period in which the investment is acquired.

The requirements of IAS 39 are applied to determine whether
it is necessary to recognise any impairment loss with respect
to the Group's investment in an associate or a joint venture.
When necessary, the entire carrying amount of the investment
(including goodwill) is tested for impairment in accordance with
IAS 36 Impairment of Assets as a single asset by comparing its
recoverable amount (higher of value in use and fair value less
costs of disposal) with its carrying amount. Any impairment loss
recognised forms part of the carrying amount of the investment.
Any reversal of that impairment loss is recognised in accordance
with IAS 36 to the extent that the recoverable amount of the
investment subsequently increases.

The Group discontinues the use of the equity method from the
date when the investment ceases to be an associate or a joint
venture, or when the investment is classified as held for sale.
When the Group retains an interest in the former associate or
joint venture and the retained interest is a financial asset, the
Group measures the retained interest at fair value at that date
and the fair value is regarded as its fair value on initial recognition
in accordance with IAS 39. The difference between the carrying
amount of the associate or joint venture at the date the equity
method was discontinued, and the fair value of any retained
interest and any proceeds from disposing of a part interest in
the associate or joint venture is included in the determination
of the gain or loss on disposal of the associate or joint venture.
In addition, the Group accounts for all amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income in relation to that
associate or joint venture on the same basis as would be required
if that associate or joint venture had directly disposed of the
related assets or liabilities. Therefore, if a gain or loss previously
recognised in other comprehensive income by that associate or
joint venture would be reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal
of the related assets or liabilities, the Group reclassifies the gain or
loss from equity to profit or loss (as a reclassification adjustment)
when the equity method is discontinued.

The Group continues to use the equity method when an
investment in an associate becomes an investment in a
joint venture or an investment in a joint venture becomes an
investment in an associate. There is no remeasurement of the
previously held interest or the retained interest to fair value upon
such changes in ownership interests.

When the Group reduces its ownership interest in an associate
or a joint venture but the Group continues to use the equity
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method, the Group reclassifies to profit or loss the proportion
of the gain or loss that had previously been recognised in other
comprehensive income relating to that reduction in ownership
interest if that gain or loss would be reclassified to profit or loss
on the disposal of the related assets or liabilities.

When a group entity transacts with an associate or a joint venture
of the Group (such as a sale or contribution of assets), profits
and losses resulting from the transactions with the associate or
joint venture are recognised in the Group's consolidated financial
statements only to the extent of interests in the associate or joint
venture that are not related to the Group.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and represents amounts receivable for
services provided in the normal course of business, net of sales
related taxes. Specific recognition criteria for different nature of
revenue are disclosed below.

Interest income and expense for all interest-bearing financial
instruments, except for those classified as held for trading or
designated at fair value through profit or loss, are recognised
within "Interest income" and "Interest expense" in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss using the effective interest method.

Once a financial asset or a group of similar financial assets
has been written down as a result of an impairment loss,
interest income is recognised using the rate of interest used to
discount the future cash flows for the purpose of measuring the
impairment loss.

Fee and commission income

Fees and commissions are generally recognised on an accrual
basis when the related service has been provided.

Foreign currency translation
(a) Functional and presentation currency

The functional currency of domestic operation is Renminbi
("RMB"). ltems included in the financial statements of each of the
Group's overseas operations are measured using the currency of
the primary economic environment in which the entity operates
(the "functional currency"). The presentation currency of the
Group is RMB.

(b) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional
currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions. Foreign exchange gain and losses resulting from
the settlement of such transactions and from the translation
at year-end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Changes in the fair value of monetary items denominated in foreign
currency classified as available-for-sale are analysed between
translation differences resulting from changes in the amortised cost
of the security and other changes in the carrying amount of the
security. Translation differences related to changes in the amortised
cost are recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss,
and other changes in the carrying amount are recognised in other
comprehensive income.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured at historical
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cost in foreign currencies are translated using the exchange rates
prevailing at the date of the transaction. Non-monetary assets
and liabilities that are measured at fair value in foreign currencies
are translated using the exchange rates at the date that fair value
is determined. Translation differences on non-monetary financial
assets classified as available-for-sale are included in other
comprehensive income. Translation differences on non-monetary
financial assets classified as financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss ("FVTPL") are included in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss.

(c) Group companies

The results and financial position of all the group entities (none of
which has the currency of a hyperinflationary economy) that have
a functional currency different from RMB are translated as follows:

* assets and liabilities for each statement of financial position
presented are translated at the closing rate at the date of that
statement of financial position, except the retained earnings,
other items in shareholders' equity are translated at the rate
prevailing at the date when they occurred;

* income and expenses for each statement of profit or loss are
translated at the exchange rate prevailing on the date when
the items occurred; and

all resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from profit before income tax as reported in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss because of items of
income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and
items that are never taxable or deductible. The Group's liability for
current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used
in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are
generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible
temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profits will be available against which those deductible
temporary differences can be utilised. Such deferred tax assets
and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference
arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than
in a business combination) of other assets and liabilities in
a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and
associates, and interests in joint ventures, except where the
Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary difference
and it is probable that the temporary difference will not
reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising
from deductible temporary differences associated with such
investments and interests are only recognised to the extent that
it is probable that there will be sufficient taxable profits against
which to utilise the benefits of the temporary differences and they
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are expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is
settled or the asset realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period. The measurement of deferred tax liabilities
and assets reflects the tax consequences that would follow
from the manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its
assets and liabilities.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they related to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case,
the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available
to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes levied
by the same taxation authority and the Group intends to settle its
current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.

Employee benefits

During the accounting period of employees providing services
to the Group, the Group shall recognise the employee benefits
payable as liabilities, and the employee benefits shall be
recorded into profits and losses for the current period or as cost
of related assets. Payments of social welfare contributions for
employees incurred are recorded into profits and losses for the
current period or recognised as cost of the related assets in
accordance with the actual expenditure. The non-monetary social
welfare expenses are recorded on a fair value basis.

(a) Social welfare

Social welfare expenditure refers to payments for employees'
social welfare system established by the Government, including
social insurance, housing funds and other social welfare
contributions. During the accounting period of employees
providing services to the Group, the Group recognises the
amount shall be deposited as liability and records it into profits
and losses for the current period.

(b) Annuity scheme

In addition to the government-sponsored pension plan, the
employees of domestic institutions participate in annuity scheme
set up by the Bank with the approval of the MOF and the record
of the Ministry of Human Resources and Social Security. The
Bank made annuity contributions with reference to employees'
salaries, and the contributions are expensed in profit or loss
when incurred.

(c) Early retirement benefits

Early retirement benefits refer to the expenses on benefits
paid to those employees who have not reached retirement
age but accepted an early retirement arrangement approved
by management of the Bank. Early retirement benefits are
made from the date of early retirement through the normal
retirement date.
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The liability related to the early retirement obligations
existing at the end of each reporting period, is calculated by
independent actuary using the projected unit credit method
and is recorded as a liability in the consolidated statement
of financial position. Actuarial gain and losses arising from
changes in actuarial assumptions are recognised in profits
and losses for the current period.

(d) Supplemental retirement benefits

The Group has paid supplemental retirement benefits to retired
employees as of 31 December 2011 whom are out of the annuity
scheme. Supplemental retirement benefits include supplemental
pension income payments and medical expense coverage.

The liability related to the above supplemental benefit obligations
existing at the end of each reporting period, is calculated by
independent actuary using the projected unit credit method and
is recorded as a liability in the consolidated statement of financial
position. Actuarial gain and losses arising from changes in actuarial
assumptions are recognised in other comprehensive income.

Financial assets

Financial assets are recognised in the consolidated statement
of financial position when an entity becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument.

(a) Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following categories:
including financial assets at FVTPL, held-to-maturity investments,
available-for-sale financial assets and loans and receivables.
Investment securities comprise held-to-maturity investments,
available-for-sale financial assets and debt securities classified as
receivables. The classification depends on the nature and purpose
of the financial assets and is determined at the time of initial
recognition. All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets
are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular
way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets
that require delivery of assets within the time frame established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace.

(i) Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets are classified as at FVTPL when the financial
asset is either held for trading or it is designated as at FVTPL.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

* it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling it in
the near future; or

on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of identified
financial instruments that the Group manages together and
has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

* it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a
hedging instrument.

A financial asset other than a financial asset held for trading may
be designated as at FVTPL upon initial recognition if:

* such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a
measurement or recognition inconsistency that would
otherwise arise; or
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the financial asset forms part of a group of financial assets
or financial liabilities or both, which is managed and its
performance is evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance
with the Group's documented risk management or investment
strategy, and information about the grouping is provided
internally on that basis; or

it forms part of a contract containing one or more embedded
derivatives, and IAS 39 permits the entire combined contract
(asset or liability) to be designated as at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with changes
in fair value arising from re-measurement recognised directly
in profit or loss in the period in which they arise. The net gain
or loss recognised in profit or loss includes any dividends or
interest earned on financial assets.

(i) Held to maturity investments

Held to maturity investments are non-derivative financial assets
traded in active markets, with fixed or determinable payments
and fixed maturities that the Group's management has the
positive intention and ability to hold to maturity.

Subsequent to initial recognition, held-to-maturity investments
are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method, less any identified impairment losses.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset or a financial liability and
of allocating the interest income or interest expense over the
relevant periods. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts through
the expected life of the financial instrument or, when appropriate,
a shorter period to the net carrying amount of the financial asset
or financial liability.

When calculating the effective interest rate, the Group estimates
cash flows considering all contractual terms of the financial
instrument but does not consider future credit losses. The
calculation includes all fees and points paid or received between
parties to the contract that are an integral part of the effective
interest rate, transaction costs and all other premiums or discounts.

(iii) Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are those non-derivative
financial assets that are either designated as such or are not
classified in any of the other categories.

Equity and debt securities held by the Group that are classified as
available-for-sale and are traded in an active market are measured
at fair value at the end of each reporting period. Changes in the
carrying amount of available-for-sale monetary financial assets
relating to interest income calculated using the effective interest
method and dividends on available-for-sale equity investments are
recognised in profit or loss. Other changes in the carrying amount
of available-for-sale financial assets are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated under the heading of
investments revaluation reserve. When the investment is disposed
of or is determined to be impaired, the cumulative gain or loss
previously accumulated in the investments revaluation reserve is
reclassified to profit or loss.
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For available-for-sale equity investments that do not have a
quoted market price in an active market and whose fair value
cannot be reliably measured, they are measured at cost less any
identified impairment losses at the end of the reporting period.

Dividends on available-for-sale equity instruments are recognised
in profit or loss when the Group's right to receive the dividends is
established.

(iv) Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market. Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and receivables
are carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method,
less any impairment losses.

(b) Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether
there is objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of
financial assets excluding those fair valued through profit or
loss is impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial assets
is impaired and impairment losses are incurred only if there is
objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more
events that occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (a
"loss event") and that loss event has an impact on the estimated
future cash flows of the financial asset or group of financial assets
that can be reliably estimated. Objective evidence that a financial
asset or group of assets is impaired includes observable data
that comes to the attention of the Group about the following loss
events:

* significant financial difficulty of the issuer or obligor;

* a breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in
interest or principal payments;

* the Group granting to the borrower, for economic or legal
reasons relating to the borrower's financial difficulty, a
concession that the lender would not otherwise consider;

* it becoming probable that the borrower will enter into
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;

* the disappearance of an active market for that financial asset
because of financial difficulties;

* observable data indicating that there is a measurable
decrease in the estimated future cash flows from a group of
financial assets since the initial recognition of those assets,
although the decrease cannot yet be identified with the
individual financial assets in the group, including adverse
changes in the payment status of borrowers in the group, a
decrease in property price for the mortgages in the relevant
area or national or local economic conditions that correlate
with defaults on the assets in the group;

* any significant change with an adverse effect that has
taken place in the technological, market, economic or legal
environment in which the issuer operates and indicates that
the cost of investments in equity instruments may not be
recovered;

a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of equity
instrument investments; or

* other objective evidence indicating impairment of the financial
asset.

The Group first assesses whether objective evidence of
impairment exists individually for financial assets that are
individually significant, and individually or collectively for
financial assets that are not individually significant. If the Group
determines that no objective evidence of impairment exists for
an individually assessed financial asset, whether significant
or not, it includes the asset in a group of financial assets with
similar credit risk characteristics and collectively assesses
them for impairment. Assets that are individually assessed for
impairment and for which an impairment loss is or continues to
be recognised are not included in a collective assessment of
impairment.

(i) Assets carried at amortised cost

The impairment loss for financial assets carried at amortised
cost is measured as the difference between the asset's carrying
amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows
(excluding future credit losses that have not been incurred)
discounted at the financial asset's original effective interest rate.
The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of
an allowance account and the amount of the loss is recognised
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss. If a loan or held to
maturity investment has a variable interest rate, the discount rate
for measuring any impairment loss is the current effective interest
rate determined under the contract.

The calculation of the present value of the estimated future cash
flows of a collateralised financial asset reflects the cash flows
that may result from foreclosure less costs for obtaining and
selling the collateral, whether or not foreclosure is probable.

Future cash flows in a group of financial assets that are
collectively evaluated for impairment are estimated on the
basis of the contractual cash flows of the assets in the group
and historical loss experience for assets with credit risk
characteristics similar to those in the group. Historical loss
experience is adjusted on the basis of current observable data
to reflect the effects of current conditions that did not affect the
period on which the historical loss experience is based and to
remove the effects of conditions in the historical period that do
not currently exist.

Estimates of changes in future cash flows for groups of assets
should reflect and be directionally consistent with changes in
related observable data from period to period (for example,
changes in property prices, payment status, or other factors
indicative of changes in the probability of losses in the group
and their magnitude). The methodology and assumptions used
for estimating future cash flows are reviewed regularly by the
Group to reduce any differences between loss estimates and
actual loss experience.

When a loan is uncollectible, it is written off against the related
allowance for impairment losses. Such loans are written off after
all the necessary procedures have been completed and the
amount of the loss has been determined. Subsequent recoveries
of amounts previously written off are credited to profit or loss.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment was recognised (such as
an improvement in the debtor's credit rating), the previously



recognised impairment loss is reversed by adjusting the
allowance account and recognised in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss. The reversal shall not result in the carrying
amount of the financial asset that exceeds what the amortised
cost would have been had the impairment not been recognised
at the date the impairment is reversed.

(i) Assets classified as available-for-sale

If objective evidence of impairment exists for available-for-sale
financial assets, the cumulative loss is removed from other
comprehensive income and recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and is measured as the difference
between the acquisition cost (net of any principal repayment and
amortisation) and the current fair value, less any impairment loss
on that financial asset previously recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.

If, in a subsequent period, the fair value of a debt instrument
classified as available-for-sale increases and the increase
can be objectively related to an event occurring after the
impairment loss was recognised in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss, the impairment loss is reversed through the
consolidated statement of profit or loss. With respect to equity
instruments, such reversals are made through the investment
revaluation reserve within other comprehensive income. If there
is objective evidence that an impairment loss has been incurred
on an unquoted equity investment that is not carried at fair
value because its fair value cannot be reliably measured, the
impairment loss should not be reversed.

(c) Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity. If the
Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership and continues to control the transferred
asset, the Group continues to recognise the asset to the extent
of its continuing involvement and recognises an associated
liability. If the Group retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Group
continues to recognise the financial asset and also recognises a
collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset in the Group, the difference
between the asset's carrying amount and the sum of the
consideration received and receivable and the cumulative gain
or loss that had been recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in equity is recognised in profit or loss.

(d) Securitisation

As part of its operational activities, the Group makes the financial
asset securitisation through the sale of some financial assets
to a special purpose trust which issue securities to investors.
The Group holds part of the priority and subprime asset-backed
securities ("ABS"), subprime ABS cannot be transferred before
the priority ABS's principal and interest payment is completed.
As asset servicing provider, the Group provides recovery of the
loan in the asset pool, saving accounts and records relating to
the asset pool, providing service reports and other services.
After payment of tax and related costs, the trust asset should
be used for principal and interest payment of priority ABS first,
the remaining trust asset will settle subprime ABS owned by the
Group and other investors. The Group derecognised or partially

(10
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derecognised the financial assets according to extent of the
risks and rewards of ownership of the transferred financial assets
retained in the Group.

Financial liabilities and equity instrument

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity are
classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance
with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the
definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

The Group's financial liabilities are generally classified into
financial liabilities at FVTPL and other financial liabilities. An equity
instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the
assets of the group after deducting all of its liabilities.

(a) Financial liabilities at FVTPL

Financial liabilities at FVTPL has two subcategories, including
financial liabilities held for trading and those designated as at
FVTPL on initial recognition.

The criteria for a financial liability to be classified as held for
trading and designated as at FVTPL are the same as those for a
financial asset to be classified as held for trading and designated
as at FVTPL.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with changes
in fair value arising on re-measurement recognised directly in
profit or loss in the period in which they arise. The net gain or
loss recognised in profit or loss includes any interest paid on the
financial liabilities.

(b) Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised
cost, using the effective interest method.

(c) Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by a group entity are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

(d) Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when,
the Group's obligations are discharged, cancelled or they expire.
The difference between the carrying amount of the financial
liability derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is
recognised in profit or loss.

Derivative financial instruments and embedded derivatives

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the date
a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently
re-measured at their fair value at the end of the reporting
period. The resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss
immediately.

Derivatives embedded in non-derivative host contracts are
treated as separate derivatives when their characteristics and
risks are not closely related to those of the host contracts and
the host contracts are not measured at fair value with changes
in fair value recognised in profit or loss. These embedded
derivatives are separately accounted for at fair value, with
changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss.
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(12) Determination of fair value

The fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset

realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

} e ) (15) Repurchase agreements and agreements to resale
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between . _ .
market participants at the measurement date. For financial Flnaln(;lal assets sold ‘SUbJeCt to repurchase agrelemen.ts
instruments traded in active markets, the determination of fair continue to be rgcogmsed, and are rec.orldledlals fmanmgl
values of financial assets and financial liabilities is based on assets as appropriate. The corresponding liability is included in
quoted market prices or dealer price quotations. For financial 'financial assets sold under repurchase agreements'. Financial
instruments traded in inactive markets, fair value is determined assets held gnder agreements to reselllare ”O_t‘ recognised
using appropriate valuation techniques. Valuation techniques in the con§olldated stlate.ment of fmanc@ pogltlon and the
include the use of recent transaction prices, discounted cash corresponding cash paid is recorded as ‘financial assets held
flow analysis, option pricing models and other valuation under resale agreements" as appropriate.
techniques commonly used by market participants. . L .
g y y P P The difference between purchase and sale price is recognised
(13) Financial guarantee contracts as interest expense or income in profit or loss over the life of the
) ) ) ) agreements using the effective interest method.
A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the
issuer to make specified payments to reimburse the holder for a (16) Property and equipment
loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payment ‘ . . -
) . . L The Group's property and equipment comprise buildings,
when due in accordance with the original or modified terms of ) . . : N
) ) ) . office equipment, motor vehicles, aircraft and communication
a debt instrument. A financial guarantee contract issued by the equibment and construction in progress
Group and not designated as at fair value through profit or loss quip prog '
is recggnised inlitially at its fair yalue less traqsactign costs that All property and equipment are stated at historical cost less
are directly attributable t‘o.t.he Issue Of the financial guarantee accumulated depreciation and impairment. Historical cost includes
contract. Subsequent to initial recognition, the Group measures expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.
the financial guarantee contract at the higher of: (i) the amount of
obligation under the contract, as determined in accordance with Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or
IAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets; are recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when
and (ii) the amount initially recognised less, when appropriate, it is probable that future economic benefits associated with
cumulative amortisation recognised in accordance with the the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be
revenue recognition policy. measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are charged
) ) o to the consolidated statement of profit or loss during the financial
(14) Offsetting financial instruments period in which they are incurred.
Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount
reported in the consolidated statement of financial position Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method to write
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised down the cost of such assets to their residual values over their
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or estimated useful lives as follows:
Useful lives Residual value Annual depreciation rates
Buildings 20-35 years 0%-5% 2.77%-5%
Office equipment 3-10 years 0%-5% 9.5%-33%
Motor vehicles 4-6 years 0%-5% 16%-25%
Aircraft and communication equipment 4-20 years 3%-15% 4.25%-24.25%
Properties in the course of construction for supply of services or  (18) Leases
gdministrative purposes are cgrried at cosvt,. less any recogniged (a) Lease classification
impairment oss. Such propert}es are classified to the appropriate Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the
category of property and equipment when completed and ready | i b ially all the risks and ds of hi
for intended use ease transfer substantially all the risks laln rewards O. ownership
‘ to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.
The assets' residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and b Fi I
adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period. (b) Finance lease
‘ ) : When the Group is the lessor under a finance lease, the
Gain alnd losses on cﬁsposal of property arjd equipment are present value of the aggregation of the minimum lease payment
detgrmmed b.y compannglproceeds with carrying lamount. These receivable from the lessee, unguaranteed residual value and
are included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss. initial direct costs is recognised as a receivable in "Loans and
(17) Cash and cash equivalents advances". The difference between the gross receivable and

Cash and cash equivalents refer to short term highly liquid
assets, which are readily convertible into known amounts of cash
and subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

the present value of the receivable is recognised as unearned
finance income. Unearned finance income is recognised over the
term of the lease using an interest rate which reflects a constant
rate of return. Contingent rentals are recognised in profit or loss
in the period in which they are incurred.



(19)

(20)

(c) Operating lease

When the Group is the lessee under an operating lease,
rental expenses are charged in "Operating expenses' in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss on a straight-line basis
over the period of the lease.

When the Group is the lessor under operating leases, the
assets subject to the operating leases are still accounted for
as the Group's assets. Rental income is recognised as "Other
income, net" in the consolidated statement of profit or loss on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately and with finite useful lives
are carried at costs less accumulated amortisation and any
accumulated impairment loss, including computer software and
other intangible assets.

Intangible assets are stated at acquisition cost less
accumulated amortisation and impairment. These costs are
amortised on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful
lives with the amortisation recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the useful
lives and amortisation method of intangible assets with finite
useful lives.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at
cost less any accumulated impairment losses and is presented
separately in the consolidated statement of financial position.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to
each of the cash-generating units (or groups of cash-generating
units) that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the
combination.

A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is
tested for impairment annually, or more frequently whenever there
is an indication that the unit may be impaired. For goodwill arising
on an acquisition in a reporting period, the cash-generating unit
to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment
before the end of that reporting period. If the recoverable amount
of the cash-generating unit is less than the carrying amount of the
unit, the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit, and then to the other
assets of the unit pro rata on the basis of the carrying amount
of each asset in the unit. Any impairment loss for goodwill is
recognised directly in profit or loss in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss. An impairment loss for goodwill is not reversed in
subsequent periods.

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit, the attributable
amount of goodwill capitalised is included in the determination of
the amount of profit or loss on disposal.

(21) Impairment of tangible and intangible assets other than goodwill

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets with
finite useful lives to determine whether there is any indication
that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any
such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the assets is
estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment
loss, if any.

(22
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If the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to be less
than its carrying amount (cash-generating unit), the carrying
amount of the asset (cash-generating unit) is reduced to its
recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised as an
expense immediately.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (cash-generating unit) is increased to the
revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount
that would have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset (cash-generating unit) in prior years. A
reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss when (i) the Group has a present legal or constructive
obligation, as a result of past events, (ii) it is probable that
an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation, and (iii) a reliable estimate of
the amount of the obligation can be made.

Provisions are measured at the best estimate of the consideration
required to settle the present obligation at the end of the
reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties
surrounding the obligation. Where a provision is measured using
the cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its
carrying amount is the present value of those cash flows (where
the effect is material).

Provisions related with financial guarantee contracts are
measured at similar transaction, historical loss experience and
management adjustment.

Hedge accounting

In order to avoid some of the risk, the Group has designated
certain financial instruments as hedging instruments. The Group
uses hedge accounting to process these hedging instruments
which comply with specified conditions. The Group’s hedging
instruments include fair value hedges and cash flow hedges.

At the inception of the hedge relationship, the entity documents
the relationship between the hedging instrument and the hedged
item, along with its risk management objectives and its strategy
for undertaking various hedge transactions. Furthermore, at the
inception of the hedge and on an ongoing basis, the Group
documents whether the hedging instrument is highly effective in
offsetting changes in fair values or cash flows of the hedged item
attributable to the hedged risk.

(a) Fair value hedges

Changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated
and qualify as fair value hedges are recognised in profit or loss
immediately, together with any changes in the fair value of the
hedged asset or liability that are attributable to the hedged
risk. The change in the fair value of the hedging instrument and
the change in the hedged item attributable to the hedged risk
are recognised in profit or loss in the line item relating to the
hedged item.

Hedge accounting is discontinued when the Group revokes the
hedging relationship, when the hedging instrument expires or is
sold, terminated, or exercised, or when it no longer qualifies for
hedge accounting.
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(b) Cash flow hedges

The effective portion of changes in the fair value of derivatives that
are designated and qualify as cash flow hedges is recognised
in other comprehensive income. The gain or loss relating to the
ineffective portion is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in equity are reclassified to profit or loss in the
periods when the hedged item affects profit or loss, in the same
line as the recognised hedged item. However, when the hedged
forecast transaction results in the recognition of a non-financial
asset or a non-financial liability, the gains and losses previously
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated
in equity are transferred from equity and included in the initial
measurement of the cost of the non-financial asset or non-
financial liability.

Hedge accounting is discontinued when the Group revokes the
hedging relationship, when the hedging instrument expires or
is sold, terminated, or exercised, or when it no longer qualifies
for hedge accounting. Any gain or loss recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity at that time
remains in equity and is recognised when the forecast transaction
is ultimately recognised in profit or loss. When a forecast
transaction is no longer expected to occur, the gain or loss
accumulated in equity is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS IN APPLYING ACCOUNTING POLICIES

In the application of the Group's accounting policies, which
are described in Note 3, the management is required to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions
are based on historical experience and other factors that are
considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised
in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects
only that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods
if the revision affects both current and future periods.

The following are the critical judgements and key estimation
uncertainty that the management has made in the process of
applying the Group's accounting policies and that have the most
significant effect on the amounts recognised in the consolidated
financial statements and/or in the next twelve months.

Impairment losses on loans and advances

The Group reviews its loan portfolios to assess impairment
periodically, unless circumstances indicate possible impairment
at an interim date. In determining whether an impairment loss
should be recorded in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss, the Group makes judgements as to whether there is any
observable data indicating that there is a measurable decrease
in the estimated future cash flows from a portfolio of loans
before the decrease can be identified with an individual loan
in that portfolio. This evidence may include observable data
indicating that there has been an adverse change in the payment
status of borrowers in a group, or national or local economic
conditions that correlate with defaults on assets in the group.

()
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Management uses estimates based on historical loss experience
for assets with credit risk characteristics and objective evidence
of impairment similar to those in the portfolio when scheduling
its future cash flows. The methodology and assumptions used
for estimating both the amount and timing of future cash flows
are reviewed regularly to reduce any differences between loss
estimates and actual loss experience.

Impairment of available-for-sale financial assets and
financial assets carried at amortised cost

The Group determines the impairment of investment securities
according to IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement. The determination of impairment requires a high
degree of judgment on the part of the management. In making
this judgment, the Group evaluates, among other factors,
the duration extent to which the fair value of an investment is
less than its cost, underlying asset quality of the investee (for
example, delinquency ratio and loss coverage ratio), and the
financial health and near-term business outlook (for example,
industry performance and credit ratings). In determining whether
the previously recognised impairment loss was recovered and
should be reversed, the Group makes judgements as to whether
the decrease of the impairment loss can be related objectively to
an event occurring after the impairment was recognised (such as
an improvement in the debtor's credit rating).

Fair value of financial instruments

The fair value of financial instruments that are not quoted in
active markets is determined by using valuation techniques.
These include the use of recent arm's length transactions,
discounted cash flow analysis, and other valuation techniques
commonly used by market participants. To the extent practical,
the Group uses only observable market data, however, areas
such as credit risk of the Group and the counterparty, volatilities
and correlations require management to make estimates.
Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect the
estimated fair value of financial instruments.

Held-to-maturity investments

The Group classifies non-derivative financial assets with fixed
or determinable payments and fixed maturity that the Group's
management has the positive intention and ability to hold to
maturity as held-to-maturity investments. This classification
requires significant judgement. In making this judgement, the
Group evaluates its intention and ability to hold such investments
to maturity. If the Group fails to hold these investments to
maturity other than for specific circumstances (such as selling
an insignificant amount close to maturity), it will be required to
reclassify the entire portfolio of held-to-maturity investments as
available-for-sale financial assets.

Income taxes

Significant estimates are required in determining the provision
for income taxes. There are many transactions and calculations
for which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain. The Group
makes estimates for items of uncertainty taking into account
existing taxation laws and the responses from the government.
Where the final tax outcome of these matters is different from the
amounts that were initially recorded, such differences will impact
the income tax and deferred tax provisions in the period in which
such a determination is made.
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5. INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES
Details of the principal subsidiaries held by the Bank are as follows:

Name of company Place of  Registered capital

incorporation (in millions)
China Development Bank Capital Co., Ltd. Mainland China RMB47,804
CDB Leasing Co., Ltd. Mainland China RMB8,000
China-Africa Development Fund Mainland China RMB20,335
CDB Securities Co., Ltd Mainland China RMB7,370
Upper Chance Group Limited Hong Kong, China GBP1,584

% of interest held

100% directly held
88.95% directly held
100% indirectly held

Principal business
Equity investment

Leasing
Fund investment &
management

100% directly held Brokerage and underwriting

100% directly held

Investment holding

At 31 December 2014, the Bank directly invested in 13 village banks as subsidiaries (31 December 2013: 13 village banks).

6. NET INTEREST INCOME

Interest income
Loans and advances to customers
Placements with banks and other financial institutions and
financial assets held under resale agreements
Balances with the central bank and deposits with banks and other financial institutions
Investment securities*
Others
Total
Interest expense
Debt securities issued
Borrowings from governments and financial institutions
Deposits from banks and other financial institutions
Due to customers
Others
Total
Net interest income
Interest income included:

Identified impaired financial assets

* Interest income of investment securities includes interest income of available-for-sale financial assets, held-to-maturity investments and

debt securities classified as receivables.

7. NET FEE AND COMMISSION INCOME

Fee and commission income
Guarantee and credit commitment fee
Fiduciary service fee
Loan arrangement fee
Consultancy and advisory fee
Brokerage fee
Others

Total

Fee and commission expense
Banking charges
Commission expense

Total

Net fee and commission income

2014 2013
443,131 397,642
23,661 15,682
36,551 11,876
5,796 4913
29 -
509,168 430,113
(267,905) (227,798)
(12,373) (12,086)
(38,598) (10,921)
(9,963) (6,818)
(1,639) (1,018)
(330,478) (258,641)
178,690 171,472
339 146

2014 2013
4,338 3,254
3,803 3,274
3,198 3,510
1,062 1,028
111 88
2,218 1,783
14,730 12,937
(691) (670)
(101) (153)
(792) (823)
13,938 12,114

167
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8. NET TRADING AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE GAIN/(LOSSES)

Net gain on foreign exchange derivatives 19,125 13,319
Net gain on financial assets held-for-trading 1,258 997
Net gain/(losses) on interest rate derivatives 747 (1,240)
Net gain on other derivatives 9 4
Foreign exchange losses (4,837) (23,498)
Total 16,302 (10,418)

9. DIVIDEND INCOME

Financial assets designated as at fair value through profit or loss 981 702
Available-for-sale equity investments 260 294
Total 1,241 996

10. NET GAIN ON INVESTMENT SECURITIES

Net gain on disposal of available-for-sale financial assets

1,760

1,134

Total

1,760

1,134

11. OTHER INCOME, NET

Rental income, net 4,312 4,349
Others (727) (2,238)
Total 3,585 2,111

12. OPERATING EXPENSES

Business tax and surcharges 25,964 22,832
Staff costs 5,190 4,566
Administration expenses 1,312 1,313
Rental expenses 748 730
Depreciation and amortisation 1,282 964
Supervision fee 443 450
Travel expenses 378 438
Service fees 430 325
Stamp duty and other taxes 352 274
Others 772 958
Total 36,871 32,850
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Loans and advances to customers 55,525 38,929
Debt securities classified as receivables 57 43
Available-for-sale financial assets 42 1,142
Other assets ™ 187
Total 56,365 40,301

14. INCOME TAX EXPENSE

Current tax 37,814 33,082
Deferred tax (note 27) (6,481) (7,188)
Total 31,333 25,894

The income tax expense can be reconciled to profit per the consolidated statement of profit or loss as follows:

Profit before tax 129,537 105,848
Tax calculated at the statutory rate of 25% 32,384 26,462
Effect of different tax rates on subsidiaries (556) (341)
Non-taxable income (1,087) (1,195)
Deductible temporary differences not recognised 51 771
Tax effects of expenses not deductible for tax purpose and others 541 197
Total 31,333 25,894

15. CASH AND BALANCES WITH THE CENTRAL BANK

Cash in hand 54 20
Statutory reserve with the central bank 1,081 688
Balances with the central bank, other than statutory reserve (1 56,265 42,148
Total 57,400 42,856

(1) Balances with the central bank, other than statutory reserve, are funds placed in the central bank for business, including allocation of
business fund, local clearing, cross-system fund transfer between different places and cash deposit and withdrawal.

16. DEPOSITS WITH BANKS AND OTHER FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS

Deposits with:
Domestic banks 892,976 338,036
Other domestic financial institutions 454 351
Overseas banks 111,596 64,052
Total 1,005,026 402,439

At 31 December 2014, the restricted deposits with banks and other financial institutions of the Group was amounting to RMB1,490 million
(31 December 2013: RMB1,349 million), mainly guarantee deposits.
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17. PLACEMENTS WITH BANKS AND OTHER FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS

Placements with:

Domestic banks 14,922 53,019
Other domestic financial institutions 1,528 34,400
Overseas banks 3,045 50
Total 19,495 87,469

18. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

Financial assets held-for-trading

Government and quasi-government bonds 6,489 4,673
Debt securities issued by financial institutions - 185
Corporate bonds 27,915 20,674
Stock and fund 3,832 90
Other bonds 296 -
Interbank certificate of deposit 146 -
Subtotal 38,678 25,622

Financial assets designated as at fair value through profit or loss

Equity investments 45,806 31,893
Asset management plans 8,295 -
Bank wealth management products and others 3,016 -
Subtotal 57,117 31,893
Total 95,795 57,515

19. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

The notional amounts of certain types of financial instruments provide a basis for comparison with instruments recognised on the consolidated
statement of financial position but do not necessarily indicate the amounts of future cash flows involved or the current fair value of the
instruments and, therefore, do not indicate the Group's exposure to credit or market risks. The fair values of derivative instruments become
favorable (assets) or unfavorable (liabilities) as a result of market fluctuations and foreign exchange rate movements relative to their terms.
The aggregated contractual or notional amounts of derivative financial instruments on hand, the extent to which instruments are favorable
or unfavorable, and thus the aggregated fair values of derivative financial assets and liabilities can fluctuate from time to time. The table
below provides a detailed breakdown of the contractual or notional amount and the fair values of the Group's derivative financial instruments
outstanding at the balance sheet date.

31 December 2014 31 December 2013

Exchange rate derivatives

Currency swaps (including cross-currency interest rate swaps) 974,569 10,298 (2,190) 675,858 6,698 (2,735)
Other currency derivatives 201,046 432 (172) 189,427 826 (121)
Subtotal 1,175,615 10,730 (2,362) 865,285 7,524 (2,856)

Interest rate derivatives

Interest rate swaps 542,000 7,814 (6,735) 349,837 6,960 (7,221)
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31 December 2014 31 December 2013

Interest rate options 12,042 421 (421) 12,840 427 (427)
Subtotal 554,042 8,235 (7,156) 362,677 7,387 (7,648)
Other derivatives - - - 42 16 -
Total 1,729,657 18,965 (9,518) 1,028,004 14,927 (10,504)

Hedge accounting

The Group’s hedging instruments included in above derivative financial instruments are set out below:

31 December 2014 31 December 2013

Fair value hedges instruments

Interest rate swaps 18,110 928 (151) - - -

Cash flow hedges instruments

Interest rate swaps 6,476 10 (41) 5,362 13 (23)

Total 24,586 938 (192) 5,362 13 (23)

Fair value hedges

The Group uses interest rate swap contracts to hedge against changes in fair value arising from changes in interest rates of the negotiable
certificates of deposit issued by the Hong Kong branch.

The effectiveness of hedging accounting reflected through changes in the fair value of the hedging instrument and net gain and loss of the
hedged item due to hedging risk are set out below:

Net gain/(loss)

- Hedging instruments 1,085 -
- Hedged item (983) -
Total 102 -

At 31 December 2014, the gain and loss of the ineffective hedging portion recognised by the Group in fair value change was insignificant.

Cash flow hedges

The Group uses interest rate swap contracts to hedge against exposure to cash flow variability primarily from interest rate risk of the variable
rate borrowings of leasing business with other banks.

At 31 December 2014, the Group recognised a loss from fair value changes of cash flow hedging instrument of RMB 31 million through other
comprehensive income, which was expected to be recognised in profit or loss from 2015 to 2024.

20. FINANCIAL ASSETS HELD UNDER RESALE AGREEMENTS

Analysed by type of collateral:

Securities 1,084,318 346,295




]72I NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

21. LOANS AND ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS, NET

The composition of loans and advance to customers is as follows:

Loans and advances to customers

- Loans to customers 7,862,880 7,058,003
- Finance lease receivable 78,749 69,900
- Others 13 20,378
7,941,642 7,148,281

Less: Allowance for impairment losses
- Individually assessed (29,299) (14,475)
- Collectively assessed (242,992) (203,838)
(272,291) (218,313)
Loans and advances to customers, net 7,669,351 6,929,968

Included:

Finance lease receivable pledged as collateral 12,290 14,924

Movements of allowance for impairment losses are set out below:

2014 2013

CEEDOCERL e R OUWEN e
At 1 January 14,475 203,838 218,313 8,674 172,181 180,855
Net charge for the year 16,127 39,398 0,52 6,076 32,853 38,929
Transfer-in = 12 12 - 4 4
Write-off (759) - (759) (104) - (104)
Recovery of loans written off - - - 1 - 1
Unwinding of discount on allowance (280) - (280) (117 - (117)
Foreign exchange differences (264) (256) (520) (55) (1,200) (1,255)
At 31 December 29,299 242,992 272,291 14,475 203,838 218,313

The past due loans and advance to customers by collateral types are set out below:

Past due
Wiknamorths  3izmonhs  tdyes  Owrdyews Tl

31 December 2014

Unsecured loans 921 109 409 2 1,441
Guaranteed loans 1,008 2,142 1,632 909 5,691
Loans secured by mortgage B, 755 3,287 3,397 961 13,400
Pledged loans 983 9,834 3,825 1,015 15,657
Total 8,667 15,372 9,263 2,887 36,189
31 December 2013

Unsecured loans 719 96 254 13 1,082
Guaranteed loans 1,118 528 80 1,877 3,603
Loans secured by mortgage 3,279 375 438 933 5,025
Pledged loans 3,209 749 226 1,307 5,491
Total 8,325 1,748 998 4,130 15,201

The loans and advances to customers are classified as past-due if the principal or the interest is past due. For the installment repayment loans
and advances to customers, if partial installment repayment is past due, the total balance of the loans and advances is classified as past-due.
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22. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS

Debt securities issued by:

Governments and quasi-governments 98,596 95,629
Financial institutions 3,859 3,937
Corporations 38,385 33,794
Others 102 272
Subtotal 140,942 133,632

Equity instruments

at fair value 24,571 10,412
at cost = 4,817
Interbank certificate of deposit 6,454 3,298
Total 171,967 152,159

At 31 December 2014, the carrying amount of available-for-sale financial assets included allowance for impairment losses of RMB18,624 million
(31 December 2013: RMB18,864 million).

23. HELD-TO-MATURITY INVESTMENTS

Debt securities issued by:

Corporations 1,999 3,898
Financial institutions 293 -
Governments and quasi-governments = 1,486
Total 2,292 5,384

24. DEBT SECURITIES CLASSIFIED AS RECEIVABLES

Debt securities issued by financial institution 4,675 3,060
Corporate bonds 1,197 1,005
Other bonds 7,212 1,103
Wealth management products and others 6,248 7,535
Subtotal 19,332 12,703
Less: Allowance for impairment losses (264) (211)
Total 19,068 12,492

25. INTEREST IN ASSOCIATES AND JOINT VENTURES

The balance of interest in associates and joint ventures is as follows:

Investment cost 1,650 1,597

Less: Allowance for impairment losses = -

Interest in associates and joint ventures 1,650 1,597
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Movements of interest in associates and joint ventures are set out below:

At 1 January 1,597 1,353
Addition 53 244
At 31 December 1,650 1,597

Particulars of the principal associates and joint ventures of the Group are as follows:

Tianjin Eco-City Investment & Development Co., Ltd.

Mainland China

RMB3,000

20% indirectly held

20%

Land and infrastructure

development

CDB Jintai Capital Investment Co., Lid. Mainland China RMB1,250 40% indirectly held 40% Invesiment manageent
and advisory

Beijing Far East Instrument Company Ltd. Mainland China UsD34 25% indirectly held 25% Manufactgre O.f electronic
and electrical instruments

China-Africa Xinyin Investment Menagement Co. Lid.  Mainland China RMB200 35% indirectly held 35% Investment in nonferrous
metals in Africa

Longgang Guoan Rural Bank Co., Ltd. Shenzhen ~ Mainland China RMB200 35% directly held 35% Banking
Huaxin Investment Management Co., Ltd. Mainland China RMB120 45% indirectly held 45% Investment managerment

and advisory

26. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

The net book value of property and equipment consisted of the following:

Cost

At 1 January 2014 16,870 1,510 329 36,391 2,653 57,753
Additions 525 1,012 5 5,745 1,642 8,929
Transfer 1,514 - - - (1,514) -
Disposals (14) (69) (14) (735) (14) (846)
At 31 December 2014 18,895 2,458 320 41,401 2,767 65,836
Accumulated depreciation

At 1 January 2014 (1,716) (736) (176) (4,375) = (7,003)
Additions (591) (391) (60) (1,821) - (2,863)
Disposals - 21 9 146 - 176
At 31 December 2014 (2,307) (1,1086) (227) (6,050) - (9,690)
Net book value

At 31 December 2014 16,588 1,347 93 35,351 2,767 56,146
At 1 January 2014 15,154 774 153 32,016 2,653 50,750
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Cost

At 1 January 2013 6,935 1,201 307 36,016 7,356 51,815
Additions 1,433 405 45 7,586 3,809 13,278
Transfer 8,506 - - - (8,506) -
Disposals (4) (96) (23) (7,211) (6) (7,340)
At 31 December 2013 16,870 1,510 329 36,391 2,653 57,753

Accumulated depreciation

At 1 January 2013 (1,262) (565) (150) (4,095) - (6,072)
Additions (456) (197) (37) (1,855) - (2,545)
Disposals 2 26 1 1,575 - 1,614
At 31 December 2013 (1,716) (736) (176) (4,375) - (7,008)
Net book value

At 31 December 2013 15,154 774 153 32,016 2,653 50,750
At 1 January 2013 5,673 636 157 31,921 7,356 45,743

27. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

Deferred tax assets 48,318 40,722
Deferred tax liabilities (4,297) (109)
Total 44,021 40,613

(1) The movements of the deferred income tax asset and liability are as follows:

At 1 January 40,613 33,011
Credit to profit or loss 6,481 7,188
Charge to other comprehensive income (3,782) 414
Acquisition of subsidiaries 709 -
At 31 December 44,021 40,613

(2) Deferred tax assets and liabilities are attributable to the following items:

31 December 2014 31 December 2013

Deferred tax assets

Allowance for impaired loans 181,474 45,368 143,046 35,761
Allowance for impaired available-for-sale financial assets 16,796 4,199 17,932 4,483
Provision for losses 2,954 738 3,771 943
Allowance for other impaired assets 1,443 361 1,558 389
Others 1,674 429 1,670 413

Fair va.lue changes of financial assets at fair value through (8.473) 2.118) (4,949) (1.237)
profit or loss
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31 December 2014 31

December 2013

Fair value changes of available-for-sale financial assets (2,637) (659) (122) (30)
Total 193,231 48,318 162,906 40,722
Deferred tax liabilities

Fair value changes of available-for-sale financial assets (13,061) (3,265) - -

Fair value changes of financial assets at fair value through

orofit or loss (5,745) (1,129) (96) (24)

Others (288) 97 (659) (85)

Total (19,094) (4,297) (755) (109)

28. OTHER ASSETS

Interest receivable 30,757 27,829
Prepayment for leasing equipment 14,183 5,062
Land use rights 2,106 2,225
Prepayment to vendors 5,650 2,215
Goodwill (1) 1,246 1,246
Continuing involvement assets of loan-based securitisation 703 703
Other intangible assets 580 524
Security trading deposits 774 361
Prepayment for equity investment 301 263
Deferred assets 104 124
Investment property 108 113
Others 11,001 2,220
Total 67,513 42,885
Less: Allowance for impairment losses (950) (220)
Other assets, net 66,563 42,665

(1) The goodwill is mainly attributable to CDB Leasing Co., Ltd. and CDB Securities Co., Ltd. At 31 Dece
attributable to CDB Leasing Co., Ltd. and CDB Securities Co., Ltd. was RMB560 million and RMB629 mi
end of 2014, the Group performed goodwill impairment test based on cashflow forecast of subsidiaries.
goodwill were recognised.

29. DEPOSITS FROM BANKS AND OTHER FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS

mber 2014, the goodwill
llion respectively. At the
No impairment losses on

Deposits from:

Domestic banks 1,227,447 217,238
Other domestic financial institutions 115,117 102,198
Overseas banks 65,912 91,484
Total 1,408,476 410,920
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30. BORROWINGS FROM GOVERNMENTS AND FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS

Borrowings from:

Domestic banks and other financial institutions 427,260 421,575
Foreign banks and other financial institutions 14,108 21,5624
Foreign banks — import credit 7,917 9,472
Foreign governments 2,088 2,538
Total 451,373 455,109

31. PLACEMENTS FROM BANKS

Placements from:

Overseas banks 41,115 33,311
Domestic banks 34,984 2,305
Total 76,099 35,616

32. FINANCIAL ASSETS SOLD UNDER REPURCHASE AGREEMENTS

Analysed by type of collateral:

Securities 20,611 17,760
Finance lease receivable 5,512 7,330
Placement notes 1,912 -
Total 28,035 25,090

33. DUE TO CUSTOMERS

Demand deposits 841,501 491,836
Term deposits 125,510 80,891
Guarantee deposits 13,371 8,895
Certificates of deposit issued in Hong Kong 107,330 102,560
Total 1,087,712 684,182

34. DEBT SECURITIES ISSUED

Debt securities issued (1) 6,245,014 5,721,077
Subordinated bonds issued (2) 96,587 119,513
Tier-two capital debt issued (3) 11,958 -

Total 6,353,559 5,840,590
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(1) Debt securities issued

31 December 2014

RMB bonds issued in domestic market 2001-2014 2015-2063 2.62-5.90 6,201,462
RMB bonds issued in overseas market 2012-2014 2015-2032 2.95-4.50 14,975
Foreign currency bonds issued in domestic market 2013 2018 1.48 5,277
Foreign currency bonds issued in overseas market 2005-2014 2015-2017 0.51-5.00 7,890
Debt securities issued by the Bank 6,229,604
Add: USD bills issued by subsidiary 2012-2014 2017-2024 2.50-4.25 13,017

RMB bonds issued by subsidiary 2014 2019 6.05 2,487
Less: Debt securities purchased by subsidiaries (94)
Debt securities issued by the Group 6,245,014

31 December 2013

RMB bonds issued in domestic market 2001-2013 2014-2063 2.65-6.05 5,687,073
RMB bonds issued in overseas market 2012-2013 2015-2032 2.69-4.50 10,481
Foreign currency bonds issued in domestic market 2013 2018 1.49 5,253
Foreign currency bonds issued in overseas market 2004-2005 2014-2015 4.75-5.00 9,730
Debt securities issued by the Bank 5,712,537
Add: USD bills issued by subsidiary 2012 2017-2022 2.00-3.25 9,050
Less: Debt securities purchased by subsidiaries (510)
Debt securities issued by the Group 5,721,077

At 31 December 2014, RMB financial bonds issued in domestic market with provisions allowing the bond holders to redeem them prior to
the bonds' maturity amounted to RMB20,000 million (31 December 2013: RMB65,000 million). If the bond holders choose not to exercise
their redemption option on a specified redemption date, the Bank is obligated to pay higher interest rates on some of the bonds. In
addition, none of the other bonds are subject to redemption prior to their stated maturities.

At 31 December 2014, RMB financial bonds issued in domestic market amounted to RMB61,200 million (31 December 2013: RMB61,200
million). The bond holders could convert part or all of securities at face value to the certain securities specified in the issuance documents

on the arranged date or within the valid term with the same effective date and maturity.

(2) Subordinated bonds issued

31 December 2014

RMB subordinated bonds issued in domestic market 2005-2012 2020-2062 3.82-6.05 96,587

31 December 2013

RMB subordinated bonds issued in domestic market 2004-2012 2019-2062 3.82-6.05 119,513

Subordinated debts have provisions which allow the Bank to redeem them prior to maturity. If the Bank chooses not to exercise its
redemption option on a specified date, it is obligated to pay higher interest rates on the debts.

(3) Tier-two capital debt issued

31 December 2014

RMB tier-two capital debt issued in domestic market 2014 2024 5.30 11,958

Tier-two capital debt have provision which allow the bank to redeem it prior to maturity and no interest rate reset is required.



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS I 179

35. OTHER LIABILITIES

Interest payable 133,665 103,515
Business tax and surcharges payable 7,194 7,920
Deferred government subsidies for education loans 9,594 7,329
Lease security deposit 4,722 3,967
Provision for losses on financial guarantees 2,578 2,564
Purchase payable to leasing equipment vendor 1,478 1,664
Accrued staff cost 1,619 1,414
Payable for security purchases on behalf of customers 1,471 1,212
Advances received for lease projects - 808
Continuing involvement liabilities of loan-based securitisation 703 703
Advance received for fee and commission 891 665
Payable to fiduciary business customers 287 147
Others 15,765 6,321
Total 179,967 138,229

36. SHARE CAPITAL

The MOF 153,908
Huijin 146,092
National Council for Social Security Fund 6,711
Total 306,711

37. INVESTMENT REVALUATION RESERVE

At 1 January 5,720 7,262
Changes in fair value of available-for-sale financial assets 11,562 (1,427)
Net gain reclassified to profit or loss on disposal (695) (115)
At 31 December 16,587 5,720

38. RESERVES

(1) Statutory and general surplus reserve

According to relevant laws and regulations, the Bank is required to appropriate 10% of net profit, as reported in its statutory financial
statements, to statutory surplus reserve. When statutory surplus reserve accounts for more than 50% of the Bank's capital, the Bank
would not be required to further appropriate statutory surplus reserve. Upon approval from Shareholders' General Meeting, the statutory
surplus reserve appropriated by the Bank can be used to supplement any losses of the Bank or to contribute to the Bank's capital, with the
remaining balance being no less than 25% of share capital. In addition, the Bank appropriates general surplus reserve as approved in the
Shareholders' General Meeting.

(2) General reserve

The Bank 122,119 96,460

Subsidiaries 2,621 1,061

Total 124,740 97,521
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Pursuant to circulars issued by the MOF in 2012, the Bank is required to maintain adequate reserves for unforeseeable risks and future
losses. Therefore, a general banking reserve has been established by the Bank through appropriation from retained earnings. In principle,
the general banking reserve balance should not be lower than 1.5% of the ending balance of gross risk-bearing assets at year end, and
should be set aside within a transitional period of five years.

Pursuant to the relevant regulatory requirements in the PRC, subsidiaries of the Group are required to appropriate certain amounts of its
net profit as general reserve.

39. RETAINED EARNINGS

At 1 January 113,145 90,801
Add: Net profit 98,100 79,621
Less: Appropriation to surplus reserve (8,844) (13,506)
Appropriation to general reserve (27,219) (28,815)
Dividends (4) (14,956)
At 31 December 175,178 113,145

40. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

For the purpose of the consolidated statements of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise the following balances:

_ 31 December 2013

Cash 54 20
Disposable balances with the central bank 56,265 42,148
Balances with an original maturity of less than three months:

- Financial assets held under resale agreements 1,057,196 330,411
- Deposits with banks and other financial institutions 782,592 137,079
- Placements with banks and other financial institutions 18,995 36,010
- Government bonds 1,025 -
Security trading deposits 774 361
Total 1,916,901 546,029

41. INTERESTS IN UNCONSOLIDATED STRUCTURED ENTITIES

Unconsolidated structured entities of the Group include non-principal guaranteed wealth management products, ABS, asset management
plans and fund investment, which were issued or established for providing a wide range of wealth management services for investors. At the
same time, the Group holds interests in some structured entities, which are recognised as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss,
available-for-sale financial assets and debt securities classified as receivables. There was no plan of providing financial or other support by the
Group to these unconsolidated structured entities.

At the balance sheet date, unconsolidated structured entities set up by the Group and the interests of the Group in these structured entities are

as follows:
31 December 2014
Non-principal guaranteed wealth management 91,502 = = 625 Fee income
Fee income and
ABS 111,475 7,581 7,581 115 : )
interest income
Asset management plans 36,997 - - 40 Fee income
. Fee income and
Fund investment 10,144 1,130 1,130 95

interest income

Total 250,118 8,711 8,711 875
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31 December 2013

Non-principal guaranteed wealth management 81,834 - - 290 Fee income
Fee income and
ABS 18,166 1,296 1,296 29 :
Interest income
Asset management plans 25914 - - 29 Fee income
. Fee income and
Fund investment 7,844 902 902 93 )
Interest income
Total 133,758 2,198 2,198 441

At the balance sheet date, interest held by the Group in structured entities issued by other institutions are as follows:

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 11,191 -
Debt securities classified as receivables 6,231 7,559
Total 17,422 7,559

42. TRANSFERS OF FINANCIAL ASSETS

The Group derecognised or partially derecognised the financial assets according to extent of the risks and rewards of ownership of the
transferred financial assets retained in the Group in securitisation transactions. At 31 December 2014, the carrying amount of securitized credit
assets before transfer was RMB111,475 million (31 December 2013: RMB18,166 million).

For the part of transferred assets which are derecognised, the Group continues to recognise the transferred assets to the extent of its
continuing involvement and recognises an associated liability. The net carrying amount of the transferred assets and associated liabilities
reflects the rights and obligations that the Group has retained.

31 December 2014 2014

Interest in SPE 703 703 703 703 703 - 14

31 December 2013 2013

Interest in SPE 703 703 703 703 703 - 14

The Group invests in ABS with underlying credit assets of the Group, which are recognised as financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss, available-for-sale financial assets and debt securities classified as receivables according to the different nature of the investment.

31 December 2014 2014

ABS 7,581 7,572 7,581 = 115
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31 December 2013 2013
. Maximum Gain or loss Income
Carrying . . .
Fair value exposure  recognised at recognised
amount ;
to loss transfer date in year
ABS 1,296 1,296 1,296 - 29

43. SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group reviews the internal reporting in order to assess performance and allocate resources. Segment information is presented on the
same basis as the Group's management and internal reporting.

All transactions between operating segments are conducted on an arm's length basis, with intra-segment revenue and costs being eliminated
in head office. Income and expenses directly associated with each segment are included in determining operating segment performance.

In accordance with IFRS 8, the Group has the following operating segments: banking, equity investment, leasing and securities.

The Group's main operating segments are set out below:

(1) Banking operations

This segment consists of corporate banking, debt issuance and treasury operations. The corporate banking operations consist of lending,
deposits, agency services, consulting and advisory services, cash management, remittance and settlement, custody and guarantee
services. Debt issuance is the main source of funding to corporate banking operations. The treasury operations consist of money market
transactions, foreign exchange transactions, bond market transactions, customer-based interest rate and foreign exchange derivative
transactions and asset and liability management.

(2) Equity investment
This segment consists of equity investment activities.
(3) Leasing operations
This segment consists of finance lease and operating lease business.

(4) Securities operations
This segment consists of security brokerage, proprietary trading and underwriting operations.

204 G gm0 atonsadsmons

Interest income 500,275 1,222 7,203 253 215 509,168

Interest expense (323,100) (806) (6,036) (479) (57) (330,478)

Net interest income 177,175 416 1,167 (226) 158 178,690

Include: Net interest income from customers 177,845 418 653 (226) - 178,690
Int(e;—;zar;:;t net interest income/ (670) @ 514 B 158 B

Net fee and commission income 13,172 283 (78) 693 (132) 13,938

Include: Net fee and commission from customers 13,086 283 (130) 699 - 13,938
Inter-segment net fee and commission 86 - 52 (6) (132) -

Other income/(expense), net 17,113 9,460 2,547 1,061 (36) 30,145

Operating expenses and impairment (89.694) (1,758) (1257) (572) 45 (93.236)

losses on assets

Profit before income tax 117,766 8,401 2,379 956 35 129,537

Other information:

Depreciation and amortisation 1,143 77 1,860 34 - 3,114

Capital expenditure 2,597 135 6,789 33 - 9,554

Impairment losses on assets 54,762 848 798 - (43) 56,365

31 December 2014

Total assets 10,103,950 114,019 140,366 28,577 (70,558) 10,316,354

Total liabilities 9,466,468 26,730 126,356 19,300 (2,664) 9,636,190

2014

Total net income from external customers*

Mainland China 147,271 590 793 473 - 149,127

Hong Kong 126 184 361 - - 671

Other countries/jurisdictions 43,534 (73) (631) - = 42,830

Total 190,931 701 523 473 = 192,628




2014

31 December 2014

Non-current assets**

Mainland China

Hong Kong

Other countries/jurisdictions

Total

Interest in associates and joint ventures
Mainland China

Other countries/jurisdictions

Total

2013

Interest income

Interest expense

Net interest income

Include: Net interest income from customers

Inter-segment net interest income/
(expenses)
Net fee and commission income
Include: Net fee and commission from customers
Inter-segment net fee and commission

Other income/(expense), net

Operating expenses and impairment
losses on assets

Profit before income tax

Other information:

Depreciation and amortisation

Capital expenditure

Impairment losses on assets

31 December 2013

Total assets

Total liabilities

2013

Total net income from external customers*

Mainland China

Hong Kong

Other countries/jurisdictions

Total

31 December 2013

Non-current assets**

Mainland China

Hong Kong

Other countries/jurisdictions

Total

Interest in associates and joint ventures

Mainland China

Other countries/jurisdictions

Total

* Total net income from customers is generated from outside the Group, including net interest income, net fee and commission income

from customers.
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) Equity . Securities  Consolidation and
Banking . Leasing . . Total
investment operations adjustments
22,718 5,578 11,700 116 - 40,112
47 59 - - - 106
= = 25,397 = = 25,397
22,765 5,637 37,097 116 - 65,615
114 1,531 - - - 1,645
= 5 = = = 5
114 1,536 = = = 1,650
. Equit . Securities ~ Consolidation and
Banking . quity Leasing . . Total
investment operations adjustments
421,757 780 6,868 200 508 430,113
(252,053) (328) (5,700) (183) (377) (258,641)
169,704 452 1,168 17 131 171,472
169,525 433 1,497 17 - 171,472
179 19 (329) - 131 -
11,296 528 (75) 470 (105) 12,114
11,128 528 (15) 473 - 12,114
168 - (60) (3) (105) -
(10,764) 2,981 2,285 541 370 (4,587)
(69,874) (1,930) (879) (437) 31) (73,151)
100,362 2,031 2,499 591 365 105,848
878 28 1,988 28 - 2,922
6,444 301 8,396 47 - 15,188
38,468 1,337 440 - 56 40,301
8,027,108 73,492 142,379 17,693 (73,434) 8,187,238
7,479,774 12,104 130,250 9,424 (5,549) 7,626,003
141,837 904 1,972 490 - 145,203
140 29 55 - - 224
38,676 28 (545) - - 38,159
180,653 961 1,482 490 - 183,586
21,948 276 7,404 220 - 29,848
61 59 - - - 120
- - 25,354 - - 25,354
22,009 335 32,758 220 — 55,322
101 1,437 - - - 1,638
- 59 - - - 59
101 1,496 - - - 1,697

** Non-current assets include property and equipment, intangible assets, goodwill and other assets.
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44. RELATED PARTY RELATIONSHIPS AND TRANSACTIONS

Related parties are those parties that have the ability to control the other party or exercise significant influence over the other party in making
financial or operational decisions. Parties are also considered to be related if they are subject to common control.

(1) Ministry of Finance
At 31 December 2014, the MOF owned a 50.18% of the issued share capital of the Bank (31 December 2013: 50.18%).

The Group enters into transactions with the MOF in its ordinary course of business, including subscription and redemption of treasury
bonds as well as a receivable from the MOF. Details of transactions with the MOF are as follows:

Treasury bonds issued by the MOF 40,281 26,635

Interest rate range (%)

Treasury bonds issued by the MOF 2.38-4.47 2.38-4.32

Interest income 988 706

Fee and commission income 18 12

Net trading gain 22 16
(2) Huijin

Huijin is a wholly owned subsidiary of China Investment Corporation, with a registered capital of RMB828,209 million in Beijing. Its principal
activities are equity investments as authorised by the State Council without engaging in other commercial operations. Huijin exercises the
rights and fulfills the obligations as an investor of the Bank on behalf of the PRC Government.

At 31 December 2014, Huijin owned a 47.63% of the issued share capital of the Bank (31 December 2013: 47.63%).

Transaction between the Group and Huijin are carried out in ordinary course of business. Details of investment in bonds issued by Huijin
are as follows:

Available-for-sale financial assets 7,623 6,993

Interest rate range (%) 3.14-4.2 3.14-4.2

Interest income 268 268

(3) Transaction with subsidiaries

Included in the following captions of the Bank's statement of financial position are balances with subsidiaries.

Loans and advances to customers, net 9,736 7,923
Due to customers 2,626 5,021
Deposits from banks and other financial institutions 1,582 1,077
Derivative financial assets 356 390
Debt securities issued 94 510
Deposits with banks and other financial institutions - 30

Other assets

- Interest receivable 54 33

- Other receivables 29 20
Other liabilities

- Interest payable 12 21




Included in the following captions of the Bank's statement of profit or loss are transactions with subsidiaries.

Interest income
Interest expense
Fee and commission income

Fee and commission expense

Transactions between the Bank and its subsidiaries are carried out on general commercial terms in ordinary course of business. All
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2014 2013
511 325
(37)

121 115
(16)

transactions or balances with subsidiaries are eliminated in the consolidated financial statements.

(4) Transactions with associates and joint ventures

Transactions between the Bank and its associates and joint ventures are carried out on general commercial terms in ordinary course of
business. The Group's transactions and balances with associates and joint ventures for the year ended 31 December 2014 and 2013 were

insignificant.

(5) Transactions with other government-related entities

Management considers that transactions with other government related entities are activities conducted in the ordinary course of business,
and that the dealings of the Group have not been significantly or unduly affected by the fact that the Group and those entities are
government related. The Group has also established pricing policies for products and services and such pricing policies do not depend on
whether or not the customers are government related entities.

45.CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS

(1

-

Legal proceedings

At 31 December 2014, the Group was involved in certain lawsuits arising from its normal business operations. After consulting legal
professionals, management of the Group believes that the ultimate outcome of these lawsuits will not have a material impact on the

financial position and operating result of the Group.

(2) Capital commitments

Capital commitment in respect of equity investments
- authorised but not contracted for
- contracted but not provided for
Capital commitment in respect of property and equipment
- authorised but not contracted for
- contracted but not provided for

Total

(3) Credit commitments

Loan commitments

Letters of guarantee issued
Bank bill acceptance
Letters of credit issued

Total

31 December 2014

31 December 2013

5,026 3,156
54,502 42,252
6 43
44,979 11,372
104,513 56,823

31 December 2014

31 December 2013

2,951,784 1,917,987
78,991 78,361
36,816 33,010
21,770 18,702

3,089,361 2,048,060
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(4) Operating lease commitments

At the end of each reporting period, the Group as lessee has the following non-cancelable operating lease commitments:

31 December 2014 31 December 2013

Within one year 505 513
After one year but within two years 289 302
After two years but within three years 146 165
After three years 296 89
Total 1,236 1,069

(5) Finance lease commitments

At the end of each reporting period, the Group as lessor has the following non-cancelable finance lease commitments:

31 December 2014 31 December 2013

Contractual amount 417 4,106

(6) Collateral
(a) Assets pledged

The carrying amount of assets pledged as collateral under repurchase agreement at the end of each reporting period is as follows:

31 December 2014 31 December 2013

Securities 22,763 19,814
Finance lease receivable 8,633 11,703
Placement notes 2,205 -
Total 33,601 31,517

At 31 December 2014, the carrying amount of financial assets
sold under repurchase agreements by the Group was RMB28,035
million (2013: RMB25,090 million). All repurchase agreements are
due within 5 years from the effective date of these agreements.

(b) Collateral accepted

The Group has no cash and securities received as collateral can
be resold or re-pledged in connection with purchase of assets
under resale agreements and security lending business at 31
December 2014 and 2013.

46. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(1) Strategies adopted in managing financial risks

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks and
those activities involve the analysis, identification, monitoring
and reporting of some degree of risk or combination of risks.
Taking risk is core to the financial business of the Group,
and operational risks are an inevitable consequence of being
in business. The Group's aim is, therefore, to achieve an
appropriate balance between risk and return and minimise
potential adverse effects on the Group's financial performance.

The Group raises funds primarily through the issuance of debts
with different maturities at both fixed and floating rates, and
seeks to earn interest margins by investing these funds in State
medium- to long-term lending projects in infrastructure sectors,
basic industries and pillar industries. With the basic saving
and lending interest rate regulated by the central bank, and

debt issuing rates fluctuating, the Group seeks to increase its
net interest margins by issuing different varieties of bonds and
reducing its cost of funding to the extent possible.

The Group carries out a range of vanilla derivative financial
instruments transactions, including currency forward, currency
and interest rate swaps, interest rate floor options to meet the
needs of risk management as well as the needs of its customers.
The Group's risk management policies are designed to identify
and analyse risk, to set appropriate risk limits and controls, and
to monitor the risks and adherence to limits by means of reliable
and up-to-date information systems. The Group regularly reviews
its risk management policies and systems to reflect changes
in markets, products and emerging best practice. The most
important types of financial risks are credit risk, liquidity risk and
market risk.

(2) Credit risk

The Group takes on exposure to credit risk which is the risk that a
customer or counterparty will cause a financial loss for the Group
by failing to discharge an obligation or falling in its credit rating.
Credit risk is the most important risk for the Group's business,
management therefore carefully manages its exposure to credit
risk. Credit exposures arise principally in lending activities that
lead to loans and advances, and investment activities that bring
debt securities and derivatives into the Group's asset portfolio.
There is also credit risk in off-balance sheet financial instruments,
such as loan commitments and financial guarantees.

Following the internal credit rating directives and guidelines
issued by the CBRC, and considering its unique business



features, the Group establishes a credit rating framework
including credit rating methodologies, policies, procedures,
control management, data collection and IT supporting. This
is a two dimensional risk rating framework that assesses both
customer credit rating based on the probability of default and the
project credit rating based on the estimated loss given default.
To ensure the accuracy and completeness of rating results, the
Group also established internal guidelines for country rating,
sovereign rating, local government rating, district rating and
industry rating.

In 2014, there is no material change to the Group's risk
management strategy and approach.

(a) Credit risk measurement
(i) Loans and advances

The Group measures and manages the credit quality of loans and
advances based on the "Guiding Principles on the Classification
of Loan Risk Management" issued by the CBRC, which requires
banks to classify loans into the following five grades: "pass',
'special-mention", "substandard’, "doubtful" and "loss", among
which loans classified in the "substandard", "doubtful" and "loss"
grades are regarded as non-performing loans.

* "pass": Borrowers can honour the terms of their loans. There is
no reason to doubt their ability to repay principal and interest
in full on a timely basis.

* 'special-mention": Borrowers are able to service their loans
currently, although repayment may be adversely affected by
specific factors.

* 'substandard": Borrowers' abilities to service their loans are
in question as they cannot rely entirely on normal business
revenue to repay principal and interest. Losses may occur
even when collateral or guarantees are invoked.

* "doubtful": Borrowers cannot repay principal and interest in full
and significant losses will need to be recognised even when
collateral or guarantees are invoked.

* "loss": Only a small portion or no principal and interest can be
recovered after taking all possible measures and exhausting
all legal remedies.

The Group uses risk based methodology to evaluate the
quality of loan assets. The classification methodology takes
into consideration of different factors including core definition,
credit rating and significant events. The classification is a
leverage of quantitative and qualitative factors, including various
financial factors, non-financial factors, industrial and regional
differences, as well as the Bank's management ability. The Group
reviews its credit assets on a timely basis, and such assets are
centrally monitored by the Loan Management Department and
International Financial Department, and reported to management
for approval.

(i) Debt securities and derivatives

For debt securities, the Group manages the credit risk exposure
by using its internal rating system, and also taking external
ratings such as Standard & Poor's rating or their equivalents into
account. Investments in debt securities are viewed as a way to
gain a better credit quality mapping and, at the same time, to
maintain a readily available source of funding to meet funding
requirements. The derivative credit risk exposure is managed as
part of the overall lending limits set for customers.
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(iii) Loan commitments, letters of guarantee issued, letters of
credit issued and bank bill acceptance

For loan commitments, letters of guarantee issued, letters of
credit issued and bank bill acceptance, the Group generally
manages the credit risk using the five-grade system and its
internal credit rating system in the same way as it manages loans
and advances.

(b) Risk limit control and mitigation policies

The Group manages limits and controls concentrations of credit risk
wherever they are identifiable, in particular, to individual counterparties
and groups, and to industries and geographical regions.

The Group has processed in place the credit limit management
framework to assess the levels of credit risk it undertakes in
relation to single borrowers and group clients, to allocate the
economic capital for industries and branches, and also to set
the appropriate credit limit by country. Such risks are monitored
periodically and are subject to review at the Governors' Meeting
of Risk Management.

The exposure to any one customer is further restricted by
sub-limits covering on and off-balance sheet exposures, and
daily delivery risk limits in relation to the trading and non-trading
portfolio of treasury business. Actual exposures are monitored
against limits regularly.

To manage its credit risk, the Group applies rigorous underwriting
procedures to each loan application and has developed a
disciplined credit risk management process. Exposure to
credit risk is managed through regular analysis of the ability of
borrowers and potential borrowers to meet interest and capital
repayment obligations. Exposure to credit risk is also managed
in part by obtaining collateral and guarantees.

Other specific control and mitigation measures are outlined below.

(i) Collateral

The Group employs a range of policies and practices to mitigate
credit risk. The most traditional of these is the taking of collateral
for advances, which is common practice. The Group has
implemented guidelines on the acceptability of specific classes
of collateral or credit risk mitigation, and reviews the valuation of
collateral periodically.

The principal collateral types are charges over rights and
business assets such as toll collection rights, real estate, land
use rights, equity securities, cash deposits and machinery.

Collateral held as security for financial assets other than loans
and advances is determined by the nature of the instrument.
Debt securities are generally unsecured with the exception
of asset backed securities and similar instruments, which are
secured by pools of financial assets.

(i) Credit related commitments

The primary purpose of these instruments is to ensure that funds
are available to a customer as required. Guarantees and letters
of credit, which represent irrevocable assurance that the Group
will make payments in the event that a customer cannot meet its
obligations to third parties, carry the same credit risk as loans.
In some cases, guarantee deposits are received by the Group to
lessen the credit risks related to certain of these commitments
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provided by the Group. The guarantee deposit which is a certain percentage of the notional amount of the guarantee and letters of credit
and other credit related commitments is determined by the creditworthiness of the customer.

Commitments to extend credit represent unused portions of authorisations to extend credit in the form of loans, bank bill acceptance,
guarantees or letters of credit. With respect to credit risk on commitments to extend credit, the Group is potentially exposed to loss in
an amount equal to the total unused commitments. However, the likely amount of loss is less than the total unused commitments since
most commitments to extend credit are contingent upon customers maintaining their level of creditworthiness. The Group monitors the
term to maturity of credit commitments because longer-term commitments generally have a greater degree of credit risk than shorter-term
commitments.

(c) Impairment and provisioning policies

The impairment allowance shown in the consolidated statement of financial position at year end is derived from asset quality grading
mentioned in Note 46.(2)(a)(i), which assists management to determine whether objective evidence of impairment exists under IAS 39,
based on the principles set out in Note 3.(9)(b).

The Group's policy requires the review of individual financial assets that are above materiality thresholds at least quarterly or more regularly
when individual circumstances require. Impairment allowances on individually assessed accounts are determined by an evaluation of
the incurred loss at balance-sheet date on a case-by-case basis and are applied to all individually significant accounts. The assessment
normally encompasses collateral held and the anticipated receipts for that individual account.

Collectively assessed impairment allowances are provided for: (i) portfolios of assets that are individually below materiality thresholds; and
(ii) losses that have been incurred but have not yet been identified, by using the available historical experience, experienced judgment and
statistical techniques.

(d) Maximum exposure to credit risk before collateral held or other credit enhancements

31 December 2014 31 December 2013

Credit risk exposures relating to financial assets are as follows:

Balances with the central bank 57,346 42,836
Deposits with banks and other financial institutions 1,005,026 402,439
Placements with banks and other financial statements 19,495 87,469
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 46,157 25,532
Derivative financial assets 18,965 14,927
Financial assets held under resale agreements 1,084,318 346,295
Loans and advances to customers, net 7,669,351 6,929,968
Available-for-sale financial assets 147,396 136,930
Held-to-maturity investments 2,292 5,384
Debt securities classified as receivables 19,068 12,492
Other financial assets 54,785 36,021
Subtotal 10,124,199 8,040,293

Credit risk exposures relating to credit commitments are as follows:

Loan commitments 2,951,784 1,917,987
Letters of guarantee issued 78,991 78,361
Bank bill acceptance 36,816 33,010
Letters of credit issued 21,770 18,702
Subtotal 3,089,361 2,048,060
Total 13,213,560 10,088,353

The above table represents a worst case scenario of credit risk exposure to the Group at 31 December 2014 and 31 December 2013,
without taking account of any collateral held or other credit enhancements attached. For on-balance sheet assets, the exposures set out
above are based on net carrying amounts as reported in the consolidated statement of financial position.



(e) Loans and advances to customers
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The gross amount of loans and advances to customers by types of collateral and maturity is as follows:

Within 1 year 1-5 years Over 5 years Total
At 31 December 2014
Unsecured loans 210,355 321,169 1,341,296 1,872,820
Guaranteed loans 141,486 224,607 720,702 1,086,795
Loans secured by mortgage 31,691 239,168 924,211 1,195,070
Pledged loans 43,329 111,702 3,631,926 3,786,957
Total 426,861 896,646 6,618,135 7,941,642
At 31 December 2013
Unsecured loans 207,699 346,400 1,272,955 1,827,054
Guaranteed loans 186,078 205,598 605,096 996,772
Loans secured by mortgage 45,407 223,974 774,773 1,044,154
Pledged loans 37,822 101,473 3,141,006 3,280,301
Total 477,006 877,445 5,793,830 7,148,281

Distribution of loans and advances to customers in terms of credit quality is as follows:

Neither past due nor impaired (i)

Past due but not impaired (ii)

Impaired (iii)

Total

Less: allowance for impairment losses
- Individually assessed
- Collectively assessed

Total

Loans and advances to customers, net

(i) Loans and advances to customers neither past due nor impaired

31 December 2014 31 December 2013

7,887,096 7,112,090
2985 1,607
51,561 34,584
7,941,642 7,148,281
(29,299) (14,475)
(242,992) (203,838)
(272,291) (218,313)
7,669,351 6,929,968

The credit quality of the portfolio of loans and advances to customers that were neither past due nor impaired can be assessed with

reference to the asset quality grading system adopted by the Group.

Pass grade
Special-mention grade
Total

(i) Loans and advances to customers past due but not impaired

31 December 2014 31 December 2013

7,210,728 6,390,617
676,368 721,473
7,887,096 7,112,090

In general, past due of less than 90 days for loans and advances to customers does not necessarily indicate impairment, unless other
information is available to indicate the contrary. Past due loans of less than 90 days amounting to RMB2,546 million (2013: RMB1,353
million) were individually assessed and no impairment was identified. Past-due loans over 90 days were mainly student loans totalling
RMB283 million (2013: RMB254 million), which were not identified as impaired. In accordance with relevant policy requirements, certain
losses from student loans could be compensated by government subsidies. Therefore, these past-due student loans were not identified as

impaired loans.

The gross amount of loans and advances to customers that were past due but not impaired is as follows:

Past due up to 90 days
Past due over 90 days
Total

Fair value of collaterals

31 December 2014 31 December 2013

2,546 1,353

439 254
2,985 1,607
2,885 673
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(iii) Loans and advances to customers impaired

Impaired loans and advances to customers are listed below:

Impaired loans and advances to customers 51,561 34,584
Less: individually assessed impairment allowance (29,299) (14,475)
Total 22,262 20,109
Fair value of collaterals 18,863 12,280

All impaired loans are individually assessed and the impairment allowance is provided accordingly.

(iv) Restructured loans and advances to customers renegotiated

Restructured loans and advances to customers are loans that have been restructured due to deterioration in the borrower's financial
position. Restructuring policies are based on indicators or criteria which, in the judgment of management, indicate that payment will most
likely continue. These policies are kept under continuous review. All restructured loans are subject to a surveillance period of six months.
During the surveillance period, restructured loans remain as non-performing loans. After the surveillance period, restructured loans will not
be classified as non-performing loans upon review if certain criteria are met. At 31 December 2014, the total renegotiated loans amounted
to RMB7,926 million (31 December 2013: RMB6,874 million).

(f) Investment in debt securities
Distribution of debt securities in terms of credit quality is as follows:

Neither past due nor impaired (i) 211,994 180,050
Impaired (ii) 3,183 499
Total 215,177 180,549
Less: Allowance for impairment losses (264) 211)
Carrying amount of debt securities 214,913 180,338

(i) Debt securities neither past due nor impaired

31 December 2014

Debt securities issued by:

Governments and quasi-governments 6,489 98,596 - - 105,085
Financial institutions = 3,859 293 4,675 8,827
Corporations 27,915 38,385 1,999 915 69,214
Other securities 296 102 - 7,212 7,610
Interbank certificate of deposit 146 6,454 - - 6,600
Wealth management products and others 3,016 - - 3,347 6,363
Asset management plans 8,295 = = = 8,295

Total 46,157 147,396 2,292 16,149 211,994
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31 December 2013

Debt securities issued by:

Governments and quasi-governments 4,673 95,629 1,486 - 101,788
Financial institutions 185 3,937 - 3,060 7,182
Corporations 20,674 33,794 3,898 706 59,072
Other securities - - - 1,103 1,103
Interbank certificate of deposit - 3,298 - - 3,298
Wealth management products and others - 272 - 7,335 7,607
Total 25,532 136,930 5,384 12,204 180,050

(i) Debt securities impaired

Debt securities issued by:

Corporations 282 282
Wealth management products and others 2,901 2,901
Total 3,183 3,183

Debt securities issued by:

Corporations 299 299
Wealth management products and others 200 200
Total 499 499

Debt securities analysed by credit rating from independent rating agencies is as follows:

Unrated

At 31 December 2014

Debt securities issued by:

Governments and quasi-governments - - - - 105,085 - 105,085
Financial institutions 2,673 = 1,724 = = 4,430 8,827
Corporations 49,910 15,974 1,274 - - 2,091 69,249
Other securities 3,520 - - - - 4,090 7,610
Interbank certificate of deposit 5,132 1,168 300 - - - 6,600
Wealth management products and others - - - - - 9,247 9,247
Asset management plans = = = = = 8,295 8,295
Total 61,235 17,142 3,298 = 105,085 28,153 214,913

At 31 December 2013

Debt securities issued by:

Governments and quasi-governments - - - - 101,788 - 101,788
Financial institutions 3,786 320 - - - 3,076 7,182
Corporations 47,008 9,265 458 - - 2,435 59,166
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Unrated
Other securities - - - - - 1,103 1,103
Interbank certificate of deposit 3,298 - - - - - 3,298
Wealth management products and others - - - - - 7,801 7,801
Total 54,092 9,585 458 - 101,788 14,415 180,338

(1) The unrated debt securities issued by PRC Government and PRC government bodies are from issuers such as MOF, central
bank, PRC policy banks and Huijin.

(2) The other unrated debt securities mainly represent subordinated bonds issued by insurance companies, principal guaranteed
wealth management products issued by banks and private placement notes.

(g) Concentration of risks of financial assets with credit risk exposure
(i) Financial assets by geographical distribution

Eastern China Central China Western China Overseas Total
Balances with the central bank 49,851 3,549 3,946 - 57,346
Deposits with banks and other financial institutions 938,752 1,222 1,088 63,964 1,005,026
Placements with banks and other financial institutions 16,450 - - 3,045 19,495
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 38,667 2,681 4,809 - 46,157
Derivative financial assets 9,809 1,336 155 7,665 18,965
Financial assets held under resale agreements 931,278 86,932 66,108 - 1,084,318
Loans and advances to customers, net 3,293,611 1,459,891 1,941,474 974,375 7,669,351
Available-for-sale financial assets 143,524 1,483 2,389 - 147,396
Held-to-maturity investments 1,793 - 499 - 2,292
Debt securities classified as receivables 18,476 500 - 92 19,068
Other financial assets 27,548 7,432 11,154 8,651 54,785
At 31 December 2014 5,469,759 1,565,026 2,031,622 1,057,792 10,124,199
At 31 December 2013 3,733,315 1,404,164 1,749,631 1,153,183 8,040,293

Eastern China includes Beijing, Liaoning, Hebei, Tianjin, Shandong, Shanghai, Jiangsu, Zhejiang, Fujian, Guangdong, Hainan, Dalian,
Shenzhen, Qingdao, Ningbo, Suzhou and Xiamen.

Central China includes Jilin, Heilongjiang, Shanxi, Henan, Hubei, Anhui, Hunan and Jiangxi.

Western China includes Xinjiang, Tibet, Gansu, Qinghai, Ningxia, Inner Mongolia, Shaanxi, Sichuan, Chongging, Guizhou, Yunnan and
Guangxi.

Overseas refers to regions outside Mainland China, including Hong Kong and other countries and jurisdictions.

(i) Financial assets by customer's industry distribution

Loans and advances to customers 31 December 2014 31 December 2013

Road transportation 1,420,991 18 1,244,814 17
Water conservation, environmental protection and public utilities 1,070,620 13 1,114,194 16
Electric power, heating and water production and supply 879,700 11 856,013 12
Shantytown redevelopment 636,246 8 283,885 4
Railway transportation 621,146 8 541,062 8
Petroleum, petrochemical and chemical industry 601,402 8 555,182 8
Manufacturing industry 585,697 7 568,975 8
Mining industry 386,399 5 352,822 5
Urban public transportation 261,167 3 213,351 3
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Loans and advances to customers 31 December 2014 31 December 2013

Other transportation 206,463 3 212,040 3
Finance 149,832 2 189,628 3
Education 109,953 1 110,957 1
Telecommunication and other information transmission service 81,376 1 92,083 1
Others 930,650 12 813,275 11
Total 7,941,642 100 7,148,281 100
Less: Allowance for impairment losses (272,291) (218,313)

Loans and advances, net 7,669,351 6,929,968

Financial assets other than loans and advances to customers

At 31 December 2014

Balances with the central bank 57,346 = = 57,346
Deposits with banks and other financial institutions - 1,005,026 - 1,005,026
Placements with banks and other financial institutions = 19,495 = 19,495
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 6,489 11,311 28,357 46,157
Derivative financial assets 6,991 7,721 4,253 18,965
Financial assets held under resale agreements - 1,080,560 3,758 1,084,318
Available-for-sale financial assets 98,596 10,343 38,457 147,396
Held-to-maturity investments - 293 1,999 2,292
Debt securities classified as receivables = 11,785 7,283 19,068
Other financial assets - 9,879 44,906 54,785
Total 169,422 2,156,413 129,013 2,454,848

At 31 December 2013

Balances with the central bank 42,836 - - 42,836
Deposits with banks and other financial institutions - 402,439 - 402,439
Placements with banks and other financial institutions - 87,469 - 87,469
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 4,673 185 20,674 25,532
Derivative financial assets 6,370 5317 3,240 14,927
Financial assets held under resale agreements - 345,338 957 346,295
Available-for-sale financial assets 95,629 7,235 34,066 136,930
Held-to-maturity investments 1,486 - 3,898 5,384
Debt securities classified as receivables - 3,060 9,432 12,492
Other financial assets 1,406 6,135 28,480 36,021
Total 152,400 857,178 100,747 1,110,325

(3) Market risk

Market risk is the risk of loss, in respect of the Group's on and off-balance sheet activities, arising from movements in market rates
including interest rates, foreign exchange rates, and stock prices. Market risk arises from both the Group's proprietary and customer driven
business.

The objective of the Group's market risk management is to manage and control market risk exposures within an acceptable range to
optimise return on risk. The aim is to ensure the Group could operate safely and soundly under a reasonable market risk level and
undertake market risk consistent with the market risk management capabilities and capital capacity.
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The management of market risk is principally undertaken in the
Group using risk limits approved by the Board of Management
and its affiliated committee. The Governors' Meeting on Risk
Management and Asset & Liability Committee ("ALCQO") will
supervise overall market risk by holding meetings and reviewing
risk management reports periodically to ensure that all market
risks are consolidated and considered.

Classification between trading portfolios and banking portfolios

The Group's exposures to market risk mainly exist in its trading
portfolios and banking portfolios.

Trading portfolios consist of positions in financial instruments
held either with trading intent or in order to economically hedge
other elements of the trading portfolio. Banking portfolios consist
of financial instruments held not with trading intent which are not
recorded in trading portfolios.

The market risks arising from trading and non-trading activities
are managed by the Risk Management Department and the
Treasury Department within the scope of their respective roles
and responsibilities. The Risk Management Department assumes
the responsibility for the overall risk management and the
periodical submission of the market risk reports to the Governors'
Meeting of Risk Management. The Treasury Department assumes
the responsibility for the overall asset and liability management
and the periodical submission of the interest rate risk and foreign
exchange risk reports to the Governors' Meeting of ALCO.

Market risk measurement tools and management approaches

Market risk is measured using VaR and sensitivity analysis
indicators, and monitored through risk limits.

Trading portfolios

In addition to VaR calculated for trading portfolios, the Group
monitors and manages its various risk exposures using risk
limits, sensitivity analysis, and stress testing.

VaR is an estimate of potential maximum losses which might
arise from unfavourable market movements within certain holding
period and confidence level.

The Group performs daily back testing for its market risk
measurement model, to verify its accuracy and reliability. The
back testing result will be reported to senior management
periodically.

As a supplement to VaR, the Group adopts stress testing
approach. Stress testing scenarios are developed based on the
Group's unique business features, and are designed to estimate
the potential maximum losses from extremely unfavourable
conditions. The Group also continues adjusting and refining its
trading portfolios stress testing scenarios and measurements to
capture impact of market price volatility on VaR, and to improve
its ability in identifying market risks.

The Group sets risk limits based on its risk management
capabilities over interest rate risk, foreign exchange risk and
capital capacity. The Group also establishes appropriate
risk limits for each risk category, trading portfolio. The Risk
Management Department is responsible for the identification

and measurement of various risk exposures from all trading
portfolios.

Banking portfolios

The Group monitors the market risk for banking portfolios mainly
through the use of VaR for foreign exchange risk and sensitivity
analysis for foreign exchange risk and interest rate risk. The Risk
Management Department is responsible of foreign exchange
risks VaR calculation and reports the results to Governors'
Meeting of Risk Management regularly. The Treasury Department
is responsible for the accurate and timely identification and
measurement of interest rate risk and foreign exchange risk using
gap analysis, sensitivity analysis, and EaR/VaR, and prepares the
quarterly assets and liabilities analysis report to the ALCO.

For sensitivity analysis of interest rate risk and foreign exchange
risk, please refer to (3)(a) interest rate risk and (3)(b) foreign
exchange risk (including trading portfolios and banking
portfolios).

(a) Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk of the banking portfolio is the risk of loss in the
overall gain and economic value of the banking portfolio arising
from adverse movements in interest rate and duration structure, etc.

Currently, benchmark interest rates for loans and deposits
within Mainland China are set by the central bank. The Group
operates its business predominantly in China under the interest
rate scheme regulated by the central bank. Generally speaking,
the interest rates of interest bearing assets and liabilities with
the same currency and maturity date will move in the same
direction. On 22 November 2014, the central bank adjusted
the financial institution’s RMB benchmark lending and deposit
interest rates. One-year benchmark lending and deposit rates
were 6.67% and 8.33% lower than before. According to the
central bank regulations, interest rates on deposits denominated
in RMB can be set up from 10% to 20% higher than the central
bank benchmark interest rates. As for the interest rates on loans
denominated in RMB among financial institutions, there has been
no restriction since 20 July 2013.

The banking portfolios interest rate risk is principally managed
based on impact of interest rate change on operation of income
and economic value, by using gap analysis, duration analysis,
BP analysis and net interest income simulation model. The Group
implements asset & liability management and hedging instrument
to mitigate the interest rate exposure of banking portfolios. The
trading portfolios market risk is mainly managed and monitored
by interest rate limits, VaR measurement, sensitivity analysis,
foreign currency exposure analysis, mark-to-market and
breakeven analysis.

Analysis of interest rate risk is complicated by assumptions made
regarding optionality in certain product areas, and behavioural
assumptions regarding the economic duration of liabilities which
are contractually repayable on demand, for example, current
accounts. The prospective change in future net interest income
will be reflected in the current realisable value of these positions,
should they be sold or closed prior to maturity.

In terms of measuring and managing the interest rate risk,
the Group regularly measures interest rate repricing gaps,
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portfolio duration and monitors the sensitivity of projected net interest income and fair value changes under varying interest rate scenarios
(simulation modeling).

Repricing gap analysis

The table below summarises the Group's exposure to interest rate risk. It includes the Group's financial instruments at carrying amounts,
categorised by the earlier of contractual repricing or maturity dates.

At 31 December 2014

Financial assets:

Cash and balances with the central bank 57,293 - - - - 107 57,400
Decgﬁzi:?i:g;hcg T?::tiﬂfons 781,916 212,673 1125 16 - 9296 1,005,026
" e fnanc ittt 2t - - - - -
F'ﬁg;'tac')f;s:sts atfair value through 13,472 17,355 11,221 4,109 - 49,638 95,795
Derivative financial assets - - - - - 18,965 18,965
F”;Z’:Z;'ﬂiif:ts neld under resale 1,081,406 2412 500 - - - 1084318
Loans and advances to customers, net 4,213,995 2,947,549 228,538 148,736 130,533 - 7,669,351
Available-for-sale financial assets 20,727 31,921 72,365 19,492 2,891 24,571 171,967
Held-to-maturity investments 293 - 1,999 - - - 2,292
Debt securities classified as receivables 4,331 449 9,613 4,675 = = 19,068
Other financial assets 14,932 3,243 = = = 36,610 54,785
Total financial assets 6,207,860 3,215,602 325,361 177,028 133,424 139,187 10,198,462
Financial liabilities:

De;;’zi:?i;Z’rzislai:z;ti';ins 286,415 108248 1,001,055 - - 12,758 1,408,476
Bof::;vgggls i:;ir?uﬁ;’:zmmems and 130,561 285,806 29,597 399 5010 - 451373
Placements from banks 63,037 13,062 = = = = 76,099
Fir;)e;z;ita;rlilbsi!ties at fair value through 6.225 2070 ~ - - ~ 8205
Derivative financial liabilities - - - - - 9,518 9,518
Fir;zr;zf:ﬂaeiisets sold under repurchase 20161 4862 3012 - - - 28,035
Due to customers 943,214 93,776 29,313 6,185 13,113 2,111 1,087,712
Debt securities issued 1,165,017 1,205,930 2,046,875 1,395,183 550,554 = 6,353,559
Other financial liabilities 1,540 1,574 3,998 = = 146,469 153,581
Total financial liabilities 2,606,170 1,715,328 3,113,850 1,401,767 568,677 170,856 9,576,648
Total interest repricing gap 3,601,690 1,500,274  (2,788,489) (1,224,739 (435,253) (31,669) 621,814
At 31 December 2013

Total financial assets 4,337,874 3,132,934 253,260 108,351 115,666 139,440 8,087,525
Total financial liabilities 2,081,375 1,902,094 1,677,599 1,199,987 588,389 128,932 7,578,376

Total interest repricing gap 2,256,499 1,230,840 (1,424,339)  (1,091,636) (472,723) 10,508 509,149
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Sensitivity analysis of net interest income and other comprehensive income

The following table illustrates the potential impact of a parallel upward or downward shift of 100 basis points in all financial instruments'
yield curves on the Group's net interest income and other comprehensive income, based on the Group's positions of interest-bearing
assets and liabilities at the end of each reporting period.

2014 2013
. Other . Other
L 'i:t(:e;ems; comprehensive hat li:tce;ﬁqs; comprehensive
income income
Rise 100 basis points 37,141 (3,113) 24,360 (3,091)
Fall 100 basis points (37,141) 3,267 (24,360) 3,238

The sensitivity analysis on net interest income for a year is based on reasonably possible changes in interest rates with the assumption
that the structure of financial assets and financial liabilities held at the period end remains unchanged.

The sensitivity analysis on other comprehensive income is the effect of certain changes in interest rates on fair value changes on fixed rate
available-for-sale financial assets held at the period end.

The assumption does not represent the Group's capital and interest rate risk management policy. Therefore the above analysis may differ
from the actual situation. In addition, the impact of interest rate fluctuation is only for illustrating purpose, showing the potential impact on
net interest income and equity of the Group under different yield structures and current interest rate risk situation. The impact did not take
into account the risk management procedures that management may take to mitigate the interest rate risk.

(b) Foreign exchange risk

The Group takes on exposure to the effects of fluctuations in the prevailing foreign currency exchange rates on its financial position and
cash flows.

The Group conducts the majority of its businesses in RMB, with certain foreign currency transactions in USD, Euros ("EUR"), Japanese Yen
("JPY") and to a much lesser extent, other currencies. Through foreign currency swaps, the Group maintains its foreign currency risk mainly
in USD. The value of the RMB depreciated by 0.36% against the USD during the year ended 31 December 2014(2013: appreciation 3.09%).

The Group measured the impact of exchange rate risk on operation principally by using foreign currency exposure, sensitivity analysis,
Earning at Risk ("EaR") and Value-at-Risk (VaR). And the Group implements asset & liability management and hedging instrument to
mitigate the foreign exchange risk.

The table below summarises the Group's exposure to foreign currency exchange rate risk at the end of the reporting period. RMB amounts
are provided for comparative purposes. Included in the table are the Group's assets and liabilities at carrying amounts in RMB, categorised
by the original currency.

RMB usD Others Total
At 31 December 2014
Financial assets:
Cash and balances with the central bank 57,345 52 8 57,400
Deposits with banks and other financial institutions 866,093 116,943 21,990 1,005,026
Placements with banks and other financial institutions 12,700 6,795 - 19,495
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 79,326 12,5617 3,952 95,795
Derivative financial assets 8,916 9,449 600 18,965
Financial assets held under resale agreements 1,084,318 - - 1,084,318
Loans and advances to customers, net 6,107,192 1,452,328 109,831 7,669,351
Available-for-sale financial assets 164,513 1,671 5,783 171,967
Held-to-maturity investments 2,292 - - 2,292
Debt securities classified as receivables 18,976 35 57 19,068
Other financial assets 43,031 10,606 1,148 54,785




Total financial assets

Financial liabilities:

Deposits from banks and other financial institutions
Borrowings from governments and financial institutions
Placements from banks

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
Derivative financial liabilities

Financial assets sold under repurchase agreements

Due to customers

Debt securities issued

Other financial liabilities

Total financial liabilities

Net on-balance sheet position

Currency forwards and swaps (Contractual/nominal amount)
Credit commitments

At 31 December 2013

Total financial assets

Total financial liabilities

Net on-balance sheet position

Currency forwards and swaps (Contractual/nominal amount)

Commitments to extend credit

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RMB usD Others Total
8,444,702 1,610,396 143,364 10,198,462
1,184,375 211,343 12,758 1,408,476

117,073 314,775 19,525 451,373
44,265 28,634 3,200 76,099
8,295 = = 8,295
4,073 4,983 462 9,618
28,035 = = 28,035
938,353 107,523 41,836 1,087,712
6,327,376 25,243 940 6,353,559
146,407 5,417 1,757 153,581
8,798,252 697,918 80,478 9,576,648
(353,550) 912,478 62,886 621,814
641,744 (590,402) (48,440) 2,902
2,778,843 287,759 22,759 3,089,361
6,434,786 1,501,119 151,620 8,087,625
6,837,013 655,202 86,161 7,678,376
(402,227) 845,917 65,459 509,149
581,041 (528,574) (49,717) 2,750
1,726,845 289,868 31,347 2,048,060

The table below summarises the effect of exchange gain or losses given a 1% possible movement in exchange rate of USD against RMB:

Possible movement in exchange rate of USD against RMB
Rise 1%

Fall 1%

In determining the exchange gain or losses due to the possible exchange movements, simplified assumptions and scenarios are adopted

and do not take into account:

2014 2013

Gain/(losses)

8,605 7,721

(8,605) (7,721)

Gain/(losses)

* changes in the Group's open USD position at end of the subsequent reporting period;

* the impact on the customers' behaviour due to the movement of the exchange rate;

* the effect of economic hedge on the Group's open USD position through certain derivatives transactions; and

* the impact on market price as a result of the movement of exchange rate.

Py
S
=

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk when although the Group is able to meet its payment obligations associated with its financial liabilities, however
is unable to rise enough funds at a reasonable cost to meet the assets enhancement needs or to replace funds when they are withdrawn.

The consequence may be the failure to meet obligations to repay debtors and depositors and fulfill commitments to lend.

The Group has established a set of liquidity management policies and models to mitigate the liquidity risk effectively. The policy and

models include the method of forecasting and monitoring of future cash flow, stress testing scenarios, plans for emergency, and etc.
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In 2014, the Bank issued debt securities to fulfill its funding
requirements. In accordance with the approval from the CBRC,
all RMB bonds issued by the Bank will continue to enjoy their
current sovereign debt credit rating till the end of 2015.

Obijective of liquidity risk management and process

The Group is exposed to daily calls on its available cash
resources from current accounts, maturing deposits, debt
securities issued, loan drawdown, guarantees and other calls on
cash settled derivatives.

To ensure the mismatching of the cash flow and the maturities of
assets and liabilities within a reasonable scale is the fundamental
mission of the Group. It is impracticable for the Group to be
completely matched since business transactions are often of
uncertain terms and of different types. An unmatched position
potentially enhances profitability, but runs the risk of incurring
losses. The Group strives to manage its mismatched positions
within a reasonable range.

Liquidity risk management is performed by the ALCO. The
Treasury Department is the executive function department for
detailed daily operating. The Group's liquidity and funding
management process includes:

* Projecting cash flows by major currency and considering the
level of liquid assets necessary in relation thereto;

* Monitoring balance sheet liquidity gaps;
* Managing the concentration and profile of debt maturities; and
* Maintaining debt financing plans.

The Group does not maintain cash resources to meet all of
these liquidity needs as the Group has the ability to refinance by
issuing new debts in the market. In addition, experience shows
that a minimum level of re-investment of maturing funds such
as term deposit from customers can be predicted with a high
level of certainty. Management maintains an appropriate level of
highly liquid assets to cover withdrawals at unexpected levels of
demand.

Past due/ on Within 1
At 31 December 2014
31 December 20 undated demand month
Non-derivative financial assets
Cash and balances with the 1,081 56,320 B

central bank

Deposits with banks and other

' e 276 760,328 28,680
financial institutions

Placements with banks and

other financial institutions N N e
Financial assets at fair value 49,638 3015 1,069
through profit or loss
Financial assets held under B ~ 1,000,901
resale agreements
Loans and advances to customers, net 10,929 - 87,224
Available-for-sale financial assets 24,571 = 6,705
Held-to-maturity investments - - 1
Debt securities classified as receivables 122 22 278

Other financial assets 40 1,411 67

The Group does not generally expect third-party to draw all of its
fund under letters of guarantees issued and or letters of credit
issued. The total outstanding contractual amount of commitment
to extend to credit does not necessarily represent future cash
requirements, since some of these commitment will either expire
or terminate due to the customers' inability to fulfill the conditions
of drawdown.

Financial instruments liquidity analysis

Sources of liquidity are regularly reviewed by the Group to
maintain a wide diversification by provider, product, term
currency and geography.

The Group’s policy is to seek a long-term healthy balance
between its funding requirements and demand from investors by
maintaining a presence in, and regularly returning to, the debt
capital markets for required funds under its different funding
programs. Each of the Group’s annual funding requirements are
met through the issuance of either fixed rate or floating rate plain
vanilla debt securities and debt securities with embedded options
that allow the Group or the bond holders to redeem them prior
to the bonds’ respective maturity. However, bonds with options
to redeem only comprise a small portion of all bonds issued. At
31 December 2014, the long-term (with a maturity of one year
or longer) debt securities issued of the Group was amounting
to RMB5,557,969 million, and other long-term debts (include
deposits from banks and other financial institutions, borrowings
from governments and financial institutions, placements from
banks, financial assets sold under repurchase agreements and
due to customers) was amounting to RMB1,211,551 million.

The table below presents the cash flows payable by the
Group under non-derivative financial instrument by remaining
contractual maturities at the end of each reporting period as
well as cash flows from derivatives, whether settled in net or
gross. The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual
undiscounted cash flows. The cash flow of financial instruments
estimated by the Group may have significant difference with the
table as below:

1-3 3-12 1-5 5-10  Over 10 Total
months months years years years
- - - - - 57,401
1,315 214,334 1,142 16 - 1,006,091
2,268 = = = = 19,537
9,870 17,161 13,482 7,100 - 101,335
84,170 2,584 616 - - 1,088,271
219,756 1,395,342 4,246,284 2,750,354 2,018,333 10,728,222
13,493 32,695 74,647 22,413 3,447 177,871
1563 1,088 2,958 89 = 4,289
513 4,005 12,439 4,803 = 22,182
418 4,761 9,317 5,599 2,585 24,198
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Total non-derivative financial assets 86,657 821,096 1,142,194 331,956 1,671,870 4,360,885 2,790,374 2,024,365 13,229,397

Non-derivative financial liabilities

Deposits from banks and

other financial institutions - 78,066 474,716 16,193 147,222 1,106,917 - - 1823114
Bottoulng ffom doverments and - 38 20508 71768 241010 112915 3479 5899 464617
Placements from banks = = 48,993 14,570 13,227 = = = 76,790
Financial liabilities at fair value B B 1,067 5.214 2147 B B _ 8.428

through profit or loss
Financial assets sold under B B 16,225 4,060 5.216 3141 B B 28,64

repurchase agreements
Due to customers = 853,394 22,321 46,431 108,649 46,338 9,775 22,225 1,109,133
Debt securities issued = = 102,598 210,697 753,338 3,937,572 2,073,577 971,881 8,049,663
Other financial liabilities 12 3,837 202 189 4,943 8,171 2,887 311 20,552
Total non-derivative financial liabilities 12 935335 695630 369,122 1275752 5215054 2,089,718 1,000,316 11,580,939
Derivative cash flows
Derivatives settled on a net basis
Net inflow = = 26 = 125 935 1,358 5,280 7,724
Derivatives settled on a gross basis:
Total inflow = = 208,641 184,809 787,808 20,251 247 774 1,202,530
Total outflow = - (207,791) (182,738) (776,097)  (19,791) (185) (704) (1,187,306)
At31 December 2013 PZ:L:;]eed/ demagz W::Ji:t:\ mon:r;z moi;:: ye;;g yz;:rg ov;;;r(s] Total
Non-derivative financial assets
Cis:nfrzldbﬁinces i the 686 42,171 - - - - - - 4887
Defﬁ]ﬁtcsia‘?’ii:;ﬁfn:”d oter - 126769 5,981 3547 266002 - 81 - 402670
e - - em awm mw - - - ud
F":srnocdjha;rs;‘if ;t ‘fj;rsva'“e 31,983 - 736 6504 10680 8,590 1,634 - 60t
F"::z;i:‘aagsfezt:n:;'s under - o 231214 111,352 5,811 17 - - 348394
Loans and advances to customers, net 3,823 - 45,956 213,832 1,358,120 3,817,596 2421811 1,801,500 9,662,638
Available-for-sale financial assets 15,229 - 8,746 13,215 20,602 87,583 25,105 5,295 175,775
Held-to-maturity investments - - - 1,705 1,886 2,270 - - 5,861
Debt securities classified as receivables - 5 8 433 6,999 4,212 3,699 - 15,356
Other financial assets 6 873 55 88 1,652 2,608 3,165 1 8,448
Total non-derivative financial assets 51,727 169,818 350,388 352,775 1,701,385 3,922,876 2455495 1,806,796 10,811,260
Non-derivative financial liabilities
Deposits from banks and - 80230 905 5087 201626 47,023 598 - 425469

other financial institutions
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At 31 December 2013

Borrowings from governments and
financial institutions

Placements from banks

Financial assets sold under
repurchase agreements

Due to customers

Debt securities issued

Other financial liabilities
Total non-derivative financial liabilities
Derivative cash flows
Derivatives settled on a net basis
Net inflow
Derivatives settled on a gross basis:
Total inflow

Total outflow

Past due/ on  Within 1 1-3 3-12 1-5 5-10  Over 10 Total
undated  demand month months months years years years

- - 27,063 67,829 125,021 245,582 5,839 6,293 477,627

- - 9,611 9,776 16,654 - - - 36,041

- - 14,760 3,418 4,955 2,487 - - 25,620

- 500,661 12,684 25,660 80,682 54,811 9,462 21,640 705,600

- - 95,159 148,571 691,098 3,432,197 2,160,021 965,312 7,492,358

285 2,019 151 951 5,323 4,022 5 1,060 13,816

285 582,910 160,333 261,292 1215359 3,786,122 2,175,925 994,305 9,176,531

- - 14 54 216 775 1,251 5,108 7,418

- - 11,008 57,299 564,174 54,699 449 799 688,428

- - (11,307) (57,184)  (552,142) (51,963) (384) (715)  (673,695)

Letters of guarantee issued, letters of credit issued, bank bill acceptance and loan commitments are included below based on the earliest

contractual maturity date.

At 31 December 2014 Umonh  monhs  momhe  yews  yews  yews @
Loan commitments 1,495,009 69,761 422,461 933,593 30,960 - 2,951,784
Letters of guarantee issued 3,230 406 10,412 31,781 32,526 636 78,991
Bank bill acceptance 4,533 9,201 23,082 - - - 36,816
Letters of credit issued 6,065 8,213 6,847 645 = - 21,770
Total 1,508,837 87,581 462,802 966,019 63,486 636 3,089,361
At 31 December 2013 808,883 101,292 450,373 579,579 103,457 4,476 2,048,060

(5) Fair value of financial assets and liabilities

The best evidence of fair value for a financial instrument is the bid price for the asset held or the offer price for the liability issued in an
active market. If the market for a financial instrument is not active, fair value is determined using valuation techniques. The valuation
technique makes maximum use of observable market data and relies as little as possible on the Group specific inputs. In other words,
the valuation techniques adopted by the Group incorporate all factors that market participants could consider in setting a price, and are
consistent with accepted economic methodologies for pricing financial instruments.

(a) Financial instruments measured at fair value

Fair value hierarchy of financial instruments measured at fair value

At 31 December 2014

Financial assets

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Derivative financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets

Total

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
Derivative financial liabilities

Total

At 31 December 2013

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
11,867 37,140 46,788 95,795
- 18,965 18,965
13,309 142,125 16,533 171,967
25,176 198,230 63,321 286,727
= (8,295) = (8,295)

= (9,518) = (9,518)

— (17,813) — (17,813)




Financial assets

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Derivative financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets

Total

Financial liabilities

Derivative financial liabilities

Total
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Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
1,335 25,040 31,140 57,5615

- 14,911 16 14,927
16,544 129,281 1,517 147,342
17,879 169,232 32,673 219,784
- (10,504) - (10,504)

- (10,504) - (10,504)

Transferring between level 1 and level 2 during 2014 and 2013 was insignificant.

The following table gives information about how the fair values of these financial assets and financial liabilities are determined (in particular,

the valuation techniques and key inputs used).

Fair value
A 9 9 A TN at 31
Financial assets/financial liabilities peceLben
2014
Financial assets at fair value through 6.151
profit or loss-Debt securities '
Financial assets at fair value through 3802
profit or loss-Stock and fund '
Financial assets at fair value through 1914
profit or loss-Equity investments '
Available-for-sale financial assets- 5071
Debt securities '
Available-for-sale financial assets- 8.038
Equity investments '
Financial assets at fair value through 28,549
profit or loss-Debt securities !
Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss-Wealth management 120
products and others
Financial assets at fair value through 30
profit or loss-Stock and fund
Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss-Interbank certificate of 146
deposit
Financial assets at fair value through 8095
profit or loss-Asset management plans '
Financial liabilities at fair value through (8,295)
profit or loss-Asset management fund '
Available-for-sale financial assets-

Debt securities {5267
Available-for-sale financial assets- 6.454
Interbank certificate of deposit !

Derivative financial assets-
Currency swaps (including cross- 10,298
currency interest rate swaps)

Derivative financial liabilities-
Currency swaps (including cross- (2,190)
currency interest rate swaps)

Derivative financial assets- 179
Currency forward contracts

Derivative financial liabilities- (172)
Currency forward contracts

Derivative financial assets- 7814
Interest rate swaps !

Derivative financial liabilities- (6,735)

Interest rate swaps

Fair value
at 31
December
2013

492

90

753

7,650

8,894

25,040

125,983

3,298

6,698

(2,735)

(121)

6,960

(7,221)

Fair value
hierarchy

Level 1

Level 2

Level 2

Level 2

Level 2

Valuation technique(s) and key input(s)

Quoted bid prices in an active market (for
example, Shanghai Stock Exchange).

Discounted cash flow. Future cash flows are
estimated based on forward interest rate (from
observable yield curves at the end of the
reporting period), face amount and contract
interest rates, discounted at a rate that reflects
the credit risk of various counterparties.

Discounted cash flow. Future cash flows are
estimated based on forward interest rate (from
observable yield curves at the end of the
reporting period), face amount and contract
interest rates, discounted at a rate that reflects
the credit risk of various counterparties.

Discounted cash flow. Future cash flows are
estimated based on forward interest rate (from
observable yield curves at the end of the
reporting period), face amount and contract
interest rates, discounted at a rate that reflects
the credit risk of various counterparties.

Discounted cash flow. Future cash flows are
estimated based on forward interest rate (from
observable yield curves at the end of the
reporting period), face amount and contract
interest rates, discounted at a rate that reflects
the credit risk of various counterparties.

Significant
unobservable
input(s) (i)

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

Relationship of
unobservable
input(s) to

fair value

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A
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Fair value Fair value Relationship of

: Significant
. : ) 1 Akl at 31 at31  Fair value ] : : unobservable
Financial assets/financial liabilities December December hierarchy Valuation technique(s) and key input(s) un?rl])sStrng(lie) input(s) to
2014 2013 P fair value
Derivative financial assets- 260 698
Currency options Black-Scholes Option Pricing Model. Black-
Scholes Option Pricing Model is estimated based
Derivative financial assets- on forward interest rates (from observable yield
Interest rate options 2 a2 Level 2 curves at the end of the reporting period) and N/A N/A
contract exercise price, volatility that reflects the
Derivative financial liabilities- 421) 427) credit risk of various counterparties.
Interest rate options
Financial ~ rar \glgﬁ Fa"‘ﬁ'g? Fair value ; . : Significant Relationship of
assets/financial Decenber December  hierarch Valuation technique(s) and key input(s)  unobservable unobservable input(s)
liabilities ¥ input(s) (i) to fair value
2014 2013
Price to book value ratio of the
comparable companies, taking
Derivative financial into account management's The higher the price to book
assets-Share = 16 Level 3 Binomial-Tree Option Pricing Model. experience and knowledge value ratio, the lower the fair
option of market conditions of the value.
specific industries, ranging
from 3.08 t0 9.33
Rent capitalization method: the project value is - .
140 136 Level 3 converted by the expected future annual rent memcasq/talt\(z)at%c?no/rat(s&er‘anﬂgg The higher the capital ratio,
divided by net project appropriate capitalization average Zf 10 167:) 9 the lower the fair value
rate ’
The weighted average cost of The higher the weighted
capital, between 4.2% to 17% average cost of capital, the
(weighted average of 8.84%)  lower the fair value
Liquidity discount, ranging The higher the liquidity
from 10% to 20% (weighted discount, the lower the fair
0y
Discounted cash flow method; future cash flow 8V6ra9® of 13.63%) value
Financial assets estimates based on the estimated recoverable g et o1 growth rate, ranging The higher the perpetual
at fair value 33,852 26,850 Level 3 amount, according to management based o fop 59, "to 3% (weighted growth rate, the higher the fair
through profit the best estimate of the average cost of capital average of 2.3%) value
or loss-Equit is expected to level of risk as determined by '
. auly discounting. Minority interest discount of The higher the minority interest
investments 20% (weighted average of discount, the lower the fair
20%) value
. i The higher the probability
Listed probability of 30% ot . ;
(weighted average of 30%) of listing, the higher the fair
value
Market Approach : refer to inputs similar to
industry-related index comparable companies . . . . , L
on the market, fair value of the project is L|qmd|t¥> d\sco%nt, ranging The higher the liquidity
9,900 4,154 Level 3 calculated after considering the liquidity from 20% to 30/; (weighted  discount, the lower the fair
discount sector average of 26.99%) value
The main input: Industry liquidity discount
Financial assets
at fair value Market Approach :Similar to industry-

i related index comparable companies on the . . : ) . Lo
through profit reference market, fair value is calculated L|qU|d|t¥, d‘scognt ranging The higher the liquidity
or loss-Wealth 2,896 - Level 3 after considering the liquidity discount sector from 20% to SOOA (weighted discount, the lower the fair
management investment projects average of 26.99%) value
products and The main input value: Industry liquidity discount
others

Available- | Market Approach :Similar to industry-

vallable-lor-sale related index comparable companies on the . . ‘ ) N
financial assets- reference market, fair value is calculated L|qu|d|t¥ d\scouont, ranging The higher the liquidity
Equity 16,533 1,517 Level 3 after considering the liquidity discount sector from 30% too404, (weighted discount, the lower the fair
‘ investment projects average of 35%) value

investments

The main input value: Industry liquidity discount

(i) At the balance sheet date, when the Group uses some unobservable inputs when assessing the fair value of third level financial
instruments. If the change happened to one or more unobservable inputs in a reasonably possible alternative assumption, these
will not be significant impact on assessing the fair value of financial instruments.
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Reconciliation of level 3 items is listed as follows:

Financial assets Financial liabilities

Financial assets at Derivative Available- Total Derivative

fair value through financial for-sale financial financial

profit or loss assets financial assets assets liabilities

At 1 January 2014 31,140 16 1,517 32,673 -

Total gain 2,136 8 4,282 6,426 -

- gain 2,114 8 - 2,122 -

— other comprehensive income 22 - 4,282 4,304 -

Sales (2,308) (24) (1,611) (3,943) =

Addition 21,425 - 12,022 33,447 -

Settlements 1,395 - 323 1,718 -

Transfer out from level 3 (7,000) - - (7,000) =

At 31 December 2014 46,788 - 16,533 63,321 -

Total gain for the year for assets/

liabilities held at 31 December 2014

- included in profit or loss 2,114 8 - 2,122 -

- included in other comprehensive income 22 - 4,449 4,471 -

Financial assets Financial liabilities

Financial assets at Derivative Available- Total Derivative

fair value through financial for-sale financial financial

profit or loss assets financial assets assets liabilities

At 1 January 2013 28,031 3,373 1,229 32,633 (3,325)

Total gain/(losses) 91 (1,516) 319 (1,106) 1,520

- gain/(losses) 91 (1,516) - (1,425) 1,520

- other comprehensive income - - 319 319 -

Sales (2,638) - (31) (2,669) -

Addition 5,656 - - 5,656 -

Settlements - (186) - (186) 150

Transfer out from level 3 - (1,655) - (1,655) 1,655

At 31 December 2013 31,140 16 1,517 32,673 -

Total gain for the year for assets/

liabilities held at 31 December 2013

- included in profit or loss 92 4 - 96 -

—included in other comprehensive income - - 319 319 -

For some OTC structured derivatives, the Group has determined their fair value through valuation services provided by the third-party
instead of inquiry from counterparties, and the main inputs used are observable. Therefore, the Group has transferred them into Level 2.

(b) Financial instruments not measured at fair value

In respect of assets and liabilities carried at other than fair value, the following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair
value of each class of financial instruments for which it is practicable.

(i) Cash and balances with the central bank, deposits with banks and other financial institutions, financial assets purchased under
resale agreements, deposits from financial institutions, current account balances of customers, financial assets sold under repurchase
agreements, current receivables or payables within other assets and other liabilities respectively.

Given that these financial assets and liabilities are short-term in nature and reprice to current market rates frequently, the carrying amount
approximates the fair value.

(i) Investment securities classified as held to maturity and debt securities classified as receivables

The fair value of listed securities is estimated using bid market price. The fair value of unlisted securities is estimated using valuation
techniques that take into consideration future cash flows and valuations of similar quoted securities.

(i) Loans and advances to customers

The carrying amount of variable rate loans and advances to customers is a reasonable estimate of fair value because interest rates are
mainly tied to the market rates and are adjusted when applicable. The fair value of fixed rate loans to customers is estimated using a
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discounted cash flow analysis utilising the rates currently offered for loans of similar remaining maturities. For impaired loans, fair value is
estimated by discounting the future cash flows over the time period, which they are expected to be recovered.

(iv) Fixed interest-bearing deposits and borrowings

The fair value of fixed interest-bearing deposits and borrowings is estimated using a discounted cash flow analysis utilising the rates
currently offered for deposits and borrowings with similar remaining maturities.

(v) Debt securities and subordinated debt issued

The fair value of debt securities is determined using quoted market prices where available or by reference to quoted market prices for
similar instruments. For those securities where quoted market prices or quoted market prices for similar instruments are not available,
a discounted cash flow model is used based on a current yield curve appropriate for the remaining term to maturity. The type of the fair
value hierarchy is level 2.

The estimated fair values of financial instruments, of which the respective amortised cost are different, at the end of each reporting period
are summarised as follows:

31 December 2014 31 December 2013
Amortised cost Fair value  Amortised cost Fair value
Debt securities issued 6,353,559 6,397,268 5,840,590 5,499,411

(6) Capital management

The Group's objectives when managing capital, which is a broader concept than the "equity" presented on the face of the consolidated
statement of financial position, are:

* to comply with the capital requirements set by the regulators of the banking markets where the entities within the Group operate;
* to safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going concern so that it can continue to provide returns for shareholders; and
* to maintain a strong capital base to support the development of its business.

Capital adequacy and the utilization of regulatory capital are closely monitored by the management in accordance with the guidelines
developed by the Basel Committee and relevant regulations promulgated by the CBRC. Required information related to capital levels and
utilization is filed quarterly with the CBRC.
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